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Who We Are

Halma employs over 5,400 people in nearly

50 subsidiary businesses based in 23 countries.
Our companies and products are diverse but
we have a core focus on safety, health and
environmental markets.

Through innovation and acquisition, we

have developed a portfolio of market-leading
companies within our four sectors:

Process Safety, Infrastructure Safety, Medical,
and Environmental & Analysis.

Our technology is used to save lives, prevent injuries,
and protect people and assets around the world.

On energy pipelines, in airports and even
underground, our products are detecting hazards,
stopping accidents and actively ensuring safety.

We develop products that secure and protect the
elements critical to healthy lives. They analyse air for
poliutants and water for drinking. They make medical
diagnosis faster, treatments more effective, and even
give sight back to the blind.

Our business is protecting life and improving
quality of life for people worldwide.
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Highlights

Revenue* {(£m)

£726.1mM +7%

Adjusted profit before taxation* (Em)

£2153.6m +10%

Continuing and discontinued

Continuing and discontinued

Dividend paid and proposed

11 96p +7% per share

Financial highlights

£m)

Continuing operations 2015 2014  Change
Revenue £726.1m RGIGERN +7%

Retumn on sales (%)

21.2%

Adjusted Profit before Taxation' BN £140 2m +10%

Adjusted Eamings per Share? 31.17p 2847p +9%
Statutory Profit before Taxation® £133.6m Rkl -4%
Statutory Earnings per Share? 27.49p 2814p -2%
Total Drdend per Share* 11.96p 1117p +7%
Retumn on Sales® 21.2% 207%
Retum on Total Invested Capral® 16.3% 16 7%
Net Debt £100.9m £745m

Pro-forma information

' Adusted to remove the amorbsahion of ecqured intangebla assaets, acquisition items profit or loss
on disposal of operations and the effects of dosure to future bensfit accrual ot the Defined Benefit
pensian plans net of associated costs {prior year only totalling £20 Om (2014 €1 6m) See nota 1
10 the Accounts

2 Adusted to remove the amorisation of acqured iIntangible assets acguisition tems  profit of loss
on disposal of operations the effects of closure to future benefit accrual of the Defined Benefit
pension plans net of associated costs (prior year only) and the assoctated tax thereon See note 2
to the Accounts

3 Statutory profit before taxaton and statutory earmings per share were below the prior year because
of redits ansing n 2014 due lo revisions io the estimates of contngent considerabion payabie on
pnor years acquistions and from the closure 1o future accrual of the Defined Benwfit penston
plans See notes 1 and 2 to the Accounts

* Total dvidend paid and proposad per share

*  Return on Sales 1s defined as adjusted' profit before taxabon from conbruing operahons expressed
85 8 parcentage of ravenue from Contrung operatons

*  OQrganic growth rates and Return on Total Invested Capital (ROTIC) are non GAAP performance
measires used by management ROTIC 15 now calculated using the average Total Invested
Capetat. The pnor year has been restated See note 3 to the Accounts
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Investment Proposition

Halma delivers sustained shareholder value. We consistently achieve
record profits, high retums, and strong cash flows with low levels

of balance sheet gearing. We have a 36-year track record of growing
dividend payments by 5% or more every year.

Our strategy 1s to have a diverse group of businesses buillding strong competrtive advantage

in specialised safety, health and environmental technology markets with resilent growth dnvers,
These growth dnvers include ncreasing Health and Safety regulation, demand for healthcare
and demand for life-cntical resources. They ensure that the need for our products Is sustained, in
both developed and developing regions, through penods of significant macro-economic change.

Organic growth generates the resources we use to fund acquistions and keep increasing
dmdends We generate organic growth by increasing levels of investment in people
development, new product development and In establishing platforms for our businesses
o grow In International markets

Qur portfolio consists of small to medium-sized manufacturing businesses operatng in 23 countries

and we have major operations n Europe, the USA and Asia. Our pnincipal customer sectors are
commercial and public buldings, utiities, healthcare/medical, science/ervironment, process
ndustres and energy/resources This market diversity contributes to our ability 1o sustain growth
through economic cychcalty

We manage the mix of businesses n our Group to ensure we can sustan strong growth and
retumns over the long term We acquire businesses to accelerate penetration of more atiractive
market niches, we merge businesses when market charactenstics change and we exit markets
which offer less attractive long-term growth and returmns through carefully planned disposals

Halma's reslient market qualites, sustained investment in organic growth and active portfolio
management position us strongly to mantain high levels of performance and create shareholder
value In the future.
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Chairman’s Statement

Structured for growth

This has been another successful year for Halma demonstrating
the breadth and strength of our portfolic of companies which
are focused on protecting life and mproving the quality of Iife for
people worldwide

L_ast year we announced a significant organisation change in the
Group into the four market sectors that we operate in and that the
composition of the Executive Board was to be aligned with these
sectors | am pleased to report that the transiion of the organisation
Into this new structure has gone extramely well while at the same

ime retaning the important elements of local management and
entrepreneurship in the businesses We also bslieve that this structure
provides more opportunity to improve succession planning for senior
management as there Is clearer visibiity of talent and emerging talent
In the respective sectors

Dunng the financial year we acquired three businesses in the Process
Safety, Infrastructure Safety and Medical sectors for a total cost of
£84m These busingsses have been successiully mtegrated into ther
respectve sectors and are all performing In iine with our expectatons
on acquisiion |t s encouraging that at the start of this new financial
year, we have a strong pipeline of potertial acquisitions fdentifying
sutable acquistions 1s an mportant part of our long-term growth
mode! and | believe that the Sector CEOs will broaden our M&A actmty
as they focus on the future needs of the markets in which they cperate

The continuing success at Halma 1s a tribute to the outstanding
efforts of our talented workforce and a culture that encourages
innovation and strong local decision making

In Apnl 2015 we held our biennia! leadership conference with 250+
people from around the business, this was a great opportunity for

our colleagues and the Board to be rvolved and expenence the
development and innovaton of products and services in the last year
This event has certainly created a healtty competitive culture to be
the most innovative company inthe Group In addition, the significant
progress that has been made in driving collaboration between the
busnesses, not only on a sector basis but also across sectors, was
pleasingly evdent The examples of businesses shanng technology
and know-how with each other, and case studies of how collaboration
has enhanced product offenng in the marketplace were numerous
Such an nnovative culture and the success in our coliaborative efforts
create an mportant platform for future growth at Haima

Governance

The Board continues to mantan a focused and disciptined approach
to governance and | befieve that a strong governance structure can
be one of the pnncipal supports for producing outstanding revenue

growth, successful acquisttions and the continued expansion of our
business through innovation The Board alsc remains focused on
ensurng Its own effectiveness and the effectiveness of governance
processes throughout the Group It was therefore pleasing that the
external Board evaluation this year hightighted the Board's strength
and the value it bnngs to the Group

Durng the year | was delighted to welcome Roy Twite and Tony Rice
as non-executive Directors to the Halma Board Roy and Tony brng
valuable and different perspectives to our discussions as well as very
relevant engineenng experence

After 17 years of service, Nel Quinn retired from the Board in

May 2015 |, and my colleagues, would like to thank Neil for his
huge contnbution to the many businesses with which he has
worked successfully over a long penod of tme Neil’s leadership
style allowed businesses to fiounsh and retain their entrepreneunal
spint In true Halma style

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank Stephen Pettit,
our Senor Independent Director, for his significant contnbution and
wise counsel to the Company over the last 11+ years Stephen will
retire at the conclusion of our AGM in July after agreeing to stay on
for an extra year at last year's AGM after we had two unanticipated
Boeard retirements

Further information on Corperate Governance 1s included on pages
5510 65

Performance and dividend

This is the twelfth successive year of revenue, adusted profit

and dvidend growth which reflects the efforts of our very talented
workforce in our businesses around the world The Board and
Fwould like to thank all of our colleagues for thetr commitment

to dnving Innovative growth which in turmn delivers great value

for our shareholders

| amn pleased to report that revenue for the year increased by 7%
{2014 9%) to £726m (2014 £677m) with adjusted’ profit before tax
increasing by 10% (2014 9%) to £154m (2014 £140m) With half of
the profit ncrease coming from acquisiions, this sits nicely within our
financial KPPl objective of achieving at least a 5% contnbution from
acquisitions and at least another 5% organically

Once again, the Board 1s recommending a final dvidend increase
of 7% whichis 7 31p per share gving a total dwvdend for the year
of 11 96p The final dvidend per share is subject to approval by
shareholders at the AGM on 23 July 2015 and will be paid on

19 August 2015 to shareholders on the register at 17 July 2015
This marks the 36th consecutive year of dwvidend per share
Increases of 5% or more

Summary

Dunng a year of organisation change we have continued to make
great progress strategically, operationally, and financially However
there 1s no complacency in the changing markets In which we
operate Our prionties for 2016 are to continue to Improve focus on
our customers and ther needs through nnovation and our go-to-
market sirategies We are alsc upgrading our talent and education
programmes to ensure we have the best people to meet the growing
demands of our customers Akey component of this is to ensure
that diversity and inclusion are at the heart of our people agenda —
essential for a business operating In nternational markets

Finally | would like to, again, thank all of my colleagues for ther
considerable efforts in contnbuting to a successiul 2015 and Hook
forward to further progress in 2016

Paul Walker
Chairman

! See Financial Highlights
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Business at a Glance

Protecting life

Sectors

Process Safety

Preducts which protect assets and people at work
Specialsed interlocks which safely control critical
processes Instruments which detect flalmmable and
hazardous gases Explosion protection and corrosion
monitonng products

fRead more p32

infrastructure Safety

Products which detect hazards to protect assets
and people n public spaces and commercial
buldings Fire and smoke detectors, fire detection
systems, security sensors and audible/visual
waming devices Sensors used on automatic
doors and elevators n buldings and transportation

Read more p34

Contribution to
Group revenue

276

270

Financial
highlights

£159m £45m

Revenue Operating profit’

£234m £50m

Revenue Operating profit’

' See Note 1 tothe Accounts
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Improving quality of life

Medical

Products used to improve personal and public

health Dewvices used to assess eye health, assist

with eye surgery and pnmary care applicatons Fluidic
components such as pumps, probes, valves and
connectors used by medical diagnostic OEMs

Read more 36

Environmental & Analysis

Products and technologies for analysis in safety, Ife
sciences and environmental markets Market-leading
opto-electronic technology and gas conditioning
products Products to monitor water networks,

UV technology for disinfecting water, and water
qualtty testing products

Read more 38

376

376

£169m £45m

Revenue Operating profit’

£164m e27m

Revenue Operating profit’

® Process Salety

® Infrastructure Satety

® Medical

® Envronmentat 8 Analysis
® Comporate

Halma nle Annnal Renart and Aceonnte 2015

5

asuRWaAOL) |

sjoweIRlg [RIoued | |




Chief Executive’s Strategic Review

A record year with increased investment for the future

Halma has delivered a strong performance, achieving
record revenue and profit' for the twelfth consecutive year.
Widespread organic growth, three acquisitions and one
disposal once again demonstirated the benefits of having

a clear growth strategy, a simple financial model and a
customer-focused organisation.

Andrew Williams
Chief Executive
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These results, combined with increased nmvestment in talent,
innovation and ntermational expansion give us good momentum

for the future The sector-focused management structurs, introduced
n Apnl 2014, 1s well-established and ensures Halma can continue

to grow whilst hamessing our core values and operating culture

| have been particularly mpressed with the way in which our
operating companies continued to perform wel dunng this penod

of organisational change and thank all Halma employees for ther
contnbutions to ancther successful year

Good organic growth, high returns and strong

cash generation

Adusted' profit was up by 10% to £153 6m (2014 £140 2m) after
absorbing a 2% negative impact from currency Crgarve profit growth
was 7% at constant currency

Revenue increased by 7% to £726m (2014 £677m), after absorbing
a 2% negative impact from currency Organic revenue growth was
5% at constant currency

High retums were mantaned with Return on Sales increasing to

21 2% (2014 20 7%) Return on Capital Employed at the operating
company level remained exceptionally strong at 78% (2014 restated
77%) and Retum on Total Invested Caprtal [post-tax) was 16 3%
(2014 restated' 16 7%)

Strong cash generation ensured that we ended the financial year

with net debt of £101m (2014 £74m) after spending £23m on capital
expenditure (2014 £17m), £88m on current and pnor year acquisitions
(2014 £17m) and paying out £43m in dwidends (2014 £40m) to
shargholders and £31m (2014 £28m) of tax

Our balance sheet Is strong and we have revolving credit facilities
of up to £360m until November 2018 to support Investment N our
future growth

Widespread growth in all regions
We achieved organic constant currency revenue growth in all four
sectors and all maor regions

Revenue from the USA increased by 4% to £223m (2014 £214m)
Including organic constant currency growth of 7% UK revenue grew
by 8% to £138m (2014 £128m) and Maintand Europe revenue was up
by 2% to £167m {2014 £164m) with both Including organic constant
currency growth of 2%

Revenue from outside the USA, UK and Mainland Europe improved
by 16% to £197m (2014 £170rm), representing 27% of total Group
revenue (2014 25%) This included 5% orgamic constant cuirency
growth from China which, at £49m {2014 £47m), contributes 7% to
total Group revenue Strong growth in our two safety-related sectors
helped revenue from Africa, Near and Middle East grow by 33% to
£44m (2014 £33m)

Market snapshot

Macro-economic, regulatory and

competitive environment

Halma's strategy 15 to develop market positions pnmed for growth
over 10 years or more Growth strategies within each operating
cormpany are developed with three to five year honzons

Cur focus on the supply of safety, health and ervironmental related
products postions our businesses In relatively non-cyclical markets
with high barners to entry and long-term growth driven by

- increasing health and safety regulation
— Increasing demand for healthcare
— ncreasing demand for Iife-criical resources

Regulation underpins most of our markets, dnving sustaned
demand and often making customer spending non-discretionary
Qur companies’ strong market posttions leverage upgrade and
replacement sales opportunties as customers seek to maintan
compliance and conform to best practice

Our compeitve environment is influenced by global, regional and
national product approvals or technical validations Compliance
with new and updated product regulations is a steadily increasing
cost and technical challenge but our expertise n this area enables
us to respond quickly and buid competitive advantage

Halma 1s exposed to a very diverse range of niche markets,

each with its own unique conditions As a result, macro-economic
factors can affect our businesses very differently according to thesr
particular market and geographic exposure

Our approach is for local operating company management to
develop and execute therr own growth strategy and respond to
changes n therr specific markets Sector management teams
provide strategic support and oversight for wider-reaching and
longer term market dynamics More detalls are given in the sector
reviews on pages 32 to 39

All of the factors above provide our businesses with genuing
stability resiience in challenging economic conditions and organic
growth above prevaiing market rates This undertying, intnnsic
strength enables us to plan and to invest for the longer term

with confidence

For 2015/16, growth projections have been raised for the US
economy, which 1s our largest geographic market, possibly
opening the way for rewtalised R&D spending in markets such
as life sciences Fluctuations in the ol pnce have not substantally
impacted our business so far, as spending on highly-regulated
safety equipment 1s largely non-discretionary and the vast
maonty of our revenue comes from mid-stream or downstream
appltcations However, we are minciful that a sustained low od
pnce will eventually make our current high rates of growth in
Process Safety more difficult to maintain

Conditions in Europse and the UK are expected to support steady
growth, though the relative strength of Stering means that our
companes need to manage input costs and pricing closely

Growth in emerging markets 1 forecast to continue at around 4%
o 5% through 2015-16 Developing socio-economic conditions in
Asta and South Amenca are expected to fusl greater demand for
our products used to create safer workplaces, provide healthcare,
mprove infrastructure safety and manage Iife-cntical resources

Halma nir Anmial Rannrt and Annninints 2015
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review continued

Market snapshct

Increasing health and safety regulation

Employers throughout the world must comply with increasingly
sinct government laws and regulations to protect thewr workers,
the environment and therr assets from workplace hazards

In parallel with this increasing national regulation in developing
regions, many multinational employers based in the developed
world are extending their health and safety practices across their
global operations These factors drive demand for our Process
Safety and Infrastructure Safety products

The hurman cost of workplace accidents and diseases 1s
enomous The International Labour Organisation estmates
that 2 3 milton people around the world die each year from
work-related accidents or diseases That is over 8,000 fatalties
per day, or one person every 15 seconds

In addition, every year 313 millon work accidents occur, many
resulting n extended work absences Workplace injury and
occupational disease 1s a signficant economic burden on
national economies and businesses The financial impact of poor
occupational safety and health practice 1s due to absences from
work and sickness, disability benefits, compensation, iInterruption
of production and medical expenses These costs are estimated
to be as high as 4% of global GDP Above-average workplace
casualty rates in some countries are estimated to be costng up
to 10% of annual GDP

Safety and health at work standards and practices vary
considerably between countnes, economic sectors and sccial
groups Howaever, they are generally nsing and becoming more
closely algned Deaths and injunes take a particulary heavy toll In
developing countries, where a large part of the population may
work In hazardous conditions However, greater investment and
advances in occupational safety are reducing the number of fatal
accidents at work

Governments around the world are prompted by deaths and
injunes caused by accidents to introduce new and tougher
regulabons that protect people from harm in commercial buldings
and public places The contmuous introduction of new, mandatory
bullding codes affeching fire protection, bulding security,
automated doors and elevators dnves demand for our
Infrastructure Safety products

Organic revenue growth in afl sectors at

constant currency

Process Safety revenue grew by 25% to £159m (2014 £127m)
including organic constant cumency growth of 9% Profit? mproved
by an impressive 28% to £44 8m (2014 £34 9m) with organic
constant currency growth of 14% Returm on Sales increased

from 27 5% to 28 3%

Qrganic revenua growth in constant currency was strongest inthe
USA with good growth in Manland Europe and a small decline in
the UK, Asia Pacific and Afnca, Near and Middle East There was
an encouraging contnbuton fram Rohrback Cosasco Systems Inc
(RCS), the pipeline comosion monitonng product company acaured
N May 2014, which traded in line with expectatons

Infrastructure Safety revenus ncreased by 6% to £234m (2014
£220m) ncluding organic constant currency growth of 5% Profit?
was up by 12% to £50m (2014 £44 4m} ncluding organic constant
currency growth of 12% Return on Sales increased from 20 2%
to 21 4%

Organic revenue growth in constant currency was strongest in the
UK and Afnca, Near and Middle East with more modest growth in
the USA and Europe and a small decline in Asia Pacific Advanced
Electrorcs Limited, the UK-based fire detection control systems
manufacturer acquired in May 2014, performed well

In the Medical sector, revenue increased by 4% to £169m (2014
£163m) mcluding organic constant currency growth of 6% Profit?
improved by 9% to £45 4m (2014 £41 8m) including organic constant
currency growth of 10% Return on Sales increased from 25 6%

to 26 8%

There was strong organic constant currency revenue growth in the
USA, more modest increases in Mainland Europe and Asta Pacific
and a slight decline in the UK The integration of Plasticspntzerer AG,
acqured in May 2014, into our cphthalmic surgical device business,
Medicel, was completed to schedule and trading has been good for
the combined business

Environmental & Analysis revenue was £1684m (2014 £167m)
including & small crganic constant currency increase Profit? was
14% lower at £27 4m (2014 £317m) ncluding a 12% declne in
organic constant currency terms Return on Sales was 16 7%
(2014 191%)

After a disappointing first half year, operating performance improved
in the second half with organic constant currency revenue growth of
2%, providing encouragement for a more sustaned recovery In
revenue and profitability n 2015416

Regionally, In organic constant currency terms, revenue was down in
the USA and UK with the latter manly due to lower investment by UK
water utiities in the final year of ther five-year investrnent cycle There
was organic constant currency revenue growth in Mainland Eurcpe
and all other major regions (in particular Asia Pacific)
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“In the coming years, we expect
to benefit from our new sector-
focused structure which wil
provide greater resources to
SUPPOrt our acquistion activity.”

Three acquisitions completed and a good pipeline
Halma completed three acquisitions and one disposal dunng the year

The current M&A market remams competitive atthough cur pipeline
of opporturities remans good In the coming years, we expect to
benefit from our new sector-focused structure which will provide
greater resources to support our acquisition actvity

Our core strategy remains to continue to find prvately-owned
businesses in, or adiacent to, our exishng markets although each
sector has the freedom to find new niches which possess the nght
product, market and financial charactenstics

Every transaction 1s approved by the Group CEO and Finance
Director, with all deals worth meore than £10m alsc approved by the
Halma plc Board

All transactions in the year were completed in May 2014

- Plasticspritzerel AG, a Swiss-based suppher to our ophthaimic
surgical instrument company, Medicel, was acquired for
CHF6m {£4m), excluding the cash acquired This business was
immediately merged inte Medicel and contnbuted to the Medical
sector's performance

- Advanced Electronics Limited, a UK-based manufacturer of
networked fire detection and controf systems was acquired for
an inal cash consideration of £14m, excluding the cash acquired
Advanced operates as a stand-alone business within our
Infrastructure Safety sector

- Rohrback Cosasco Systems Inc , a Calformia-based manufacturer
of pipeline corrosion montonng systems was acguired for US$108m
(£64m), excluding the cash acquired RCS operates as a stand-
alone business within our Process Safety sector

— Monitor Elevator Products Inc, a New York-based manufacturer
of elevator control panels was sold to another industry player,
Innovation Industries, for US$6m (£4m} Halma recorded a gain
before tax of approximately £1m on this transaction Monitor used
to report its performance within our Infrastructure Safety sector

In May 2015, we completed the acquisition of Value Added Solutions,
LLC {trading as VAS Integrated} VAS, which will become part of Diba
Industnes within the Medical sector, designs and manufactures
fluidic-related plastic machmed compoenents and assemblies for Ife
sciences and analytical nstruments The inial cash consideratron
was US$5m {£3m)

_I\/I-glket snapsh&

Increasing demand for healthcare
Four long-term demographic trends drive healthcare
demand worldwide

— ageing of the global population

— growth of the global population

— ncrease In chronic disease

- nsing ncomes mn the developing world

Population ageing and nsing numbers of people suffering from
age-related chronic diseases provide a strong, long-term dnver for
healthcare services and products in our Medical and Environmental
& Analysis sectors In both developed and developing economies
Advances in medical technology and new medical procedures
also stmulate demand for new equipment

Globally, the number of people aged over 65 is expected to more
than tnple over the next half-century Life expectancy 1s expected to
nse from 727 years in 2013 to 73 7 vears by 2018 This will mean that
more than 10% of the world'’s population will be over 65 In Westem
Europe the proportion will hut 20% and nJapan, 28% In the USA,
the world's largest healthcare market, increasing lfe expectancy

15 predicted to double the population of seniors by 2050

While the oldest population profiles are currently in developed
countnes, the vast majority of older people and the fastest rates
of change are Iin developing countnes, where the number of clder
people 1s forecast to nse over 250% by mid-century

Worldwide healthcare expenditure 1s about 10% of global

GDP, and 1s forecast to ncrease by over 5% a year until 2018
Healthcare spending continues to nse rapidly In the devetoped
world In the USA, for example, total healthcare expenditure was
estimated at $3 09 tnllor in 2014, and 1s projected to Increase to
$3 57 tnllon withun three years

In addition to ageng, populaton growth and nsing wealth are
strong drivers of healthcare demand in the developing world
Spend on healthcare in emerging nations 1s projected to nse
dramatically with annual growth estimates for India and China at
over 15% and 12% respectively, boosted by national inatves to
improve accessibiity and quality of healthcare

Globally, the ncidence rates of cancer, heart disease, stroke,
respratory disease, dabetes and hypertension have nsen sharply
in the past decade, particularly n developing regions  These chroric
diseases are the leading cause of mortality worldwide due to
population ageing, more sedentary Ifestyles, changing diets and
nsing obesity Halma's focus on ophthalmology and advanced
blood pressure monitonng products directly relates to the diagnosis
and treatment of these chronic and age-related diseases

Halma nle Anm il Rarnrt and Accoints 2015
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review continued

Market snapshot

Increasing demand for life-crrtical resources
Rising energy consumption and water usage, the inevitable
consequences of social and economic development, are driven
by three key trends

- population growth
- nsing Iving standards
- detary and agncuttural changes

Water consumption grew twice as fast as the world population in
the 20th century Already one third of the world's population lives
In water-stressed countries, and by 2025 that may rise to two
thirds By 2030, only 60% of the world’s water needs will be
met If current trends continue By 2050, water demand for
manufacturng alone 15 expected to increase by between 400%
and 700%

Competibon for water resources is forecast to increase between
Industries and economic sectors, and between countries in both
developed and daveloping regions  The nsing value of finte water
resources drives demand for our water conservation, treatment
and testing products

Demand for water 1s strongly inked to energy demand Water 1s
needed to convert resources into electncity via thermal, nuciear,
and hydro processes and also alternative sources such as
Irgatton of biofuel crops  15% of water withdrawal s currently
used for energy production, but this 1s expected to nse 20% by
2035 due to population growth, urbarisation and changing
consumption patterns

Worldwide energy demand 1s expected to grow by mere than

one third up to 2035, with China and India accounting for more
than half of the growth Rising demand for energy will put further
strain on the world's fresh water resources in the coming decade,
especally in developing and emerging eConomies as energy IS
needed at all stages of water extraction, treatment and distnbution

Increasing wealth in developing regions I1s enabling populations to
change from starch-based to meat and darry diets, which raises
agricultural water demand Dietary change has had the biggest
impact on global water consumption over the past 30 years, and
this trend 1s expected to contnue well Into the middle of the
twenty-first century

As global dermand for water becomes unsustanable, the mportance
of improving efficiency and effective monitonng 1s growing Several
of our Environmental & Analysis sector businesses operate In
markets dnven by the global trends of nsing demand for Ife-cntical
resources such as energy and water Global investment in
traditional and unconventional energy sources also drnives
demand for our Process Safety products

n Halma nle Annnial Ranart and Arennnts 2018

New sectors and Executive Board changes now

well established

in Apnl 2014, Halma's Executive Board was reorganised with four
new Sector Chief Executive (SCE} posiions replacing seven Dnisional
Chief Executive roles and the addition of a Group Talent Director
Dunng the year, the Executive Board has devoted significant tme

to developing into their new roles both Indmiciually and collectively,
and this leaner board 1s already proving to be a more efficient
leadership team

The strategic rationale for making this change was to give each
sector the potential to grow to become the size of the whole of
Halma today whie retamning the growth strategy and cutture which
has made Halma successful In the past

This improved scalability of the Halma model comes from the

SCEs appointing Sector Vice Presdents (SVPS) to chair operating
companies withn ther sector and, dunng the year, we have recruited
a new SVP for each sector Including two internal promotions Each
sector also has a Sector Finance Director which, together with the
SVPs, prowdes significant additional resources to support each
SCE’s acquisttion efforts

In May 2015, Philppe Felten took over from Nell Quinn as Process
Safety SCE, after a succession planning process started in Apnl 2014
I would like to thank Neil for his service to Halma since joming Apolic
Fire Detectors as ther Sales Oirector n 1987 Over 28 years, Nei has
served as a Managing Director, Dvisional Chief Executive, Sector
Chief Executive and as a Halma executive Director, making a
significant contnbution to Halma's growth

‘Dunng the year, the Executive
Board has devoted significant
time to developing into their
new roles both individually and
collectively, and this leaner board
S already proving to be a more
efficient leadership team.”




"We have spent considerable
fime assessing our senior
management talent and we
are putting in place better
processes to improve our
talent pipeline, both intermally
and extermally,”

Continued strategic investment to drive

organic growth

Halma 1s a diverse and decentralised business Our comparnies
benefit from beng part of the Group both through collaboration with
other Halma companies and the targeted central investment made
by Halma in three key areas Talent Development, Innovation and
Intermational Expansion

Talent development

Following the appointment of our Group Talent Director, Jennrfer
Ward in April 2014, we have spent considerable time assessing our
senior management talent and we are putting in place better processes
to improve our talent pipeling, both intemally and extemally

Each subsidiary Managing Director has completed an ndvidual
assessment which has hughlighted therr core strengths and
development needs against our future leadership requirements We
have also revised and re-launched our Diversity and Inclusion policy
and thus was a focus for our senior managers attending the Halma
Innovation and Technology Exposition (HITE) in Barcelona in Apnl
2015 We have an increasingly diverse customer base and recognise
the need to continuously work to reflect this in the diversity of our
leadership teams

Innovation

Our investment N new products Increased once agan, with R3D
spend up by 8% to £34 6m (2014 £32 1m), representing around 5%
of revenue New product nnovation 1s a witat component of growing
revenue through market share gain and market expansion, but Halma's
commitment to innovation 1s much broader and encompasses

all aspects of our business

The biennial HITE events enable senior managers of all Hama's
subsidiary companies to meet and share their experience and
knowiedge with each other This year's event embraced digital
technology with a *virtual’ trade show which increased the tme
and space avallable for collaboration tt also enabled the winners
of the Halma Annual Innovation Awards to be voted for by HITE
delegates dunng the event tself

The award for Best Product Innovation was won by Alicat
Scientific’s Whisper senes of gas flow meters which accurately
measures gas flow rates without the sensor device iiself adversely
affecting the measurement The Best Process Innovation was
awarded to Netherlocks for ts R&D intemship programme and the
Best Collaboration award went to Crowcon and Perma Pure for
Crowcon's Spnnt eVo gas analyser which incorporated Perma
Fure's gas sample conditioning technology

How we are boosting
growth in China by local
product development

Halma 1s always looking for ways In which we can help to accelerate
the growth and deveiopment of our businesses A key growth
strategy in fast-growing, developing economies ke China Is to
develop innovative, locally-designed products that exactly meet
the needs of local custorners

Two years ago we began a programme to subsidise the cost

of hinng additional R&D staff n China This encouraged our
companies to significantly expand their local design engineenng
teams It has been a great success So far, 15 Halma businesses
have taken advantage of the subsidy They have hired 22 extra
engineers, with another three in the pipeline To date, 27 new R&D
projects have begun and 10 new Chinese-market products have
been launched, generating sales of aver £2m in 201415

Martin Zhang

President, Halma China

The success of our Chinese R&D staff subsidy programme,
which supports our strategy of moving product development
closer to customers, 15 a good example of how we add value
to our operating companies t has greatly mproved cur ability
to meet local custormer needs and injected fresh new 1deas

In developing nnovative ways to solve customer problems

Halma nle Annual Renort and Aconunts 2018 1
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Chief Executive’s Strategic Review continued

International expansion

Halma continues to invest to accelerate subsidianes’ growthin
intermational markets Regions outside the USA, UK and Manland
Europe now contribute over 27% of the Group revenue compared with
less than 18% in 2005, even though we have achieved strong growth in
our core developed markets too A catalyst for our success has been
the Halma hubs first created in China in 2006, in india n 2008 and,
more recently, replcated by ndmdual sectors in South Amenca

Halma's approach s to put In place the commercial infrastructure
necessary to enable our subsidiary comparves to build a direct
presence In these target markets more quickly than they would be
abile to do so alone For example, in the last two ysars Halma has
subsidised the cost of addiional R&D engineers in China for our
businesses to develop new products for the local market To date
subsidiary comparnies have added around 25 new engneers and
revenue from the new products launched so far exceeded £2m

in 2014/15 and 1s forecast to be more than double that in the

coming year

Delivering corporate responsibility and sustammability
Qur pnmary market growth drivers mean that Halma companies
operate In markets n which their products contribute positively to the
wider community These market charactenstics and our commitrnent
to health and safety, the envircnment and people development are
reflected in the values held by our employees and cur operating cutture

We review our responsibility and sustainability reporting n
accordance with best practice Legislative changes, particularty
concerning the environment and bribery and corruption, have
provided an opportunity to review and ensure that our procedures
inthese Important areas are accessible, complant and firmly
embedded within our business

A detaled report on Corporate Responsibility is on pages 42 to 47

Outlook

I am very pleased with the progress that Halma has made this year
by achieving good organic growth, completing three acquisiions and
a disposal while further Increasing investment n talent development,
innovation and international expansion

Changes made to our organisation in Aprl 2014 mean that, in the
longer term, each of our four sectors has the potental to grow to

become the size of the whole of Halma today, through contirued
and disciplined execution of our well-proven growth strategy

We expect to make further progress in the year ahead

Andrew Williams
Chief Executive

! See Fnanclal Highlights
2 See Nots | to the Accounts
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Business Model and Strategy

Business model

What is Halma’s growth objective?

Our business model objective 1s to double Group revenue and profit every five years

We am to achieve this through a mix of acquistions and organic growth Return on Sales in excess of 18%
and Return on Capital Employed over 45% ensure that cash generation 1s strong enough to sustain
investment for growth and ncrease dvdends without the need for high levels of external funding

Grow

KPis

= Qrganic profit growth

- EPS growth

- Revenue growth

- Return on Sales

- ROTIC

- International expansion

Read more PP16 and 22 1o 24

Innovate

KPIs
- Research and
development

Read more PP14 and 24
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Strategy
How do we grow?

Acquire

KPIs

- Acquisition profit
growth

- Cash generation

Read more PP18 22 and 24

Empower

KPIs

= Values alignment

= Health & Safety

- Development
programmes

Read more PP20 and 25

We operate in relatvely non-cyclical, specialised global niche markets Our technology and application know-how deliver
strong competitive advantage to sustain growth and high retums  Our chosen markets have significant bamers to entry
Demand for our products 1s underpinned by resiient, long-term growth drvers

We place our operational resources close to our customers through autonomous locally managed businesses
We reinvest cash into acquirng high performance businesses in, or close to, our existing markets

Governance

Halma 1s commutted to mantaining the highest
standards of corporate governance and ensunng
values and behawiours are consistent across the
business Halma promotes open and transparent
discussion and constructive challenge across

the Group to ensure best practice 1s mantaned
That governance cultture 1$ ntegral to our strategy
and decsion-malang processes for the benefit

of our shareholders

Read more PPS3 to 85

Risk

Group nsk s mitigated by means of an operating
structure which spreads the Group's actvities
across a number of autonomous subsidiary
companes Each of these companiessled by a
hgh-quality board of directors ncluding a finance
executve Group comparnes operate under a
system of robust controls which address our
pnncipal nsks and uncertainties

Read mare PP26 to 31

Corporate Responsibility

Halma companies are rvolved in the manufacture
of a wide range of products that protect and
improve the qualtty of Iife for people worldwide
Halma has developed meaningful key performance
inchicators (KPIs) that reflect the mportance the
Group places on corporate responsibility and
enable the Board to monitor the Group's progress
n meetng 1ts objectves and responsibiites N
these areas

Read more PP25 and 42 to 47
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Innovation
through
collaboration

Strategy in action

Innovation in products and processes Is a key driver of organic growth It enables
us to build competitive advantage, gain market share, open up new markets ancd
achieve high retums In addihion to increasing our spending on innovation and R&D,
we held a fourth Halma Innovation and Technology Expostion (HITE) n April 2015
to encourage collaboration between all Halma companies

In recent years, several products have been launched resultng from colliaboration
between Halma companies including Crowcon's Spnnt evo gas flue analyser, one
of the winners of this year's Halma Innovation Awards, a collaboration between
Crowcon and sister company Perma Pure

The Spnnt senes of flue gas testers for domestic boilers 1s cne of Crowcon’s

most high profile product knes To secure a renewal of its contract with Briish Gas,
the cornparny developed the Spant eVo This successfully won the contract by
combining new features, better performance, unique technolegy from Perma Pure
and an enhanced version of the software which heating engineers were already
traned to use

Philippe Felten

Sector Chief Executive, Process Safety
I've been very mpressed by the effort

and inteligence that went into the Sprnt
eVo developrnent process The product's
commercial success Is proof of the value
of nnovation through collaboration, and
really shows how well Crowcon responded
to the demands of the market and tts
customers’ feedback

Read more P32
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Growing through
diversification

Strategy in action

We choose to operate In niches within markets with robust long-term growth
dnvers on a global scale This gves our businesses the opportunity to sustan
growth in all regions of the world

Our current focus 15 on ncreasing seling rescurces together with enhancing our
local product development capabiities Through this, we am to ensure that we
are able to continue to achieve growth rates in excess of the underlying market
growth through gaining market share and diversifying into new rmarkets

BEA designs, assembles and sells sensors for automatic doors When we
acquired BEA in 2002 it was already the world leader in its specialised market
Since then, the company's strategy for growth has been to mantain gobal market
leadership in the pedestnan door sensers niche while dversifying into industnal,
secunty and transport door control applications based on market-led innovation
One new application for therr technology 1s door sensors on the platform screen
doors on the Pans metro

Nigel Trodd

Sector Chief Executive, Infrastructure Safety
Platform screen doors are a fast-growing trend
around the world, so 1t ts especially pleasing

to see BEA's success here The company’s
technology, expertise and reputation in the
automatic pedestnan door market positions

it perfectly to expand into adjacent markets,

as hundreds of thousands of passengers In
Pans can now expenence every day

Read more P34
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Acquiring
innovative
businesses

Strategy in action

Acquisiions are a key strategic investment which strengthen our product
portfolio, add new technologies, deepen our management talent pool ang extend
our geographic reach They help us to sustain growth and high retums and create
shareholder value over the long term

Qur strategy s to buy companies with techrology we understand seling into
markets we know They must fit well with ocur operating culture and growth
strategy, In addiicn to having strong financial metrics As a highly cash-generative
business with a strong balance sheet, we can invest in acquistions withouit
accumulating excessive debt

Since acquinng Microsurgical Technology in 2012, single-use iInstruments have
become more and more popular In 2015 the company launched the Allegro, a
single-use dewvice for removing part of the lens dunng cataract surgery |t offers
significantly mproved performance and ease of use for both surgeons and
nurses, and 1s safer for patents than competitive products

Adam Meyers

Sector Chief Executive, Medical

QOur offenng to the ophthalmic surgery market
has never been better, and response to market
trends 15 a key part of our success Medical
professionals are increasingly prefemng the
hygiene and smplicity of single-use disposable
devices, so the recent faunch of MST's Allegro
really highlights our ability to react quickly and
effectively to customer demands

Read more P36
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Responding
to local
market needs

Strategy In action

Halma has a highly decentrabsed orgarusational structure which delvers
sustanable compettive advantage Subsidiary companies are given considerable
freedom for entrepreneunal action and are empowered to make tmely decisions
in the best interests of therr business

We place our operational resources close to our customers Research and
development, manufacturing, sales, marketing and human resources are all
managed at operating company level With an intimate knowledge of their market
dynamics and customer needs, subsichary management 1S best placed to make
local resource allocation decisions swiftly In response to market changes

The establishment of Ocean Optics Asia as a stand-alone business has led to
more nngvative products for the Chinese market including the Accuman Chinese
regulations mean that every pharmaceutical rnanufacturer will soon have to check
all thewr raw matenal to ensure qualty Accuman is a portable tool which uses
non-destructive spectroscopy to quickly perform the required tests

Chuck Dubais

Sector Chief Executive,

Environmental & Analysis

By designing products specifically for local
markets, we can differentiate ourselves from the
competihion and better satisty market needs
Ocean Optics Asia Is showing a great example
of this by perfectly talonng the Accuman to suit
the regulatory and quality control requirements
of the Chinese pharmaceutical market

Read mors P38
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Key Performance Indicators - KPIs

Strategic focus

Through careful selection of our market niches and strategic investment in pecple development,
nternational expansion and nnovation we am to achieve orgaruc growth in excess of our blended
market growth rate, broadly matching revenue and profit growth in the medium term We buy comparues
with business and market charactenstics simular to those of exsting Halma operabons Acquired
businesses have to be a good fit with cur operating cutture and strategy in addon to being value-

Strategic focus

The measure of how successful we are in
growing our business orgarucally and by
acquisihon coupled with strong financial
disciplines, including those related to tax
and capital alocaton, 1s captured in the

enhancing financially Group's adusted earnings per share
Organic profit growth % Acquisition profit growth % EPS growth %
(constant currency) (adjusted earnings per share)

0 O o) 0 0] 0]
7% >5% 5% >5% 9% >10%
Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target

19 10 21
19
6
5 10
7 4 - 8
§ 5 5
2
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2003 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Betore restatement Before restaternent
KPI definition KPI definition KPI definition

Organic profit growth 1s calcuated at constant
currency and measures the change in profit
achieved In the current year compared with the pnor
year from continuing Group operabons The effect
of acquisitons and disposals made dunng the
current o pnor financial year has been equalised

Comment

Crganic profit growth at constant currency
exceeded our minimum target Growth of 7 2%
included strong performances in Process Safety,
Infrastructure Satety and Medical sectors

2016 target

The Board has established a fong-term minimum
organic growth target of 5% p a , sightly above
the blended long-term average growth rate of
our markets

Remuneration inkage

Growth in organic profit is a key element of the
economic value added performance which forms
the basis of the anrual borus plan, requinng
consistent annual and longes-term growth,
rewarding disciplined inancial performance. The
use of EVA dlearly reinforces the Group's strategic
obyectve to double Group profit every five years

Also see

- Chief Executive’s Strategic Review P06
- Financial Review P48

- Poncipal Risks and Uncertainties P28
- Note 3 to the Acoounts P116
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Acquisition profit growth measures the annualised
contnbution to the Group’s operations derived
from acquisitions made in the year, measured at
the date of acquisition

Comment

Annuaksed acquisiion profit growth met our target
of 5% for the year We have substanial financial
capacity and bank factites to finance more
value-enhancing acquistions

2016 target

2016 began with one acquisition in the first quarter,
financed through our existing debt faciliies
Acqusitions must meet our demanding cntena
and we continue to have a strong pipeline of
opportunities o meet our 5% growth target

Remuneration linkage

Growth in acquired profit 1s the second

key element of the economic value added
performance which forms the basis of the
annual bonus plan, requinng consistent annual
and longer-term growth, rewarding discipined
financial performance

Also see

- Chief Executive’s Strategic Review POS
- Financial Review P48

- Pnnoipal Risks and Uncertantes P28
- Note 3 to the Accounts P116

Adjusted eamings are calculated as earmings from
continuing operaticns excluding the amortsation of
acgured intangible assets, acquisition tems, profit
or loss on disposal of operations, the: effects of
closure to future benefit accrual of the defined
benefit pension plans net of associated costs
(2014 only), and associated tax thereon

Comment

Performance was just below target and would
have exceeded it if the mpact of cunrency
transtation and disposals had been excluded

2016 target

We aim for the combination of organic and
acquisition growth to exceed 10% per annum over
the long term The Directors consider that adjusted
eamings represent a more consistent measure of
underlying performance

Remuneration linkage

EPS prowides a dear link to the ams of the
business growth strategy 1t 1s a key financial
driver for our business and provides a clear ine
of sight for our executves EPS 1s 50% of the
performance condibon attaching to the new
Executve Share Plan

Also see
- Note 2 to the Accounts P115




Strategic focus

Through careful selection of our market niches
and strategic mvestment n pecple development,
intemational expanson and innovation we am to
achieve crganic growth in excess of our blended
market growth rate, broadly matching revenue and
profit growth in the medum term

Strategic focus

We choose to operate n markets which are capable of delvenng high retums  The abiity to maintain
these retums 1s a result of maintaining strong market and product positions sustained by continuing

product and process iInnovaton

Organic revenue growth %

Return on Sales %

ROTIC %

(constant currency) {Retum on Total Invested Capital)
0 0] 0 O 0) o)
5% >5% 212% >18% 163% >12%
Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target
n apz 208 208 207 A2 60 78 ee 167 163
6 6
5
3
2011 2012 2043 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
After restaternert After rastaternent In addivon ROTIC i all prior years has been
restated wsing average Total invested Caprat
KPI definttion KPI definition KPI definition

Organic revenue growth s calculated at constant
currency and measures the change In revenue
achieved In the current year compared with the pnor
year from continuing Group operations The effect
of acquisitions and disposals made dunng the
current or pnor financial year has been equalised

Comment
Organic growth at constant cumency in revenue
met cur mirgmumn target with growth in all sectors

and all geographic regions

2016 target

The Board has established a long-term minimum
organic growth target of 5% p a, slightly above
the blended long-term average growth rate of
our markets

Remuneration linkage

Organic growth in revenue contnbutes to the
economic value added performance which
forms the basis of the annual bonus plan,
reguinng consistent annual and longer-term
growth, rewarding disciphned financial
performance

Also see

— Chief Executive’s Strategic Review P06
— Financial Review P48

— Principal Risks and Uncertainties P28
— Note 3o the Accounts P16

Return on Sales 1s defined as adjusted profit
before taxation from continuing operations
expressed as a percentage of revenue from
continuing operations

Comment

Return on Sales was well above target and
increased over the pnor year Process Safety,
Infrastructure Safety and Medical sectors all
achieved increased Return on Sales this year
Ernmronmental & Analysis Increased profitability
in the second half of the year

2016 target
We am to achieve a Retum on Sales within the
18% to 22% range while continuing to deliver
profit growth

Remuneration linkage

Return on Sales 1s a measure of the value our
customers place on our products and of our
operational efficiency High profitability supports
the generation of high economic vatue

Also see
- Chief Executive's Strategic Review P06
- Financial Review P48

ROTIC 1s defined as the post-tax return from
continuing cperattons before amortisation of
acquured infangble assets, acquistion itemns, profit
or loss on disposal of operations, and the effects
of closure 1o future benefit accrual of the defined
benefit pension plans net of associated costs
(2014 only) as a percentage of average
shareholders' funds

Comment

Performance was above target and in iine with the
pnor year Consistently high retums are in excess
of our long-term Weighted Average Cost of Capital
(WACC) of 76% {2014 75%)

2016 target

The target of 12% was set in 2005 when the
Group's ROTIC was 12 1% and WACC was 7 9%
A range of 12% to 17% 1s considered representative
of the Board's expectations over the long term

o ensure a good balance between growth

and retums

Remuneration linkage

ROTIC performance, averaged over three
financral years, 1s 50% of the performance
condition attaching to the Company’s
Performance Share Plan and the new Executive
Share Plan

Also see

- Chuef Executve’s Strategic Review POS
- Financial Review P48

~ Note 3 to the Accounts P116
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Key Performance Indicators - KPIs continued

Strategic focus

Strong cash generation provides the Group with
freedom to pursue its strategic goals of organic
growth, acquistions and progressive dwidends
without becoming highly-leveraged

Strategic focus

The safety, health and environmental markets

in Asta and other developing regicns are evobang
quickly We continue to invest in establishing local
saling, technical and manufactunng resources to
meet this current and future need

Strategic focus

We have mantaned high levels of R&D investment
and spending on innovation The successiul
nitroduction of new products 1s a key contnbutor to
the Group's abidy to build competitve advantage
and grow organically and intemationally

Cash generation

87% >85%

International expansion

27% 30%

Research and development

4.8% >4%

Performance Target Performance Target by 2015 Performance Target
89 89 27 50 50
86 a5 B7 4.8
24 24 28 2 a7 47
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Alter restatement
KPI definition KPI definition KPI1 definition

Cash generation is calculated using adjusted
operating cash flow as a percentage of adusted

operating profit

Comment

Cash generaton of 87% (2014 89%) was In excess
of the B5% target in the current year with strong
cash performances across the Group

2016 target

The goal of Group cash inflow exceeding 85%

of profit Is a metnc that has relevance at all levels
of the erganisation and aligns management achon
with Group needs We ensure that strong intemal
cash flow and avaiiability of external funding
underpin our strategic goals of organic growth,
acquistions and progressive dvidends

Also see

- Cheef Executive's Strategic Review P06
-~ Financial Review P48

- Note 3 to the Accounts P116
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Total sales to markets outside the UK, USA and
Manland Europe as a percentage of total Group
revenue from continuing operations

Comment

Revenue cutside the UK, USA and Mainland
Europe increased to 27% of the Group total (2014
25%) but remained below the KPi target Good
progress has been made in the past five years
aganst the background of our strong growthin
developed markets There was good growth n
Asia Pacrfic and very strong growth in Afnca,
Near and Middle East and in ‘Other Countnes’,

in particular, in South Amenca

2016 target

The target we set in 2010 reinforced the
importance of emerging markets and led to Halma
corporate hubs in Ching, India and Brazil, att
assisting compares in setting up local operations
In future reports we plan to replace this metnc wath
a KP expressed in terrns of absolute internatonal
revenue growth

Also see

- Chief Executive's Strategic Review P06
— Financial Review P48

— Note 1 to the Accounts P112

Total research and development expenditure in the
financial year (both that expensed and caprtalised)
as a percentage of revenue from continuing
operatons

Comment

Total spend in the year increased by 8% to £34 6m
(2014 £321m) exceeding the 4% of revenue target
Process Safety, Infrastructure Safety and Medical
sectors all ncreased R&D expendiure We have a
goed pipelne of new products which should
benefit 2015/16 and beyond

2016 target

New products contnbute strongly towards
achieving arganic growth, mantaining high
returns and bulding strong market positions

The 4% minmum irvestment target 1s appropnate
to the mux of product life cycles and technologies
within Halma

Also see
- Chief Executve's Strategic Review P06




Strategic focus

Since 2007 Halma has conducted an annual
survey of ts employees to assess how well the
Group’s values are aligned with ts employees’
current expenences and future aspirations

Strategic focus

Halma has an excellent health and safety record,
with no work-related fatafities n 201415 or in
pror years Safety ss cntical and a major pnortty
for the Group Halma collects detals of its
worldwide reported health and safety ncidents
and encourages al Group companies to seek
continuous improvement in their health and
safety records and culture

Strategic focus

The Halma Executve Development Programme
{HEDP), the Halma Management Development
Programme (HMDP} and the Halma Graduate
Development Prograrmmme (HGDP) provide
executves, middle managers and key personnel
with the necessary skills they need in their current
and future roles

Values alignment {out of 10)

0 >5

Health & Safety
{Accident Frequency Rate)

0.15 <0.09

Development programmes
{management development)

60% >50%

Performance Target Performance Target Performance Target
3] 6 034" 71
5 5 5 60
56
i 51
022
020
015
o009
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 201t 2012 2013 2014 205
KPI definition KPI definition KPI definition

The survey of Group employees looks for matching
values in a comparisen of the 10 current culture
values recenving the highest number of votes with
the equivalent 10 values employees want 1o see

in their working culture

Comment

The results indicate an improving alignment of

six, exceeding the target of five or more matching
values Thiss an excellent resutt reflecting well on
the structural changes made at the beginning of
the fimancial year Nurnbers of parteipants in the
survey have increased by one third since last year

2016 target

The minmum target of five matching values
remains relevant, the goal for 2016 will be to
continue to improve the Group's communication of
its values and to maintain the high rate of employee
participation In such surveys

Also see
— Chief Executive’s Strategic Review P06
— Corporate Responsibilty P42

The year-to-date Accident Frequency Rate (AFR}

15 the total number of reportable™ incidents in the
penod dvded by the number of hours worked

1 that penod by employees (including temporary
staff and any overtme) muttiplied by 100,000 hours
{representing the estmated number of working
hours In an employee's work ifetme) The AFR
figure represents an indication of how many
Incidents an employee will have in his/her

working Iife

Comment

The H&S AFR performance this year was 015
(2014 0 08) which reversed the posrtion achieved
last year We have reviewed the incidents
contnbuting to this increase and there are no
specific undertying pattems which cause concern

2016 target

The target 1s mantaned at 0 09 to match the
health and safety performance which was
achieved in 2013/14, with a view to uttimately
setting a reportable mcident target rate of zero

Also see
-~ Corporate Responsibility P42

* 2011 AFR figures are estimated dus to reporting changes
2010411
* Specifisd major injury INcidents and reportable incidents which
resutt in more than three workeng oays st

Number of current employees having attended an
in-house development programme compared with
the estimated pool of qualifying participants

Comment

Recognising the wital role that our pecple play In
delivenng organic growth, our training courses
have been designed to enhance the skills of the
next generation of directors, managers and
nrovaters The performance metric is influenced
by the mfroduction of new courses and new
eligible employees joming the Group through
acquisitions Overall we are satisfied with our
performance and progress

2016 target

The introduction of the Halma Graduate
Devetopment Programme in 2012 with sts fourth
intake later n 2015 1s an important expansion of
the Group’s development programmes and 1s
targeted to bnng further new talent into the Group

Also see
- Chief Executve's Strategic Review P06
~ Corporate Responsibity P42

Halma nle Annnal Renort and Aceonnts 2015 25

g
S
3
B
=2
[}
®

susweiE)g [euew | |




Risk Management
and Internal Controls

Internal control The Group’s treasury and hedging policy is kept under review 1o

The Board meets regutarly throughout the year and has adopted ensure that appropriate accounting and banking amangements are

a schedule of matters which are required to be brought to i for aligned with the Group's growth and to ensure continued compliance
decision This procedure 1s ntended to ensure that the Directors with accounting requirements

maintain full and effective control over all significant strategic,

financial and organisational 1ssues The ntemal audit function has operated independently snce 2004,

reporting to the Audit Commuittee In 2008/09, a dedicated Intermal

Dunng the year, actions to strengthen the control environment Audit manager was added to support the funchon and dunng 201041
continue to be taken centrally by Group management, not least an intemal auditor based in China was recruted A further review of
with the sector structure providing addiional, dedicated personnel resources occured more recently resulting in the appontment of a
who supplement and reinforce our controls and the cufture in US-based internal audrtor Intemal audit procedures are routingly
which we operate The duties and responsibilities of subsidiary benchmarked and evolve to reflect changng crcumstances and
management are continually refreshed as well as documented specific requirements and to enhance effectiveness

In a manual crrculated to all subsidiary managing directors and
avallable on cur collaboration platform A comprehensive inducton
programme for subsidiary finance directors was launched three
years ago and our intemal financial review procedures have been
refreshed We strengthened the resources dedicated to identifying
and nvestigating potenbal acquistions and the policies to ensure a
rapid and successful integration following acquisition The scope of Steps are being taken to embed internal contral and sk

Group nsk 1s mitigated by means of an operating structure which
spreads the Group’s activities across a number of autonomous
subsidiary companies Each of these companies is overseen by
sector executives and led by a high-qualty board of directors
including a finance executve

the Group's policies and the programme of compliance audits are management further nto the operations of the business and to
regularly reviewed to ensure they are sufficient to address current deal with areas of improvement which come to management's

nsks The Group placed additional emphasis on updating our and the Board's attention

business continuity plans over recent years ensuring that th

are mutualy comge?nemary 10 our maurance progr?:xmme i Group companies operate under a system of controls which includes

but 18 not imited to

Group internal control system
The processes which the Board has applied in reviewing the effectveness of the Group's system of ntemal control are summansed below

— operating companies, with the overaight of ther sector boards, carry out a detaled nsk assessment each year
and identify mitigating actions in place or proposed for each significant nsk A nsk register 1s cornpiled from this
nformation, aganst which operational nsk action 1s monitored through to resclution and strategic nsks are
reported to the Group Group management also compiles a summary of significant Group nsks, documenting
existing or planned actions to mitigate, manage or avoid nsks,

— each month the board of every operating company meets, discusses and reports on its operating performance,
its opportunities, the nsks facing it and the resultant actions The relevant Sector Chief Executive or Sector Vice
President charrs this meeting and he meets regularty with the Chief Executive and Finance Director and reports
on sectoral progress to the Executive Board,

- financial and trading ‘warning signs’ are reported o Group and sector management Weekly data oncash
management and sales and orders are also reported directly to the Chief Executive, the Finance Director and
the Group finance team This framework 1s designed to prowide an early waming of potential nsks and to direct
appropnate action where necessary,

- the Chief Executive submits a report to each Halma plc Board meeting which inciudes the main features of
Group operations and an analysis of the significant nsks and opportunites facing the Group The papers also
cover progress against strategic objectives and shareholder-related 1ssues The Finance Director also subrmits
a separate financial report to each Halma plc Board meeting,

- regular Director visits to Group companies are scheduled and open access to the subsidiary company boards
15 encouraged, cyclical and nsk-based intemnal contro! visits are camed out by intemal audit or senior finance staff
resulting n actions being fed back to each company and followed up by Senior Finance Executives and Sector
Chief Executives Reviews are coded in terms of nsk and a summary of all such reviews 1s given to the Audit
Committee, with any sigrificant control faitings being reported directly to the Audit Committee, senior finance staff
also conduct financial reviews at each operating company before publication of half-year and year-end figures
We have a Group-wide [T policy supported by a programme of [T heaith checks Group IT manages aspects of
our cyber secunty nsks and IT developrment needs, and

= the Chief Executive, Finance Director and Internal Audit function report to the Audit Committee on all aspects

of intemat control The Board receves regular reports from the Audit Committee Chairman and the papers
and minutes of the Audit Commitiee mestings are used as a basis for its annual review of intemal control
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- a defined organtsational structure with an appropnate delegation
of authonty to operabonal management which ensures appropnate
segregation of key duties,

— the identsfication and appraisal of nsks both formally, through the
annual process of prepanng business plans and budgets, through
an annual detaled nsk assessment camed out at local level and
informally through close monitonng of operations,

- acomprehensive financiat reporting system, regularly enhanced,
within which actual and forecast resutts are compared with approved
budgets and the previous year’s figures on a monthly basis Weeldy
cash/sales/orders reporting Including details of financial institubons 1$
also mantaned within the financial reporting system, all of whichis
reviewed at both local, sector and Group level,

— aninvestment evaluation procedure to ensure an appropnate level
of approval for all capital expenditure and other capitatsed costs,

Group risk management

- self-certification by operating comparny and sector management

of comphance and control 1ssues with additional verfication
performed centrally,

a robust structure for electronic communication and conducting
e-commerce to ensure that the Group s not adversely mpacted by
threats to its information technology nfrastructure and to minmise
potential for business disruptions  The Group has a wide range of
measures and policies and a framework In place which includes a
virtual private network covenng over 100 sites worldwide, secure
firewalls, an [T secunty and threat monitoning system, information
management audits, disaster recovery and a mobile dewces
management system, and

an acquisitions and disposals framework which govemns the due
dilgence, negohation, approval and integration processes to ensure
that value-enhancing, quality nvestrments are made in order to
meet our strategic objectives

Chief Executive

Executive Board

Sector Boards

Subsidiary Company Boards | Senior Finance Executives

T

Audit Commilies

Company Secretary

Imernal Audit
-~

Wihistleblowing

The diagram below summarises our complementary integrated approach to sk managerment which 1s consistent with the Group's structure
Halma has also refined the tmings of the Group-wide nsk assessment as well as the division of responsbiity for the nsk review cycle

throughout the year

Top Down
Strategic Risk Management

- review and management of the strategic nsks of the
Group with visibilty of the sector nsks,

Bottom Up
Operational Risk Management

— assessment of the effectveness of nsk management
systems across the Group, and

- consideration of the environment in which the Group Board and - reporting prncipal nsks and uncertanties N the Group
operates, and Audit

- setting the nsk appetite of the Group Committee

- delivery of Group strategic actions, and - reviewing completeness and consistency across the

- monitonng Group key nsk indicators Executive sectors and adequacy of miigation actions,

Board and - consideration ¢f the aggregation of nsk exposures across
Senior the businesses, and
Finance - review/management/conschdation of operational nsks
Executives {both sector and busness uni, delegated as the Sector
Chuef Executive deems appropnate}

- execulion of any Group—level strategic actions - reporting of significant and emerging nsks to the Group,
and reportng on any dentified key nsks and - dentdficaton, evaluation, prontisabon, mibgation
mibgaton progress and menitonng of operational nsks which are the

Subsidiary responsibility of each subsichary company; and
Companies - wdenyficaton of stategic nsks which are reported

to the Group
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Halma’s principal nsks and uncertainties are detalled below and are supported by the robust nsk management and intemal controt systems
and procedures noted on pages 26 and 27

Strategic
objechve

Risk description

Globahsation

A key operational nsk emanates from
the remoteness of operations from Head
Office and the increasing global spread
of our businesses

Competition

The Group faces competiton in

the form of pncaing, service, reliability
and substituton

Economic condrtions

In tmes of uncertain econormic
condtions, businesses face additional
or elevated levels of nsk These include
market and custormer nsk, customer
defautt, fraud, supply chamn risk and
liquidity nsk

Financial

Funding

A key nsk s that the Group may run out
of cash or not have sccess to adequate
funding In addition, cash deposits need
to be held in a secure form and location

Treasury

Foreign currency nsk 1s the most
significant treasury-refated nsk for the
Group In times of Increased volatiity

this can have a significant mpact on
performance The Group 1s exposed to a
fesser extent to other treasury nsks such
as interest rate nsk and lquidity nsk

Pension deficit

To meet our pension obigations, we
must adequately fund our pension plans
QOur UK Defined Benefit pension plans are
now closed to new members and future
berefit accnual for exsting members

Movement Potential impact

- Weakening of financial, tax, audit and legal control and
A dwvergence from overall Group strategy in remaote operatons,

leading to businesses taking on more nsks than intended or
unexpected financial outcomes

- Fallure to comply with local laws and regulations in unfarmiiar
territones, leading to reputational issues and legal or regulatory
chisputes

- Continued international growth increases nsk

- Missed opportunites due to falure to mobilise resources efficiently

- Loss of marke! share due to pnce pressure and changing markets

} - Reduced financial performance ansing from competiive threats
— Reduced financial performance
} — Loss of market share

- Unfareseen labities
— Disruption of service to customers

- Constrants on trading and/or buying new companies
’ - Inabilty to deliver on growth strategies
- Permanent loss of shareholders’ funds

- Volatle financial performance ansing from translation of profit
VN from overseas operations or poorty-managed foreign exchange

exposures

= Dewviation from core strategy through the use of speculative
or overly complex financial instrurnents

- Financial penalties and reputational damage ansing from breach
of banking covenants

~ More of Group profit now earned In non-Sterling currencies

~ Increased interest rate nsk on higher forecast borrowings

— Excesswve consumption of cash, imiting investment in operations
w — Unexpected vanabilty in the Compary’s financial results

Movements indicate management’s perception of how the pre-mitigation nsk has moved year on year

N

28

Increased nsk

} No change to nsk
b 4 Decreased nsk
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Mitigation

- Control i1s exercised locally In accordance with the Group's policy of autonomous management We seek to employ local high-quality experts

- The increasing geographic diversity of operating personnel emphasises the importance the Group places on local knowledge and expenence

- The Group's acqusiron model ensures retention of management and staff in acquired businesses, meaning that locat expertise Is retained

- Sector Chief Executives ensure that overall Group strategy Is fuffiled through ongoing review of the businesses The nght balance between autonomy
and adherence to the overall obyectves of the Group 1s a key function of the Sector Chief Executives, Sector Vice Presidents and Senior Finance Executves

- Regular visits to the more remote operations and maintenance of key adwser relationships by servor management, finance staff and Intemal Audit support
local control

- By empowenng and resourcing innovation in local operations to respond to changing market needs, the potential adverse impact of downward pnce
pressure and competition can be mitigated and growth mantaned

- We recognise the competitive threat corming from emerging economies and by operating within these economies, typically using local staff, we are better
placed to make fast progress ourselves

- The Group operates in speciaksed global niche markets offenng high barmers-to-entry

- Risks are primanly managed at the operating company level where local knowledge 1s situated The financial strength and avaiabidity of pooled finances
within the Group mitigates local nsks faced by operating companies as does the robust credit management processes In place across the Group

- The Halma Executive Board identrfies any wider trends which require action

- The Group’s geographic diversity hmits its exposure to economic nsk ansing in any one termtory The Group does not have significant operations, cash
deposiis or sources of funding in economically uncertain regions

- The strong cash flow generated by the Group provides financial flexibility

~ Cash needs are monitored regutarly In addition to short-term overdraft facihties, the Group renewed and increased to £360m its five-year revolving credit
facility n 2013/14 provding secunty of funding and sufficient headroom for its current needs

- Cash deposits are monttored centrally and spread amongst a number of high credit-rated banks Subsidianes report their cash/indebtedness status to

Head Office every week

- The nsk has increased because more of the Group's profits are denved from non-Stering currencies  Currency profits are not hedged Currency hedging
must fit with the commerc:al needs of the business and we have in place a hedging strategy to manage Group exposures This requires the hedging of a
substantial proportion of expected future transactions up to 12 months (and in excepbonal cases 24 months) ahead Longer-term currency trends can
only be covered through a wide geographic spread of operations

~ The Group does not usea overly complex denvative financial Instruments and no speculative treasury transactions are undertaken

- We clesely monitor performance against the financial covenants on our revoiving credn facility and operate well within these covenants

— There 1s regular dialogue with pension fund trustees and pension strategy Is a regular Halma Board agenda item The Group's strong cash flows and
access to adequate borrowing faciiies mean that the pensions nsk can be adequately managed

— The Group has mantained addibonal pension contributions with the overall obyective of paying off the deficit In lne with the Actuary's recommendations
We monitor and consider altemative means of reducing our pension nsk in hght of the best long-term interest of shareholders

- Although the pension defictt increased in 2014/15, the UK Defined Benefit pension plans were closed to future accrual on 1 December 2014 reducing future nsk.

Halma nie Annnal Benart and Acenunts 2015
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Strategic Risk description Movement Potential impact

objective
Cyber secunty/Information - Delay orimpact on decision rmaking through lack of avalability
Technology/Business interruption VN of sound data
Group and operational management - Reduced service to customers due to poor information handing
depend on tmely and reliable information or interruption of business
from our software systems We seek to - Global threats lo systems and cnbical information increase
ensure continuous avalabiity, secunty each year
and operation of those nformation - Loss of commercially sensitive information
systems Cyber threats show an - Intended and unintended actions of employees cause disruption
increasing trend
Acquisitions - Failure to attract sutficient numbers of high-quality businesses to
The wentdficaton and purchase of ’ meet our strategic growth target
businesses which meet our demanding - Falure to deliver expected resuits resulting from poor
financial and growth cntena are an acquisiton selecton
important part of our strategy for - Reduced financial performance ansing from faldure to integrate
developing the Group, as 1s ensunng acquisitions inte the Group
the new businesses are rapidly - Unforeseen habiliies ansing from a fadure to understand
integrated into the Group acquisition targets fully
Laws and regulations — Reputational damage ansing from inadvertent non-compliance
Group operations are subject to A — Dwersion of management resources resulting in lost opportunities
wide-ranging laws and reguiations — Penalties ansing from breach of laws and regulations
inchuding business conduct, employment, — Loss of revenue and profit associated with contractual disputes

emvronmental and health and safety
legislaion There 1s also exposure to
product kiigaton and contractual nsk

The laws and regulations we are exposed
to as our businesses expand around the
world Increase each year

Succession planning and - Failure to recrut and to retan key staff leading to reduced

statf quality w nnovation and progress in the business

Group performance 1s dependent on - Unethical actions of staff causing reputational damage to

having high-gualty leaders at all levels the Group

and an organisation allowing us to ~ Acguisition growth fimiled due to our organisation’s and leaders’

continue to grow through acquisiion ability to absorb acquisitions effectively

as well as drwving organic growth - Intemational growth increasing nsk and the need for hrgh-quality
jocal talent

Research & Development and - Loss of market share resulting from product obsolescence and

Intellectual Property strategy } failure o iInnovate to meet customer needs

New products are ¢niical to our organic — Loss of market share resulting from a tallure to protect key

growth and underpin our ability to eam intellectual property

high margins and high retumns over the — Loss of market share resulting from product qualty issues

long term

Protection of our inteflectual property
buids competrtive advantage by
strengthening barners-to-entry Our
intangible resources INclude patents,
product approvals, technological
know-how, branding and our workforce

Movements indicate management’s perception of how the pre-mitigation risk has moved year on year
A ncreased nsk

> No change to nsk
W Decreasednsk
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Mitigation

— There i substantal redundancy and back-up butlt into group-wide systems and the spread of business offers good protection from indmdual events

— We have a small central resource, Halma IT Services, to assist Group companies with strategic IT needs and to ensure adequate IT secunty policies are
used across the Group

— An [T secunty cormmittee was set up In December 2012 compnsing Halma ple [T members and selected subsidiary IT managers

- Halma IT has been ISO 27001 2013 certified for its nformation security management systems

- We carry out reguler IT health checks Comprehensive IT systems monitenng was introduced in 201344

- Cyber secunty 1s a regular Board agenda item

- We utilise external penetration testing and have completed the rollout of a centralised [T disaster recaovery solution to supplement local processes

- Business continuty plans are well advanced in each business unit

- High levels of integnty are expected from all Group employees Education and awareness of cyber threats 1s an increasing focus

- The sector restructunng in Apnl 2014 freed up additional resource to dedicate to M8A actties Such resources remain under constant review

- We acquire businesses whose technology and markets we know well Sector Chief Executives are responsible for finding and completing acquisiions
In their business sectors, subyect to Board approval, supported by central resources 1o search for opporturites We employ detaled post-acquisiion
integration plans

- Thorough due dilgence 1s performed by a combination of in-house and external experts to ensure that a comprehensive appraisal of the commercial,
legal and financial positon of every target 1s obtaned

- Incentives are aligned to encourage acguisitions which are value-enhancing from day one

- The Group's emphasis on excellent intermal controls, hugh ethical standards, the deployment of high-quality management resources and the strong focus
on qualty control over products and processes in each operating business help to protect us from product falture, ibgation and contractualissues

- Each operating company has a health and safety manager responsibla for compliance and our performance in this areas good Health and Safety
pokcies, guidance and monthly reporting requirements are updated ta reflect changing reporting and governance requirements and to enhance
compliance QOur well-established policies on bnbery and corruption have been maintained during the year to ensure continued compliance with best
practice intermally, via the Group Code of Conduct and externally, via appropnate clauses included in third-party agreements

- We camry comprehensve nsurance aganst all standard categones of insurable nsk Contract review and approval processes mitigate exposure
to contractual habsihty

- The Group's whistieblowing policy and externally facilitated hotline assist the tmely identification of potential problem areas

- Continued Investment in intematicnal markets may introduce addtional nsk while we develop the appropnate commercial infrastructure necessary
to build a direct presence

- Group development pregrammes enhance the skills of executives and middle managers needed in therr current and future roles

— Comprehensive recruitment and ongoing evaluation processes assist ugh-quality hinng and development

— The Group regularty surveys staff to assess the alignment of individuals with Group values

- The appointment of a Group Talent Director underpins our identsfication and development of Group executives

- Additional fogus on increasing the diversity of our employees worldwade to better meet our markets’” needs and provide sufficient opportunites for
advancerment as well as Clear succession planning

— Considerable tirme spent assessing our senor management talent and establishing better processes to improve our talent pipeline has advanced our
succession planning and talent qualty

- By devoling control of product development to the autonomous operating businesses, we both spread nsk and ensure that the people best placed
to service the custormers’ needs are dnving iInnovation

- New product development 'best practice’ s shared between Group companies and return on investment of past and future Innovation projects 1s tracked
monthly This ensures that the collective expenence and aexpertise of the Group can be utiised to maxmum etffect

- Large R&D projects, especially those which are capitaksed, require Head Office approval, ensunng that the Group's significant projects are aligned
to overall strategy

= Workforce quality and retention 1s a central objective This focus ensures that ntangible resources stay and grow within the business

- Operating businesses are actively encouraged to develop and protect know-how inlocal junsdictions

- Innovation 1s encouraged and iostered throughout the Group, inter alia, via the Halma Innovation Awards
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Sector Review
Process Safety

Products which protect assets and people at work Specialised
interlocks which safely control criticat processes. Instruments which
detect flammable and hazardous gases. Explosion protection and
corrosion monitonng products.

Philippe Felten

Sector Chief Executive, Process Safety

Record sales and profits were achieved in our Process Safety
sector despite volatile market conditions resulting from the slide
in global ol prices We increased our global footpnnt with additional
regional offices and sector-specific hubs to support collaboration
and cooperation Product development spend mcreased on the
pnor year to a new record level as we expanded our product
portfolio to meet our twain aims of market and geographic
diversification The acquisiion of RCS expanded our range of
products and it has continued to perform well Trading in the
busness met pre-acquisition targets

Profit % of Group

27%

Revenue % of Group

22%

Market trends and growth drivers
Long-term growth in our Process Safety markets is supported by
three key drivers

— population growth resulting N nsing energy demand

- increasing and more stringent global health, safety and
environmental regulations and legislation

- increasing development, complexity and geographic spread
of energy resources and therr safety requirements

The global process safety market is forecast to continue to grow

A key dnver 1s aftermarket demand for replacement and upgrading
of clder safety systems to meet updated safety standards Our
commitment to developing new products designed to meet new
standards assists our customers in maintaining compharice while
minmising downtime and degradation of assets

Due to the significant ol pnce fluctuation in the past year, many of
the major players in the International oil market are facing exceptional
short-term uncertainty However, new energy industry projects have
long lead times, despre the current global economic conditions, the
world’s population continues to grow and demand for energy will
continue to nse

! See Note 1 to the Accounts
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Performance

Group
KPIs target
Revenue growth! 250%
QOrganic revenue growth' (constant currency) 9.1% >5%
Profit growth! 28.4%
Organic profit growth! {constant currency} 14 0% >5%
Return on Sales? 28.3% >18%
R&D % of Revenue? 3.4% >4%
Contribution to Group
£m 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Revenue 159 127 126 122 103
Profit 45 35 32 29 24

1 Sector revenue and adjusted! sector profit befora finance expenss are compared 10 the
equivalent pnor year figures

2 Retumn on Sales 15 defined as adusted! saclor profit before fnance expense and taxation
expressed as a percentage of Seclor revenue

3 Sector research and development expenditue expressed as a percentage of seclior revenue

*  Adusted to remeve the amortisation of acqured intangible assets and acquisition tems
{see Nota 1 10 1he Accournts)

Global oll production conbinues to exceed demand, but demand 1s
forecast to continue to grow dunng 2015 The major ol producers
are indicating varying levels of caprial expenditure reduction in new
oll exploration actvity The impact on mid and downstrearm activity

15 less severe and there are significant regional vanations regarding
the extent of proposed cut backs With the majonty of our sales in
the mid and downstream sectors, the underpin of increasing safety
awareness and our strong regional presence in the USA, Middle East
and Asia, we expect to mantain growth

We are committed to developing products and technology
platforms which improve the safety and rehiability of industnal
operations Investment in new oll and gas extraction techriques
and the delivery of corventional, unconventional and renewable
energy resources has continued to support our sales growth
Throughout the world govermmients continue to iImpose stncter
regulations to protect people and the environment from avoidable
process system falures We support regulatory developrment in
our markets by having our staff on advisory bodes responsible
for recommending legislatve change




Geographic trends

Underlying giobal growth in demand for energy, food, chemicals,
water and metals continues to increase despite some regional
varations due to macro-economic issues The USA and Asia remain
buoyant The European market has retumed to growth and the
emerging market of South Armenca has been a key contnbutor te our
success in the last year Economic factors have reduced demand in
Ind:a and Australia and we anticipate that a return to growth in these
areas will be a slow process

While new offsharae fields have been identified in North and
South Amenca, and Afnca, the curment oll pnce cycle is delaying
therr exploitation

Governments worldwide are increasing programmes to eliminate
brbery and cormuption from process safety contracting We adhere
to stnct Group and government guidelines to avoid projects we
beleve are subject to these unwanted practices

Strategy
In the Process Safety sector, our strategy for growth focuses on

- geographic market diversification via shared regional hubs

- investment in new products to both diversify our markets and meet
local market needs

- acquistions in adjacent markets

Cur investment in new product development has increased agan
to a new record resutting n sales of products designed m the last
three years maintaining a leve! of over 30% of total sales New
technology and shorter product lifecycles, coupled with industry-
leading quality and customer service, ensures that we mantamn
competitive advantage and mprove customer value propositions
This results in sales growth ahead of market growth

The global footprnt of our Process Safety companies continues to
expand, we now have 22 manufactunng sites across five continents
Regional sales and service centres have nsen from 22 to 35 and we
opened a new sector hub in Houston, USA during 2014 adding to
our existing sector hubs in Brazil, UAE and Poland We continue

to decentralise marketing resources into these faciiies to ensure that
we rapdly identify local market opportunties and customer needs
Developing internal collaboration and allances within the sector
supports growth and we continue technology partnerships with
external companies where they will help us meet our strategic
product goals

The acquisiion of RCS, in the adjacent market of pipeline corrosion
monitorng, expands our portfolio of critical safety products sold into
the energy and utility markets to protect Ife and operational assets

Performance

Process Safety grew sales by 25% to £159m 2014 £127m) and
profit' by 28% to £45m (2014 £35m} As a consequence of strong
product margins and good operational management, retumn on
sales increased to 28 3% (2014 27 5%) New product ntroductions
contnbuted to both margin expansion and revenue growth through
dwersification into new application niches

We achweved strong revenue growth in the USA, which was mostly

organic, and in Asia Pacffic, Middle East and South Amenca manly
due to the contnbution from the RCS acquistion The UK increased
only margnally as a result of reduced North Sea investment

Two sector companies relocated to new factores durng 2014/15 and
an addtional two undertook significant faciity expansion, all without
disruption o supply performance  These investments ensured that
we maintaned the qualty and service expected by our customers

Outlook

The long-term growth prospects in the Process Safety sector rernain
positive as we continue geographic and product expansion Our
progress In the food, pharmaceutical and chemical process markets
will continue to allows us to counter a short-term slowdown in the ol
and gas market. In the medium term these markets will continue to
be a major contributor to our ongoing success Specialist markets

in railway infrastructure and logisbes are expanding in line with our
Previous plans

We continue o search for acquistions, partcularly in non-ntrusive
corrosion monitening, hazardous area mantenance and machinery
safe access control
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Sector Review
Infrastructure Safety

Products which detect hazards to protect assets and people In pubiic spaces
and commercial buldings Fire and smoke detectors, fire detection systems,
security sensors and audible/visual warning devices. Sensors used on
automatic doors and elevators in buldings and transportation.

Nigel Trodd

Sector Chief Executive, Infrastructure Safety

The Infrastructure Safety sector delvered strong revenue and

profit growth in 201415 We achieved good results in both recently
acquired and established businesses Advanced Electronics was
acqured in May 2014 to broaden our fire product portfolio and
turther strengthen Halma's position in the giobal fire systems market

Profit % of Group

30%

Revenue % of Group

32%

Market trends and growth drivers

Increasing health and safety regulation remains the primary dnver in
our Infrastructure Safety sector Rising infrastructure investrment s
also driven by

- population ageng, nsng safety awareness, continuing global trend
of urbanisation and population growth

- nsing demand m emerging markets where existing infrastructure
requires modernisation and rapid economic growth requires high
infrastructure investment

- growing need for ‘connectmvty’ with nsing demand for wireless
technologies alongside autcmation in ‘smart’ buldings

Governments throughout the world continue to implement
increasingly stringent health and safety regulations In mature
markets, safety standards are constantly updated and compliance
becomes increasingly demanding for our customers New European
fire regutations, for example, require fire detection devices to be totally
compatible with all other components of a fire alarm system This
ensures maximum protection from fire nsk m medem buldings

while mirimising disruption from false alarms  Developing markets
increasingly adopt and enforce globally-recognised safety standards
which protect assets and eiminate hazards to people in domestic,
public and ndustral environments

increasing urbanisation, especially N Asia, dnves demand for
high-nse properties with elevators Strengthened health and
safety legislation in Europe requires elevators to be upgraded
with emergency communication devices

' See Note 1 jo the Accounts
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Performance

Group
KPis target
Revenue growth' 63%
Organic revenue growth' {constant currency) 51% >5%
Profit growth' 12.5%
Organic profit growth' [constant curency) 123% >5%
Return on Sales? 21 4% >18%
R3D % of Revenue® 52% >4%
Contribution to Group
£m 215 2014 2018* 2012 20m
Revenue 234 220 205 204 197
Profit 50 44 a2 39 39

1 Sector revenue and adjusted* sactor profit before finance expense are comparad to the
equivalent prior year figures

2 Returmn on Sales (s defined as adjusted* sector profit before finance expense and taxaton
expressed as a percentage of sector revenue

1 Sector research and developiment espenditue expressed 85 a percentage of secior ravenue

4 Adjusted 10 rernova the amonisatien of actuired intangble assets acquistion tems and the
effects of closura to future benefit accrual of the Defined Benefit pension plan (et of
associated costs) {see Note 1 to tha Accounts)

5 Profit rastated for the effects of adoptng LAS 18 fevsed) in 2013714 {see Accounting
Policigs note)

The global elevator market 1s forecast to continue to grow with the
principal growth in Asia, where, as well as ongong infrastructure
development, we see increasing elevator density due to use inlow
and mud-nse buldings This trend 18 partly due to population ageng
and demand for higher iming standards With a 2013 glebal installed
elevator base of 12m units, trght regulation of elevator mamntenance
further stmutates demand for our elevator safety products

The world market for pedestrian autormate door controls 1s dnven

by regulation, safety standards continue to evolve in all regions
Introduced in 2013, the first pan-European safety regulatons that
protect users of power-operated pedestran doors from hazards have
reached mature mplementation in Yestem Europe implementation
15 still underway in the rest of Eurcpe

Demand for safety sensors in the industnal door market is growing,
for both door activation and safeguarding the area around a door
to prevent crushing njunes New European standards are due in
2015/16 In the Amencas we have seen ncreasing use of high
performance industnal secunty doors for parking and automotve
markets as well as for mning and heavy Industnal applications

The trend of convergence of bullding automation and information
technology In smart buldings drives growth of our wireless
communications ntrusion detecton secunty products Product
certifications remain important for ntrusion detection systems
Europe, particularly those with police-response remote monitonng

Geographic trends

The global fire protection systems market 1s forecast to grow with
Asia leading the way dnven by urbarisation and increasing safety
requrements In the USA residential fire protection Is increasingly




based on wireless detectors as home automation and security
systems inciuding smoke detection grow in populanty

The global elevator market 1s growing strongly and is forecast to
continue to nse by about 7% per year at least untl 2017 China
remains the pnncipal growth market for elevator products Of the
2013 elevator global market estmate of €54bn, China accounted
for 26% of the sales value, and 67% of the new elevator installations
Asia as a whole accounts for 78% of new installatons Indias
forecast to become the next big elevator and escalator growth
market and increasing urbanisation could see new nstallabons nse
to 100,000 units per year by 2018 Elevator installations in Europe
and the Amencas remained flat, though mild growth in construction
starts are expected in the next couple of years Cur focus in these
temtones remans in elevator upgrades and mantenance

Our automatic door control products continued to penetrate more
geographic markets in Eastern and Northem Europe, South Amenca,
Canada, Australia, Japan, India and the Middle East

Despite a growing focus on safety in China, implementation of

safety regulations for automatic pedestnan doors 1s slow In the
transportation door controls niche, we saw rising safety awareness
(not regulation), especially in the subway train Platform Screen Doors
market Japan is considenng adopting the latest European automatic
door safety regulations as national Industry standards by 2017 This
could open a considerable new door safety control market

We achieved strong sales growth of intruston detection products
outside our tradihional UK and Western European markets, with
good progress in South Afnca, the Middle East and China We
significantly mproved UK market share in 2014/15

Strategy

New market penetration 1s a pnmary growth strategy in the
Infrastructure Safety sector, particularly n high infrastructure
investment terrtones such as Russia and Eastern Europe, ASEAN
nations and Brazil

in our fire products sub-sector, we continue a strategy of growth
through intemational expansion, new products, new detection
technologies and acquistions In 2014/15 we strengthened our fire
sales presence In both India and China and we will open an ASEAN
sales coffice in Singapeore n 2015 We have changed strategy In China
to focus on prermium fire products

Over 70% of our elevator product sales are door safety light

curtan detectors but Increasing competition 1s putting pressure on
margins We will continue to develop premium products for upgrade
and refurbishment alongside economy ranges for the new mstallation
market The global market for n-car elevator telephones is estimated
to be the same size as the hight curtain market, the in-car display
market is at least twice the size To deliver long-term growth, we will
invest in development of cur telephcne and display business Elevator
emergency telephone and display markets are fragmented and
present an opportunity for consolidation, potentially via acquisition

Qur strategy for automatic door sensor growth focuses on expanding
outside our established pedestnan and industnal door sectors Into
new applications such as detecting and counting flows of people
and vehicles

In Western Europe, we anticipate ncreasing adoption of smart
securty and buiding automation systems Dunng 2014715 we
increased mvestment in European sales resources for INtrusion
detection alarm systems on the back of new product approvals

Performance

Revenue growth of 6% was in line with expectations while sector
profit! growth was 6% higher than revenue growth as reported and
7% ahead at constant currency We continue to exceed Group targets
on Retum on Capital Employed and cash generation

Return on Sales increased to 21 4%, due primariy to successful new
product launches and an effectve balance between investment and
cost control to matntan strong margins

Revenue n all major markets increased durnng the year, with 23%
growth in the UK and 44% in Afnca and the Middle East In the USA,
excluding the Monitor disposal, we achieved 5% growth and this
should continue as home secunty OEMs source increasingly from
Apollo America Our strategy of ncreastng nvestment in locally
based sales and techrucal resources contnues to pay dividends

The Advanced Electronics business, acquired in 2014, has
strengthened our posttion to offer small fire systems in selected
markets and has broadened our understanding of fire contro!
panels globally We will continue to leverage the synergies we
have expenenced with the Advanced teams on board

We sold Monitor Elevator Products, a New York-based manutacturer
of elevator control panels to another industry player, Innovation
Industnes, in May 2014 Morrtor did not have the intemational growth
potential we belleved was necessary to maintain growth and high
retums in the medium term

We continued the integration and reorganisation of our four elevator
companies INto a sngle business unit New in-elevator emergency
telephone products and in-car displays extended penetration of these
niche markets Trading in the elevator door sensor market has been
challenging, with increasing competition from Asian light curtan
manufacturers Despite thus, we maintaned high elevator business
Return on Sales by focusing on higher margin telephone and

display products

In the past year we strengthened cur global leadership of the
pedestrian and industrial high speed door sensors markets and
increased market share in public transportation and secunty

Outlook

Continued growth 1s anbcipated due to nsing demand dnven by the
demegraphic trends of population ageing and urbanisation, ncreasing
regulatory pressure, technology advances and locaksed manufacture

We expect to see revenue growth remaining ahead of market
growth rates m most of our niches Thus will be driven by geographic
and market expansion, the launch of new products into established
channels and by acquisiton Developng economies are an exciting
market for all Infrastructure Safety businesses as buldings and
homes become ncreasingly more complex and scphisticated

The acquistion pipelne for the sector 1s very promising and we am
to add complementary businesses dunng the coming ysars
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Sector Review
Medical

Products used to improve personal and public healtth Devices used to
assess eye health, assist with eye surgery and primary care applications.
Fludic components such as pumps, probes, valves and connectors used

by medical diagnostic OEMs

Adam Meyers

Sector Chief Executive, Medical Performance

The Medical sector agan delivered record revenue and profit Group

with strong contnbutions both from recent acquisitions and KPis target

long-established businesses Profit performance was very strong Revenue growth' 38%

and constant curency revenue growth was above Group target Organic revenue growth' (constant curency) 5.9% >5%

Retums remain high and continue wel above Group targets Profit growth! 8.5%

The Medical sector set a new Return on Sales record and Organic profit growth! constant curency) 96% 5%

cash generation remamned strong Retum on Sales? 26 8% >18%

Continued investment in innovative technology and products 1s R&D % of Revenue® 4 0% >4%

ncreasing the proportion of sector revenue from products launched

in the last three years Our Medical business acquisition pipeling 1s Contnbution to Group

robust and we continue to focus on acquinng in this sector In May

2015 we acquired VAS LLC which will operate within Diba Industnes £m 205 2014 203 2012 2om

and bnngs in important new component technology Revenue 169 163 136 100 82
Profit 45 42 36 26 20

Revenue % of Group

23%

Profit % of Group

27%

Market trends and growth drivers
The Medical sector growth driver of ncreasing dermand for healtheare
1s underpinned by

worldwide population ageing and increasing Ife expectancy
ncreasing prevalence of dabetes, obesity and hypertension
mcreasng healthcare access N developing economies

new medical diagnostic technologies

new or improved surgical and pharmaceutical therapes

t

The proportion of the global population aged over 60 continues to
nse steadlly and dnves demand for healthcare, both n developed and
developing geographies Population ageing 1s a key dnver for our
ophthaimology and hypertension management businesses because
eyesight problems and high blood pressure are both age-related

For example, cne in three Amencan adults has hugh blood

pressure which causes, or leads to, over 2 4 millon Amencan
deaths annually Rising obesity increases both hypertension-related
liness and diabetes-related eye disorders In China, people suffenng
from hypertension ncreased by 34% between 2002 and 2010, but
less than 20% of those affected were controlling ther condition

We expect continued growth in spending on hypertension
management instruments

' See Note 110 the Accounts
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' Sector revenue and adjusted? sector profitbetore finance expenss are comparad to the
equivalent prlor year figures

¥ Rawim on Sales &5 defined as adusted! sector profit before inance expense and taxation
exprassed as a percertage of Sector revenua

¥ Sector research and development expendiure expressed as a percentags ol secior
revenue

! Adusted to remove the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and acquistion tems (see
Note 1 to the Accounts)

The global growth rate for medical devices 1s expected to be 4%

to 5% n the near term with developing economies offenng slightly
stronger growth Within the overall medical market, cataract
operations, one of the most frequent surgical procedures throughout
the world and a strong focus of our ophthalmic surgery companies,
are growing annually at about 5% Eye surgeons continue to switch
to the type of single-use iInstruments we make so our growth rate
should continue to outpace the procedure growth rate

Increasing healthcare access and ageing populations are also
strong drivers in the laberatory automation market, where demand i1s
forecast to nse annually by 6% through 2017, underpiring demand
for our crtical fliidic components Ageing populations require higher
level medical testing and faboratones need faster throughput and
more specialsed equpment North Amenca and Europe are the
largest laboratory automation markets while growth in Asia 1s
expected to outpace all other geographies, with forecast annual
growth of over 8% One of the fastest growing laboratory automation
segments 1s molecular diagnostcs {tests on patients’ genetic codes),
forecast to grow worldwide by 11% annually through 2019

The glebal medical product regulatory environment continues

to get tougher — higher registration costs, increasing testng and
more audits We continue to invest In personnel to address these
market pressures including hinry local regulatory affars staff in

key temtones Increasingly complex medical device registration
requirements, combined with current macro-economic conditions,
places significantty more value on Halma's well-established Medical




sector channels and market access Each year we add staff in our
Astan and South Amencan healthcare markets, particulary n China,
Indha, Brazil and the Middle East

Geographic trends

Continued expansion of the global medical device market provides
opportunity for sustaned revenue growth but we also are prepared
for market vanaton due to local economic conditions, government

spending programmes and currency fluctuations

US healthcare spending 1s forecast to continue to grow above 4%

for the next few years Over 16 millon Amencans have ganed health
Insurance since the Affordable Care Act becarme law in 2010 This
has begun to raise patient fiows but has yet to dnve increased market
revenue, so the US rmarket 1s uncertan The market for single-use
surgical devices In Amenca is set to continue to grow, but capital
equipment sales may grow more slowly until increased patent flow
raises medical revenues or economic growth accelerates

The US healthcare market was stronger than antcipated in the
past year and may continue to compensate for a weaker European
market Recent Euro exchange weakness should aid US market
penetration for our European businesses, but our US and Swiss
businesses will face higher pnce pressure when selkng into Eurcpe

The major European economies should see medical device demand
grow between 2% and 6% over the next few years However,
stagnant economies and continued austenty measures are expected
to challenge sales growth elsewhere in Europe Our non-Euro Zone
companies expect increased prce pressure due to exchange rates

While growth n Asta, and in particutar China, may be slowing,
these markets are still expected to grow faster than other regions
Our Chinese investment continues with more product registrations,
more R&D engineers and development of localised products

About 400,000 Chinese people become blind from cataracts each
year but China has the lowest cataract surgery rate in Asia China
will see increasing rates of cataract surgery as access Is Improved,
particulary in rural areas, and as mare surgeons are traned to
perform this surgery

A third of Ching's aduit population, about 330 milion people,
have high blood pressure with prevalence increasing particutarty
among the young and rural populations Raised awareness and
programmes to combat hypertension will ncrease demand for
our diagnostic devices

Other termtores, such as South and Latin America, the Middle

East and Afnca are forecast to grow annually by 7% to 8% for the
next few years Medical sector companties are increasing sales and
marketing collaboration here and in particular we are increasing the
use of our Brazl Sector hub

Strategy
Medical sector strategy is to increase growth organically and via
acquisition by

ncreasing coliaboration and shared resources to drive expansion
and joint product development

increasing R&D nvestrment to broaden product ines and
commercialise iInnovative new products

further geograptic penetrabion

improving talent and increasing diversity

— expansion into adjacent market niches

Our Medical sector companies are increasing coliaboration

as they have mutti-company sales and marketing teams In
China, India and the Middle East and are locking to add parts

of Europe and South Amenca to the mxin 2015/16 As a result,
a new collaboratively-developed product 1s scheduled for launch

m our hypertension management niche and we have appointed
a 'President of Ophthalmology, Greater China’ to assist our Medical
sector companies with growthin China

R&D rwestment will nse to capitalise on our competitive

advantage from strong sales channels in niche markets and
excellent customer relationships Medical sector R&D spend asa
percentage of sales has historically been below the group target

as recent acquistions typrcally spent less on R&D than we dd as a
sector This 1s being built up as we increase nvestment in our newer
busnesses and continue to pursue product development actvities
in our long standing businesses

Medical sector R&D focuses on high quality components and
instrumentation that will be readly accepted by our conservative
custormer base However, local development and rmanufacture
IN emerging markets to satisfy local customer needs hetter 1s
Increasingly important and s a key strategic pnonty

Acquisition of a small Swiss ophthalmic component producar in
May 2014 secured mportant manufactunng IP and the purchase
of VAS LLC m May 2015 adds important component technology
We still seek to acquire value-enhancing healthcare businesses
within existing and adjacent niches and we have focused more
resources on achieving this objective

Performance

The Medical sector grew revenue by 4% to £169m (2014 £163m)and
profit’ by 9% to £45m 2014 £42m) This was virtually alt organic as we
only made one small acqguisiion i 2014/15 Organic revenue growth
at constant currency was 6% and organic constant currency profit
growth was 10%, both above Group targets

Retum on Sales improved to 26 8%, a new Medical sector record
Margin improvernent i1s due to mproved ratios at recent acquisions,
cost reductions and overhead control

Currency translaton had an adverse rmpact in 201415 if exchange
rates reman at current levels we expect an opposte impact in 2015/16
due to reversal of the relative strength of the US Dollar and Swiss Franc
aganst Stering

Outlook

Ageing populations in both developed and developing economies,
Increasing access and hegher dermand for healthcare n the developing
world, and increasing prevalence of hypertension, dabetes and obesity
globally, create a favourable ervronment of ncreasing demand for our
high guality medical components and instrumentation

We expect our Medical businesses to outperform the market inthe
medium term dnven by enhanced distnbubon in export markets, new
products and acquistions

We expect growth to vary across temtones and market niches in
developed markets due to cumency volatility, govemment austertty
and spending controls We still see the strong short-term growth
opportunities in developing markets, especially Asia and the Middle
East with Latin and South Amenca We seek to acquire value-
enhancing businesses in the healthcare market and our pipeline
remans very active
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Sector Review
Environmental & Analysis

Products and technologies for analysis in safety, life sciences and environmental
markets Market-leading opto-electronic technology and gas conditoning
products Products to monitor water networks, UV technology for disinfecting
water, and water quality testing products

Chuck Dubois

Sector Chief Executive, Environmental & Analysis

This was a year of significant change for the Emaronmertal &
Analysis sector with several restructuring projects completed
Faciities were combined and businesses rationalised to focus

on those areas of the market that are best poised for growth in
the coming years In addition, we established a stand-alone
business in China to better pursue that geographic market While
the markets were stable or growing for the most part, we did have
some headwind in the UK water market, as well as beng impacted
by some of the turmoil in the Middle East We achieved strong
growth n Asia

With the restructuring largely behind us, as evidenced by the
mprovements in the second half of the year, we are in a strong
positton for growth in FY16

Revenue % of Group

23%

Profit % of Group

16%

Market trends and growth drivers

Our products montor and treat water, ar and food They enable
the development and manufacture of new products that improve
our health We operate in sustamed growth markets that are
underpinned by four key drivers

— nsing demand for basic resources such as energy and water
- Increasing erviranmental monitonng and regulation

~ growing demand for healthcare

- scientfic advances transfemng into new industnes

Today, 18 billon people drink faecally contaminated water and an
even greater number dnnk water that 1s unsantary Approximately
3 5 million people die each year due to nadequate water supply,
sanitation and hygiene

' See Note 1 1o the Accounts
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Performance

Group
KPis target
Revenue growth' (13)%
Organic revenue growth' {constant cumency) 04% >5%
Profit growth! (137%
Orgarnic profit growtt? ([constant curency) (12.1)% >5%
Return on Sales? 16.7% >18%
R&D % of Revenue® 6 3% >4%
Contnbution to Group
£fm 2015 2014 2013 2012 2014
Revenue 164 167 152 154 136
Profit 27 32 30 32 26

1 Sector revenue and adjusted! sector profit before finance expense are compared to the
squivalent pricr year figures

2 Raturn on Sales is defined as adjusted* sactor profit before finance axpensa and taxation
expressed as a percentage of sector reverue

* Sector research and development expenditure expressad as a perentage of Secior revente

4 Adjusted 1o remave the amortisation of acquired Intangible assets and acquisition itams
(see Note 1 to the Accounts).

Accerding to the UN, by 2025 two thirds of the world's population
could ve under water stress conditions as demands are placed on
water usage by agricutture, manufactunng, energy production and
domestic usage By 2050 global water withdrawals are expected
to Increase by 55%

These trends and forecasts contnue to drive regulation and
enforcement Some of the greatest iImprovements have been
made in water qualty and ervironmental montorng n China
and other developing countres Here we see increasing demand
for our pollution monitonng eguipment and we have developed
products to meet the specific needs of these markets

There are also significant opportunties in new markets as our
technologies developed for soientific applicatons are used In
mndustnal settings for product mprovernent and quality control
increasing demand for improved food safety has brought use
of our spectroscopy products into food processing and even
crop management.




The shipping Industry 1s undergoing changes to its monitonng and
treatment practices Ship stack emissions monitonng has begun
Pollution and concerns over iInvasive species are key dnvers behind
the International Marntime Organization’s IMO) Ballast Water
Management inhiative

Manufacture of new technologies, such as LED lighting, requires
new levels of qualty contral, which can be met by our products

Our technology 15 also used to ensure the quality of pharmaceuticals,
particularly as manufactunng I1s increasingly cutsourced

Advances in communication technologies which allow remote
monitonng data collection are creating new markets for our sensors
and data-loggers used to monitor water distnbution networks

Geographic trends

This sector sells into a signrficant number of market niches While
growth rates In the westerm economies are modest, our niche
rmarkets are expected to expand at rates between 4% and 7% We
see opportunities for US market growth and improved market share
in the UK and Europe In particular, the deregulation of the UK water
market 1s beginning to provide new opportuniies We are putting
resources N place to take advantage of opportunities in Europe for
our products that support manufactunng

China offers the greatest growth opportunity for our Environmental

& Analysis businesses geographically We continue to invest in China
and now have over 80 employees there We expect continued growth
in the coming year as we take full advantage of cur expanded

R&D and producton capabilities

We have revamped some product ines that assist water quality
testing by NGOs, particularly n Africa and South Amenca, and
we are seeing increased demand for these products

Strategy

Our orgaric profit growth strategy centres on R&D investment in
new product development, geographic expansion fwith a strong
focus on Asig) and diversificabon of existing technologies into
adjacent and growing reguiated markets

R&D 1s focused on applications that have iong-term drivers and
defensible market posittons More new products are the result
of collaboration between comparies, and one compary now
has established development projects with six other companies
in the sector

An increasing number of our companies manufacture in China
Our Chinese markets continue to improve as regulations enacted
in the past few years are increasingly enforced China's advance
into more technological manufactunng also benefits our quality
and assurance products

Qur strategy within core gecgraphies, such as the USA and Europe,
15 1o grow by finding new applications for our existing technologies
For example, our spectrometers are being used on drones to
monitor crop development, enabling farmers to optimise

fertlisation and imgation

Performance

Revenue declined by 1% to £184m 2014 £167m) and profit’ fell by
14% to £27m (2014 L£32m) At constant currency, organic revenue
was margnally positive and profit was down 12% Retumn on Sales
was 16 7% (2014 191%)

The downturn was partly due o business restructunng The cost

of consokdation of our optical coatings businesses were roughly within
budget {ess than £1m), but ramp-up and customer qualifications took
longer and were much more expensive than anticipated We saw
improverment in the second half of the year and, having further
strengthened the management team, we have posiioned this
business for further progress in 2015/16

The establshment of Ocean Optics Asia was an important step

in our overall strategy, and met performance expectations However, in
our other spectroscopy businesses, some significant OEM customers
had over-purchased mn 2013, resulting in dimirished orders this year
These customers are now back on track and should dnve growth in
the coming year

We restructured our UV water treatment businesses and rationalised
some product Ines Sensing products developed by this group have
been moved to other group companies with greater market potential
for these products

Qur water quality testing business continued to grow Uptake of
our products in emerging marksts was bnsk and should reman
that way through the coming year Overall, we enter 2015/16 with
a much stronger and focused approach, and anticipate greater

year-on-year growth

Our gas condtioning businesses performed well due to the
nfroducton of new products designed for emerging markets and
continung penetration of our existing markets We expect these
businesses to continue to grow based on these ntiatves In the
medium term

Outlook

2015/16 should deliver sold growth as we capitalise on the business
restructuring changes made over the last two years The improved
sector performance in the second half of 2014/15 bears this out New
preducts introduced towards the end of last year are having a positive
impact and we expect to see markets with difficutt trading conditons
return to growth These nclude the UK water utiibies, which started

a new five-year investment cycle in 2015 We expect this to have a
poesitve iImpact on our water monitonng business in the second

half of 2015/16 onwards

Many new products have been launched in this sector in the last year
The proportion of sector revenue due 1o sales of products introduced
i the fast three years improved significantly in 2014/15 and we expect
this to increase agan in the coming year
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Sustaining growth by
developing talent

Halma's Innovative and entrepreneunal operating companies require that ther
people not only deliver what is required for success today, but can also scale
with the pace of growth to defiver in the future This 1s amidst an ever changing,
increasingly glebal and complex environment We are committed to attracting
and developing highty talented indmduals and promoting a culture nwhich
they can thrve

In the past year we have made great progress in defining our talent and leadership
requirements for the future, understanding more deeply our capabilities and
development needs and planning for how to close any gaps Of particular note
this year, we accelerated our efforts to foster a more diverse and nclusve culture

Jennifer Ward

Group Talent Director
It 1s vital that we develop and grow our people’s
capabilities to match Halma's growth

We are committed to identfying and developing
the leaders that will ensure our success as our
business continues to change and grow
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Corporate Responsibility

Commitment to
Corporate Responsibility

Halma companies are invaived in the manufacture of a wide
range of products that protect and improve the quality of Ife for
people worldwide This report focuses on areas of progress and
our parformance for aft areas of corporate responstbility which
are considered to be matenal by our stakehclders and are also
mportant to the success of our business Halma has developed
meaningful key performance indicators (KPls) that reflect the
mportance the Group places on corporate responsibility and
enable the Board to monitor the Group's progress in mesting its
objectives and responsibiities in these areas Further detals are
gven on pages 25 and 43

These areas of emphasis Include health and safety, employee
engagement and development, human nghts and ethics, corporate
responsibility and sustanability Safety 1s cnbical to the Group and 1s
amaor pnonty We recognise the necessity of safeguarding the
health and safety of our own employeses while at work and operate
s0 as to provide a safe and comfortable working ervironment for
employees, vistors and the public Our policy 1s to manage our
actvities to avord causing any unnecessary or unacceptable nsks
to health and safety and the ernarornment Halma has an excellent
health and safety record and a culture of safety 1s deeply
embedded within the Group

Qur core values are Achievement, Innovaticn, Empowerment

and Customer Satisfacton These core values have been

selected following extensive surveying of employees across the
Group Our culture 1s one of openness, Integnty and accountability
We encourage our employees to act fardy in ther dealings with
fellow smployses, customers, suppliers and business partners

We recognise that our employeas determine our success

and therefore continue to Invest In and encourage their
development more and more each year, not only with a suite
of Halma developrment programmes, but also through clear
leadership and decisive action By appointing our Group Talent
Director last year, we are focusing on our teams and ensuring
we have the approach and skills required to succeed so that
the Group is better placed to meet the challenges of the future

We support the concept of sustanability and recogruse that, in
common with all businesses, our actvities have an environmental
mpact Qur strategy 18 not to have capital-intensive manufactunng
processas and to operate close to our end markets In terms of
geography, so the environmental impact of our operations 1s
relatively low compared to manufacturers in other sectors We also
recognise that we can improve our own ervironmental perforrmance
and so resources are deployed to actively reduce our own carbon
foctprint Halma has been a member of the FTSE4Good UK index
since its establishment in July 2001
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The Environment

We have an excellent long-term record and a clear strategy for
addressing ervironmental 1ssues that affect our businesses and
for developing products that protect the emaronment and improve
safety at work and in pubhc places

Our products

Many of our innovative products play a very positive role in menitonng
and mproving the ervironiment Halma brands lead the world in

a number of technologies which help to minimise envircnmental
damage Our pnncipal environmental technologies are water leakage
detection and wireless monitonng, gas emissions monitorng, water
and effluent analysis, UV water treatment and optical sensing We
promote the use of UV water stenlisation which eliminates the need to
use dangerous chemicals, as well as making products that minimise
the waste of clean water

Our commitment to the development of equipment for measunng
and monitonng envirenmental changes and controling the damaging
mpact of ndustrial activities 1s long term We are the major world
suppler in several of these areas

Our impact

The emaronmental effect of our operations is relatively low compared
to manufacturers in other sectors Our manwfacturng model is
decentralised permitting our operations to be located close to ther
customers Manufacturng operations are established across the
world for this very reason rather than to save labour costs The ethos
of being close to our custermers reflects the iImportance we place on
the qualty of our products and the service levels we provide to our
customers It also makes our operations more flexible and responsive
to therr markets and customers With operations spread around the
globe, our supplier base 1s understandably fragmented Therefore,
responsibility for vetting and managing suppliers is devolved to local
management while meeting the Group's ethical standards

Environmental Management System (EMS)

We are committed to developing and implementing an EMS
throughout the Group to measure, control and reduce our
envronmental impacts We have developed performance indicators
that assist local management in implemeniting the policy and
uttmately developing an EMS The requirement for an EMS and the
related reporting has been rolled out 1o all UK busmess units, which
represent approximately 37% of Group production faciliies n terms
of extemal turnover

All Group companies are encouraged to undertake ISO 14001, the
intemational ervironmental accreditation, where warranted The
requirement to mplement an EMS will be extended to the rest of
the Group in the medium term Interms of revenue, currently 25%
(2014 18%) of the Group has IS0 14001 approval

Group cornpanes are also encouraged to iImprove energy efficiancy,
to reduce waste and emissions and reduce the use of matenals in
order to minimise therr ervironmental mpact

The Group has identfied ts key environmental impacts as

emissions to arr and water, water and energy consumpton, and
waste production We estabhshed baseline data for these impacts in
2004/05 and set targets for reductions against the baseline on aroling
three year cycle We support innovation and nvestment that drives
environmental performance This 1s ilustrated by the solar panel
installatons undertaken at ouwr subsidianes Apollo and Elfab Apolio
undertook a £250,000 solar panel installation in 2013/14 which has
reduced ther environmental impact, with an expected total saving of
3,000 tonnes of carbon over a 25-year penod In additicn, Elfab have
ncreased the amount of renewable energy generated on site with the
introduction of a second solar panet Installation and also have an
actve ran harvesting programme on site which s reducing
consumption of mains water




Carbon Footprint

The Group's policy on carbon is published on our webste and has
been distrbuted and explaned to all Halma business units A senior
executive In each of our higher mpact business urits 1s responsible
for mplementing the carben policy at locai level Our Finance Director,
Kevin Thompson, has principal responsibility for coordinating and
monitoring the policy

We are committed to reducing our carbon footpnnt Reductton of the
Group's carbon footprint has receved increased attention since 2007
with the mitial objective of a 10% reduction m the Group’s total carbon
emissions relative to revenues over three years to March 2010 We
have worked hard to reduce the energy impact of our faciities and
achieved that target for the last pencd from 2010 to 2013 Whilst we
recogrise that reduction by another 10% would be challenging for the
third penod, we have set ourselves the same target to March 2016
and are worlang hard to achieve this We are pleased to report that
we are still on course to meet our three-year target

From Apnl 2010, we have worked with providers of energy efficiency
and carben reduction solutions to ensure compliance with the
Carbon Reduction Commitment Energy Efficiency Scheme {CRC)
which 1s the UK's mandatory energy saving scheme administered by
the Environment Agency We are in full compliance with the CRC
requrements All maor UK sites have recened an energy survey and
set an action plan for mproved energy usage We are well positioned
to comply with the new Energy Saving Opporturity Scheme (ESOS)
regulations ahead ¢f the December 2015 compliance deadline The
Group's environmental performance will continue to be reported both
n the Annual Report and Accounts and on our website

The Group does not operate a fleet of distnbution vehicles although
we do own a number of company cars From May 2007, we
implemented a cap on permissible CO, emissions of all UK company
vehicles and have extended an eguivalent requirement to the USA
and Eurcpe Limits are usually lowered each year so as to reduce
our vehicles’ environmental mpact We have taken the decision to
maintan the same limits for company vehicles as last year We will
keep this under review for future years

We have stepped up our activities internationally to comply with the
new mandatory carbon reporting requirements which UK pubhc
listed comparnies are subject to under the Large and Medum-Sized
Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulation 2008
as amended In August 2013

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (GHG) Reporting

A A

CO;e emissions reduction
>10%

14%
Target

Performance
reduction over 2 years to 2015 reduction over 3 years to 2016

COze emissions (tonnes/Cm of revenue)

* Due to changes in Defra reporing guidance, the 2013/14 figure has
been restated tc nclude Well to Tank (WTT) emissions and Radhatve
Forcing on ar travel It s not required to restate years pnor to 2013414
due to the methodological changes

** The 2014415 figure has also been calculated on the same basis as pror
years (excluding Well to Tank (WTT) emissions and Radiative Forcing
on ar travel) to allow for a direct companson over the longer time scale

Halma's carbon policy was first approved by the Board in 2007 In 2013
the pohcy target was remewed and continues to call for a 10% reduction
In the carbon footprint every three years

We have made good progress this year towards achieving 10% relatve
reduction in emissions over the three years to 2016 and the Group
Carbon Policy reinforces the focus on our CO; emissions There is good
accountability for monitonng and controf of COz emissions at local level

We continue to work with our consuitants to better monitor our ervironmental performance and future external reporting requirements
The Group 1s commutted to examining the establishment of ‘green’ procurement policies and Increasing our use of recycled matenals

GHG Emissions data for the penod 29 March 2014 to 28 March 2015

2014/15 201314

COze emission CO:e emission

global tonnes global tonnes

Scope 1 Combustion of fuel and operation of faciiies 4,348 4199
Scope 2 Electnoity, heat, steam and coolng purchased for own use 16,247 15,960
Scope 3 Business ar travel, WTT (Well to Tank) 14,022 14,567
Jotal gross emissions 34,617 34,726
Intensity measure of tonnes of COse gross emissions per £m revenue 477 53

Note

Dua to changes i Defra reportng gudance, the 2013714 figure has been restated 1o ncude Wel to Tank (WT T) emissions and Radwative Foreng on ar ravel. It s not requeed to restate years prior

to 201314 dus ic the methodological changes
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Corporate Responsibility continued

We have reported on all of the emission sources required

under the Companes Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Reports) Regutations for the reporting penod 29 March 2014 to
28 March 2015

We have employed the Operation Control definition to outline

our carbon footpnnt boundary, included within that boundary are
Scope 1 and 2 emissions from manufacturing sites and offices
which we own and operate Excluded from our footpnnt boundary
are emissions from manufactunng sites and offices which we do
not own and control, and emissions considered non-matenal by
the business We have reported on emissions from Scope 1 and 2
emissions sources with some Scope 3 emissions sources ncluded
(busness ar travel for all years, and Well to Tank emissions for
2013/14 and 2014/15)

We have also used the GHG Protocol Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard (revised edition) and gudance provided by UK'’s
Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affars ([Defra) on voluntary
and mandatory carbon reporting Emission factors were used from
UK Government’s GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting
2013 and 2014

Health and Safety

Halma companies are involved in the manufacture of a wide range

of products that protect and improve the quality of Iife for pecple
worldwide Therefors, safety 15 cntical to the Group and 15 a major
prionty for management and to demonstrate the Group's added
emphasis on health and safety, the Board has endorsed the inclusion
of the Group’s Accident Frequency Rate (AFR) as one of our non-
financial KPls on page 25

The Group manages Its activities to avoid causing any unnecessary
or unacceptable nsks to health and safety to our employees in the
workplace or to the public as a result of our actvities The policy Is
understood by all Group companies and was remnforced in 201011
through iImproved guidance and reporting following a comprehensive
review led by an extemnal expert

Halma has an excellent health and safety record and a culture of
safety s deeply embedded within the Group To ensure each Group
company has appropnately embedded the updated MHealth and
Safety procedures in therr business, ndependent Health and Safety
reviews were performed in each operating company in 201213
These reviews were conducted with a view to ensunng a consistent
approach in qualty of reporting, Internal processes, Ntegration in
operations, appropriateness of company policies, culture of Health
and Safety and also as a means of identifying any pattemns or
underlying causes of reported incidents We have continued {o
actvely promote our safety culture throughout the year using the
outputs from these reviews As a result, reporting of Health and
Safety noidents and comective action where needed has been
gven an even higher profile These were all contnbutory factors in
the group-wide reduchon in the number of days lost due to specrfied
major injury accidents and reportable work-related injunes in 2013/14
Unfortunately the Heafth and Safety performance this year reversed
the position achieved last year and we have reviewed the incidents
contnbuting to this but there are no specific undertying trends or
causes which shouid cause concern or require special attention
Halma commences another cycle of ndependent Health and Safety
reviews in mid-2015 as a continuation of the good practice and
improvements driven by the 2012/13 reviews
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Given the autonomous structure of the Group, operational
responsibility for compliance wath relevant local Health and Safety
regulations 1s delegated to the dreciors of each operatng company
We belleve Health and Safety training 1s important and it 1s carned out
within companiss as appropnate Last year and this year an addtional
head office drven iniatve 1o provde and co-ordnate further IOSH
Managing Safely training was organised for our UK companies
Adequate internal reporting exists n order that the Group’s Finance
Director can monitor each company’s compliance with this policy

The Group collects detalls of its wordwide reported Heatth
and Safety incidents, and these are available on our website
at www halma com We are also pleased to report that there
were no work-related fataliies in 2014/15 or prior years

Injuries recorded
2015 2014 2013 2012

Days iost due to reportable®

work-related injunes 546 118 382 3N
Total recorded injunes to all
employees 298 323 320 362

Specified mayor Inury incidents and reportabls tincidents which result n more than trvee working
days lost
Our People
l_eadership in the global marketplace requires a group culture and
an Inclusive business environment where the best and bnghtest
dwerse minds, employees with varied perspectives, skills, and
expenences, work together to mest customer demands We beheve
that employing the top talent from all groups within our communities,
from many backgrounds and with vaned experences, helps us to
better serve our customers and gves us a competitive advantage
in the global marketplace To achieve this, we seek to hire, inspire,
develop and empower top talent from around the globe

Perodically we complete a survey of employees to determine
whether our core values are authentic in our organisaiion The
survey establishes the values indvidual employees wish to see in our
operating culture and to what extent they exist in our curent culture

in 2008, our survey of senior managers showed that five (50%) of
the values they wanted to see In our business were actually present
Since then, we have mproved the accessibility of the survey by
making it available in paper format as well as online, and by offenng
it in four languages In the last year alone, partrcipation grew by over
a third to more than half of all Group employees and the number

of matching values increased to six (60%) This indicates that the
alignment between the values that employees want {0 see in ther
business and the values that are actually present s very good

and increasing

No survey 15 capable of captunng all the appropnate sentments, but
our executives, who regularly wist all Group companies, agree that
chservable and valuable improvernents in the Group culture have
occurred over recent years The Group will continue to moniter the
survey results to enable us to better support our people In bringing
these values and strengths to work so that they and we may denve
further benefit from them




‘By increasing the diversity and
inclusion of our workforce and
leveraging the insights of our
diverse talent through an inclusive
environment, we enhance our
ability to compete in the world's
iNcreasingly diverse marketplace.”

Jennifer Ward, Group Talent Director

Diversity

We see diversity and inclusiveness as an essential part of our
productmty, creativity, nnovation and competitive advantage

It 1s the foundation of a performance culture that promotes respect,
understanding and appreciation of different perspectives, backgrounds
and experences

Developing regiens, ncluding China, Brazl, India and Afrca make
up an increasing share of the world population They will account for
approxmately 88% of the global population by 2050 Economically,
dverse markets represent a growing source of consumption and
buying power, and we must be prepared to serve the needs of the
changing marketplace

Because our customer base is constantly changing and growing,
we need to be prepared in the following ways

- dwerse and inclusive enough to recognise the needs of customers
In our current and new markets,

— aware enough to anticipate, respond to, and serve the needs of
the changing marketplace, and

- engaged encough to contrbute at the highest levels to deliver
supenor performance

By increasing the diversity and inclusion of our warkforce and
leveraging the insights of our diverse talent through an inclusive
environment, we enhance our ability to compete in the world's
ncreasingly diverse marketplace We regularly monitor our progress
toward these aims through executive site visits and annual values
surveys, which indicate how strongly our desired culture 1s
demonstrated in our businesses

Our efforts are directed towards increasing the proportion of
indniduals with expenence N the business and gecgraphic markets
In which we see our operations growing

Qur strong preference is 10 develop polhicies and actions which
support our long-term ams as well as establishing appropriate
measurable targets We believe the former evolves into being
ermbedded nto corporate culture more readily

Each year our Board of Directors reviews these policies and ther
implementation to ensure that they create and mantan a diverse and
inclusive organisation To the same end, the Halma Executive Board
has been investigating our KPIs on diversity and ensuring that the
leadership of our companies reflects the diversity of the markets

we serve

Halma Diversity and Inclusion Policy

At Halma we recognise that the diversity of the pecple In

our business and the inclusion of all ennches our products,
performance and the ives of our employess We believe that
the diversity of our worldforce contnbutes significantly to our am
to protect and improve the quality of life for people worldwide

We are bulding a culture that encourages talented people of all
backgrounds, beliefs or any form of personal identity to be
nvotved, respected and insprred to develop to ther full potential

Our intention 1s to create effective team environments that
enhance decision-making processes We achieve this by
encouraging the contrbution of urique perspectives and
capabilities to achieve supenor business resuits through
trust, collaboration and innovation of new Ideas

By ensunng faimess and equality of opportunity in recruitment,
traning, development, career progression and reward, Halma 1s
committed to ensuring diversity and mclusion in the workplace
and all areas of our business

Halma believes that the diversity of our staff is a significant
contnbtor to our success and has identified two specrfic
areas for improvement in Halma's orgarisation, particularty
at managenal levels

1) Geographic diversity — to have at least 20% of our executives
geographically based outside Europe and the USA to better
reflect the proporton of our revenue generated within those
markets, and

2) Gender diversity - to increase the overall proportion of female
executives on operating company boards in each of the next
five years

A Diversity and Inclusion Committee was formed this year, with
representatives from across Halma, reflecting each sector, market
and function This committee was co-charred by Jenrifer Ward

and Chuck Dubois and one of the significant contnbutions was a
revitalisation of our Diversity Policy with a new Halma Diversity and
Inclusion Policy which was 1ssued in March 2015 and s also avallable
on our website

The focus of our biennial Halma Innovation and Technoltogy
Exposttion (HITE) n Apnl 2015 was expanded to celebrate and
encourage greater nnovation, collaboration and diversity Prior to
HITE, focus groups were held across the Group to provide a forum
for employees and our partner, Global Diversity Practice (GDP) to
discuss the current environment, challenges and desires The output
from this fed into a half-day serninar at HITE 2015, led by GDP, in
which the Halma Executive Board and our operating subsidianes’
board members all participated

Geographic diversity

As our busnesses continue to expand globally, it 1s Imperative that
the Insights and perspectives of local markets be represented on our
leadership teams Several Group intiatves have been implemented
to support and encourage our operating companies to put leaders
on the ground In key markets We have well-established Halma
Hubs n China and India and have expanded into Brazl as well The
China hub has introduced innovatrve R&D programmes to Incentvise
local preduct development for local markets We continue to seek
walys to ensure that local leadership 1s contnbuting to the global
busness strategies
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Corporate Responsibility continued

Gender diversity

The Board of Directors responded to the consultation document
that the UK's Financial Reporting Council 1Issued in respect of
‘Gender Diversity on Boards' We are proactively identrfying talented
women intemally and externally who could join our leadership teams
We appreciate the scale of the task ahead of us in sectors where
relevant graduates are more than 85% male, so part of our strategy
will Involve ensuring that Halma has a culture and working practices
that make tt more attractve to women

The 2014/15 year ntake for the Halma Graduate Development
Programme (HGDP) included graduates from four different countries
Since the programme’s inception, on average 35% of recrutts have
been female The HGDP is already demonstrating our success in
attracting wormen and ndmduals of diverse backgrounds to Halma
We must now ensure that they continue to thrive and grow therr
careers with us

Halma plc Board Directors’ Other senior managers?®

Total

Other employees

% of Total
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Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled people are always fulty

considered, beanng n mnd the apttudes of the applicant concermed ‘
In the event of mambers of staff becoming disabled, every effort s
made to ensure that ther employment with the Group continues and
that appropriate training 1s arranged It 1s the policy of the Group that
the training, career developrment and promotion of disabled people [
should, as far as possible, be dentical to that of other employees \

Employee consuitation

The Group places considerable value on the involverment of its
employees and has continued to keep them informed on matters
affecting them as employses and on the vanous factors affecting
the performance of the Group This 1s achieved through formal and
informnal meetings, the Group collaboration platiorm and the annual
financial staterments

Employee representatives are consulted routingly on a wide range
of matters affecting ther current and future interests

"People development is
a key part of our organic
growth strategy.’

People development :
People development 1s a key part of our organic growth strategy |
|

We run a2 number of people development programmes Qur

training programmes are constantly reviewed to reflect changing
traning needs amongst our companies The Halma Executve
Development Programme (HEDP), which 1s based on our recognition
of the fundamental part our people play n the success of the
Group, continued to strengthen inrecent years HEDP 1s an
integrated development plan for our senior people — ncluding the
next generation of Managing Directors, Sector Vice Presidents and
Sector Chief Executives Our objective 18 to provide these indwiduals
with the tools and training they need to achieve more in ther existing
role and potentially to advance through the organisation if their
achievements ment it

HEDP 1s aimed at employees already serving on subsiciary boards
but we also encourage applications from senior functional managers
who can demonstrate they already have equivalent responsibilities
and will benefit from the programme

There are approximately 280 such eligible employees in total

The programme has been developed from a proven course structure
and s specifically and contmuously tallored to sutt Halma's needs,
aligning the content to the Group's four core values of Achievernent,
Innovation, Empowerment and Customer Satisfaction It focuses
strongly on strategic and leadership capabilites and developing
persenal attributes — commitment, determmation and resilence
There 1s an emphasis on performarce management and tearm
development !t includes skill based elements such as sales and
marketing managerment, project leadership, corporate governance,
finance and Nnovation, bud all are presented in a strategic context

18 programmes have been successfully completed

Once a significant proportion of executives had completed HEDR,
a follow up programme, HEDP+, was introduced to provide
updated training and to reinforce the onginal course contents




Complementing the HEDP 1s a programme for subsidiary managers
and supervisors - the Halma Management Development Programme
(HMDP) During the year, four HMDP and two HMDP+ programmes
were completed Programimes were held in the USA, Europe and Asia

The Hatma Graduate Development Programme (HGDP) was
introduced dunng 2011/12 and the first parhicipants started working
with us ;n mid-2012 HGDP is targeted at engineerng, science and
technica! graduates with the potential to become future leaders of
our companies, or next generation speciahsts drmang our technology

The programme lasts 18 to 24 months and 1s based on placements In
our vanous operating companies Through project work, participants
quickly assume responsibility and learn in detad how businesses
operate We support participants through residential traning modutes
to help develop communication and teamwork skills alongside a
mentoring programme for personal development Our intake from
2011/12 15 now assuming permanent positions within the Group

Tramning
Cumulatve number of candidates that have completed
HEDP HMDP

Responsible investment

Investing in Halma shares meets the cnteria of many professional and
private Investors who base therr decisions on environmental, ethical
and social considerations The Group 1s a world leader in several key
emronmental technologies and has a reputation for honesty and
integnty in its relatonships with employees, customers, business
partners and shareholders

Social conditions can be improved for all through the creation of
wealth Halma creates wealth responsibly allowing cur employees,
customers, business partners and shareholders to determine where
this wealth 1s best distributed

Human Rights

Halma's Human Rights and Labour Conditions Policy reflects

the core requirements of the Universal Declaration of Human

Rights and the ILO Declaration on Fundamental Pnnciples and
Rights at Work, including the corventions relating to forced labour,
child labour, non-discrmination, freedom of association and nght to
collective barganing We do not tolerate practices which contravene
these International standards Regulatory demands upon us vary
considerably around the world, so Halma establishes the core
structure to ensure that Group companies fully comply with legislative
and regulatory requirements while permitting them to tallor therr
approach to ther particular needs

Compliance with, and respect for, these core requrements are
integrated within cur crgarusation Everyonse in Halma is responsible
for having due regard for human nghts Managers and supervisors
must provide leadership that promotes human nghts as an equal
pronty to other business i1ssues All employees are responsible for
ensunng that therr own actions do not impar the human nghits of
others, and are encouraged to bring forward, in confidence, any
concerns they may have about human nghts  Our Chief Executive,
Andrew Wilhams, has overall responsibility for ensunng that human
nghts considerations are integral to the way in which existing
cperations and new opportunties are developed and managed

Ethics

The Group culture s one of openness, Integnty and accountability
Halma requires its employees to act farly in their dealngs with fellow
employees, customers, suppliers and business partners Halma
ntroduced a Cede of Conduct duning 2011/12 which applies to all
Group employees and our extemnal business relationships  We require
suppliers to be of high qualty and to operate to accepted international
standards Halma operates a confidential whistleblowing policy,
which was refreshed and republicised in 2015, with an external call
centre enabling all Group emplovees to raise any concemns they

may have

Halma has a zero-tolerance polcy on bnbery and comuption which
extends to all business dealings and transactions in which we are
involved This includes a prohibiion on making political donations,
offering or recenving nappropnate gifis or making undue payments
to influence the outcome of business dealings Our rebust policy
and guidance in this area are routinely reviewed
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Financial Review

Strong record of long-term achievement

Halma aims to deliver sustainable growth and shareholder
value over the long term. We have consistently delivered
record profits, high returns, strong cash flow with low levels
of balance sheet gearing and a long track record of growing
dividends. Once again this year we continued this record

of achievement, further strengthening the platform for
future growth.

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director
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Record results

Adjusted' profit grew by 10% to £153 6m in 2014/15 on revenue

up 7% to £726 1Im High retums and strong cash flow enabled us to
cantinue mvestment N our business, spend £84m {net of cash/debt)
acquired) on three acquisitions and increase the dwvdend by a further
7%, the 36th consecutive year of 5% or more dividend Increases
This 1s the twelfth consecutive year of record results

Adjusted profit bridge £m

The revenue increase of 7% to £726 1m {2014 £676 5m) was evenly
weighted between organic and acquisition growth Organic revenue
growth at constant currency and acquired growth were both 5%,

in ine wath our KPI, offset by a 1% reducton due to the Monitor
disposal There was an adverse currency translation impact on
revenue of 2%

Revenue bridge £m

Adjusted® profit increased 10%, by £13 4m, to £153 6m (2014

£140 2rm) Adding back the 2% adverse currency translation impact
shows growth ncluding acquistions of 12% Acquisitions contrbuted
5% to growth and so organic profit growth at constant currency was
7%, ahead of cur 5% KPl target

Statutory profit before taxation dechned by 4% to £133 6m

(2014 £138 7m) Statutory profit is calculated after charging

the amortisation of acquired intangible assets of £19 9m (2014
£175m) and after charging acquisiion transaction items and the
movements on acquisthon contingent consideration including related
foreign exchange movements of £1 5m (2014 credit of £12 5m)

The pnor year credit relates to the revision to the estimate of deferred
contingent consideration payable on the MicroSurgical Technologies
acquisthon More detail on the latest estmate s given below The
credit of £4 0m in 2014 following the decision to close the two UK
Defined Bensfit pension plans to future accrual was the other mamn
factor in the year-on-year reduction in statutory profit There was also
a gan in 2015 on disposal of £14m (2014 disposal £0 5m loss),
mainly relating to Monitor Elevator Products, Inc

In the first half revenue grew by 2% andin the secend half by 12%
There was a significant {5%) adverse currency translation impact in
the first half and minmal net impact in the second half Acquistion
contribution was a hittle higher in the second half than the first
Organic constant cumency revenue growth was 4% in the first

half and increased to 6% in the second half

Adusted" profit also grew by 13% m the second half following
6% growth in the first half with a similar currency translation and
acquisition profile to that of revenue Organic constant currency
profit growth was 7% in both halves The first half/second half
profit split was weighted shghtly more than usua to the second
half at 45%/55% due to the curency mpact noted above

Three of our four sectors grew both revenue and adjusted profit

this year Environmental & Analysis increased revenue marginally
when measured at organic constant currency The highest rate

of growth came from our Process Safety sector, benefiing from

the RCS acquisition but also achieving strong undertying growth
Infrastructure Safety delivered another very good performance and
Medical firushed the year strongly Environmental & Analysis delivered
a disappointing performance overall but achieved a much improved
second half profit performance, broadly in ine with the second half of
the previcus year and meeting our expectations

Central administration costs increased to £9 0m (2014 £79m)as
expected The main elements of the Ncrease were our INvestment in
talent development, further expenditure on our graduate programme
and the costs of support for geographic expansion We expect a
further increase in costs N 2015/16 with our biennial HITE conference
and continued investment in China and other developing markets

Revenue and profit growth Percentage growth
Organic
growth? at
2015 2014  Increase Organic  constant
£m £m £m Total growth? currency
Revenue 726.1 6765 496 7.3% 31% 4.9%
Adjusted' profit 153.6 1402 134 95% 50% 72%

' In addition to those figures reported under IFRS Hatma uses adjusted figures as key partormance ndicators The Directors balieve the aduisted figures give a more reprasentative view of underying
performance Adusted profit fgures excluds the amortisation of ecquired intangible essets acquisiion tems profit or loss on disposal of operations and the effects of closure 1o future benefit accrual of the
Defined Benefit pension plans ret of essocated costs (prior year onty) All of these are included in the statutory figures More details are gven in Note 3

2 SeeFinancial Highiights.
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Financial Review continued

Growth in all regions

We achieved growth in all gecgraphic regions  Currency translation
had an adverse effect on the reported performance in al major
regons The USA remans our largest sales destinaton at 31% (2014
32%) of total revenue  The USA grew by 4%, including growth of 7%
at organic constant currency with strong growth from the Process
Safety and Medical sectors Manland Europe saw some undertying
growth in all sectors with Process Safety growing fastest UK growth
of 8% reflected a good performance In Infrastructure Safety, including
the benefit of an acquisition, but offset by a decline n Ervironmental
& Analysis due to reduced spending in the UK water market as part
of its regular spending cycle Asia Pacific growth of 5% was mixed
across the sectors but Environmental & Analysis grew well There
was very strong growth in Afnca, Near and Middle East and other
countnes, In particular in South Amenca The acguisition of RCS

and the benefit of oll & gas related projects within Process Safety
boocsted demand in these regions

We saw stronger growth in all terntonies in the second haff compared
wath the first half, except the UK which had 8% growth in both penods

In 2010 we targeted 30% of Group revenue to come from terrtories
outside the UK/Maintand Europe/USA by 2015 This year we made
further good progress by increasing the percentage to 27 1% (2014
252%) In the penod since we set the target we have doubled the
‘Rest of World" revenue but made achievement of our target tougher
by delvenng 47% growth in the UK/Mamnland Europe/USA. This KPI
sets an important direction for nvestment and growth in developing
global markets and we will contnue to focus on international
expansion and high rates of growth In developing termtones

as well as more economically developed regions

Geographic revenue bricige £m

Geographic revenue growth

Continued high retums

Halma's Return on Sales? has exceeded 16% for 30 consecutve
years and this year increased t0 21 2% (2014 207%) Our target 1s

to delver a Return on Sales in the range of 18% to 22% and continue
our emphasts on growth Infrastructure Safety and Medical sectors
further ncreased ther Return on Sales this year Process Safety saw
amodest ncrease, remanmng the sector with the highest Retum on
Sales Environmental & Analysis saw a reduction on its Return on
Sales at 16 7% and showed improved profitability in the second half

Gross Margin {revenue less drect matenal and direct labour costs)
remained stable at 64 6% (2014 64 4%) a sold performance showing
our abiity to achieve a good retum on the hugh value we deliver for
our customers

Return on Total Invested Capital (ROTIC), the post-tax return on
the Group's total assets including all historic goodwill, was 16 3%
(2014 restated 18 7%) and this year we revised our calculation to
use average Total Invested Capital as the denominator 10 give a
calculation better reflecting each year's performance

Volatility in currency impacts

Halma reports its results In Sterling Our other key trading currencies
are the US Dollar, Euro and to a lesser extent the Swiss Franc
Approxmately 40% of Group revenue 1s denominated in US Dollars
and 15% in Euros

The Group has both translational and transactional currency exposure
Translaticnal exposures arise on the consolidation of overseas
company results nto Stering Transactional exposures anse whers the
currency of sale or purchase transactions differs from the functional
currency in which each company prepares its local accounts

This year we saw greater volatility in currencies and a currency
headwind stronger than the mwumal impact we expenenced in
2013/14 In the first half of the year both the US Dollar and Euro were
weak relative to Sterling causing a 5% adverse currency translation
impact on both revenue and profit In the second half the US Dollar
strengthened, but the Euro weakened further and the net result for
the year was only a 2% adverse transtation impact on our résutts In
the full year the sectors most atfected by adverse currency transiation
impacts were Medtcal and Infrastructure Safety

2015 2014
% organic
growth at
% of % of Change % constant
£m total £m total m growth currency
United States of Amenca 223.4 31% 2145 32% 8.9 4% 7%
Mainland Europe 167 4 23% 163 7 24% 3.7 2% 2%
Uruted Kingdom 138.3 19% 127 9 19% 104 8% 2%
Aslia Pacrfic 116.8 16% 1116 16% 52 5% 1%
Afnca, Near and Middle East 440 6% 330 5% 10 33% 8%
Other countnes 36.2 5% 258 4% 104 40% 30%
726.1 100% 676 5 100% 496 7% 5%
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Exchange rates used

Weighted average rates used in the to translate the
Income Statement Balance Sheet

2015 2014 2015 2014

First half  Full year Full year Year end Year end

us$ 168 161 159 148 166
Euro 124 127 119 137 121

Based on the current mix of currency denominated revenue and
profit, a 1% movement in the US Dollar relative to Sterling changes
revenue by £2 9m and profit by £0 6m Similarly, a 1% movement
in the Euro changes revenue by £0 9m and profit by £0 2m

Towards the end of the year we saw significant strengthening of the
US Dollar and also the Swiss Franc In more recent weeks we have
seen the US Dollar weaken somewhat and the Euro remain weak so
it 1s difficutt to predict the currency impact In 2015/16 Y currencies
were to continue at current levels {approximately US Dollar 1 55/Euro
140 relative to Sterling) and assuming constant mix of currency
results, we might expect approximately 1% favourable currency
translaton impact on revenue and profit due to cumrency translation
In 2015/16 compared with 2014/15 The positive mpact would be
greater in the first half of 2015/16 than the second half

We take a neutral view of the future moverments of currencies After
matching currency of revenue with currency costs wherever practical,
forward exchange contracts are used to hedge a proportion (up to
75%) of the remaning forecast net transaction flows where there is

a reasonable certamty of an exposure We hedge up to 12 months
and, in certain specific circumstances, up to 24 menths forward

At 28 March 2015 over 50% of our next 12 months’ currency trading
transactions were hedged There 15 a good degree of natural hedging
within the Group 1In US Doltars but we typically buy fewer products in
Euros than we sell and so have a net exposure of approximately
€30m at any time

Consistent financing cost

The net financing cost In the Income Statement of £4 9m was in

line wath the pnor year (2014 £4 7m) The average cost of bank
financing was a little hugher than 2014 due to more of our berrowing
being in Sterling and we had higher levels of average debt for the year,
following acquisitions made n the first half year (see the ‘Average debt
and nterest rates’ table on page 52 for more Information)

Interest cover (EBITDA as a multiple of net interest expense as defined
by our revolving credit faciity} was 51 trmes {2014 53 times) which
was wellin excess of the four tmes minimum required N our
banking covenants

The net pension financing chargs 1s included within the net financing
cost This year it decreased to £14m (2014 £19m) because the net
pension deficr at the start of the year, on which the interest cost 1s
based, was below the defictt at the pnor year end

Stable Group tax rate

The Group has major operating subsidianes n 10 countries so the
Group's effective tax rate 1s a blend of these national tax rates applied
to locally generated profits Our approach to taxation Is to manage
the tax burden in a responsible manner, keeping good relationships
with tax authonties based on legal compliance, transparency and
cooperation This approach means that Halma 1s committed to
paying in full and on time the taxes due In each relevant unsadiction,
that our tax arrangements have an underlying business purpose and,
where possible, we mitigate the burden of tax in compliance with
local legislation Intercompany trading 1s set on a commercial aim's
length basis

The effective tax rate on adjusted® profit reduced siightly to

23 2% (2014 23 3%) A significant proportion (@pproximately one
third) of Group profit Is generated and taxed in the UK and the UK
Corporation tax rate fell from 23% to 21% this year, with it reducing

to 20% in 2016 Thas reduction was offsst by Increased profits eamed
in the USA and taxed at relatively ugher rates Halma continues to
benefit from the UK ‘Patent Box' rules, resutting in lower tax on profit
generated from the use of patents in our products

Growing earmnings per share and increasing dividends
Adjusted' earnings per share increased by 9% to 31 17p (2014

28 47p) In line with the Increase in adjusted' proft Statutory eamings
per share decreased by 2% to 27 49p (2014 28 14p) due to the
factors noted ahove affecting the calculation of statutory profit Akey
way In which we deliver shareholder value i1s via consistent growth In
eamings per share Earnings per share growth will now feature more
prominently in our share based ncentives

The Board 1s recommending a 7 2% increase in the final dividend
to 7 31p per share (2014 6 82p per share), which together with the
4 65p per share intenm dividend, gives a total dividend of 11 S6p
2014 1117p), up 71% The final dwvidend for 2014/15 1s subject to
approval by shareholders at the AGM on 23 Juty 2015 and wil be
paid on 19 August 2015 to shareholders on the register at 17 July
2015 With this latest nse Halma will have increased its dwvidend by
5% or more for 36 consecutive years

Over a long period we have mantained a progressive dividend
policy balancing dividend increases with the rates of organic profit
growth achieved, taking Into account potential acquisiion spend
and mantaining moderate debt levels Qur policy 1s to maintan
dividend cover (the ratio of adjusted profit after tax to dvidends
pad and proposed} above two times and this year dvidend cover
18 261 times (2014 2 55 times) We continue to determine the
dividend payout each year based on all of the factors noted above

Revisions to KPIs

We report on pages 22 to 25 the Key Performance Indicators
KPls) we use to measure the performance of the Group The
majonty of these externalty reported KPIs mirror those used

every day n monitonng performance in our operations In addition
these include Group metncs which link to our remuneration
performance measures

This year we have updated our published KPis and the main changes
are as follows

— Organic revenue and profit growth 1s stated at constant curency
to give a clearer view of undertying performance,

- Adjusted' eamings per share are now included as this forms part
of the new Directors’ remuneration performance measures,

- Acquistion related profit growth i1s included to give a clearer picture
of the contributicn acguisitions are making to our overall growth,

— Retum on Total Invested Capital (ROTIC) 1s now calculated using
average Total Invested Capital, and

- Healkth and Safety 1s ncluded as a new non-financial KPI It replaces
the KPI of CO, emissions reducton, which 1s now disclosed in our
Coerporate Responsibility report

In future reports we plan to replace our current Intemational expansion
metnc with a KPI expressed in terms of absolute intemational
revenue growth

Strong cash generation

Cash generation 1s an important component of the Halma model
allowing us to further Invest In cur businesses, make value enhancing
acquisitions and pay an increasing dividend Our cash performance
in 2014/15 was strong Adjusted operating cash flow was £138 7m
(2014 £129 0m) and represents 87% (2014 899%) of adjusted
operating profit, ahead of our KPI target of 85% cash conversion
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Financial Review continued

R?

Operating cash flow summary

2015 2014
£m £m
Operating profit 1371 1436
Net acquistion costs and contingent
consideration fair value adustments 15 (12 5)
Defined Benefit pension plan closure costs/
curtadment gan - {4 0)
Amortsation of acquisibon-related acquired
intangbles 199 175
Adjusted operating profit 158 5 1446
Depreciation and other amortisation 210 188
Working capital movermnents 6.0) {109)
Capital expenditure net of disposal proceeds (22.2) {156)
Addrtional payments to pension ptans {6.6) 59
Other adjustments 6 0) 20
Adjusted operating cash flow 138.7 1290
Cash conversion % 87% 89%
Non-operating cash flow and reconciliation
to net debt
2015 2014
fm m
Adjusted operating cash flow 138.7 1290
Tax pad (30.8) (28 3)
Acquisition of businesses and shares
of associates including cash/debt acgurred 882 (167)
Net movement in loan notes 21 02
Net finance costs and arrangement fees (30} 25
Dmdends pad (43 4} (40 5)
Issue of shares/treasury shares purchased 60} (7 3)
Disposal of businesses 42 P9
Effects of foreign exchange - 04
Movement in net debt (26 4) 358
Opening net debt (745) (1103
Closing net debt {100.9) (74 5)
Net debt to EBITDA
2015 2014
£m £m
Adjusted operating profrt 158.5 144 6
Depreciation and amortisation (excluding
acquired intangible assets) 210 188
EBITDA 1795 1634
Net debt to EBITDA 056 0486
Halma nlr':linnl 1al Renort and Aceniints 20117

A surmmary of the year’s cash flow 1s shown in the table to the left
The largest outflows In the year were in relation to acquisiions (see
below) dwvidends and taxation paxd Working capital movernents,
compnising changes in nventory, recevables and creditors, totalled
£6 0m (2014 £10 9rn) and reflects strong control of operations at
local company level

Capital expendrture on property, plant and computer software this
year was £23 2m (2014 £17 4m) This maintans nvestment in our
operating capahility and includes nvestment of £5m in a property

in our Medical sector with a further £56m expected in 2015/16 This
year's spend represents 108% of depreciation, faling within the 100%
to 125% range we expect

Divdends totaling £43 4m {2014 £40 5m) were paid to shareholders
in the year Taxation paid ncreased to £30 8m (2014 £28 3m)

Strong financial position maintained

Halma operations are inherently cash generative and the Group has
substantal bank facilities We have access to compettively priced
finance at short notice and spread our nsks to provide good Iiquidity
for the Group Group treasury policy 1s conservative and no
speculative transactions are undertaken

We use debt to accelerate the Group’s development, reviewing our
funding needs and the structure of borrowing faciibes regularly to
ensure we have ample headroom We hold a syndicated revolving
credt facility of £360m which runs to Novernber 2018 This facility
provides Halma with the financial resources to operate within ts
existing business model for the medium term, continuing Nvestment in
our business and with capactty for further acquistions Our objectve is
to increase the pace of acquisitions whilst mantaning the discipined
approach we have adopted over many years Over time we expect
that funding of the Group will nclude an element of term debt

At the year end net debt was £100 9m (2014 £74 5m), a combination
of £142 1m of debt and £41 2m of cash held around the world to
finance local operatons The ratio of net debt to EBITDA was 0 56 tmes
(2014 046 tmes) This is well below the level of 1 25 tmes within
which we feel comfortable operating, although we would be prepared
to exceed this level temporarily if the timing of acquisitions required it
Net debt represents 4% (2014 3%} of the Group's year end market
capitalsation The Group continues to operate well within its banking
covenants with significant headroom under each financial ratic

Average debt and interest rates

205 2014 \
Average gross debt (Em) 164 8 1509 }
Weighted average interest rate on gross debt 138% 126% |
Average cash balances (Emj) 456 471
Weighted average interest rate on cash 0.20% 054% '
Average net debt (£m} 1192 103 8
Weighted average interest rate on net debt 180% 159%

Continued acquisition and disposal activity

Acquisitions and disposals are an important part of our growth

strategy We buy businesses already successful in, or adacent to,

the riches in which we operate The acquisition pipeline remains :
healthy and each sector 1s Increasing its own resource 1o accelerate |
acquisition actvity '




In the year we spent £84m on three acquisttions {net of cash/{debt)
acquired of £9m) In addition we paid £4m in contingent consideration
and settlement of loan notes for acquistions made N pnor years

All acquisttion and disposal transactions dunng the 2014/15 year were
completed n May 2014

— Plasticspntzerel AG, a strategrc supplier to one of our businesses
n the Medical sector, was acquired for a net cash consideration
of CHF8m {£4m)

- Advanced Electronics Limited, a manufacturer of networked fire
detection and control systems, was acquired for our Infrastructure
Safety sector We paid an initial consideration of £14m (excluding
cash and debt acqurred of £2m) Contingent consideration of up to
£10 1m1s payable on earnings growth for the penod to March 2015
Of this we have settled £2 8m and our current estimate s that
a further £3 4m will be paid subject to finalisation under the
acquistion contract

- Rohrback Cosasco Systems Inc, a manufacturer of pipeline
corrosion monitonng products and systems, was acquired for
US$108m ({£64m), net of cash acqurred of USEOm (£5m) RCS
adds valuable new techinology and apphcation know-how to the
Process Safety sector

We sold Monitor Elevator Products, Inc, a business within the
Infrastructure Safety sector, for a consideration of US$E6m (£4m)
This continues our active approach to portfolio management

We have revised our accrual for contingent consideration on recent
acquistions in tne with latest best estmates This has resulted ina
reduction in our estimate payable on the ASL acquisiion and an
upward revision on that payable for MicroSurgical Technologies (MST)
followsng further growth in the year

Followang the year end m May 2015, we acquired Value Added
Salutions LLC (MAS) for a cash consideration of $5m £3 2m) with
contingent consideration of up o $1 5m £1m) payable on growth to
October 2016 VAS designs and manufactures fludic-related plastc
machined components and assemblies for ife science and analytical
nstruments VAS will become part of our US-based Diba Industres
within the Medical sector

The businesses acquired n 2014/15 and 2015/16, net of the disposal
made n 2014415, are expected to add a net amount of £6m to revenue
and £1 5m (after financing costs) to profit n 2015/16, based on ther run
rate at the tme of each transachon

Pensions update

The Group accounts for post-retrement benefits in accordance with
IAS19 Employee Benefits The Balance Sheet reflects the net deficrt
on our pension plans at 28 March 2015 based on the market value
of assets at that date and the valuation of liabilttes using year end
AA comperate bond yields

Following consuttabon with all stakeholders, we announced In

March 2014 that the Defined Benefit (DB) sections of the Group's UK
pension plans would cease future accrual as at 1 December 2014
This change has been mplemented Members eam future pension
benefits within the Group’s Defined Contnbution (DC} section of the
pension plan with agreed transitional amangements This change
reduces Group nsk for the future

On an IAS19 basis the deficit on the Group’s DB plans at March
2015 has increased significantly to £66 8m (2014 £36 8m) before
the related deferred tax asset Plan assets increased to £224 8m
(2014 £190 5m) due to further recovery in equity values and cash
contributions by Hama In total, about 50% of plan assets are
nvested In return seeking assets providing a higher expected level
of returmn over the longer term Plan habilities increased to £291 6m
(2014 £227 3m} pnmarnly due to the significant fall n discount rates

We continue to make extra cash contnbutions to the UK pension
plans to eliminate the pension defict as agreed with the trustees

and in 2014/15 these contnbuions amounted to £7m We are in the
process of reviewing, together with the trustees, the initial results from
the 2014 tnenmial actuanal valuation and wilt agree appropnate future
contnbutions following this process

New product investment

We continue to nnovate and invest N new products across all
sectars This year R&D expendiiure increased by 8% with a higher
rate of nvestment in the secend half of the year R&D expenditure
as a percentage of revenue was 4 8% (2014 4 7%} We have a good
pipeline of new products which should benefit 2015/16 and beyond

In the medium-term we expect B&D expenditure to increase broadly
In line with revenue

Under IFRS accounting rules we are reguired to capitalise certan
development projects and amortise the cost over an appropriate
penod, which we determine as three years In 2014/15 we capitalised/
reclassified £74m (2014 £5 2m), acquired £1 2m, and amortised/
impared £5 6m (2014 £3 9m) This results in an asset carned on

the Consolidated Balance Sheet, after £0 1m of foreign exchange
movements, of £15 9m (2014 €13 Om) All R&D projects and
particularty those requinng capitakisation, are subject to ngorous
review and approval processes

Risk management and the year ahead

Halma has a well established business and financial model
delvering success consistently over the long term The model s
based on considerable autonomy and accountability at operatng
company and sector level, within a robust strategic framework
supported by strong policies and clear procedures

Risk 1s managed closely and I1s spread acress well-resourced
companies, each of which manages risk to its ndivdual level of
matenality There are extensive review processes in place including
peer financial review and Internal Audit The key Group nsks have
been referenced in this Annual Report prmarily on pages 28 to 31
and in the Chief Executive’s Strategic Review and Sector Reviews
In addition key nsks are highlighted in the Audit Committee Report
on page 66 and Auditor's Report on page 95

The adoption of a clear four sector structure N April 2014 has
enabled Sector Finance Directors to be apponted focusing on
successiul control and development of each sector | have been
working with them to ensure that our strong control framework s
martained as the Group's actvties contnue to grow

The updated UK Corporate Governance Code 1ssued recentty by the
Financial Reporting Council (FRC) requires regular monitonng of nsk by
the Board As noted above, for many years we have had comprehensive
and regutar review of nsk taking place at many levels throughout the
organisation Our focus will be to ensure that the output and actions
from this review are communicated well, up and down the business,
butding on this strength

We have an ethical approach to business and this 1s reflected in our
Code of Conduct which is adopted intemationally by all employees
We are conscious also of the increased nsks ansing in the area of
cyber secunty and have been very active this year in monitoring such
threats and acting accordingly Awareness of these potential threats
has been increased with our employees across the Group and good
progress contmues to be made
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Financial Review continued

The Board considers all of the above factors in ts review of ‘Going
Concern’ as described on page 65 and has been able to conclude
rts review sabsfactonly

This Annua! Report and Accounts 1s prepared n Ine with the latest
requirements for ntegrated reporting and the Board has taken care
to ensure that it 1s “far, balanced and understandable’ The Audit
Committee took a key role n assessing compliance with reporting
requirements supported by robust management processes

In the year ahead, n addition to organic growth, we will focus on the
search for further acquisition cpportuniies within each sector and on
achieving strong cash generation to fund investment and increasing
dmvdends Our am is to continue to deliver significant long-term value
to shareholders

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors on
11 June 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Andrew Willams
Chief Executive

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director
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Cauvonary note this Strategrc Report has been prepared solely to

assist shareholders to assess the Board's strategies and therr potential to
succeed It should not be relied on by any other party, for other purposes
Forward-iooking statements have beern made by the Directors in good faith
using information avartable up untl the date that they approved the Report
Forward-iooking statements should be regarded with caution because

of the inherent uncertanties in economic trends and business nsks




Chairman’s introduction to Governance

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present Halma's Corporate
Govemance report for what has been a relatively busy year for

us This report seeks to prowide you with a clear and meaningful
explanation of how we discharge our governance duties and apply
the pnnciples of good govermance enshrined in the UK Corporate
Govemance Code {the Code} Halma reports in accordance to the
revised September 2012 Code, the Listing Rules and the Disclosure
& Transparency Rules

The Board remans committed 1o mantaining the highest

standards of corporate govermnance and ensunng values and
behaviours are consistent across the business and underpinned by
our business model We have sought to manage the affars of the
Company not by merely following regmented rules, but by promeoting
a culture of open and transparent discussion, constructive challenge
and support in the Board and across the Group | am pleased with
the progress Halma has made and continues to make We routinely
seek to ensure best practce 1Is mantained and that governance, in
its broadest sense, 1s integral to our strategy and decision-making
processes for the benefit of our shareholders and our employees

It 1s my belief that we have to continualty nurture talents throughout
the Group to provide a stmulating work environment and to enable
effective succession planning The additicnal focus we have placed on
talent n the past year has renforced that belef, and has also enabled
us to identify and develop both intemal and external candidates to
contnbute to our business and aid such succession pfanning With
that In mind, we have continued {o review our govemance structures
and the compaosition of our Board and Executive Board throughout
the year Our commitment to continuously improve the qualty and
performance of Hama's management talent across the world has
developed a new momenturm that has been embraced throughout
the Group

Reviews of management capabiltes and potential are performed on
a routine basis and Halma 1s always focused on the ways in which
we attract, identify, assess and develop Board-level talent which 1s

a critical factor for us to achieve our mid to long-term strategic goals

‘Halma is always focused on
the ways in which we attract,
identify, assess and develop
Board-level talert...”

Paul Walker, Chairman

I am delighted to report that we further strengthened our Board

with the appointments of Roy Twite and Tony Rice following the
resignations of Norman Blackwell and Steve Marshall whose other
commitments precluded continuing as a Halma Director In Roy and
Tony we have identified indviduals with unique contributions already
evidenced in Board dialogues

With Stephen Pettit retirng from our Board after the upcorming
AGM we are losing a valuable colleague who greatly aided my own
induction to the Group | am grateful to him for extending his tenure
to provide additional cover in a time of muttiple Board transitions

The April 2014 alignment of the Executve Board constitution and
responsibilites with the four market sectors in which we are engaged
has also proven successful and allowed for the smooth transition of
responsibility for the Process Safety sector from Neil Quinn to Philppe
Felten iIn May 2015 Such successful transitions underscore the
rationale for the change and prove the agiity of the structure

With the external Board evaluation having been conducted

over the past year, | would ke to share my take on what we leamed
It was reassunng to find that there were no surpnses and that we

act as a unified Board, but we were reminded that “t 1s about culture,
ethos and personal chemistry” which your Board has repeatedly
demonstrated This tone from the top undoubtedly informs operating
company boards and employees woridwide and coninbutes to the
Group's implacable progress | am proud to char Haima's Board

and oversee the Group with each of my fellow Directors

Lastly, | would ke to encourage all shareholders to find the tme to
attend our AGM on 23 July 2015 It 1s an excellent opportunity to
meet the Board and the Executive Board

Paul Walker
Chairman
11 June 2015
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Board of Directors

Paul Walker
Non-executive Chairman
Location UK

Paut was appointed non-executive
Chairman of Halma in July 2013,
hawng been apponted to the Board
n Aprl 2013 Paul 1s non-executive
Chaiman of Perform Group ple and
WANdIsco plc and a non-executive
director of Expenan pic and

Sophos Limited He was CEQO at
the Sage Group plc from 1994 to
2010 and has previously served

on the boards of Diageo plc and
Mytravel Group ple Paul qualfied
as a Chartered Accountant with
Ernst & Young, having graduated
from York Uriversity with an
economics degree

Andrew Williams
Chief Executive
Locaton UK

Andrew was appointed Chief
Exgcutive of Halma plc in February
2005 He was promoted to Drector
of the Haima plc Board in 2004
Andrew xined the Halma Executive
Board n 2002 as Dmsional Cheef
Exacutve after joning Haima n
1994 as Manufactunng Director of
Reten Acoustics now HWM-Water),
where he became Managing Director
N 1997 He s a Chartered Engineer
and a production engineenng
graduate of Birmingham Universiy
He attended the Advanced
Management Program at Wharton
Business Schod, University of
Pennsylvania in 2004 Andrew isa
non-executive drector of Capita plc

Make-up of our Board (as at 11 June 2015}

Board tenure (number of years)

Board composition

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director
Location UK

Kevin was appointed to the

Halma plc Board n 1998 He
became Group Finance Director

i 1897 after joning the Halma
Executive Board as Finance Director
In 1995 Kewvin joined Halma as
Group Financial Controller in 1987
Kevin qualfied as a Chartered
Accountant with Price Waterhouse
and 15 an economics and
accounting graduate of Bnstol
University He attended the
Advanced Management Program
at Harvard Business School n 2007

Committee membership

01 22%  Charman 11% Audit Nom' Rem?

2-3 11%  Executve Director 33% Paul Walker . .

3-4 11%  Non-executve Director 56% Andrew Willams .

6-10 22%  Company Secretary Kevin Thompson

>10 34% Stephen Pettit . . .

Natonality Adam Meyers

Gender UK 78% Jane Akman . " ”

Mete 8% USA 1% Daniela Barone Scares  » ot ot

Female 22% Brazil 11% Roy Twite’ . R R
Tony Rice® . . .
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* Charman  « Member

' Nomnation

?  Remuneration

' Appomted Charman following Steve Marshall's

retirerment In July 2014
+ Apponted n Apnl 2014
¢ Apponted in Juty 2014
¢ Appoirited in August 2014




Adam Meyers .
Sector Chief Executive, Medical
Location USA

Adam joined the Halma plc Board in
Apnl 2008 and 1s Chief Executive of
the Medical sector He became a
member of the Halma Executive
Board in 2003 as Dwvisional Cheef
Executive, having joined Halma in
1996 as President of Bio-Chem
Valve Adam gained his MBA from
Harvard Business School and s a
systemns engineenng graduate of
the University of Pennsylvania

Tony Rice .
Non-executve Director
Locaton UK

Tory was apponted a non-executive
Director of Halma in August 2014 He
15 the Servor Independent Director
and remuneration comimittee
Chairman of Spint Pub Company
plc Tony was formerly chief
executrve officer of Cable & Wireless
Communicatons plc Earfier in bis
career, Tony was CEO of Tunstall Pic
and held a number of semor roles
BAE Systems pic (including Bntish
Aerospace) Tonyhasa BAIn
Business Studies from City of
London College, an MBA from
Cranfield School of Management
and i1s a member of both the
Associabon of Corporate Treasurers
and the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants

Jane Aikman N
MNon-executve Director
Location UK

Jane was appointed a non-
executve Director of Halma in
August 2007 She is Chief Operating
Officer and Chvef Financial Officer of
Phoenix IT Group plc Previously
Jane was Finance Director of Infirus
Energy Limited, Witson Bowden Pic
and Pressac plc She spent three
years as anintemal audit manager
with GEC Alsthom and five years

n East Asia with Asia Pulp and
Paper Co Limited  Jane qualfied

as a Chartered Accountant

with Ernst & Youngand has a
degree In cml engineenng from
Birmungham Urwversity

Roy Twite |
Non-executve Director
Location UK

Roy was appointed a non-executive
Director of Halma in July 2014 He

1$ an executive drrector at IMI ple,
hawving been apponted to the pic
board n February 2007 Dunng his
career with IMI, Roy has led all of the
dmsions including Severe Serwice
(2011), Fluid Power (2009), Beverage
and Merchandising (2007) and
Indoer Cimate (2004) Roy has

a BEng in Engineenng from
Nottingham Unversity and gained
his Masters in Manutactunng
Business Leadership from
Cambndge University in 1998

Daniela Barone Soares .
Non-executve Director
Location UK

Danigla was appointed a non-
executve Director of Halma in
Novernber 2011 She 1s Chief
Executive Officer of Impetus -
The Prnivate Equity Foundation
She s also a non-executrve Cirector
of Evora S A in Braal and sits on
the advisory board of a number
of nondisted, social sector
organisations n the UK and Brazil
Darela 1s a member of the UK
National Adwisory Board, wiich
adwises the GB Social Impact
Investment Taskforce She has
previously held senior roles at Save
the Children, BancBoston Capital,
Inc , Goldman, Sachs & Co (New
York} and Crtibank, N A (Brazil}
Dariela has an MBA from Harvard
Business School and aBSc in
economics from Universidade
Estadual de Campinas
(UNICAMP), Brazil

Carol Chesney .

Company Secretary
Lecation UK

Carol was apponted Company
Secrelary of Halma pic in 1998

She joned Halma in 1995 as Group
Finance Manager having spent three
years with English Chma Clays plc.
She qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Arthur Andersen
and 1s a mathematics graduate of
Randolph-Macon Woman's College,
Virgnia. Carol 1s a non-executive
drector of Renishaw pic where

sha charrs the Audit Committes

Haima nle Annnal Banort and Annonants 2015

Stephen Pettit
Senior Independent Director
Location UK

Stephen was appointed a non-
executve Drrector of Halma in
September 2003 Previously
Stephen was a non-executve
director of National Gnd plc,
non-executve Chavman of ROK ple,
an executve director wath Cable &
Wireless PLC, a member of the BT
Group plc Equalty of Access Board
and a dvisional chief executve with
BP PLC Stephen has an MSc from
London School of Econonics and
an MBA from INSEAD and s an
economics and potitcs graduate

of Cardiff University
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Executive Board

Andrew Willams
Chief Execuive
Location UK

Andrew was appointed Chief
Executive of Hama plc in February
2005 He was promeoted to Director
of the Haima pic Board in 2004
Andrew joined the Halma Executve
Board in 2002 as Drasional Chief
Executve after oining Halma in 1994
as Manufactunng Dwector of Reten
Acoustics (now HWM-Water), where
he became Managing Director n
1987 Hes a Chartered Engineer
and a producton engineenng
graduate of Birmingham University
He attended the Advanced
Management Program at Wharton
Business School, Unversity of
Pennsylvania n 2004 Andrew isa
non-executive director of Capita plc

Chuck Dubois
Sector Chief Executive,
Ervironmental & Analysis
Location USA

Chuck was apponted to the
Executve Board in Apnl 2008

and s Chief Executve of the
Environmental & Analysis sector

He joined the Group in 1999 as Vice
President of Perma Pure LLC and
was previously President of Diba
Industnes He eamed his MBA from
the FW Clin School of Business

at Babson College and holds

a Bachelor's degree in physics
from the College of the Holy Cross
Chuck attended the Advanced
Management Program at Harvard
Business School n 2013

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director
Location UK

Kewvin was appanted to the Hama
pic Board In 1998 He became
Group Finance Director in 1997 after
jeining the Halma Executive Board
as Finance Director n 1995 Kewin
Joined Halma as Group Financial
Controller in 1987 Kewin qualfied as
a Chartered Accountant with Pnce
Waterhouse and 1s an economics
and accounting graduate of Brstol
University He attended the
Advanced Management Program
at Harvard Business School in 2007

Philippe Felten
Sector Chief Executve,
Process Safety
Location Belgum

Philippe was appointed to the
Executive Board in Apnl 2012 and
15 Sector Chuef Executve of the
Process Safety sector He joined
the Group as Sales Director of BEA
Europe when that company was
acquired in 2002 and was later
Chief Executve of BEA Group
Philippe completed the Programme
for Executive Development at IMD
Lausanne, holds a Bachelor degree
in Marketing and Management
(ICHEC - Brussels) and 1s an
Blectro-Mecharucal Engineer
{ECAM = Brussels)
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Adam Meyers
Sector Chief Executive, Medical
Locaton USA

Adam joined the Halma plc Board in
Aprl 2008 and 1s Chief Executive of
the Medical sector He becarme a
member of the Hama Executive
Board in 2003 as Dmsional Chief
Executve, having joined Halma in
1996 as President of Bio-Chem
Valve Adam gained his MBA from
Harvard Business School and 1s

a systems engneenng graduate

of the Unnversity of Pennsylvania

Jennifer Ward
Group Talent Director
Location UK

Jennder was appointed as Halma's
first Group Talent Director in March
2014 Pnor to jomng Halma,
Jenndfer spent over 15 years leading
MR, Talent and Organisational
Development for dmwsions of
PayPal {an eBay compary), Bank
of Armenca and Honeywell She has
a Master's degree from Michugan
State University and a Bachelor of
Science degree from Qregon

State University

Nigel Trodd
Sector Chief Executrve,
Infrastructure Safety
Locaton UK

Nigel joined the Executive Board n
July 2003 and 1s Chief Executive of
the Infrastructure Safety sector He
had joined Halma in July 2003 as
Chef Executive of the Process
Safety Dmsion Nigelis a member of
the Chartered Institute of Marketing
and a business studies graduate

of Thames Valley Unnersity He
relocated to Singapore in Apnl 2012
for a pered of two years

Martin Zhang
Presdent — Halma China
Location China

Martinis a member of the Halma
Executve Board since 2010 and,
pnor to that, an adwiser to that
Board from February 2008 He
joined the Group in June 2006 and
has since successfully estabhshed
and expanded Halma China's
operatons Martin holds an
Executve MBA from the University
of Texas at Arington (Tong)
Unrversity Shanghal) and a
Bachelor's degree in chermical
engineenng from Chengdu
University of Scence and
Technology Martin attended the
Advanced Management Program
at Wharton Business School,
University of Pennsyivarea in

2014 and rs also a Certified
Management Accountart




Corporate Governance Report

Compliance with the Code of best practice

As required by the Listing Rules this Report explans how the
Company apples the principles and complies with the provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code f{the Code} that was published
in 2012 by the Financiat Reporting Council which applied to the
Company throughout the year ended 28 March 2015

Throughout the year, the Company has fully complied with the
provisions as set out n the Code The Group's intemal controls
are summansed on pages 26 and 27

The Board has determined s ideal composition as a Chairman,
five ndependent non-executive Directors and, more recently,

three executive Directors The Board views this composthon as

an appropnate structure for the Company providing valuable direct
knowledge of operations and effective challenge surrounding the

following Roy Twite's appointment m July 2014 and Tony Rice's
appontment N August 2014 Nevertheless, the Board and committee
compesitions remamned comphant throughout the year

With the exception of Stephen Pettit, in accordance with the

Code each of the Direciors, being eligible, will offer themselves

for election or re-election at the AGM  Stephen Pettit will be retinng

from the Board with effect from the end of the AGM and the Board

15 the process of appomnting a successor Further details on therr

resignations and appointment are provided on pages 62, 70 and 71

Annual Report and Accounts

In accordance with the Code, the Directors confirm that they
consider that the Annual Report and Accounts, taken as a whols,
I1s farr, batanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's performance,

1ssues facing the Group The Board underwent some changes during  business model and strategy

the year with two non-executive Directors retinng after the July 2014
AGM, but the posttion was restored to five non-executive Directors

Reporting Requirements Chart

Reporting requirement Location

Description of the business mode! and strategy Chief Executive’s Strategic Review and Sector Reviews
See pages 6 to 25 and 32 to 39

Descnption of the significant issues that the Audit Committee Audit Committee Report

considered In relation to the financial statements and how these See page 69

1ssues were addressed, having regard to the matters

communicated to it by the extemnal audit team

Explanation of how the Aucit Committee has assessed the Audit Committee Report

effectiveness of the external audit process and the approach See page 68

taken to the appointment or reappointment of the external auditor
to enable shareholders to understand why it recommended
reappointing or changing the auditor

Identfication of search consuttancies used and any connections
with the Company

Corporate Governance Report and
Nomination Committee report
See pages 62 and 71

Statement that the Directors consider that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as a whole, I1s far, balanced and understandable
and provides information necessary for shareholders to assess the
Company’s business mode! and strategy

Corporate Governance Report and
Audit Committee Repont
See pages 59 and 69

Future policy table and notes, performance scenano charts,
remuneration obligations N service contracts and statement
of shareholder vote on the 2013/14 remuneration report

Remuneration Cormmittee Report
See pages 72 to 90

Implementation report, remuneration paid to service advisers,
single total figure tables, CEQ pay companson to company
performance and relative importance of spend on pay

Remuneration Committee Report
See pages 72 to 90

Drrectors’ shareholdings and varable pay awarded in the year

Remuneration Committee Report
See pages 72 to 90
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Corporate Governance Report continued

The Board

The Board considered the ndependence of the Chairman and

each of the non-executive Directors and subjected Stephen Pettit's
term as a non-executive Director to parbicular ngorous review

Detalls are given on pages 64, 70 and 71 The Board continues to
regard Stephen Pettit, who retres after the AGM in July 2015, as
independent and considers the Chaiman and all non-executive
Directors to be independent of management and free from business
and other relatonships which could interfere with the exercise of
independent judgment now and in the future The Board believes
that any shareholdings of the Chairman and non-executive Directors
serve to align ther mterests with those of shareholders

Upon appointment and at regular intervals, all Directors are offered
appropnate raning Under the Company's Articles, each Director is
subyect to re-election at least once every three years however, since
2011, the Board agreed that each Director shall stand for annual

Board meeting attendance

re-election The Board confirms that afl Directors standing for election
or re-election continue 1o be effectve and demonstrate commitment
to ther roles, folowing the performance evaluation as described on
page 63

Details of Directors’ biographies appear on pages 56 and 57 and in
the Notice of Meeting

The Directors retain responsibility for the formulation of corporate
strategy, nvestment decisions and treasury and nsk management
policies There is a formal schedule of matters reserved for the
Board's decision and the Board meets at least six tmes each year
with further ad hoc meetings as required Directors are 1ssued an
agenda and comprehensive electronic Board papers in the week
preceding each Board meeting All Directors have access to the
adwvice and services of the Company Secretary as well as there being
an agreed procedure for obtaning iIndependent professional advice

During the year attendance by Directors at Board and Committee meetings was as follows

Committees

Overall

attendance

Board attendance Board Audit Remuneration Nomination' %
Paul Walker 6/6 - 4/4 4/4 100%
Andrew Willams 6/6 - - 4/4 100%
Kevin Thompson 6/6 - - - 100%
Stephen Pettt! 5/6 3/3 4/4 4/4 94%
Neil Quinn 6/6 - - - 100%
Jane Akman 6/6 33 33 33 100%
Adam Meyers 6/6 - - - 100%
Danela Barone Soares? 5/6 213 2/3 2/3 73%
Roy Twite 3/3 2/2 2/2 11 100%
Tony Rice 3 2/2 2/2 1/1 100%
Lord Blackwel 33 11 2/2 3/3 100%
Steve MarshalP 2/3 0N 1/2 2/3 56%

' Stephen Pettit was unable to attend the Board meeting on 30 September 2014, due to commiments made pnor to the extension of ks current term
2 Daniela Barone Scares was unable to attend the committee and Board meetings held on 13 Novernber 2014 due to ilness
3 Steve Marshall was unable to attend the committee and Board mestngs held on 5 Juna 2014, dus {o executve charmman responsibilities elsewhere
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Chairman’s responsibilities

Governance

- promoting high standards of cormporate governance,

- leading, chamng and managing the Board,

- ensunng all Board committees are properly structured and
operate with appropnate terms of reference,

- regularly considering the composition and succession
planring of the Board and its comimittees,

- ensunng that the Board and its commuttees’ performances
are evaluated on a regular basis, and

- ensurng adequate tme Is avalable for all agenda tems

Strategy

- leading the Board in developing the strategy of the business
and achrevernent of its objectives,

— promoting open and construchve debate iIn Board meetings,

- ensunng effectve mplementation of Board decisions with the
support of the Chief Executive,

- ensunng the Board manages nsk effectively, and

— consulting where appropnate with the Semor Independent
Director on Board matters

People

- channg the Nomination Committes,

- dentfying and meeting the induction and development needs
of the Board and ts committees,

— developing a strong working relationship with the Chief
Executive,

- ensunng a strong working relationship between executive and
non-executive Directors,

- setting clear expectatrons concerming the Company’s culture,
values and behaviours, and

- ensunng effective relaticnships are maintaned with all major
stakeholders in the business

Chief Executive’s responsibilities

providing coherent leadership and management of the
Company with the Chairman,

developing objectives, strategy and performance standards
to be agreed by the Board,

providing Input to the Beard's agenda,

providing effective leadership of the Executve Board to
achieve the agreed strategies and objectives,

secunng an Executive Board of the nght calibre, with specific
responsibiity for its composition, and that ts succession plan
1S reviewed annually with the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors,

manitonng, reviewing and managing key risks and strategies
with the Board,

ensunng that the assets of the Group are adequately
safeguarded and mantained,

buldng and mantaning the Company’s communications and
standing with shareholders, financial iInstitutions and the public
and effectively communicating the Halma plc investment
proposition to all stakeholders,

ensunng the Board 1s aware of the view of employees on
1ssues of relevance to Halma pic,

Iving and fostenng the Group values which promote ethical
practices, integnty and a positive work cimate, enabling the
Group to attract, retain and motivate a diverse group of high
qualty employees, and

leading by example in establishing a performance orentated,
custocmer focused and publicly responstble Group culture

Halma nie Anrnal Ranart and Acronnts 2015
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Board constitution

Halma refreshed the composition and dversity of its Board with

the appointment of Roy Twite and Tony Rice as non-executive
Directors in July 2014 and August 2014 The Nomnation Committee
considered a wide and diverse range of candidates and the Board,
having gven each Director the opportunity to meet Roy Twite and
Tony Rice, confirmed their independence upon appontment The
Board unanmously decided to appont Roy effective following the
conclusion of the July 2014 AGM and Tony a month later

Succession planning for the Senior Independent Director and
Remuneraton Committee charrman has been conducted and Halma
18 In the process of identifying Stephen Pettit’s successor The Board
search for a new independent non-executive Director 1s led by our
Charman, Paul Walker A global search firm, Lygon Group, which
has no other connection to Halma was appointed The Board 1s
considenng a wide and diverse range of candidates

These matters are discussed in the Nomination Committee Report
on pages 70and 71

Board induction

Newly apported non-executive Directors follow an nduction
programime which includes dedicated time with Group executives and
scheduled tnps to a vanety of companies in each of the four sectors
All new Directors appointed to the Board have a comprehensive
induchon programme talored to therr mdmvidual needs

Roy Twite and Tony Rice both met with the Company Secretary

to review therr talored induction pack which included Halma's
governance and nsk management structure, Board evaluations,
Board and Committee mesting minutes, strateqy papers, recent
analyst and broker reports on Halma, and access to Halma's policies
and procedures manual was also provided As well as providing a
schedule of meetings with executives and company visits, Roy Twite
and Tony Rice also attended the bienmal Halma Innovation and
Technology Exposition (HITE} in 2015 to gain a better understanding
of the Halma group, its strategy, ts operabing companies, the
management teams and ther products

Board activity throughout the financial year

Board diversity

The Board reviewed the report of Lord Davies published in February
2011 on Boardroom Dwversity and contnbuted to the FRC review of
Gender Diversity on Boards noting tts support for the benefits of
greater diversity, which 1s not just gender specific, but relates also

to other factors such as market and intemnational expenence and
dwersity of thought The Board agrees that a manufactunng and
technology company such as Halma needs to adopt policies to
attract a greater number of females nto management roles The
Board has reinforced this necessity through the repostioning,
adoption and implementation of Halma's Diversity and Inclusion
Policy (detaled on page 45) rather than by seting quotas Halma
ams to improve the representation of women in senior roles and on
the Board of Directors by applying our newly repositioned policy and
reviewing implementation to ensure that Halma mantans a diverse
and inclusive culture To assist these efforts, operating company
boards are being encouraged te invite local personnel, with diverse
skillsets, to attend local board meetings when ther disciplines are
under review Such exposure to the boardroom will develop these
individuals but also provide these boards with a fresh perspective

The Group also conducted dversity and inclusveness awareness
training for approximately 250 senior executves at HITE in 2015

As at year end, the Board had a total of 10 Directors The skill

set of the non-executive Directors includes financial, economics,
banking, engineenng, technology, IT, communications and consumer
expertise They included eight Briish, one Amencan and one Brazian
nationals Currently, 22% of the Board are women

Halma has the ambition to increase the number of executives
based outside Europe and the USA to better refiect the proportion
of our revenue generated outside those markets The diversity of
all other employees 1s detailed on page 45 within the Corporate
Responsibilty report

April 2014 July 2014

— Budget

— Charman and NED fees

— HITE and CEC conference objectives
— Pensicns strategy update

— Board Calendar

- AGM

- AGM trading update/IMS
- PSP awards

— SIP award consideration
-~ TSR performance

— Sector review

June 2014 October 2014

— Prelminary Results

- Evaluation of prior year objectves

- Annual objectves for Group

- Envircnmental policy annual approval and target setting
— Dmdend proposal/planning

- Pension fund accounts

- Agsessment of upper quartie performance

- Special Guarantees guidelines update

- Matters Reserved for the Board

— Cyber secunty
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~ Strategy/three-year plan

- Relatve atiractions of different sectors

~ Candidates for acquisitton/disposal

~ Review of progress towards annual objectives

- Extemmal sum of the parts valuation

- Debt/capial structure considerations

— Succession planning update/management bench
- Cyber secunty




Board activity throughout the year 2014/15

Dunng the year the Board receved training and bnefing updates
on our sectors, market assessments and changes in market
conditions, detalls of acquisition opporiunities and geographic
pnonties, succession plannng, changes in corporate governance,
nsk management and compliance, audits, bnbery and corruption,
health and safety, environmental matters, cyber secunty, city

and shareholder matters, and other relevant legislative and
accountng changes

The Directors have a programmed schedule of meetings and
visits with the Executve Board, Group companies and Halma's
development programmes to ensure that they are able to engage
with management and employees at all levels The Directers

also attend the biennial HITE and the asscciated conferences

Board performance and evaluation

The Board considers the evaluation of its performance as a whole
and that of the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees
annually, with each Committee also evaluating its own performance
The aim of the evaluations is to improwve the effectveness of the Board
and its members as well as the performance of the Company The
Board ensures that an extemal faciitator 1s engaged at least every
thurd year Dr Tracy Long of Boardroom Review perforrmed the first
external review in 2011/12 covenng the full Board and Committee
evaluations For 2012/13 and 2013/14, the Company Secretary
facitated an internat evaluation of Board performance and that of
the Audit, Nemination and Remuneration Committees Therefore,

for 2014/15, the Board underwent an externally-facilitated review

of the Board and its Committees conducted by EquityCommunications,
an independent consuttancy firm

This evaluation was conducted between November 2014 and
January 2015 by way of nterviews with each Director The interviews
were based on 14 questions that EquityCommunications developed
in consultation with the Charman and Company Secretary, focusing
on the Board's strategic prormies The outcome was first discussed
with the Chairman and subsequently presenited to the full Board The
evaluahon results were crculated to the Board in February 2015 and
then pnontised at the April 2015 Board meeting

November 2014

~ Half-year results

- PSP vesting update

— Consderaton of Board Evaluation process —
internalextermal review

February 2015

— Budget {intial)

— Remuneration Committee proposals

- Resuits of Board effectivenass survey and meetings
— Trading update

- Risk management review

- Cyber secunty

The Board members' fulsome and constructive responses indicated
that whilst there are several areas in which behaviours could be
modrfied, or practices tweaked 10 mcrease the effectveness of the
Board, the overall assessment concluded that the Board exhibits
excellence across many areas of its responsibiliies with levels of
funchicnality that are uniformly iImpressvely high

The report noted that the Board behaves as one team but with each
indmdual having a valued voice, an atmosphere of robust but positve
challenge 1s endent

The timing of the external review provided an opportunity for the
Board members to reflect on the orgarisational and reporting
changes that have occurred over the previous 18 months These
changes include, not only the structural changes to the four sectors
and the appontment of the Group Talent Director, but the way
Board, committee and Executive Beard meetings are conducted
The Beard's enthusiastic suppert for these changes has also been
reinforced by the Group's performance and how Halma 1s now
positioned to caprtalise on #s increased agility both for centrally
based executives and sector executives

The report also commented on the strength of Halma's senior
management, with their nse through the ranks being a model for
others, but also endowing the Board with a refreshing combination
of nvaluable serace coupled with immense loyalty with no signs of
fatigue However, the Board recognises that exposure to other
operating boards can benefit Halrma, so addiional encouragement
for senior executives to seek an external non-executve Director
appontment was recommended

The future size and composition of the Board was one area that
produced a divergence of opinion which, ultimately, helped inform the
Board's view on executive succession i the lead up to Nel Quinn's
retrement from the Board Whist previously the Board had considlered
the ideal composition to be four executive Directors, Neil's retirement,
combined with the new organisational structure afforded the Board
tme to consider its options and tirme to provide addiional Board
exposure to the executive team on a rotational basis

The Board was united in its view about future Board skills and
expenences More dversity would be welcome, and for Halma this
goes deeper than gender, geography and age Whilst Halma would
welcome extending female membership of the Board, and non-
executive Directors with native geographic expenence, especially In
the Far East, the Board values diversity of expenence and outiook just
as highly as gender Developing this diversity further 1s a goal for most

In common with many boards, executive succession was noted
during the nterviews as beng of utmaost iImportance, greater
discussion with the entre Board was encouraged

In terms of strategic planning, the Board concluded that its
comprehensive programme ensured akgnment of short to
medium-term prionties

Performance evaluation cycle

Year 1

External evaluation facilitation

Year 2
Internal review

Year 3
Internal review
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Board governance structure

As in prior years, the Board also met n February 2015 before

the scheduled Board meeting o provide a forum for discussion

of the Board evaluaton outside the formal Board meeting This forum
has proven useful for a number of years The Charman and non-
executive Directors also meet at least once each year without
executive Directors present to ensure there 1s an opportunity to
discuss potentially sensitive matters The Chief Executive will jon

this Group for part of these meetings at least once per annum

The Senor Independent Director 1s aso avalable to mest with the
nan-executive Directors without the Chaiman present The Executives
are also grven the opportunity to meet with the Chairman and/or the
Senior Independent Director separately The outcome of these
meetings s fed back to ndwviduals by the Chairman, Senior
Independent Director or Chief Executive, as appropriate

Committees of the Board

Cur Committees are a valuable part of the Cormpany's corporate
governance structure The workload of the commitiees includes
the table of scheduled meetings as well as ad hoc meetings and
communications frequently requinng considerable amounts of time

Halma has six commitiees and sub-committees of the Board the
Audit Committeg, the Nomination Commuttee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Share Plans Committee, the Bank Guarantees and
Faciities Committee and the Acquisitions and Disposals Committee
Each of these committees has terms of reference which have been
recently reviewed, updated and approved by the Board, copies

of which are avallable on the website or on request from the
Company Secretary

Minutes of committee mestings are made available to all Directors
and the Chaimmen of each of the three key Board committees, the
Audit, Nomination and Rernuneration Committees, provide regular
updates to the Board As of Apnl 2014, all non-executive Directors
sit on the Nomination and Remuneration Committees

The Executive Board, whilst not a sub-cormmittee of the Board
nonetheless provides another means of reinforcement of the
Company's operational and corporate governance structure
operating within guidelines that reflect the Matters Reserved for
the Board

A chart settng out the Company’s Board and committees’ structure
Is given above with the Board and Committee memberships and
Drrectors’ biographical details shown separately on pages 56 and 57
The responsibilities of the key Board Committees and the key 1ssues
and actvities dunng 2014/15 are set out in the following Committee
reports on pages 66 to 90
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Investor relations

The Board recognises the mportance of effective communicaton with
our shareholders In regular meetings with shareholders and analysts
the Chief Executive and Finance Director communicate the Group's
strategy and results, disclosing such information as 1s permitted within
the guidelines of the Listng Rules Such mestings ensure that
instiutional shareholders representng over 50% of the Company's
Issued share capial meet or hold discussions with the Company on
aregular basis Major shareholders are also offered the opportunity
to meet the Charrman and/or Senior Independent Director Notes
from all nvestor meetings are circulated to the Chairman with investor
feedback results from roadshows circulated to the whole Board

Dunng the year, the Remuneration Committee conducted a review
of the remuneration policies and practices of the Compary and
consulted the top 10 shareholders regarding its proposals More
detalls related to this process are included on pages 72, 73 and 80

All shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general

meeting whera they can gain a better understanding of the Company
Shareholders are able to pose questions to the Board on the matters
put to the meeting, ncluding the Annual Report and Accounts and

the management of the Company Major shareholders are also invited
to bnefings following the half-year and annual resulis, This year, the
Board hosted a dinner on 5 March 2015 in London at which analysts
and institutional nvestors had the opportunity to meet with members of
the Group's Executive Board No new matenal financial information nor
update on current trading 1s provided at such events The content of
presentations to shareholders and analysts at results announcements
and all announcerments are available on the Group website

www halma com

The Group website also contains electronic versions of the latest
Annual Report and Accounts, Half Year Reports, biographical
information on Directors and the Executive Board, share price
information, and full subsidiary company contact details as well as
hnks to therr own websites The website also features the facility to
request e-mall alerts relating to announcerments made by the Group
and thera 13 a feedback form to nvite suggestions for mprovements
to the website and our nvestor relations actvities




Shareholders can keep up to date with the latest Halma financial
news, on the move, with our Investor Refations iIPad app This Is
avalable as a free download from the Apple iTunes store, as detailled
below The app I1s updated at the same time as our website and
delivers news releasss, regulatory announcements, presentations,
reports, webcasts, videos, financial documents and the share pnce

To help Investors understand the scope of our business we have
produced an ‘Introduction to Halma' anmated video This can be
viewed from the home page of our website fwww halma com) and
from our IPad nvestor app

Type this Ink into your browser to go to the Halma Investor Relations
app download page on 1ITunes hitp /goo glawaly

The Financial calendar i1s set out on page 164

Shareholders (number) at 13 May 2015

Analysis of shares (number) at 13 May 2015

Results of our 2014 annual general meeting

Total Total
votes votes Votes
for against withheld
% % Y
1 Report and Accounts 998 00 02
2  Dwdend 998 00 02
3  Remuneration Pokcy 962 10 28
4 Remuneration Report 98 9 03 08
512 Directors 92610995 02to71 03
13 Reappointment of Auditor 998 00 Q2
14 Auditor's remuneration 998 00 02
15 Authorty to allot shares 98 8 09 02
16 Disapplication of
pre-emption nghts 996 01 03
17 Authority to purchase
own shares 897 01 02
18 Notice of general meetings 931 67 02

internal control

The Board has overall responsibiity to the shareholders for the
Group's system of interal control and nsk management, and the
review of the system’s effectiveness has been delegated to the

Audit Committee Whist not pronding absolute assurance against
matenal misstaterments or loss, this system is designed to identify
and manage those nsks that could adversely impact the achievernent
of the Group’s chjectves The Group's nsk management structure
and process 1s detaled on pages 26 and 27 The Group's prncipal
nsks and uncertainties are detaled on pages 28 to 31

The Board confirms that there 1s an ongoing process for identrfying,
evaluating and managng the significant nsks faced by the Group,
which has been in place for the year under review and up to the
date of approval of the Annual Report and Accounts This process
has been reviewed by the Board and the Board 1s satsfied that the
Group accords with the FRC gudance on nsk management and
internal control The Board made several enhancements in the
conduct of the process during the year and will continue to review
the system routinely to ensure that the system of intermal control
and nsk management remains fit for purpose

The Group’s external Auditor, Delotte LLP, has audited the financial
statements and has reviewed the financial control systems to the
extent Delottie considers necessary to suppoert the audit report

Going concern

The Group’s business actvities, together with the main trends

and factors likely to affect its future development, performance

and position, and the financial posrtion of the Group, its cash flows,
lqudity posiion and borrowing facilities, are set out in the Strategic
Report In addibion, note 26 to the financial statements includes the
Group's cbjectives, policies and processes for managing its capital,
its financial nsk management objectives, details of rts financial
nstruments and hedging actvites, and its exposures to currency
and bquidity nsks

The Group has considerable financial resources (including a £360m
five-year revolving credtt facility, of which £220m was undrawn at
28 March 2015) together with contracts with a diverse range of
customers and suppliers across different geographic areas and
Industries No one customer accounts for more than 2% of Group
tumover As a consequence, the Directors believe that the Group

1s well placed to manage its business nsks successfully

After conducting a formal revew cf the Group's financial resources,
the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and
the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concem basis n prepanng the Annual Report
and Accounts
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Audit Committee Report

Audit Committee Chairman overview

Dunng the previcus year, the Audit Committee focused on the
Integrity of the Group's financial reporting including the processes
to make our Annual Report and Accounts ‘farr, balanced and

understandable’, the effectiveness and appropriateness of our system

of nsk management and internal controls as well as our internal and
external audit processes, In accordance with the revised Corporate
Govemance Code

In 2014/15, the Audit Committee continued to challenge and
engage with management, intemal audit and the external

Auditor to fulfil its expanded role, trmely circulation of reports and
information also enabled the Committee to continue to discharge ts
duties and responsibilies effectvely Dunng the course of the year,
the Committee consiclered the approach to the group’s upcoming
viabilty statement, the effectiveness of the Group's intemal controls
and nsk management systems and whether there 1s any scope for
improvernents in our already integrated and robust approach As a
result of the additional scrutiny there is an increase In the awareness
and montonng of pnncipal nsks at all levels — in the subsidiary
companies, our sectors and at the Halma Board

Recent changes in legislation led the Committee to reassess the
timing of the external auditer tender and the effectiveness of the
process and their conclusions are explained further on in this Report

| hope you find this Report helpful n understanding the work of the
Audit Committee

Audit Committee members

- Jane Akman {Charman)

- Stephen Pettit

— Daniela Barone Soares

— Roy Twite (Apponted 24 July 2014)

— Tony Rrce (Appointed 8 August 2014)

[313] Halma nirc Annnal Rannet and Arcannts 2015

“The Audit Committee continued
to challenge and engage with
management, intermal audit
and the external Auditor to fulfi
its expanded role”

Jane Aikman, Chairman, Audit Committee

Allocation of time %

Responsibilities

The Audit Committee 1s apponted by the Board from the non-
executive Directors of the Group The Audit Committee’s terms

of reference include all matters indicated by Disclosure and
Transparency Rule 71 and the Code The terms of reference are
considered annually by the Audt Committee and are then referred
to the Board for approval The fulf terms of reference were updated
in June 2014 {including the recommendations of the Institute of
Chartered Secretanes and Administrators (ICSA) June 2013 audit
committes tenms of reference gudance) and refreshed agan in Apnl
2015 Further emphasis 1s now placed on the increased work scope
of the Committee as envisaged by the revised Septermber 2014 FRC
Corporate Governance Code and Risk Management and Internal
Control Guidance as well as the Competition & Markets Authonty
Order and other relevant EU gudance relating to auditor tender and
tenure The terms of reference can be found on the Company's
website or can be obtained from the Company Secretary

The primary responsibilires of the Audit Committee are to

— monitor the Integnty of the financial staterments of the Group
and any formal announcements relating to the Group’s financial
performance and review significant financial reporting judgments
contaned therein,

- have oversight of nsk management, including the review of the
Group’s financial, operational and comphance intemal controls,
as well as whistlsblowing and fraud prevention procedures,

— monttor and review the effectiveness of the Group’s Internal
Audit function,

- review the tenure of the extemal auditor in the context of
retenderng requirements and make recommendations to the
Board on the trming of any process,




- make recommendations to the Board, for a resolution to be put to
the shareholders for their approval at the general meeting, on the
appointment of the extemal auditor and the approval of the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the extemal auditor,

- review and monitor the extemnal auditor's independence and
objectvity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration the penodic rotation of audit personnel and relevant
UK professionat and regulatory requirements, and

— develop and mplerment a policy on the engagement of the extemal
audrtor to supply non-audit services, taking into account relevant
guidance regarding the prowision of non-audit services by the
external audt firm

Key issues and activities

The Committee not cnly reviews the financial reporting of the
Compary, but spends a signficant amount of its tme reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control process Combined with
the Committee’s review of the intemal and external audit functons, it
Is able to obtain sufficient nformation to discharge its responsibiliies

More speciically, dunng the year the Committee reviewed its own
effectveness and looked at its activities as detailed in the table below

Audit Committee activities

Financial statements and reports

~ reviewed the March 2015 Annual Report and Accounts, the
September 2014 Half Year Report and the trading updates
1ssued Iin July 2014 and February 2015 As part of these reviews
the Committee receved a report from the external auditor on
the audit of the Annual Report and Accounts,

- reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s nsk management and
nternal controls and disclosures made in the Annual Report and
financial staterments,

- considered acquisition valuation and accounting methodology,

- reviewed pension fund accounts,

- reviewed treasury pohcy,

- reviewed currency exposure and hedging policies, and

- reviewed taxation provisions

Risk management

- considerad the output from the Group-wide nsk review process
to identify, evaluate and mitigate nsks, the Group's changing nsk
profile and future nsk reports,

- devoted additional tirme to adequately address nsk management
and internal control in the Group, and

- considered export controls and other comphance-related matters

Internal audit

- evaluated the effectveness and the scope of work to be
undertaken by the Internal Audit function,

- reviewed management responses to audit reports 1ssued
dunng the year,

— reviewed the Group's whistieblowing policy which allows Intemal
Audi, via the Company Secretary, to recene, In confidence,
complants on accounting, nsk Issues, Intemal controls, auditing
Issues and related matters, and

- reviewed the resourcing of Internal Audit

External auditor and non-audit work

- considered the timing and process for external auditor tender,

- reviewed, considered and agreed the scope and methodology
of the audit and non-audit work to be undertaken by the
external auditor,

- evaluated the ndeperdence and objectmiy of the extemnal
auditor, and

- agreed the terms of engagement and fees to be pad to
the external audior for the audit of the 28 March 2015
financial statements

Governance

The Audit Committee was in place throughott the financiat vear

with Jane Aikman as the Chair All the current five members are
ndependent non-executive Directors in accordance with provision

C 31 of the Code The Chtef Executive, Finance Director and
representatives from the external Auditor attend Committee meetings
by invitation in order to provide appropnate advice The Committee
meets at least three times per year and routnely meets the Auditor
without the involvement of the execubve Directors The Committee
meets with the Intemal Auditor on a regular basis throughout the year
The Finance Director works closely with the Chairman of the Audit
Committee to ensure open communication between them The
Board has designated Jane Akman as the member of the Audit
Committee with recent and relevant financial experience She is

a chartered accountant, 1s a finance director and has listed

company expenence

Training

Last year the Audit Committee extended ts meetings by an

hour, which provided capacity io facilitate additonal in-depth
discussions, presentations and trarng on topics relating to risk
management and internal control, valuaten and accounting for
acquistions and disposals, financial reporting {including addrtional
coverage of audit procedures, scope and methodology), fraud, cyber
secunty and governance

Engagement of the extemal auditor

The external auditor 1s engaged to express an opinion on the Group's
and Company's financial statements The audtt Includes the review
and test of the data contained in the financial statements to the extent
necessary for expressing an audit opirnion on the truth and famess of
the financial statements

Delottte LLP has been the extemal Auditor of the Group since 2003
and a review of the independence of Deloitte LLLP 1s undertaken each
year At the year end, the Auditor formally confirmed its ndependence
and that objectivity has been mantained The Committee concluded
that the relevant indepencdence continues to be met In addition,

the partner responsible for the Group audit 1s rotated at least every
five years

Deloitte LLP provides the Commitiee with relevant reports,
reviews and adwvice throughout the year, as set out In their
terms of engagement

External auditor tendering

In accordance with UK regulations, the Company’s Auditor adheres
to a rotation policy based on best practice and a new Group lead
engagement partner I1s apponted in place of the previous lead
engagement partner once he has completed a term of five years In
that role Following a ngorous evaluation of the audit service and a
change in audit partner n 2010/11, the Audit Committee agreed that
a full tender was not required for the 2013/14 audit The Committee
reconsidered ts review dunng 2014/15 and concluded that a full
tender 1s not currently required In making this assessment the
Committee focused on the robustness of the audit, the qualty

of debvery of audtt services and the effectiveness, objectrty and
independence of the Auditor in its reviews  The Committee is satisfied
that Delodte continues to provide an effective audit and appropriate
ndependent challenge to the Group's semor management

The Committee has noted the revisions to the UK Corporate
Govemnance Code introduced by the Financial Reporting

Council (FRC} and 1s supportive of the recommendation to put

the external audit out to tender at least once every 10 years The
recent Compebtion & Markets Authonty's {CMA) Final Order which

1S now designed to align with the new EU Regulation 547/2014 allows
companies greater flexibility over the timing of both therr extemal audit
tender and the required five-yearly cycle of partner rotation
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Audit Committee Report continued

Halma 15 now requred to conduct a competiive audit tender by
June 2023 Due o these changes in transtiona) arrangements,

the timing of our audrt partner rotation next year and the current
Audit Committee Charman planming to step down in 2016/17, the
Committee now intends for the incoming Audit Committee Charman
to lead the external tender and the process will be completed before
the end of December 2018

Policy of auditor iIndependence and services
Prohtbited non-audit services

— appraisal or valuation services,

- financial Information systems design and implementation,
- bookkeeping services,

- management functions,

— executive recruiting and resource services,

— broker-dealer services, and

- legal services

Audit-related services not subject to separate tender If fees

<£100,000

- audits of businesses acqured or to bae sold and due
diigence services,

— opinions/audit reports on information provided by the Company
upon request from a third party,

— adwvice on accounting policies,

- electronic data processing audits, and

- tax services including local tax compliance

Permitted non-audit services, subject to approval with

requirement to tender If fees >£100,000

- due dilgence services relating to acquisitions with fees in excess
of £100,000,

- public reporting on Investment circulars,

- hgudaton services in respect of redundant subsidtanes or
associate companies, and

- tax-adwisory fees in excess of £100,000 where the firm's existing
knowledge of the Group structure 1s preferred

Auditor independence

The Group's ‘Policy on Auditor Independence and Services provided
by the External Auditor’ sets out restrictions on the categones of
non-audit services which the extemnal auditor 15 allowed to provide

to the Group, a summary of which is provided in the table above
This policy 1s regularty reviewed and states that the Group will onty
use the apponted external auditor for non-audit services in cases
where these services do not conflict with the auditor’s ndependence

The Committee confirms that Deloitte LLP remains best placed to
adwise the Group on matters related to tax compliance and the
structure of the Group The Committee accepts that certain work of
a non-audit nature 1s best undertaken by Deloitte, and appoirtments
are made taking into account factors ncluding expertise and fees
The Committee regularly reviews the amount and nature of the
non-audit work Delortte performs The Audit Comimittee 1s notrfied

of all of Delottte’s non-audit services with fees between £50,000

and £100,000 The policy also sets a fee leval per project of £100,000
above which non-audit services are subject to a tendenng process
The above fee levels for non-audit services are also subject to an
annual cap equal to 70% of the audit fee At each meeting, the Aucit
Committes also receives a surmmary of all fees, audit and non-

audit, payable to the external Auditor

The audt fees payable to Deloitte LILP during 2014415 were
£803,000 (2014 £758,000) and non-audit service fees were
£172,000 (2014 £65,000) The pnncipal non-audit service 1S tax-
adwvisory related A summary of fees paid to the external Audrtor
IS set out In note 6 to the Accounts on page 118

[31:] Halma nle Annnal Renort and Acconnts 2015

In accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland)
260 and Ethical Standard 1 1ssued by the Accouniing Practices
Board, and as a matter of best practice, the external Auditor has
confirmed its independence as Auditor of the Company, in a letter
addressed to the Directors

Accordingly, the Committee unanimously recommended to the
Board that a resolution for the reappointment of Defoitte LLP as the
Company's independent Auditor be proposed to shareholders at
the AGM in July 2015 and the Board has accepted and endorsed
this recommendation

External audit effectiveness

The effectiveness of the extermal audit process I1s assessed by the
Committeg, which meets regularly throughout the year with the audit
partner and senior audit managers Key to the overall effectiveness of
the process 15 a 'no surpnses’ approach adopted by both the Group
and the Auditor under which each party makes the other aware of
accounting and financial reporting 1ssues as and when they anse,
rather than imiting this exchange to the penod in which formal audit
and review engagements take place

This general approach 1s supported by a formal annual survey
process invalving subsidiary and Group management as well as
Audt Committee members and attendees

Surveys are talored and issued to three distinct groups
of respondents

- Subsidiary Finance Directors,

— Sector Chief Executives, Sector Vice Presidents and
Sector Finance Directors, and

— Audit Committee members and attendees

The survey completed by the first group 1s dvded between
questions focusing on audit qualty and chent service As this group

15 Involved primanly in the execution phase of the aualt, the responses
cover practical audit management ssues as well as observations
made of the Integnty and qualty of audt field teams The second

and particularty the third group interact mainty with serior audit
management and the audit partner and so the survey covers more
general audit planning and wider issues around the audit relationship

in addition to assessing the effectiveness of the extenal Auditor the
Committee recognises that Group management has an importart
role to play in the overall effectiveness of the external audit process
and the Auditor 1s therefore asked to conduct its own survey of both
subsidiary and head office companies with which Delortte interacts
This survey addresses items such as the timeliness, quality and
relability of data provided to the Auditor

Taken together, the Committee believes that sufficient and
appropnate information 1s obtaned to form an overall Judgment on
the effectiveness of the external audrt process The external audt
effectiveness process findings from last year's review were also
ncormporated into our audit processes this year

Risk management and internal controls

Further details of nsk management and intemal controls are set out
on pages 26 to 31 Through monitonng of the effectveness of its
internal controls and nsk management, the Committee is able to
mantan a good understanding of business performance, key areas
of judgment and decision-makang processes within the Group




Significant issues in relation to financial reporting

matters in 2014/15

Dunng the year the Committee considered significant nsks and
1ssues In relation to the Group's financial statements and disclosures
relating to

- the assessment of the camying value of goodwill and intangible
assets due to the significance of the amounts recorded on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet, the judgments involved in assessing
goodwill and ntangble assets for mparment, and the continued
challenging economic conditions,

- the nsk that acquisitions are not accounted for correcily in ine with
IFRS 3 ‘Businass combinations’ iIncluding the recording of farr value
adjustments and the identification of acquired intangbles,

— the valuation of any contingent consideraton ansing on acquisitions
In current and prior penods,

- the judgments involved in valung Defined Benefit pension plans
ncluding the discount rate, the mortality assumption and the
nflabion level,

- the nsk around capturing the capitahsed development costs
In relation to gualifying products as well as the subsequent
impairment review based on predicted product launch and
performance, and

- ensunng the Annual Report and Accounts are far, balanced
and understandable

These 1ssues were discussed with management at various stages
dunng 201415 and dunng the preparation and finalisation of the
financial statements After reviewing the presentations and reports
frorn management the Committee 1s satisfied that the financial
statements appropnately address the cntical judgments and

key estimates, both in respect of the amounts reported and the
disclosures made The Committee is also satisfied that the significant
assurmptions used for determining the value of assets and labilites
have been appropnately scnutinised, challenged and are sufficiently
robust The Committes has discussed these issues with the Auditor
dunng the audit planning process and at the finalisation of the year
end audt and 1s satisfied that its conclusions are in ine with those
drawn by the Auditor In relaton to these issues

The Commuittee's process for challenging the assumptions of
management and addressing the rnsks identified Includes the
following activities

- considenng the appropnateness of reviews conducted of
acquistion purchase agreements aganst the related accounting
entnes and far value calculations for the acquired opening
balances This rvolved challenging, where required, assumptions
and key judgments underpinning the valuations, and benchmarking
acquisitions,

- assessing treatments of contingent consideration payment
arrangements aganst the requirements of IFRS 3,

- focusing on, monitonng regufarly and constructively challenging
the reasonableness of the assumptons used in impaiment
calculabons by management, challenging the appropriateness of
Judgments and forecasts used including discount rates, growth
rates, the level of aggregation of individual cash generating unts
and methodology applied, and any other associated disclosures n
note 11 to the Accounts,

- assessing captahsation of development costs in Iine with the
accounting pohcy and standards,

- assessing the assumptions i determining the pension obligations,
particularly given recent market volatiity and determined whether
the key assumptions were reasonable These assumptions were
also benchrmarked against other bsted companies and vanances
highlighted for consideration, and

- considenng the appropnateness and reasonableness of stated
Judgments and conclusions and that reporting was accurate

As part of the above process the Committee specrically considered
the following

- the treatment and valuation of the contngent consideration payable
i relation to ASL, Advanced and MST,

- review of the farr value of acquired intangible assets for Advanced
and RCS,

- compostion of the cash generating units and related calculations,

- the evidence supporting the going concern basis of accounts
preparation, the new viability statement to be introduced in
2015/16 and the nsk management and intemal control disclosure
requirements,

- the relative value of projects in development and completed
projects compnsing the capitalised development costs balance
and the coverage of these values by expected future cash flows to
test the assertion of management that no projects were at nsk of
mparment, and

- accounting assumptions and disclosures of the Defined Benefit
pension plans following the closure of the plans to future
benefit accrual

Fair, balanced and understandable report

and accounts

One of the key governance requirements 15 for the report and
accounts to be far, balanced and understandable Ensunng that this
standard 1s met requires continuous assessment of the financial
reportirg 1ssues affecting the Group on a year-round basis in addition
to a number of focused exercises that take place dunng the Annual
Report and Accounts production process

These focused exercises can be summansed as follows

- aqualtative review of disclosures and a review of ntemal
consistency throughout the Annual Report and Accounts This
review assesses the Annual Report and Accounts against objective
cntena drawn up for each component of the requirement (ndividual
cntena that ndicate ‘farness’, ‘balance’ and ‘understandabilty’
as well as cntena that overlap two or more components),

- ansk companson review, which assesses the consistency of the
presentation of nsks and significant jJudgments throughout the main
areas of nsk disclosure in the Annual Report and Accounts,

- aformal review of all Board and Committee meeting minutes by
the Company Secretary to ensure that all significant iIssues are
appropnately reflected and gven due prominence in narratve
reporting, and

— preparation and 1ssue to the Audit Committee of the key working
papers and resutts for each of the significant 1ssues and jJudgments
considered by the Aucdit Committee in the period

The Directors' statement on a far, balanced and understandable
Annual Report and Accounts is set out on page 59

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Jane Atkkman

Chairman
11 June 2015
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Nomination Committee Report

Nomination Committee Chairman overview
The role of the Nomination Committee 1s to

— review the balance and composition of the Board and its
Committees, ensuring that they remain appropriate,

— be responsible for overseeing the Board's succession planning
requirements including the Identfication and assessment of
potential Board candidates and making recommendations to
the Board for its approval, and

— keep under review the leadership needs of, and succession
planning for, the Group n relation to both its executive Directors
and cother senior executves This Includes the consideration of
recommendations made by the Chief Executive for changes to
the executive membership of the Board

Buring 2014/15 the Committee has focused heavily on executive and
Board succession with the following key outcomes

- The Aprl 2014 appointment of Jennifer Ward as Group Talent
Director, an Executive Board position,

— The Apnl 2014 decision to appoint each non-executive Director
to each of the Nomination, Audit and Remunerabion Committees
reflecting the Board's emphasis on full transparency,

- The appointment on 24 July 2014 of Roy Twite and Tony Rice
on 8 August 2014 as non-executive Directors following the
resignations of Steve Marshall and Norman Blackwell, each
due to other external commitments,

— In ight of the unanticipated Board resignations, the assessment
of Stephen Pettit's Independence pnor to inviting him to remain
on the Board as Senior Independent Director and Charrman of the
Remuneration Committee until, no later than, the 2015 AGM,

— Review and implementation of the Board succession plan to
refresh the Board over a two-year perniod when both the current
Senwor Independent Director/Remuneration Committee Charrman
and Audt Committee Charman wili be stepping down This has
been amed at balancing Board evolution with stability and in
keeping with the Board's composition panciples including
promoting diversity mctuding in terms of gender and experience
Good progress has been made on this dunng the year with the
appointment of two new non-executive Directors while robust
progress to identify Stephen Pettit's successor s ongoing

Board succession and composition will reman a prionty for the
coming year as the Board continues to execute s succession plan

70 Halma nir Annitial Ranort and Accounts 2015

"..1he Board succession plan

[i5] to refresh the Board over

a two-year period when both
the current Senior Independent
Director/Remuneration
Committee Chaiman and Audit
Committee Chaimman wil be
stepping down.”

Paul Walker, Chairman, Nomination Committee




Responsibilities

The Nomination Committee 1s appointed by the Board from the
non-executive Directors of the Group and the Chief Executive

The Nomination Committee’s terms of reference include all matters
indicated by the UK Comporate Govermance Code The terms of
reference are considered annually by the Nomination Comimittes and
are then referred to the Board for approval The full terms of reference
were reviewed dunng the year and updated in Aprl 2015 The terms
of reference can be found on the Company's website or can be
obtaned from the Company Secretary

The primary responsibiities of the Nomination Committee are to

- regularly review the structure, size and composition {ncluding the
skills, knowledge, expenence and diversity) of the Board compared
to its current position and make recommendations to the Board
with regard to any changes,

- gwe full consideration to succession planning for Directors and
other senior executives in the course of its work, taking mto
account the challenges and opportunities facing the Company
and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the future, and

- entify and nommnate, for the approval of the Board, candidates
to fill Board vacancies as and when they arse

Governance

The Nomination Committee was in place throughout the financial
year |t 1s charred by the Charman of the Company who was deemed
to be independent on appontrment to the Board S of the seven
members of the Committee are independent non-executive
Directors in accordance with provision B 21 of the Code

Steve Marshall and Norman Blackwell were members of the
Committee pnor to therr retrements on 24 July 2014

Key issues and activities
The Committee met on several occasions dunng the year and
considered

- the re-election of all Directors at the July 2014 annual
general meeting,

- succession planning,

— external board evaluation,

- Steve Marshall and Norman Blackwell's resignations,

- the independence of non-executive Directors,

— Stephen Pettit's re-glection to the Board and iis Committees
and appontment as SID and Charrman of the Remuneration
Committes,

~ the nominations and appointments of Jane Akkman and Daniela
Barone Soares to the Nomination and Remuneratton Committees,
and

- the nomination and appontrment of Roy Twite and Tony Rice as
non-executive Directors and members of the Nominahion, Audit
and Remuneration Committees

When the need to appoint a Director is identified, a candidate profile
1s developed indicating the sklls, knowledge and expenence requwed
taking into account the Beard's existing composition External search
consultancies are retained when recruting non-executive Directors
and are used to evaluate intemal and external candidates for
succession planning

The Nomination Commuttee, led by Paul Walker, conducted the
non-executive Director succession searches A global search fim,
JCA Associates, which had no other connection to Halma, was
appointed A wide range of high callbre candidates was considered
for each role The Committee and Board confirmed both Ray Twite's
and Tony Rice’s indspendence upon appontment and were
unanimous in ther decisions to appomnt them The current search is
being conducted similarty with the assistance of the Lygon Group

Succession planning for the Senior Independent Director was

well n hand when Norman Blackwell indicated that hus Apnl 2014
charmmanship of Lloyds Banking Group Plc would preclude hus
cortinuing as a non-axecutve Director at Halma Similarty, Steve
Marshall undertook the Executve Charman role at Salfour Beatty pic
n May 2014 and found that he could not continue to devote the

time that 15 necessary as Remuneraton Comnuttee Chairman and
non-executive Director of Halma As they both stepped down at the
conclusion of the July 2014 AGM, the Committee concluded that in
order to ensure continuity and that an appropriate transibon pProcess
was undergons, with the am of preserving the Group’s culture,
Stephen Petit was invited to remain on the Board until such tme as his
experience of Halma's cutture was embodied in his colleagues and no
later than the 2015 Annual General Meeting The Committee sutyected
Stephen Pettt’s reappointment (0 an even more ngorous review to
ensure Stephen Pettit's Independence was not compromused and

that the Board supported his reappotntment unanmously

Following Stephen Pettit’s retrerment after the 2015 AGM, and based
upon the Committee’s recommendations, Tony Rice will assume the
roles of Senior Independent Director and Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee

With Neil Quinn's resignation from the Board in May 2015,

the Normination Committes has the opportunity to give further
considerahon to the executive composition of the Board in ight of the
structural changes made to the Executive Board in Apnl 2014 aligning
it with the four market sectors As the structural changes have proven
successful, we have the luxury of beng able to take some tme to
make a considered assessment

As noted on page 60 and on pages 62 to 64, the process of
appontments to the Board 1s paramount in ensunng the Company’s
performance 1s mantaned and continually mproved upon

On behalf of the Nomination Committee

Paul Walker

Chairman
11 June 2015
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Remuneration Committee Report

Chairman’s Statement

Remuneration Committee Chairman Overview
On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year ended 28 March 2015

As set out on page 2, Halma's strategy is to build a strong
competitive advantage in specialised safety, health and
environmental technology markets with resilient growth drvers
Thus strategy has long been underpinned by the Group's
remuneration framework which balances a short-term cash
ncentive related to improvements in the Economic Value Added
(EVA) In a financial year with a longer-term share incentive related
to retums on Total Invested Capital (ROTIC) and Total Shareholder
Return (TSR)

“.the main elements of the
remuneration policy are
ropust and have stood the
test of time.”

Stephen Pesthit, Remunseration Commitiee Charman

Remuneration Committee members

- Paul Walker (Charrman}

- Stephen Pettit

— Jane Akkman {appointed 10 Apnl 2014)

- Darnvela Barone Soares (apponted 10 April 2014)
= Roy Twite (apponted 24 July 2014)

- Tony Rice {appointed 8 August 2014)

Allocation of time %
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Review of executive remuneration and link to strategy
In late 2014, the Committee conducted the most comprehensive
review of remuneraticn practice at Halma for 10 years 1am pleased
to say that we have concluded that the pnnciples and man elements
of tha remuneration policy are robust and have stood the test of

tme We have, however, dentfied areas where our executives’
contributions are undervalued, areas where we can better ink long
term performance and reward, and areas where we can improve
the control framework around executive pay

The review of our remuneration practice has followed on logically from
the Board strategy review, which took place in jate 2013 This strategy
review was focused particularty on the scalability and robustness of
the Halma business model Dunng this review, it became clear that,
whilst the fundamental elements of our strategy are sound, the
company 1s much larger, has becorme more complex and requires
more sophishcated ways of managing it In Apnl 2014, therefore, we
announced a new organisational construct of four discrete sectors,
each with its own Sector CEQ, and each a significant business in

its own nght

This new organisational construct, together with the expiry of the
10-year Iife of our present Performance Share Plan n 2015, tnggered
the need for the full review of our remuneration prachce

Halma has enjoyed a high level of continurty of service amongst

its high performing executive taam, which is unusual amongst its
peers But this continuity has meant that we have not tested the
external market for remuneration, because we have not had to
recruit from outside the business at these senior levels As part of
the remuneration review, we have therefore undertaken an extemal
benchmarking exercise, with the help of our new remuneration
adwvisers External recruitment of Sector Vice Presidents immediately
below the Sector CEC level and the benchmarking highlighted the
fact that our remuneration policy has lagged behirnd the market n
important areas and has become uncompetitive, particularly taking
account of the Increased complexity of the business and the
executves’ roles

{ would like to emphasise that we do not support frequent
benchmarking of salanes and other elements of remuneration
for the top tearm For the future, we would expect any further
adjustments to reflect practice for the general Halma workforce,
barring exceptional crcumstances

The structural changes to the ncentive plans provide for a higher
proportion of long-term share-based remuneration and a tighter
Iink between iIncentive payments and the business strategy These
provide a more robust Iink between what the executves are paid
and the long-term interests of shareholders




Rather than try and introduce the review at the same time as the
changes to the executive structure in April 2014, the Committee
deferred such a review so that a new policy would apply from April
2015 This deferral allowed the management changes and, Indeed
Board level changes to the Chairman and non-executive Directors,

to become embedded and also coincided with the tme to renew the
Company's Performance Share Plan, which has reached the end of
its 10-year Iife Taking such a penod fo reflect on what we are trying to
achieve i1s sensible and consistent with the Halma operating culture

The changes that the Committee proposes are detalled within this
report, but, nformulating these proposals, the Committee ensured
that any increases to potential eamings were self-financing from the
additional performance, and continue to be measured objectively
and transparentty

As an mportant part of the remuneration review, the Committee
consulted the Company’s major shareholders and their representative
bodies on the proposed changes, which | can summarise as

- executive salanes are proposed to increase to align to market
median levels and then be fixed to workiorce inflationary increases
{barmng further signficant changes to role and complesaty},

- the annual bonus incentive opportunity will increase from 100% of
salary to 125%-150% of salary,

- one third of any annual bonus eamed will be payabls In shares and
deferred for two years,

— performance share awards will ncrease from 140% to a maximum
award Imit of 200% (250% n exceptional crcumstances) of base
salary (with awards lower than the 2005 level iIntially other than for
the CEO),

- a stretching EPS growth metne will replace the TSR metnc in the
Performance Share Plan,

- robust recovery and withholding provisions will apply, and

— shargholding requrements will be introduced at a 200% of base
salary level for executive Directors

in addition, durng the year we ceased any future acernual within the
Defined Benefit pension plan on 1 December 2014, through which
a number of executives accrued benefits

Remuneration outcomes in 2014/15

The Company has delivered another year of strong performance

In particular adjusted profit before tax improved by 10% and with tight
controls on capital the Economic Value Added performance condition
generated annual bonus payments to executive Directors of 53% to
100% of base salary

Performance was simiarly strong over the three-year
performance pencd for the Performance Share awards granted

In the 2011/12 financial year, with ROTIC averaging at 16 2% and

total shareholder return of 56 7%, placing Halma in the second
quartle aganst our comparator group Accordingly 73 7% of the
Performance Share awards vested in August 2014 The performance
conditions for the awards vesting in August 2015 were met at
approximately 75% overall when measured at year end

Shareholder voting at the 2015 AGM

The changes we have made to cur remuneration policy require Halma
to seek binding sharehcolder approval at the 2015 AGM to approve
this policy for up to three years from the date of the AGM There will
also be the usual advisory resolution to approve the Annual Report on
Remuneration, which focuses on the remuneration outcomes for the
year under review, and how the Remuneration Committes mtends to
implement the new policy next year Finally, there will be a separate
resoluton to approve the new Performance Share Plan

My colleagues on the Remuneration Committes and | hope that you
are supportive of our new remuneration policy, the Annual Report
Remuneration and new Perfoermance Share Plan resolutions, which
have been the product of a ngorous review and investor consultation

Finally, as announced previcusly | am retinng from the Board at this
year's AGM, with Tony Rice taking over as Charrman of the
Remuneration Committee from me

Stephen Pettit

Remuneration Committee Chairman
1 June 2015
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Remuneration Policy

This section of the report details the policy for executive and non-executive Diractors which shareholders are asked to approve at the 2015
AGM This policy will formally come into effect from 23 July 2015, being the date of the 2015 AGM, and be effective for up to three years

Compliance Statement

This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006 (‘the Act), the Listing Rules and Regulation
11 and Schedule 8 of the Large and Medium-Sized Companies and
Groups {Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulations 2013
The report also meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules
of the Financial Conduct Authonty and descrbes how the Board
has apphed the prnciples relating to Directers’ remuneration in

the UK Corporate Governance Code As required by the Act,
resolutions to approve the Remuneration Policy and Annual Report
on Remuneration will be proposed at the AGM of the Company at
which the financial statements will be approved

In ling with the Regulations, the following parts of the Annual Report
on Remuneration are audited the single figure for total remuneration

Element and objective

for each Director, including annual bonus and performance share
plan outcornes for the financial year ending 28 March 2015, plan
Interests awarded durng the year, pension entitlements, payments
to past Directors and payments for loss of office, and Dwectors’
shareholdings and share interests All other parts of the Directors'
Remuneration Report are unaudited

Remuneration Policy

The remuneration policy 1s designed to promote the long-term
interests of the Company by securing the high calibre executives
needed to manage the Group successfully, and to align ther interests
with those of our shareholders by rewarding them for enhancing
sharehoider value The policy also seeks to reward achievement

of stretching performance targets without driving unacceptable
behaviours or encouraging excessive rnsk-taking

Operation and process

Executive Directors

Salary

A farr, fixed remuneration reflecting the size and scope of the
exscutive’s responsibilites which attracts and retans high calibre
talent necessary for the delvery of the Group’s strategy

Rewiewed annually or following a material change n responsibilites
Salary s benchmarked penodicaly against appropriate comparators
of similar size and operating in a smilar sector, and 1s inked to
incdividual performance and contnbution

Salary 1s the only element of remuneration that 1s pensionable

Benefits
To provide benefits that are competrive within the relevant market

Benefits are appropniate to the location of the executive and typically
compnse {but are not imited to} a company car, Iife Insurance,
pennanent disabifity Insurance, pnvate medical insurance, relocation
and tax adwice for international assignments

Pension

To provide competitive post-retrement benefits, or the cash
allowance equivalent, to provide the opportunity for executives to
save for ther retirerment

Executive Directors participate in ether a Group Defined Contnbution
pension plan or the US 401k money purchase arrangement

Cash supplements in leu of Company pension contnbutions may be
made to some Individuals at a level dependent upon senionty and
length of service

To the extent the pension contributons exceed the local tax
allowance, the contnbutions may be paid to the executive, subject to
taxes and social charges

Some executives are deferred members of the Group Defined Benefit
penston plan which closed to future accrual n December 2014
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The Committee camed out a comprehensive review of remuneration
dunng the year coincident with the expiry of the ife of the current
Performance Share Plan (PSP} It noted that there were aspects of
the cumrent policy that work well and should therefore be retained
However, it also noted that both the Company and market practice
have moved on in the past 10 years since the last formal review
Accordingly, it conciuded that there should be changes {o the

policy to renforce the ink between executive remuneration and

the Company's long-term performance so as to enhance the
executves’ alignment with the long-term interests of sharehclders

There are six elements of the remuneration policy for executve
Directors, which are summansed in the table below

Opportunity Performance measures

Base salary increases will be applied in ine with the outcome of the Not applicable
review {(normally with effect from 1 Aprily Salanes for the financial year

under review (and the following year) are disclosed in the Annual

Report on Remuneration

Salary ncreases for executive Directors will not nommally exceed the
average of the wider employee population other than n exceptonal
crrcumstances Where ncreases are awarded in excess of the wider
smployee population, for example where there 1s a matenal change n the
responsibility, size or complexity of the role, the Committee will provide
the ratonale in the relevant year's Annual Report on Remuneration

Benefits may vary by role, and the level 1s determined to be Not applcable
appropnate for the role and circumstances of each individual

executive Director The maximum value wil equate to the reasonable

market cost of such benefits

It 1s not anticipated that the current cost of benefits (as set out n the
Annual Report on Remuneration) would increase matenially over the
penod for which this policy will apply

The Committea retans the discretion to approve a higher cost in
exceptonal crcumstances (e g relocation expenses or an expatnation
allowance on recrutment, et} or in circumstances where factors outside
the Company’s control have changed matenally (e g market ncreases n
nsurance costs) The rationale behind the exercise of such discretion wil
be provided in the relevant year's Annual Report on Remuneration

Defined Contnbution maximum contnibution of 20% of pensionable Not applcable
salary which is capped at £155,528 (2014715 £153,684) The maximum
contnbution rate for executves oining pnor to 2014/15 was 27 5%

Cash supplement Halma contnbutes up to 26% of full salary 1f the
executive Director 1s a former active member of the Defined Benefit
pension plan Defined Contnbution members whose contnbutions
exceed the local tax allowance are paid the excess contribuhons,
on the capped pensionable salary, as a cash supplement

A0k, contnbutions of 3% of salary with a discretionary 2% profit
share component subject to IRS caps

Defined Bensfit now closed to future accrual, but provides a
maximum pension eguivalent to two thirds of final pensionable salary,
up to a CPl-indexed cap, £155,528 ior 2015/16
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Remuneration Policy continued

Element and chjective

Operation and process

Executive Directors

Annual Incentive

To incentvise and focus management on the achievement of an
chjective annual target which supports the short- to medium-term
strategy of the Group

The structure of the Annual Incentve 1s reviewed at the start of the
year to ensure that the performance measures and ther weightings
remamn appropnately aligned with the Group's strategy and are
sufficlently challenging

Performance targets are callborated and set at the start of the year, with
reference to a range of refevant reference points including the annuat
budget agreed by the Board At the end of the year, the Committee
determines the extent to which these targets have been achieved

Payment of one third of any bonus is in the form of an award of
shares that is deferred for two years, with vesting normally subyject
to contnued service

Dmdend equivalents accrue over the vesting penod Dadend
eqguvalents are paid in cash or shares at the end of the vesting penod

Deferral into shares provides a link to the long-term strategy of the
Group and enhances the retentvenass of the policy

A recovery and withholding pravision enables the Company
to recoup overpayments in the event of misstatement, emmor
or misconduct, either through withholding future remuneration
or requinng the executive to repay the requisite amount

Performance Share Plan (PSP)

To incentivise executives to achieve supenor returns to shareholders
over a three-year penod rewarding them for sustained performance
aganst challenging long-term targets, to retain kay individuals

and align interests with shareholders, reflecting the sustanability

of the business model over the long-term and the creation of
shareholder value

Executive Directors are granted annual awards over Halma plc shares
or a cash eqguivalent where required by regulation as deterrmined by
the Committee, awards vest after a penod of at least three years
based on Group performance

Dradend equivalents accrue over the vesting period Dividend :
equivalents are pard In ¢cash or shares at the end of the vesting
pencd, and only on those shares which vest

A recovery and withholding provision enables the Company |
to recoup overpaymenis in the event of misstatement, error '
or misconduct, either through withholding future remuneration |
or requinng the executive to repay the requisite amount [

Share Incentive Plan (SIP)

To encourage share ownership across all UK-based employees
using HMRC-approved schemes

The SIP 15 an HMRC-approved arrangement It entitles all UK-
based employees to recerve Halma shares i a potentally tax-
advantageous manner

Chairman and non-executive Directors

Chairman and non-executive Director fees

To atract ndmiduals with the requistte skills, expenence and
knowledge to contribute to the Board

Non-executive Director fees are determined by the Board and may
comprise a base fee, charmanship feg and Senior Independent
Director fee

The Charrman’s fee 1s determined by the Committes

Notes to the Policy Table
Payments from Existing Awards

The Committee wall honour any commitment entered into, and executve Directors will be elgible to recerve payment from any award made, pnor to the approval and
mplementation of the Remuneration Policy detailed in this report, 12 before 23 July 2015 Details of these awards are disciosed in the Annual Report on Remuneration

Setection of Performance Measures

The performance measures used N Haima's executive ncentives have been selected to ensure meentves are challenging and remnforce the Group's strategy and align

exacutve interests closely with those of our shareholders

In the annual bonus, the use of EVA n summary, profit less a charge for capital employed (definition 1s provided on page 83} reinforces the Group's business obyective to
double Group revenue and profit every five years through a mix of acguisiions and organic growth Profit is a function of the extent to which the Company has achreved
both its organic growth target and its success in identifying appropnate acquistion targets in current and past years Ensurng that the cost of funding acquisttions 1s
reflected In the bonus model means that executives share the benefit of an acquisiion that outperiorms expectations, but equally bear the cost of overpaying for an
acquistion Good or poor management of working capitalis also reflected in the caloutation of EVA.

Inthe PSP EPS providss a discipined focus on increasing profitability and thereby provdes close shareholder alignment through incentmsing shareholder vatue creation,
and ROTIC reinforces the focus on capral efficency and delivery of strong retums, thereby further strengthening the akgnment of remuneration with the Group strategy
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Opportunity

Performance measures

Maximum opportunty  150% of base salary for the Chief Executve
and Finance Director and 125% of base salary for other Directors

Target opportunity: 60% of maximum
Bonus payable at threshold 0% of salary

In exceptional crcumstances, the Committee has the ability to
exercise discretion to overnde the formulaic bonus ocutcome within
the imits of the scheme where it believes the outcome 1s not truly
reflective of performance and to ensure famess to both shareholders
and participants

The bonus 1s based 100% on the achievement of financtal
performance targets The primary measure used to determine bonus
outcomes 1s EVA, although the Committee may, in its discretion and
from time to time, supplernent EVA with additional financial measures
that reflect Halma's strategic prienties for the year, provided any such
addittional measure accounts for no more than 30% of the overall
bonus ocpporturity

Detalls of the measures, weightngs and targets applicable for the
financial year under review are provided in the Annual Report
on Remuneration

Hodsy oifiejens |

Maxaimum opportunity Up ta 200% of salary

In exceptional crcumstances, such as to faciltate the recruitment of
an external candidate, the Committee may, in its absolute discration,
exceed this maximum annual opportunity, subject to a Imit of 250%
of salary

Threshold performance will result in the vesting of 25% of the
maximum award

Vesting of PSP awards 1s subject to continued employment and the
Company’s performance over a threg-year performance penod
To the extent performarice condiions are not met, awards will lapse

The performance measures wil be Earnings per Share EPS) and
Return on Total Invested Capital (ROTIC), and subject to a minimum
weighting of 25% on either of these measures

Detalls of the weightings and targets applicable for awards made
in the financial year under review are provided in the Annual Report
on Remuneration

Participation imits are in line with those set by HMRC from time
to time

Not applicable

Fees are normally reviewed annually in April, but typically only reset
tnennially Increases are effective from 1 Apnil

The fee paid to the Chairman is determined by the Committee, and
fees to NEDs are determined by the Board The fess are calculated
by reference to market levels and take account of the tme
commitment and the responsibilities of the NEDs

Additional fees are payable for acting as Senior Independent Director
and for being the Chairman of a Board Committee, as appropnate

Fees are paid in cash

The fees pad to non-executive Directors in respect of the year under
review (and for the following year) are disclosed in the Annual
Remuneration Report

Performance targets are set to be stretching yet achievable, taking into account the Company's strategic priorties and the economic emaronment in which it operates
Targets are calibrated taking nto account a range of reference ponts, but are based pnmarily on the Group s strategic plan

Remuneration Policy for Other Employees

QOur approach to salary reviews s consistent across the Group, with consideration given to the level of responsibilty expenence, indmdual performance, markst levels
and the Company's ability 1o pay The Committee considers remuneration surveys 10 establish market rates, as appropnata, but uses such data carefully so as to avoxd

an upward raichet

Executne Board members and other senior executives participate in an annual bonus scheme on a similar basis as the executve Directors A number of saror
axeciives also recene PSP awards Performance condiions are cansistent for all participants, while award sizes vary by organisational level All UK employees are

eligible 1o partipate n the SIP on the same terms

Pension and benefits arrangements are tailored to local market conditions, and are determined to be appropnately compatitve

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The Committee's policy 1s to set pay for new executive Directors and Executive Board mermbers within the existing remunerabion policy n order to provide intemal
consistency The Committee aims to ensure that the Company pays no more than 1s necessary to appoint ndviduals of an appropriate calibre
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Remuneration Policy continued

External appointments

In the case of apponting a new executve Director, the Cormmittee may make use of any of the existing elements of remuneration, as follows

Component Approach

Salary The base salanes of new appointees will be determined by reference to relevant market data, expenence and skills of the
indvidual, nternal relatvties and the current salary of any incumbent in the same role

Where a new appointee has an intial base satary set below market, the Committee may make phased increases over a penod
of several years to achieve the desred postion, subject to the ndwdual’s development and performance in the role

Benefits New appointees will be eligible to recene benefits in line with the current policy, as well as expatnation allowances and any
necassary expenses relatmg to an executve’s relocation on appointment
Pension New appointees will be eligible to participate 1n the Company’s Defined Contnbution pension plan, receive a cash supplement

or local equvalent.

Annual bonus The scheme as descnbed in the policy tabte will apply to new appontees with the relevant maximum beng pro-rated to

reflect the proportion of the year employed

PSP New appointees will be granted awards under the PSP on the same termss as cother executives, as descnbed in the policy table

SIP New appointees in the UK will be eligible to participate on identical terms to other employees

In addition to the elements of remuneration set in the policy table,

in exceptional creurmnstances the Committee may consider it
appropnate to grant an incentive award under a different structure in
order to facitate the recrutment of an indmdual, to replace ncentive
arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer In making
such awards, the Committee will look to replicate the arrangements
being forfetted as closely as possible and in doing so consider
relevant factors including any performance conditions attached to
these awards, the payment mechanism, expected value and the
remaning vesting penod of these awards

Internal Appointments

Remuneration for new executive Directors appointed by way of
internal premotion will smitarly be determined in ine with the policy
for external appointees, as detaled above Where an indwvidual has
contractual commitments made prior to ther promotion to the Board,
the Company will continue to honour those commitments Incentive
opportunibies for below-Board employees are generally no higher
than for executive Directors, and incentive measures vary to ensure
they are appropnate

Share Ownership Guidelines

To ensure akgnment between the interests of executive Directors and
those of shareholders, the Gormpany requires executve Directors to
progressively build up and maintain a beneficial holding of Halma plc
shares eguivalent 1o a minimum of 200% of salary (2014/15 100%)
Until such time as this threshold 1s achieved, executve Directors are
required to retain no less than 50% of the net of tax value of any
vested PSP or deferred share bonus award
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Executive Director Service Contracts and

Exut Payment Policies

It 1s the Company's policy that executive Directors should have
contracts with an indefinite term providing for a maximum of one
year's notice The details of the Directors' contracts are summansed
in the table below

Executive Director Date of service contract Notice penod

Andrew Willlams Apnl 2003 One year
Kevin Thompson Apnl 2003 One year
Nel Quinn Apnl 2003 One year”
Adam Meyers Juty 2008 One year

Neil Quinn has resigred rom s employment with the Company ettactve 31 March 2016 and from
the Board effective 14 May 2015 as such hewill not be seeking re election to the Board at tha
2015 AGM

The Company's policy 1S to imit payments on a cessation to
pre-established contractua! arrangements In the event that the
employment of an executive Director 1s terminated, any amount
payable will be determined i accordance with the terms of the
service contract between the Company and the employee, as well
as the rules of any iIncentve plans No predetermined amount 1s
provided for n the Directors’ contracts The UK executive Director
contracts enable the Company to pay up to one year's salary in lieu
of notice, with no contractual enttierent to any other benefits, and,
under the Rules, the Remuneration Committee may determine the
individual’s leaving status for share plan vesting purposes If the
financial year end has passed, any bonus eamed 1s payable to the
ndvidual Adam Meyers’ service contract permits him to remain an
employee for the entire penod of notice enjoving any benefits related
to employment The share plan and bonus prowsions are identical to
the UK Both contracts contan appropnate non-compete restrictions
for a suitable period post-employment

When considening termination payments under incentive schemes,
the Committee reviews all potential Incentive outcomes to ensure
they are farr to both shareholders and participants The table below
summanses how the awards under the annual benus and PSP are
treated in specific crcumstances under the nules of the relevant plan
and the extent to which the Commuttee has discretion




Reason for leaving

Timing of vesting

Calculation of vesting/payment

After the end of the financial
year, although the Committee
has discretion to accelerate
{eg inrelation to death)

Performance against targets wilii be
assessed at the end of the year in the
normmal way and any resutting bonus
normally will be pro-rated for time
served dunng the year

Awards lapse

Annual bonus Death, injury or disability, redundancy,
retirement, or any cther reasons the
Committee may determine
All ather reasons

PSP Inury or disability, redundancy, or any

other reason the Committee may, at its
discretion, determine

On the third annversary of
the award

Awards will normally be pro-rated

for time to the date of cessation of
employment and performance metncs
assessed as at the third anniversary

Death

immediately (unless otherwise
determined by the Committee
at its discretion)

Any outstanding awards normaty will
be pro-rated for time and performance
up to the point of death

All other reasons

Awards lapse
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Pay-for-Performance’ Scenario Analysis

The following charts provide an estimate of the potential future
rewards for executive Directors, and the potential split between
different elerments of pay, under three different performance
scenaros ‘Fixed', 'On-targst’ and ‘Maximum’

Potential reward opportunities are based on Halma's remuneration
policy, applied to salaries as at 1 April 2015 In the case of the

Chief Executive, Finance Director and other executive Directors

this assumes a PSP award level of 200%, 175% and 150% of salary
respectively (which 1s the basis on which the policy will be applied In
the first year) The projected values exclude the mpact of any share
prce movements and dvidend equivalents

The ‘Fixed’ scenano shows base salary, pension and benefits only

The ‘On-target’ scenano shows fixed remuneration as above, plus a
target pay out of 60% of the maximum under the annual bonus and
vesting of 50% of a single year's award under the PSP

The 'Maximum’ scenano reflects fixed rermuneration, plus maximurm
payout of annuat bonus and PSP awards

Andrew Willlams, Chief Executive
Percentages/amounts £000

Fixed 783
On-target IREA  28% 31%) 1,923
Maxnum BEE. 31% 42%p 2,883
Kevin Thompson, Finance Director

Percentages/amounts £000

Fixed 487
On-target 1,152

Maxsmum mm 38%} 1,705

Adam Meyers, Sector Chief Executive — Medical
Percentages/amounts £000

Fixed 312
On-target PR 29%]  29%) 749

39%) 1,113

Maximum m 33%’
. Fixed L___] Annual incentve D PSP
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Remuneration Policy continued

Non-executive Directors

Unless ctherwise indicated, all non-executive Directors (NEDs)

have a specific three-year term of engagement, subject to annual
re-election at the AGM, which may be renewed for further thvee-year
terms if both the Director and the Board agree The remunerahion of
the Charman and the NEDs is determined by the Committee and the
Board in accordance with the shareholder approval policy

The contract in respect of the Charman’s services provides for
termination, by either party, by gving not less than sx months’
notice The non-executive Directors have contracts in respect of
therr services, which can be terminated, by erther party, by gving
not less than three months' notice

Summary detalls of terms and notice perods for NEDs are
included below

Non-executive Date of Notice

Director appointment period

Paul Walker Apnl 2013 6 months
Stephen Pettit September 2003 3 months*
Jane Alkman August 2007 3 months
Daniela Barone Soares November 2011 3 menths
Roy Twite July 2014 3 months
Tony Rice August 2014 3 months

Stephen Pettit has gven notice of his intention 1o retire from the Board effective at the closa of the
2015 AGM As such hals not seeking re election 1o the Board

NEDs do not receive bengfits from the Company and they are not
ehgible to join the Company's pension plan or participate n any
incentive schemes Any reasonable expenses that they incur in
performing therr duties are rembursed by the Company

Paul Walker's personal assistant 1s an employes of the Company

Details of the policy on NED fees are set out in the table on
pages /6 and 77

&an Halma nle Annual Ranart and Areonnts 2015

NED Recruitment
In recruiting a new Chaiman or NED, the Committee will use the
policy as set out in the table on pages 76 and 77

Considerations of Conditions Elsewhere in the Group
The Committee considers the remuneration and employment
condtions elsewhere In the Group when determining remuneration
for executive Directors However, the Committes does not

currently consult specifically with employees on the executive
remuneration policy

Considerations of Shareholder Views

When determining rermuneraticn, the Committee takes into account
the views of our shareholders and ‘best practice’ gudelines set by
shareholder representative bodies As part of ther consideration of
the new remuneration policy the Commuttee consulted widely with the
Company's major institutional shareholders and therr representative
bodies The Committee aways welcomes feedback from
shareholders on the Company's remunerahon policy Detad on the
votes received on the remuneration policy and Annual Report on
Drectors’ Remuneration at the pnor annual general mestng 1s
provided In the Annual Remuneraton Report

External Directorships

The Committee acknowledges that executive Directors may be
invited to become Independent non-executive directors of other listed
cormpanies which have no business relationship with the Cormpany
and that these roles can broaden ther expenence and knowledge

to Halma's beneiit

Executive Directors are permitted o accept one such appointment
with the pnor approval of the Chaiman Approval will only be given
where the appointment does not present a confiict of interest

with the Group's actvibes and the wider exposure ganed will be
beneficial to the developmenit of the ndividual Where fees are
payable in respect of such appontments, these are retanad by
the executive Director

Dunng the year, Andrew Willlams was appointed a non-executve
drector of Capita plc Fees pad to him dunng the period to
28 March 2015 were £16,000




Annual Remuneration Report

The following section provides details of how Halma's remuneration policy was mplemented dunng the financial year ending 28 March 2015,

and how it will be mplemented in 2015/16

The Remuneration Committee
The primary respensibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to

— Make recommendations to the Board on the framewaork for
executive Directors’ and senmor executves’ remuneration based on
proposals formulated by the CEO,

- Determine and agree with the Board the policy and framework for
the remuneration of the Chairman, CEQ, cther executive Directors,
the Company Secretary and members of the Executive Board,

- Approve the design of, and determine targets for, any performance-

related pay plans operated by the Company and agree the total
annual payments made under such plans,

— Review the design of all share incentive plans for approval by the
Board and shareholders, and determine, each year, whether
awards will be made, and ff 50, the overall amount of such awards,
the ndividual awards to executive Directors and other senior
executives and the performance targets to be set, and

— Determine the policy for, and scope of, pension arrangements for
each executve Director and other senior executives

The Committee also monitors and considers, with the CEO, the
framework of remuneration for subsidiary CEQOs and directors and
ensures a consistent approach i1s applied

The full terms of reference can be found on the Compary’s website
or can be obtained from the Company Secretary

As at 28 March 2015, the Committee compnsed the following
non-executive Directors

— Stephen Pettit (Charmany)

- Paul Walker

- Jare Akman {from 10 April 2014)

—~ Daniela Barone Soares (from 10 Apni 2014)
— Tony Rice {from 24 July 2014)

— Roy Twite (from 8 August 2014}

Shareholder Vote at 2014 annual general meeting

Steve Marshall and Norman Biackwell were members of the
Committee during the year, until therr resrement from the Board
at the July 2014 annual general meeting

All members of the Cormmuittee are constdered independent within
the definition set out In the Code None of the Committee has any
perscnal financial interest in Halmia (other than as shareholders),
conflicts of interests ansing from cross directorships or day-to-day
involvement in running the business

During the year the Committee met formally four tmes  Attendance
by indwidual members of the Committee 1s disclosed in the Corporate
Govemance section on page 60

Only members of the Commitiee have the nght to attend Committee
meetings The CEO and Compary Secretary attend the Committee’s
meetings by invitation, but are not present when therr own remuneration
15 discussed The Committee also takes independent professional
advice as required

External Advisers

New Bndge Street acted as the independent remuneration
adviser to the Committee dunng the latter part of the year, having
been appointed by the Committee in October 2014, pror to that
date, Kepler Associates adwvised the Committee New Bndge
Strect (NBS) attends Comimittee meetings, as appropnate, and
provides advice on remuneration for executives, analysis on all
elements of the remuneraton policy and regular market and best
practce updates NBS reports directly to the Committee Chairman
and 1s a signatory to the Code of Conduct for Remuneration
Consultants of UK-listed companies (which can be found at
www rermuneratonconsuttantsgroup com) NBS provides no

cther services to the Company, and 1s therefore considered
independent NBS's fees for the year were £47,000

The following table shows the results of the voting at the 24 July 2014 annual general meeting

For Against Tota! Withheld

Remuneration Policy

Number of votes cast

261,662,093 2,751,401 264,413,494 7,524,717

% of votes cast

99 0% 10% 100%

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Total number of votes

268,861,782 728429 269,590,211 2,348,001

% of votes cast

99 7% 03% 100%
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Annual Remuneration Report continued

Smgle Figure of Total Remuneration for Directors

The tables below set out the single figure of total remuneration receved by Directors for the year to 28 March 2015 and the pnor year

2015
Annual Total
Salary’ Benefits® Pension® bonus* PSP S0S/SIP® remuneration
Executive Directors £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Andrew Willams 515 27 134 27 743 180 1,870
Kevin Thompson 330 14 186 173 514 256 1,473
Adam Meyers’ 279 9 12 270 432 170 1,172
Non-executive Directors
Paul Walker® 180 - - - - - 180
Stephen Pettit 59 - - - - - 59
Jane Alkman 56 - - - - - 56
Daniela Barone Soares 48 - - - - - 48
Roy Twite® 33 - - - - - 33
Tony Rice? 31 - - - - - 3
Past Directors
Norman Blackwell® 16 - - - - - 16
Steve Marshal® 18 - - - - - 18
Neit Qunn'® 250 14 - 250 372 225 1,111
6,067
2014
Annual Total
Salary’ Benefits? Pension® bonus? pPSPe S0S/SIP®  remuneration
Executve Directors £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Andrew Willams 482 27 145 178 707 3 1543
Kevin Thompson 310 14 101 114 443 3 985
Adam Meyers’ 261 12 12 105 379 - 769
Non-executive Directors
Paul Walker® 133 - - - - - 133
Stephen Pettit 55 - - - - - 55
Jane Alkkman 52 - - - - - 52
Darvela Barone Soares 45 - - - - - 45
Past Directors
Geoff Unwin® 44 - - - - - 44
Norman Blackwell® 50 - - - - - 50
Steve Marshall® 54 - - - - - 54
Ned Quinn'® 24 14 - 235 346 3 839
4,569

' Salary amount eamed for the year

? Bensfits company car and prvate medical insurance

*  Pension value based onincrease in accrued pens:ons et of nfiaton} muttiplied by a factor of 20 and/or the Company § pans:on contnbution dunng the year Ned Quinn had reached the Nomal

Ratrement Date and therelore No firure pension contnbution ge cash supplement was payable
Annual bonus  paymen for perfermance dunng the year
PSP the value of awards vestng on perfonmance dunng the years ending 28 March 2015 {estimated) and 20 March 2014 (actual)
S0OS gains on awards vesting in the penod SIP valued based on the face value of shares at grant
Rermunerated in US dollars and transtated a1 the average exchangs rate for the year (2015 USS$161 2014 USS1 50

Paud Walker was apponted to the Board on 12 Aprit 2013 and the Chaiman of the Board on 25 July 2013 Geotf Unwin retred trom the Board on 25 July 2013
Norman Blackwell and Steve Marshal retired from the Board on 24 July 2014
0 Neil Quinn retred from the Board on 14 May 2015

e a9 N4 m om .

R? Halma nir Annual Rennd and Aroonnis 2015




Other Payments
No payments were made to former Directors after their rebrement, nor were any payments made on cessation dunng the year under rewew

Incentive Outcomes for 2015

Annual bonus in respect of 2015

In 2015, the maximum bonus opportunity for executive Directors was 100% of salary, inked to performance as measured by an Economic
Value Added (EVA) calculation (100%)

For the CEQ and FD, bonuses are calculated based on Group profit exceeding a target calculated from the profits for the three preceding
financial years after charging cost of capial, including the cost of acquistions  As the EVA for sach year is utihsed for a further three years in
the comparater calculations, executives must consider the medum-term interests of the Group ctherwise there 15 the potentiad for an adverse
impact on therr capacity to eam a bonus

EVA calculation
Profit for Minus Minus Plus/minus Minus Equals
each year A charge on cost A charge on Unrealsed profit The resutant bonus ~ The EVA for
of acquistions working capital In nventory tself (to make it each year
self-financing)

In the case of a Sector CEQ, a bonus s eamed if the profit of the sector for which they are responsible exceeds a target calculated from the
profits of the three preceding financial years The profits calculated for this purpeose regard each sector as a stand-alone group of companies
charging it with the cost of capital it utihses including the cost of acquisitions

Bonuses for 2015 are based on the sectoral allocation that existed throughout 2015 Transitional provisions exast for restructunng to ensure
Sector CECs remain appropnately mcentvised Subsidiary executives participate i bonus arrangements similar to those established for
senior executives

Further detalls of the bonuses paid and performance against targets are provided in the tables below

Overall

EVA EVA bonus EVA

threshold actual outcome maxmum

Executive Director 000 000 (% of salary) 000
Andrew Withams £84,160 £97,236 53% £102,306
Kewvin Thompson £84,160 £97,236 53% £102,316
Neill Quinn £29,959 £37,096 100% £36,922
Adam Meyers $27.804 $34,680 97% $34,806

No discretion was appled by the Committee in determining the annual bonus outcome calculation for 2015 The EVA maximum column
represents the EVA performance at which 100% of salary 1s payable as a bonus {the maximum for 2014/15)
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual Remuneration Report continued

Performance Share Plan (PSP} 2012 Awards (vesting dunng the year to 2 Apnl 2016}
In August 2012, the executive Directors received awards of performance shares under the PSP The performance targets for the 2012 awards
are illustrated below and the vesting cntena are 50% TSR-related and 50% ROTC-related

Performance conditions for awards made in 2012/13 to 2014/15

Percentage of award TSR (percentile)
which vests <50% 50% 275%
<9.5% 0% 167% 500%
ROTIC 12.0% 16 7% 333% 667%
(post-tax) 14.5% 33 3% 500% 833%
170% 50% 66 7% 100%

The three-year penod over which these two Independent performance metrics 1s measured ends on 1 August 2015 ROTIC 1s 16 10% (the
average ROTIC for 2013, 2014 and 2015} and TSR relative to the FTSE 250 excluding financial companies was 59th percentile through year
end, which results in vesting of 75% of the maximum award The vesting estmate included in the single figure of Total Remuneration for
Directors for 2015 13 detaled n the table below

Face value Vesting

Interest at grant Vesting Interest Average price value

Executive Director held £000 % vesting at year end £000
Andrew Willams 141,658 572 106,244 743
Kevin Thornpson 98,066 396 73,550 514

w% ——— 69893p —————

Neill Quinn 70,954 286 53216 372
Adam Meyers 82,408 333 61,806 437

Vested awards are satisfied in shares with sufficient shares being sold to meet tax and social costs owing, at the recipient’s direction, and the
net balance of shares transferred to the indwvidual Awards lapse if they do not vest on the thwrd anniversary of ther award

Performance Share Plan Awards (granted durnng 2014/15)
On 12 August 2014, the executive Directors were granted awards under the PSP, the size of which reflects an assessment of each mdwdual

executive's achievement of their objectives (agreed at the start of the 2014 financial year)

Face value

Awards Face value atdateof Maximum

made dunng Market price at at date of award (% of award

Executive Director the year date of award award salary) permitted
Andrew Willams 117,748 £671,046 130 3% 140%
Kewvin Thompson 77,829 569 9p £443,547 134 4% 140%
Neil Quinn 59,203 £337,398 135 5% 140%
Adam Mevers 62,821 £358,017 126 5% 140%

The percentages above are relative to base satanes

The three-year performance penod over which RCTIC performance will be measured is Apnl 2014 to March 2017 TSR performance is
measured between 1 May 2014 and 1 August 2017 due to three-month averaging of TSR at 1 August 2014 being compared to the three-
month average at 1 August 2017 The ROTIC element will be based on the average ROTIC for 2015, 2016 and 2017 The award is eligble to
vest in its entirety on the third anniversary of the date of grant (ie 12 August 2017), subject to 50% on ROTIC and 50% on TSR performance
The independent performance targets applicable to awards granted in 2014 are as stated above for awards made from 2012/13 to 2014/15
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Implementation of Remuneration Policy for 2016

Salary

The Committee conducted a consultation of the top 10 shareholders in February and March 2015 The consultabon was highlighted as
necessary In last year's report to shareholders and was deferred until this year n order to accommodate changes in the Board constitubon
and to concide with the necessiy to replace the Performance Share Plan As stated last year, the Committee had identified that, whilst
Halma's performance had been strong m recent years, salanes for Halma's executive Directors {and the value of the total package) were not
competitve for a group of Halma's sze and complexity The Committee believed 1t was appropnate to move salanes above market lower
quartle and closer to a market median level The robust review conducted this year makes those necessary adjustments, for the remander
of the policy penod, it 1s anticipated that salary iIncreases will align with those awarded across the Group more generally The Committee
recognises the need to continue to exercise restrant on executive remuneration, and notes that the resulting packages remamn at or below
median for companies of our size and sector Therefore, the Committee approved the following salary increases with effect from 1 Apri 2015
By way of companson, the average salary Increase across the sectors for 2016 was between 2% and 4%

Salary from  Salary from

Executive Director 1 Apnl 2015 1 Apnl 2014 % change
Andrew Willams £600,000 £515,000 16 5%
Kevin Thompson £375,000 £330,000 13 6%
Nell Quinn®* £250,000 £250,000 =%
Adam Meyers $470,000 $450,000 44%

As mentoned above Nell Cuinn has given the Comparty nobice of his resignation ettective 31 March 2018 Accordngly he will be paid his salary to that date and be entitied 1o receve a pr rata bonus and
wil not be recenving a PSP award for 203516 PSP awards from eartier years wil vest on ther third anniversary and be subiect to pro-ration for service and performance conditions always subject to good
leaver status being confimed

Pension and benefits
No change te the executive Directors’ curment pension and benefits arangements s anbicipated for 2015716

Annual bonus
The maximum annual bonus cpportunity 2016 will increase to 150% for the Group CEQ and FD and 125% for other executive Directors
{2015 100%) with one third being payable in shares which are deferred for two years

Bonuses will continue to be based on EVA performance aganst a weighted average target of EVA for the past three years for an executive’s
sector, In the case of a Sector CEQ, or the Group, in the case of the Group CEO and FD

Bonus payments wilt be subject to recovery and withholding provisions durng a penod of three years from the date of payrment

PSP
Subject to shareholder approval, PSP awards will be made after the 2015 AGM The number of shares over which awards will be made Is
determined by the share pnce leading up to the award, but the value of each award, refative {0 salary has been fixed as follows

Salary for PSP Value of
Executive Director 2015/16 fixed award 2015 award
Andrew Willams £600,000 200%  £1,200,000
Kevin Thompson £375,000 175% £856,250
Adam Meyers $470,000 150% $705,000

The PSP awards to be granted in August 2015 will be subject to an eamings per share performance target for 50% of the award and a ROTIC
target for 50% of the award The performance targets are set out below

Performance targets for 2015/16 PSP award

ROTIC* {post tax) % of award vesting™*
<110% 0%
11 0% 12 5%
170% or more 50%

Average ROTIC over the performance period
* Therais straight Ine vesting n between threshold and maximum vestng

EpPs” % of award vesting*~
<5% 0%
5% 12 5%
12% or more 50%

Adjusted eamings per share growth over the three year performance penod
*  Theres straight Eng vesting In between threshoid and maximum vesting
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual Remuneration Report continued

Chairman and non-executive Director fees
The Charman's and the NEDs' fees, as detailed below, were last increased by the Board in Apnl 2014 Fees are subject to an annual review
each Apni, but resetting 1s expected to be tnennial The next resetting i1s anticipated to be n 2016

Fees from Fees from
Fees 1Aprl 2015 1 Apnl 2014
Chairman £180,000 £2180,000
Base fee £48,000 £48,000
Senior Independent Director £5,000 £6,000
Audit Committee Char £7,500 £7,500
Remuneration Committee Char £7,500 £7,500
Committee Member £nil £l

The committese rmermberstip fee was consolidated into the base fee with effect from 1 Apnl 2014 and appropnate adustments made to
committee charr fees

Percentage Change in CEO Remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in the CEQO’s remuneration from the pnor year compared to the average percentage change
n rermuneration for other employees To provide a meaningful comparison, the analysis includes cnly salaned managernent employees and
1s based on a consistent set of employees, 1 the same individuals appear In the 2015 and 2014 populations

2015 2014
Other
CEO CEO CEO employees
£000 f000 % change % change
Salary 515 482 68% 641%
Taxable benefits 27 27 —% —%
Annual bonus M 178 52 2% 44 5%

Relative mportance of spend on pay
The table below shows the percentage change in total employee pay expenditure and shareholder distnbutions (ie dwvdends and share
buybacks) from the financial year ended 29 March 2014 to the financial year ended 28 March 2015

2015 2014
£m £m % change
Distnbution to shareholders 453 422 7 1%
Employee remuneration (gross) 1908 1809 104%
Employes remuneration (pro-rated) 199.8 1929 36%

The Directors are proposing a final dmdend for the year ended 28 March 2015 of 7 31p per share (2014 6 82p)

Pro-rated employee remuneration represents a restatement of the pnor year employee remuneration for the current year number

of employees

Pay for performance

The six-year graph on the next page shows the Company’s TSR performance over the six years to 28 March 2015 as compared to the
FTSE 250 and the FTSE 350 Electronic & Blectncal Equipment indices Over the penod indicated, the Company's TSR was 525% compared
to 318% for the FTSE 250 and 507% for the FTSE 350 Electronic & Electncal Equipment Index

The FTSE 250 has been selected as a broad market comparator, and the FTSE 350 Electronic & Electncal Equipment ndex has been
selected because the Company believes that the constituent companies of this index are the most appropnate for this companson as they
are affected by similar commercial and economic factors to Halma The table below the chart details the CEO's single figure remuneration
and actual vanable pay outcomes over the same penod

p#as-
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Total Shareholder Return (six years)

100%

Mar-2009 Mar-2010 Mar-2011 Mar-2012 Mar-2013 Mar-2014 Mar-2015

— Halma
-- FTSE 250
== FTSE 350 Blectronic & Blectronc Equipment
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
CEO single figure remuneratien (£000) £1,472 £1,999 £1,715 £1,958 £1,543 £1,870
Annual bonus outcome (% of maxnmurn‘) 19% 100% 40% 48% 37% 53%
PSP vesting outcome (% of maximum} 96% 100% 100% 98% 74% 75%

Directors’ Interests in Halma Shares

The interests of the Directors in office at 28 March 2015 and ther families in the ordinary shares of the Company at the following dates were

as follows
Shares Shares
28 March 2015 29 March 2014
Paul Walker 30,000 30,000
Andrew Willams 541,130 522,029
Kevin Thompson 369,112 357,711
Stephen Pettit 2,000 2,000
Nell Gunn 311,865 301,264
Jane Akman 2,000 2,000
Adam Mevers 318,480 296,953
Darvela Barone Soares 1,319 1,319
Roy Twite 2,000 -
Tony Rice 7,665 -

The executve Directors each meet the new guideline for 2015/16 of holding Company shares to the value of at least two bmes salary (2015
and prior one times salary}) Roy Twite and Tony Rice held no interests in the Company’s shares upon ther appointment There are no other

non-beneficial interests of Directors There were no changes n Directors’ interests from 28 March 2015 to 11 June 2015
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual Remuneration Report continued

Detalls of Directors’ interests in shares and options under Halma long-tenm incentves are set out In the sections below

Directors' Interests in Halma Share Plans
Detalls of Directors' outstanding performance shares under the PSP free shares under the SIP and share options under the Share Option
Plan) are outined In the tables below

Five-day average
Asat Grantedfvested)  share pnce on As at
Dateof grant 29 March 2014 in the year grant (o) 28 March 2015
Performance Share Plan
Andrew Willams 12 Aug 11 164,912 (121,526} 362 34 -
8Aug 12 141,658 403 70 141,658
7 Aug 13 114,646 557 60 114,646
12 Aug 14 117,748 56990 117,748
Kewvin Thompson 12 Aug 11 103,571 {76.322) 362 34 -
8Aug 12 98,066 40370 98,066
7Aug13 71,041 557 60 71,041
12 Aug 14 77.829 569 90 77,829
Ned Quinn 12 Aug 11 80,810 (69.549) 36234 -
8 Aug 12 70,854 40370 70,954
7 Aug 13 57,054 557 60 57,054
12 Aug 14 59,203 569 90 59,203
Adam Meyers 12 Aug 11 88,552 {65.255) 362 34 -
8Aug 12 82,408 403 70 82,408
7 Aug13 62,767 557 60 62,767
12 Aug 14 62,821 569 90 62,821

The performance conditions for PSP shares awarded in August 2011 differ from those awarded In August 2012, 2013 and 2014
The performance conditions attached to the latter awards are outined on page 84 The August 2011 awards had the same performance
conditions as the 2012 to 2014 awards, however, the RCTIC vesting range began at 8 5% and fully restad at 14 0%

As at year end, the vesting expectations for grants made in 2012 is 75%, for grants made 2013, 84%, and for grants made in 2014, 89%
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Granted/ Share pnce

Asat {withdrawm} in on award As at
Dateofgrant 29 March 2014 the year (®) 28 March 2015
Share Incentive Plan
Andraw Willams 10ct 10 857 31960 857
10ct 11 a21 315860 921
1Qct 12 695 43110 685
10ct 13 528 567 50 528
1 0Oct 14 601 598 50 601
Kevin Thompson 10ct10 882 31980 aa2
10ct 11 949 31560 949
10ct 12 695 43110 695
1 Cct13 528 567 50 528
10ct 14 601 598 50 601
Ned Quinn 10ct10 882 31980 882
10ct 11 949 31560 949
10ct12 895 43110 695
10ct 13 528 567 50 528
1Q0ct 14 601 598 50 601

The SIP shares are held in an extenal trust and become the employee's absolutely after three years There are tax benefits for retaning the
shares In the trust for at least five years

Detalls of Directors’ outstanding share options as at 28 March 2015 are outlined In the table below

Gamin on
As at Exercised in As at exercise
29 March 2014 the year 28 March 2015 {£)

Share Option Plan
Andrew Willams 39,367 (39,367 - 176,725
Kevin Thompson 56,239 (56,239 - 252,466
Neil Quinn 49,209 (49,209 - 220,908
Adam Meyers 69,470 (69,47Q) - 343,955
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Thera wera no share opton grants or lapses ounng the financial year

After publication of the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts, the upper quartle EPS performance condition was met and Directors’ share
opticns over 182,878 shares, at an exercise pnce of 142 25p, were exercised on 24 June 2014 at a price of 581 17p per share

The Company's Register of Directors’ Interests, which 1s open to Inspection at the Registered Office, contains full details of Directors'
shareholdings and share options There have been no vanations to the terms and conditions or performance cntena for share options durng
the financial year
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Remuneration Committee Report continued
Annual Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ pensions

As noted below, two UK executive Directors are deferred members of the Halma Group Penston Plan (Plan’) Ther benefit 1s a funded final
salary ocoupational pension from a plan registered with HMRC providing a maxamum pension of two thirds of final pensionable salary after
25 or more years’ service at normal pension age (60). Up to 5 Apnl 20086, final pensionable salary was the greatest salary of the last three
complete tax years immediately befors retrement or lsaving service From 6 Apnl 2011, final pensionable salary was capped at £139,185
and 1s ncreased annually thereafter by CH {currently £155,528)

Bonuses and other fluctuating emoluments and benefits-in-kind are not pensionable nor subject to any pension supplement. The Plan also
provides for Ife cover of three times salary, pensions in the event of early retirement through tll-health and dependants’ pensions of one-half
of the member's prospective pension Where an executive has a form of pension protection, life cover s provided by a separate trust

Earty retirement pensions, currently possible from age 55 with the consent of the Company and the trustees of the Plan, are subject to
actuanal reduction Pensions in payment increase by 3% per annum for service up to 5 Apnl 1997, by pnce inflation (subject to a maximum
of 5% through to 31 March 2007 and 3% thereafter

UK executive Directors receve pension supplements to compensate them for the fact that therr pension accrual entitiernent under the Halrma
Group Pension Plan is imited by the pensionable salary cap introduced from 6 Apnl 2006 or the Lifetime Allowance The Company introduced
a pensionable salary cap in order to address changes affecting the Plan made in the Pension Act 2006

Dunng the year, the Company closed the DB sechon to future accrual with effect from 1 December 2014 The Company obtains extemnal
advice regarding the changes to the Plan and executive pension arrangements and provides educational seminars on the impact of pension
legislation changes {annual and ifstime allowances) on indwviduals Ctherwise, executive Directors are responsible for obtaining adwvice specific
to therr crcumstances

Pnor to drawing his pension, 1o the extent that an executve’s current salary exceeds the Plan salary cap, the Company compensates him at
an annual rate of 26% of the excess In Apnl 2006, Kevin Thompson chose to cease future service accrual in the Plan n retum for the pension
supplement on his full salary In Apnl 2014, Andrew Willams chose to cease future service accrual n the Plan in retum for the pension
supplement on his full salary This change is, broadly, cost neutral

Neill Quinn has reached the Normal Retrement Date and 15 drawing his pension, therefore no future pension contnbution or cash supplement
IS payable

Two Directors accrued benefits under the Company’s Defined Benefit pension plan dunng the year as folows

Years of Increase In
pensionable Increasein accrued benefits Accrued benefits
Age at serviceat  accrued benefits netof mflation  at 28 March 2015
Executive Director 28 March 2015 28 March 2015 £000 £000 £000
Andrew Willams a7 20 - 1 61
Kevin Thompson 55 18 5 4 118

The accrued pension shown is that which would be paid annually on retrement at age 60 based on service to the end of the year

Transfer value

increase/

Director (decrease) after

Transfer valueat  Transfer value at contnbution deducting Director

29 March 2014 28 March 2015 in the year contnbution

Executive Director £000 £000 £000 £000
Andrew Willams 864 1,149 - 1,149
Kevin Thompson 2,262 2,599 - 2,599

The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to the ndwdual Director Instead they represent a potential liability
of the pension plan The transfer values are Gilt-related and depend upon the relative standings of the Gilt market at the respective valuation
dates The mcrease in transfer values in recent years 1s predominantly due to the significant reduction in the yields avatlable on UK Giltts Other
factors that have increased the transfer values are the mpact of any addional service, revaluation in ine with inflation and any real salary
ncreases as well as the anticipated ageing of the rember These values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal adwice in accordance
with Actuanat Guidance Note GN11

Adam Meyers 1s a member of the US 401k money purchase scheme Company contnibutions paid n the year were $18,863 (£11,716)
(2014 $18,600 (£11,698)
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Other Statutory Information

Activities
Halma plc 1 a holding company A list of ts pnncipal subsidiary
companies and thetrr actvities 1s set out on pages 160 to 163

Ordinary dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of 7 31p per share and,

if approved, this dvidend will be pard on 19 August 2015 to ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 17 July 2015
Together with the iIntenm dmdend of 4 65p per share already paid,
this will make a total of 11 @6p (2014 1117p) per share for the
financial year

Share capital and capital structure

Detalls of the share capital, together with details of the movements
in the share capital dunng the year, are shown in note 22 to the
accounts The Company has one class of ordinary shares which
carry no nght to fixed Income Each share cames the nght to one
vote at general meetings of the Company

There are no other classes of share capital There are no specific
restnctions on the size of a holding nor on the transfer of shares, with
both governed by the general prowisions of the Articles of Association
and prevailling legislation No person has any special nghts of control
over the Company’s share capital and all issued shares are fully paid

Rights and obligations of ordinary shares

Holders of ordinary shares are entitied to attend and speak at
general meetings of the Company and to appoint one or more
proxies or, if the holder of shares 1s a corporation, one or more
corporate representatives On a show of hands, each holder of
ordinary shares who (being an individual) I1s present in person or
(being a corporation) 1s present by a duly apponted corporate
representative, not baing hmself a member, shall have cne vote,

as shall proxies {unless they are appomnted by more than one holder,
In which case they may vote both for and against the resolution in
accordance with the holders” instructions) On a poll every holder of
ordinary shares preésent in person or by proxy shall have one vote
for every share of which he 1s the holder Electronic and paper proxy
appointments and voting instructions must be receved not later than
48 hours before the meetng A holder of ordinary shares can lose
the entiffiernent to vote at general meetings where that holder has
been served with a disclosure notice and has failed to provide

the Company with information conceming interests held in those
shares Except as set out above and as permitted under applicable
statutes, there are no kmitatitons on voting nghts of holders of a given
percentage, number of votes or deadlnes for exercising voting nghts

Restrictions on transfer of shares

The Directors may refuse to register a transfer of a certrficated

share that 1s not fully paid, prowded that the refusal does not prevent
dealings in shares n the Company from taking place on an open

and proper basis or where the Company has a lien over that share
The Directors may also refuse to register a transfer of a certificated
share unless the instrument of transfer s (i) lodged, duly stamped

(if necessary), at the registered office of the Compary or any other
place as the Board may decide accompanied by the certficate for the
share(s) to be transferred and/or such other evidence as the Directors
may reasonably require to show the nght of the transferor to make
the transfer; () in respect of only one class of shares, (i) In favour of

a person who is not a minor, Infant, bankrupt or a person of unsound
mind, or (V) In favour of not more than four persons jointly

Transfers of uncertficated shares must be camed out using
CREST and the Directors can refuse to regsster a transfer of an
uncertfficated share in accordance with the regulations governing
the operation of CREST

There are no other restnctions on the transfer of ordinary shares in the
Company except certan restrictons which may from time to time be

rmposed by laws and regutations (for example msider trading laws), or
where a shareholder with at least a 0 25% interest in the Company’s
certficated shares has been served with a disclosure notice and has
fatled to provide the Company with information concemtng interests

in those shares The Directors are not aware of any agreements
between holders of the Company's shares that may resuit in restrictions
on the transfer of secunties or on voting nghts

Treasury shares
Shares held in treasury do not have voting nghts and are not eligible
for dvmdends

Employee share plans
Detaills of employee share plans are set out in note 23 to the accounts

The Company's existing Performance Share Plan (the ‘2005 PSP')
will reach the end of ts 10-year ife n 2015 This resolution therefore
seeks approval to introduce a new Executive Share Plan to replace
the 2005 PSP The new Plan wil share many of the features of the
2005 PSP but has been updated to reflect current legislation, best
practice and corporate governance regquirements ncluding recovery
and withholding provisions In addition, the new Plan will includs
flexibility to grant performance-related share awards, other share
awards and deferred bonus awards

The new Plan will be used pnmarnly to grant performance-related
awards and deferred bonus awards to executive Directors and
selected senior employees The Remuneration Committee believes
that the atility to continue to grant long term share-based incentves
as part of a balanced remuneration package will craate a strong
alignment of long term Interest between senior management

and shareholders

No awards have been made under the 2005 PSP n 2015 It
intended that inhial performance awards will be made to exacutve
Directors and selected senior management shortly following
shareholder approval of the Plan The first grants of the deferred
bonus awards will be rads in 2016, following determination of
beonuses for the 2015/16 financial year

Dilution imits

The existing PSP has awarded shares, before lapses, over a ten-year
penod totaling 4 0% of the Company’s 1ssued share capital, this 1S
within the 10 0% overall irnit and the 7 5% it for discrebionary share
awards agreed in 2005 The Company has utilised treasury shares to
satisfy all such awards

The new 2015 Executive Share Plan provides that overall dilution
through the 1ssuance of new shares for employee share schemes
(including treasury shares) should not exceed an amount equivalent
to 10% of the Company’s 1ssusd share capital over a ten-year penod
and for discretionary share awards to serior management 5% over a
ten-year perod As at the date of this report, the Cormpany remains
within these limits

Appointment and replacement of directors

With regard to the appontment and reptacement of Directors,

the Company 1s govemed by its Articles of Association, the UK
Corporate Govemance Code, the Companies Act and related
legisiation Directors can be apponted by the Company by ordinary
resolution at a general mestng or by the Boarad i a Director 1s
appointed by the Board, such Director will held office untit the next
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for electon at

that meeting Therefore, in accordance with the UK Corperate
Govemance Code sach of the Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for election or re-glection at this year's Annual General
Meeting The Company can remove a Director from office, including
by passing a special resolution or by notice being given by all the
other Directors The Articles themselves may be amended by
special resolution of the shareholders

Halma nir Annual Ranort and Arconints 2015 91

yodey oiBajensg |

SJUBLLRIBIS [BISURUI4 |




Other Statutory Information continued

Power of Directors

The powers of Directors are descnbed in the Matters Reserved
for the Beard, copies of which are avallable on request from the
Company Secretary, and the Corporate Govermance Report on
pages 59 to 65

Essential contracts and change of control

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or terminate
upon a change of control of the Company, pnncipally bank loan
agreements and employee share plans

The only significant agreement, in terms of its Ikely mpact on the
business of the Group as a whole, containing such provisions I1s that
governing the £360m syndicated revolving credt facility which, if
within 10 days of a change of control notice to the Loan agent, can
result m 30 days’ notice being gven to the Company by any Lender,
for all amounts outstanding to that Lender, 1o be mmedaltely due
and payable, at which tme the commitment of that Lender wall

ba cancelled If all of the Lenders give this notice the whole facility
would be canceled

The Group has contractual arrangements with a wide range of
suppliers The Group 1s not unduly dependent upon contractual
arrangements with any particular customer Whilst the loss or
disruption to certain of these arrangements could temporarily
affect the Group's business, none 1S considerad to be essential

The Company’s share plans contain prowsions as a result of which
options and awards may vest and become exercisable on a change
of control of the Company in accordance with the rules of the plans

The Directors are not aware of any agreements between the Company
and ts dirsctors or employees that prowide for compensation for loss
of office or employment that cccurs because of a takeover bid

Allotment authority

Under the Companies Act 2006 the Directors may only allot shares if
authonsed by shareholders to do so At the Annual General Meeting
an ordinary resolution will be proposed which, if passed, will authonse
the Directors 1o allot and issue new shares up to an aggregate nominal
value of £12,500,000 (Up to 125,000,000 new ordinary shares of 10p
each), being Just less than one third of the 1Issued share capital of the
Company (excluding treasury shares) as at 8 June 2015 (the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Meeting)

in accordance with the Directors’ stated intention to seek annual
renewal, the authonty will expire at the conclusion of the annual
general mesting of the Company in 2016 Passing this resolution
will give the Directors flexibility to act in the best interests of
shareholders, when opportunities anse, by Issuing new shares

As at 8 June 2015 (the latest practicable date pner to the publication
of the Notice of Mesting), the Compary had 379,645,332 ordinary
shares of 10p each in issue of which 1,371,785 were held as treasury
shares, which I1s equal to approximatety O 36% of the issued share
capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) as at that date

The Compartes Act 2006 also requires that, if the Company issues
new shares for cash or sells any treasury shares, it must first offer
them to existing shareholders in proportion to ther current holdings
At the Annual General Meeting a special resolution will be proposed
which, f passed, will authonse the Directors 1o 1ssue a limited number
of shares for cash and/or sell treasury shares without offenng them to
shareholders first The authonty is for an aggregate nominal amount
of up to 10% of the aggregate nominal value of the issued share
capital of the Company as at 8 June 2015 (the latest practicable date
pnor to the publication of the Notice of Mesting) The resolution will
also modify statutory pre-emption nghts to deal with legal, regulatory
or practical problems that may anse on a nghts issue or other
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pre-emptive offer or issus Thie authonty will expire at the same time
as the resolutton confemng authonty on the Directors to allot shares
The Directors consider this authonty necessary in order to gve them
flesabality to deat with opportunities as they anse, subject to the
restnctions contained in the resoluton There are no present plans
to issue shares, except under share plans previously approved in
general meeting

Directors
The names of the Directors of the Company who served throughout
the year, with bnef biographies, are set out on pages 56 and 57

Directors’ indemnities

The Company has entered into deeds of ndemnity with each of the
current Directors, which remain in force at the date of this report
These are qualfying third-party mdemnity provisions for the purposes
of the Companies Act 2006

Purchase of the Company's own shares

The Company was authonsed at the 2014 annual general meeting to
purchase up to 37,700,000 of its own 10p ordinary shares in the
market This authonty expires at the end of the 2015 Annual General
Meeting In accordance with the Directors’ stated intention to seek
annual renewal, a special resolution will be proposed at the Annual
General Meeting to renew this authonty, until the end of next year's
annual general meeting, In respect of up to 37,700,000 ordinary
shares, which 1s approxmately 10% of the Cormpany’s issued share
capial {excluding treasury shares} as at 8 June 2015 {he latest
practicable date pnor to the publication of the Notice of Mesting)
The Directors consider it desirable that the possibility of making
such purchases, under appropnate circumstances, 1S avalable

Ther present intention i1s that the shares purchased under the
authority will be held n treasury for future cancellation, sale for cash
or transter for the purposes cf, or pursuant to, an employes share
plan, although in the Iight of circumstances at the time it may be
decided to cancel them immediately on repurchase The effect of
any cancellation would be to reduce the number of shares in issue
For most purposes, while held in treasury, shares are treated as if
they have been cancelled {for example, they camry no voting nghts
and do not rank for dvidends)

Following approval of the Performance Share Plan (PSP} at the 2005
annual general meeting, the Directors made, and intend to continue
to make, routine purchases of Halma shares in the market for holding
In treasury until required for vesting under the PSP In the year to

28 March 2015, 1,076,865 shares, with a nominal value of £107,686 50,
which 1s O 36% of the Company's 1Issued share capital as at 8 June
2015 (the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of the Natice
of Meeting), were purchased in the market for treasury Under the
proposed 2015 Executive Share Plan, shares vesting may be satisfied
with market purchased shares held in trust or in treasury or with new
ssue shares Otherwise, the Directors have no present ntention of
using this authonty In reaching a decision to purchase shares, the
Directors will take into account the Company's cash resources,
capital requirements and the effect of any purchase on the
Company's eamings per share Itis anticipated that renewal of the
authonty will be requested at subsequent annual general meetings

As at 8 June 2015, which 1s the latest practicable date pnor to the
publication of the Nobice of Meating, no further options were outstanding

Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual Genaral Mesting will be held on 23 July 2015
The Notice of Meeting, together with an explanation of the proposed
resolutions, 1s enclosed with this Annual Report and Accounts and 1s
also avalable on the Cormpany's website at www halma com




Substantial shareholdings

On 8 June 2015, the Company had been notified, In accordance with
chapter 5 of the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, of the following
voting nghts as a shareholder of the Company

28 March 2015 8 June 2015

Percentage of Percentage of

voting rights voling nghts
No. of ordinary and issued No of ordinary and1ssued Nature of
shares share capital shares share capital holdings
Massachusetts Financial Services Company 37.841,275 1000 37,841,275 1000 Indirect
Sprucegrove Investment Management Ltd 18,776,510 496 18,776,510 4986 Indirect
Norges Bank 11,338,8H1 300 11,338,891 394 Direct
BlackRock Inc 14,646,007 387 14,646,007 387 Indirect
Mawer Investment Management 15,149,012 400 15,149,012 400 Direct
Capital Group 15,431,693 408 17,340,346 458 Indirect

Special Business

The Board will propose four special resolutions under Special
Business at the Annual General Mesting One of these 1S to permit
the Company to retan the ability to call general meetings {other than
annual general meebings) at 14 days’ notice rather than 21 days’
notice, n accordance with the EU Shareholder Rights Directive
implernented in August 2009 Another special resolution 15 to amend
the Company’s Articles of Association to fix Directors’ fees at an
aggregate maximum of £750,000

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this
Annual Report and Accounts confirms that

- 50 far as the Director I1s aware, there 1s no relevant audt information
of which the Company’s Auditor 1s Lunaware, and

- the Director has taken all the steps that he/she cught to have taken
as a director in order to make himsel/herself aware of any refevant
audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditor 1s
aware of that nformation

This confirmation is grven and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006

Deloitte LLP has expressed its willingness to continue in office as
Auditor and a resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLLP will be proposed
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting

Scope of the reporting in this Annual Report

and Accounts

The Board has prepared a Strategic Report (inchuding the Chairman's
Statement and the Chief Executive’s Strategic Review} which provides
an overview of the development and performance of the Company's
business n the year ended 28 March 2015 and its posttion at the end
of that year, and which covers likely future developments in the
business of the Company and the Group

For the purposes of complance with TR 415 R2) and DTR 418 R,
the required cantent of the management report can be found in the
Strategic report and these Regulatory disclosures, ncluding the sections
of the Annual Report and Accounts incorporated by reference

For the purposes of LR 9 8 4C R, the following items are not
applicable (1) nterest capitalised, (2} publication of unaudited financial
information, (5) waver of emoluments by a Director, (6) waver of
future emoluments by a Director; {7) non pre-emptive issues of equity
for cash, 8) tem (7) n relation to major subsidiary undertakings, (9)
parent participation in a placing by a listed subsidiary, {11) provisions
of serices by a controling shareholder, (13) shareholder wavers of
future dmdends, and (14) agreements with controlling shareholders

Apphcable tems can be located as follows (4) detalls of long-term
incentive schemes - note 23 to the Financial Statements, (10)
contracts of significance and (12) shareholder waver of dwidends
- Cther Statutory Information, page 91

Adoption of Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 101

- Reduced Disclosure Framework

Following the publication of FRS 100 Application of Financial
Reporting Reguirernents by the Financial Reporting Council, Halma
ple is required to change its accounting frarmework for its Company
financial statements (published on pages 151 to 157 in this Annual
Report and Accounts), which is currently UK GAAP, for s financial
year commencing 29 March 2015 The Board considers that it 1s in
the bast interests of the group for Halma plc to adopt the FRS 101
Reduced Disclosure Framework, which is intended for use by
parent and substdiary cornpanies of groups reporting under IFRS
on a consolidated basis No disclosures m the currert UK GAAP
Company financral statements would be omitted on adoption of
FRS 101 A sharehclder or shareholders holding In aggregate 5% or
more of the total allotted shares in Halma plc may serve objections
to the use of the disclosure exemptions on Halma ple, in wnting,

to its registered cifice (Misboume Court, Rectory Way, Amersham,
Buckinghamshire, UK, HP7 ODE) not later than 31 August 2015

By order of the Board

Carol Chesney
Company Secretary

11 June EK
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Directors’ Responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for prepanng the Annual Report
and the financial staternents in accordance with applicable law
and reguiations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year Under that law the Directors are required

to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with
Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have
chosen to prepare the parent company financial staterments in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)
Under company law the Directors must not approve the accounts
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and far view of the state
of affars of the Company and of the prafit or loss of the Company
for that penod

In prepanng the parent company financial statements, the Directors
are required to

- select sutable accounting policies and then apply thermn
consistently,

— make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explaned in the financial statements, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless
it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company will continue n
business

In prepanng the Group financial statements, Intemational Accounting
Standard 1 requires that Directors

~ properly select and apply accounting policies,

— present information, iIncluding accounting policies, In a manner that
provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable
information,

- provide additional disclosures when complance with the specific
requirements in {FRSs are nsufficlent to enable users to
understand the impact of particular transactions, other events
and conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial
performance, and

— make an assessment of the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Compary's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial posiion of the Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection

of fraud and other Irregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and integnty of

the corporate and financial Information iIncluded on the Company’s
website Legislation in the United Kingdom goverming the preparation
and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in
other junsdictons
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Directors’ responsibility statement
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

— the financial statermnents, prepared in accordance with Intemational
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, gve a true
and far view of the assets, labilties, financial posttion and profit
or loss of the Company and the undertakings ncluded in the
consolidation taken as a wholg,

- the Strategic Report includes a far review of the development and
performance of the business and the postion of the Company and
the undertakings Included n the consolidation taken as a whols,
together with a descrnption of the principal nsks and uncertanties
that they face, and

— the annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are
far, balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s parformance,
business model and strategy

By order of the Board

Andrew Williams

Chief Executive
11 June 2015

Kevin Thompson
Finance Director

¥




Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Halma plc

Opinion on financial statements of Halma plc
In our opinion

- thefinancial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the Group’s and of the parent company’s affarrs as at
28 March 2015 and of the Group’s profit for the 52 week pencd then ended,

- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared In accordance with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdorm Generally Accepted
Accounting Practices, and

- thefinancial statements have been prepared n accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

The financial statements compnse the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Group and
parent company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity and the related notes
1t0 31 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in ther preparation 1s applcable law and IFRSs as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union and, as regards the parent company financial statements, applicable law and United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practices, as applied In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

Going concern
As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement on page 65 that the Group 1s a going concem
We confirm that

— we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements
IS appropriate, and

- we have not identified any matenal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group's abiiity to continue as a
going concem

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement 1s not a guarantee as to the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concem

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
The assessed nisks of matenal misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy,
the allocation of resources In the audit and directing the efforts of the engagerment team

Risk How the scope of our audrt responded to the nsk

Valuation of goodwill and intangible assets

At 28 March 2015, the net book value of goodwill and ntangible  We agreed the cash generating unit (CGU) groupings to

assets was £545m (2014 £448m) information reviewed by management to make decisions about
their business We also challenged the forecast cashflows used in
the model against histoncal performance and post period trading
data There are 10 CGU groups

Assessment of the carrying value of goodwill and intangible
assets 1s a significant nsk due to the quantum of the balance
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet There 1s also

a nsk relating to the key assumptions and assertions used We compared short-term growth rates aganst the short-term

by management to support therr assessment of the carrying historical achieved rates, which were adjusted for specific cutliers
value of goodwilt and intangible assets due 1o the number of We confirmed the agreed rates and challenged management on
judgments involved in determining recoverable amounts In the appropnateness of any outliers

assessing the carrying value, management has made a number
of key assumptions, including short-term and long-term growth
rates, discount rates, the forecast trading performance based on
management’s view of future business prospects and the use of
10 indwvidual cash generating units Woe agreed the Group discount rate was within a range of

external party calculations We also checked the sector specific
premiums agamst the pnor year comparatives and concluded on
any vanances using external nput data movements Furthermore,
we benchmarked the discount rates against published rates for the
external peer group

We recalculated the long-term growth rates cap at the weighted
average of market specific GDP growth rates, which we agreed to
external sources

The associated disclosure 1s included in notes 11 and 12 The

Audlit Committee has included therr assessment of this risk on

page 69 and it is included m the key accounting estimates and
wdgments on pages 106 and 107

We recalculated management’s sensitivity analysis and replaced
key assumptions with alternative scenario values This Includes
replacing the discount rate with the highest discount rate identified
In our benchmarking of peer group companies, capping the short-
term growth rates at FY15 growth levels and amending forecasts
to reflect any FY 15 adverse vanances of actual versus budget

We have checked the anthmetical accuracy of the impairment
model We also assessed whether the Annual Repont disclosure
includes specific growth and discount rates for those deemed to
be significant CGUs
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Halma plc

continued

Acquisition accounting

There were three acquisitions in the penod with a total
consideration of £97m The acquisitions were Rohrback
Cosasco Systems Inc (RCS), Advanced Electronics Limited
(Advanced), and Plasticspnizerel AG {(Plasticspnitzerei)

There 15 a nsk that acquisitions are not accounted for correctly
in Ine with IFRS 3 "Business combinations’ The risk relates to
the assumptions and assertions used by management to far
value the acquired assets and habilities Judgments include
the foracast future trading (an output of growth rates, useful
Iife and customer ratios) as well as future contingent
consideration payments including the treatment of future
amounts based on employment conditions

In determiring the fair value of ntangible assets acquired
management use a valuation model that incorporates their
assumptions in respect of forecast revenues, useful life, forecast
margins and discount rates These acquisiticn accounting
Judgments are key as the farr value of the acquired intangibls
assets are included in the balance sheet and the residual
goodwill balance 1s not amortised

Detarls of the acquisttions are disclosed in note 24 to the
accourts The Audit Committee has included their assessment
of this nsk on page 69 and it 1s included m the key accounting
estimates and judgments on pages 106 and 107

We obtaned the models for the acquisitions n the penod and
reviewed the farr value adjustments and the calculation of acquired
intangibles We agreed key opening balance sheet values to
supporting schedules and evidence where applicable

We challenged the key assumptions in the acquired intangibles
model including growth rates, useful ives and percentage of

key customers, plus churn rates We discussed these varables
with informed indmduals at the acquired entity and at head office,
obtaning appropnate supporting evidence We also agreed
some of the key customer order levels to historical supporting
data to prove validity and confirmed the chum rate calculation
completeness via agreeing histoncal orders placed by a selection
of key customers

We benchmarked the output of the acquisition models, including
the goodwill to ntangible asset ratio, to similar prnor year
acquisitions challenging any significant vanances and considenng
the business rationale

For histoncal acquisitions we compared the forecast contingent
consideration positions to post year end trading results, approved
budgets and histoncal levels of settlement

We agreed the underlying data in the contingent consideration
calculation to signed sale and purchase agreements and the
trading performance applied in the calculaton to the audited
entity’s tnal balance for the cument penod

We assessed whether management’s treatment of
contingent consideration payment arrangements for former
owners, as either additional purchase consideration or post-
acquisition remuneration, 1s appropnate by reviewing the sale
and purchase agreements

Defined benefit pension plan assumptions
At 28 March 2015 the net ratirement benefit habilty recogrised
in the Consolidated Balance Sheet was £67m (2014 £37m)

There 15 a nsk relating to judgments made by management
n valuing the defined benefit pension plans including the
use of key model input assumpthons such as discount rates,
mortality assumptions and inflation levels These vanables
can have a matenal impact in calcutating the gquantum of the
retirement benefit lability

Management utilise the services of third party actuanal acvisers
to determine their key assumphons

Detads of the defined benefit pension plans are disclosed in note
28 to the accounts The Audit Committee has included their
assessment of this nisk on page 69 and it 1s included in the key
accounting estimates and judgments on pages 106 and 107

We used our intemal actuanal experts to assess the assumptions
apphed in determining the pension cbligations, particularly given
recent market volatiity, and determined whether the key
assumptions are reasonable This included reviewing available yield
curves and nflation data to recalculate a reasonable range for the
key assumptions

We challenged management to understand the sensitivity of
changes in assumptions and quantify a range of reasonable rates
that could be used in ther calculaton We discussed the output of
sensitvity analysis with management and therr third party actuanal
advisers We checked the anthmetical accuracy of the pension
calculation model Additionally we benchmarked key assumptions
aganst other listed companies to check for any outliers in the
data used

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and
nct to express an opinion on Individual accounts or disclosures Our opimon on the financial statements 1s not modified with respect to
any of the nsks descnbed above, and we do not express an opinicn on these individual matters
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Our application of materiality

We define matenaiity as the magmtuds of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic decisions
of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced We use matenality both in planning the scope of our audit
work and in evaluating the results of our work

We determined matenality for the Group to be £6 6m (2014 £9 8m), which 1s 5% {2014 7%) of statutory pre-tax profit, and below 2%
(2014 below 3%) of equity The percentage change was to align more closely with comparable companies

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £132,000 (2014
£196,000), as well as differences below that threshold that, in cur view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds We also report
to the Audit Committee on disciosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements

An overview of the scope of our audit

Qur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including Group-wide controls,

and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level Based on that assessment, we focused our Group audit scope
primanly on the audit work for 52 out of 88 trading entities (2014 52 out of 81) The increase in total trading entities was a result of
the acquisitions In the penod, offset by the disposal of Monitor Elevator Products Inc 47 (2014 46) of these were subject to a full
audit, whilst the remaning five (2014 8) were subject to spectfied audit procedures where the extent of our testing was based on our
assessment of the nsks of matenal misstaternent and of the materniality of the Group's operations at those locations The full scope
audit entittes represent the pnncipal business units and account for 70% (2014 71%) of the Group's revenue, 73% (2014 73%) of
the Group's profit before tax and 78% (2014 78%) of the Group's net assets The specified audit procedures entities account for
3% (2014 3%) of the Group’s revenue, 0% (2014 0%) of the Group’s profit before tax and 0% (2014 2%) of the Group’s net assets
They were also selected to provide an approprate basis for undertaking audit work to address the risks of matenal misstatement
identified above Our audit work on the 52 entities was executed at levels of materiahty appicable to each individual entity which
were lower than Group matenality and ranged from £42,000 to £876,000 (2014 £36,000 to £1,025,000)

At the parent entity leve! we also tested the consolidation process and carned out analytical procedures to confirm our conclusion
that there were no significant nsks of matenal misstatement of the aggregated financial information of the remamning components
not subject to audit or specified audrt procedures These procedures also included, at a minimum, obtaining the bank reconciliations
and statements for all entities above a £132,000 thresheld For a selection of relevant entities, based on a nsk threshold cntenia, we
also performed revenue cut-off, subsequent cash receipt and inventory provision testing necessary to conclude on these balances

The Group audit team have established a programme of planned companent wisits that has been designed so that a senior member
of the Group audit team wisits each of the significant components where the Group audit scope was focused at least once every
three years and the most significant of them at least once a year (defined as contnbuting greater than 10% of Group profit or revenue)
In years when we do not wvisit a significant component we will include the component audit team in our team bnefing, discuss therr nsk
assessment, and review documentation of the findings from their work
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Halma pic
continued

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion

— the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report 1o be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Compantes Act
2006, and

- the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you i, in our opinion

— we have not receved all the Information and explanations we require {or our audt, or

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audtt have not been
receved from branches not visited by us, or

— the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters

Directors' remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report If In our opinton certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration have
not been made or the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited 1s not in agreement with the accounting records
and retums We have nothing to report ansing from these matters

Corporate Governance Statement
Under the Lusting Rules we are also required to review the part of the Corporate Govemance Statement relating to the company’s
comphance with 10 provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you i, in our opinion, information n the
Annual Report 18

- matenally Inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements, or

- apparently matenally ncorrect based on, or materigly inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Group acquired in the course of
perforrmung our audt, or

- otherwise misleading

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge acquired during the
audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the Annual Report is farr, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual
Report appropnately discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we consider should have been
disclosed We confirm that we have not identified any such inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilties Staternent, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for baing satisfied that they give a true and far view Our responsibility 1S 10 audit and express an opinion on the financial
statements n accordance with applicable faw and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
compty with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors We alse comply with Intemational Standard on Quality Control
1 (UK and Ireland) Our audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality contro! procedures are effective, understood and
applied Our quality controls and systems include our dedicated professional standards review team and independent partner reviews

This report 18 made solely to the company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures In the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error This includes an
assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Group's and the parent company’s circumstances and have
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of significant accounting estmates made by the directors,
and the overall presentation of the financial statements n addition, we read all the financial and non-financeal information n the Annual
Repoert to identify matenal nconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identfy any information that 1s apparently
matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit

If we become, aware of gny apparen} matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we congider the implications for our report
"%éeﬁz / .
Alexander Butterwo A {Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor
Reading, UK

11 June 2015

aR Halma nle Annnal Ranar and Aseaunts 2015




Consolidated Income Statement

52 weeks to 28 March 2015

52 weeks to 29 March 2014

Before Adjustments* Before  Adustments*
adjustments* {note 1) Total  adjustments” {note 1} Total

Notes £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 1 726,134 - 726,134 676,506 - 676,506
Operating profit 158,500 (21,437) 137,063 144,660 (1,089} 143,571
Share of results of associates 14 64 - 64 307 - 307
Profit/(loss) on disposal of
operations 29 - 1,430 1,430 - {483) (483)
Finance income 4 167 - 167 622 - 622
Finance expense 5 {5,113) - (5,113) (5,340} - {5,340}
Profit before taxation 6 153,618 (20,007} 133,611 140,249 (1,572} 138,677
Taxation 9 {35,706) 6,096 (29,610) (32,685} 335 (32,350)
Profit for the year
attnbutable to equity
shareholders 1 117,912 {13,911} 104,001 107,564 (1,237) 106,327
Earmings per share 2
From continuing operations
Basic 31.17p 27.49p 2847p 28 14p
Diluted 27.48p 2813p
Dividends in respect
of the year 10
Paid and proposed (£000) 45,252 42,235
Pard and proposed per share 11.96p 11 17p

* Adustments include the amortisation of acquired intangble assets, acquisition items, profit or loss on disposal of operations the effects of closure to future benefit
accrual of the defined benefit pension plans net of associated costs (pnor year only) and the associated taxaton thereon
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure

52weeksto 52 weeksto
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
Notes £000 £000

Profit for the year 104,001 106,327
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to the Income Statement:

Actuanal (losses)/gans on defined benefit pension plans 28 {34,795) 2,060
Tax relating to componeants of Other comprehensive ncome that will not be reclassified g 6,791 {1,570)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the Income Statement:

Effective portion of changes in farr value of cash flow hedges 26 71 489
Exchange gans/(losses) on translation of foreign operations and net investment hedge 30,800 {31,379)
Exchange losses transferred to Income Statement on disposal of operation 29 189 -
Tax relating to components of Other comprehensive iIncome that may be reclassified 9 (23) (129
Other comprehensive Income/(expense) for the year 3,133 (30,519)
Total comprehensive iIncome for the year attnbutable to equity shareholders 107,134 75,808

The exchange gain of £30,900,000 (2014 loss of £31,379,000) includes gains of £862,000 (2014 losses of £2,200,000) which relate

to net investment hedges as descnbed on page 110
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

28 March 29March [
2015 2014 8
Notes £000 £600 8
Non-current assets ;;;:
Goodwill 11 406,190 335,278 §
Other intangible assets 12 138,691 112,754
Property, plant and equipment 13 86,303 74,417
Interests in associates 14 4,236 5,088
Deferred tax asset 21 28,596 20,677
664,016 548,214 —
Current assets §
Inventones 15 79,734 71,034 3
Trade and other receivables 16 156,464 135,177 5
Tax recevable 20 172
Cash and bank balances 41,230 34,531
Derwvative financial instruments 26 1,069 496
278,517 241,410
Total assets 942,533 789,624
Current iabilities
Trade and other payables 17 102,717 88,291
Borrowings 18 1,705 4,136
Provisions 19 11,746 4,482
Tax habiities 12,405 11,340
Denvative financial instruments 26 636 167
129,209 108,416
Net current assets 149,308 132,994
Non-current liabilities
Bomrowings 18 140,419 104,891
Retirement benefit obligations 28 66,790 36,849
Trade and other payables 20 3,756 3,664
Provisions 19 1,549 6,777
Deferred tax liabilities 21 51,862 43,127
264,376 185,208
Total habilities 393,585 303,624
Net assets 548,948 486,000
Equity
Share capital 22 37,965 37,902
Share prermium account 23,608 22,778
Treasury shares (8,450} {7,054}
Capital redemption reserve 185 185
Hedging and translation reserve 45,500 14,363
Other reserves (4,073) {2,745}
Retained earnings 454,213 420,571
Shareholders’ funds 548,948 486,000

The financial statements of Halma pic, company nurnber 40932, were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2015
A J Wilhams K J Thompson

Director Director
X X
™
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Hedging
Share Capital and
Share premium Treasury redemption translation Other Retained
capital  account sharas reserve reserve  reserves  eamings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 29 March 2014 37,802 22,778 {7,054) 185 14,363 (2,745) 420,571 486,000
Profit for the year - - - - - - 104,001 104,001
Other comprehensive Income
and expense
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - 30,900 - - 30,900
Exchange losses transferred to Income
Statement on disposal of operation - - - - 189 - - 189
Actuanal losses on defined benefit pension
plans - - - - - -  (34,795) (34,795)
Effective portion of changes in fair valus
of cash flow hedges - - - - 71 - - 71
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive INncome - - - - (23) - 6,791 6,768
Total other comprehensive iIncome
and expense - - - - 31,137 - {(28,004) 3,133
Share options exercised 63 830 - - - - - 893
Dividends paid - - - - - -  (43,399) (43,399)
Share-based payments - - - - - {1,619 - (1,619)
Deferred tax on share-based payment
transactions - - - - - 291 - 291
Excess tax deductions related to share-
based payments on exercised options - - - - - - 1,044 1,044
Net movement in treasury shares - - {1,396) - - - - {1,396)
At 28 March 2015 37,965 23,608 {8,450) 185 45,500 (4,073) 454,213 548,948
At 30 March 2013 37,888 22,598 (4,534) 185 45,372 (1,484) 353,242 453,267
Profit for the year - - - - - - 108,327 106,327
Other comprehensive ncome
and expense
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations - - - - {31,379) - - (31,379
Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension
plans - - - - - - 2,080 2,060
Effective portion of changes in farr value
of cash flow hedges - - - - 499 - - 499
Tax relating to components of other
comprehensive income - - - - {129 - {1,570y  (1,699)
Total other comprehensive Income
and expense - - - - (31,009 - 490 (30,519}
Share options exercised 14 180 - - - - - 194
Dividends pasd - - - - - ~  {40,485) (40,485)
Share-based payments - - - - - (1,556) - (1.556)
Deferred tax on share-based payment
transactions - - - - - 295 - 295
Excess tax deductions related to share-
based payments on exercised options - - - - - - 997 997
Net movement in treasury shares - - (2,520} - - - - (2.520)
At 29 March 2014 37,902 22,778 (7,054) 185 14,363 (2,745) 420,571 486,000
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Treasury shares are ordinary shares in Halma plc purchased by the Company and held to fulfil the Company's obligations under

the performance share plan At 28 March 2015 the number of treasury shares held was 1,371,785 (2014 1,278,148) and therr
market value was £9,616,000 (2014 £7,394,000) The net increase In treasury shares of £1,396,000 (2014 increase of £2,520,000)
compnses the purchase of treasury shares of £6,843,000 (2014 £7,515,000) offset by the transfer to Other reserves of £5,447,000
(2014 £4,985,000)

The Hedging and translation reserve 1s used to record differences arsing from the retranslation of the financial statements
of foreign operations and the portion of the cumulative net change in the farr value of cash flow hedging instruments that are
deemed to be an effectrve hedge Other than a net credit of £202,000 (2014 credit of £123,000), all amounts at year end
relate to translation movements

The Capital redemption reserve was created on repurchase and cancellation of the Company’s own shares The Other reserves
represent the provision for the value of the equity-settled share option plans and performance share plan
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

S2weeksto 52 weeksto
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
Notes £000 £000
Net cash inflow from operating activities 25 137,231 121,538
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 13 {22,164) (15,838)
Purchase of computer software 12 {1,021) (1,529)
Purchase of other intangibles 12 (382) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,411 1,708
Development costs capitalised 12 (7,213) (5,196)
Interest receved 134 252
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired 24 (87,743) {16,685)
Disposal of operations, net of cash disposed 29 4,248 1,817
Net cash used in investing activities {112,730) (35,371)
Fimancing activities
Dwidends pad (43,399) {(40,485)
Proceeds from issue of share capital 893 194
Purchase of treasury shares (6,843) (7,515)
Interest paid (3,118) (2,716)
Proceeds from borrowings 25 68,962 7,498
Repayment of borrowings 25 (35,341) {57,791)
Net cash used In financing activities (18,846) (100,815)
Increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25 5,655 (14,648)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward 33,126 49,723
Exchange adjustments 744 (1,949}
Cash and cash equivalents carned forward 39,525 33,126
2015 2014
£000 £000
Reconciliation of net cash flow to movernent n net debt
Increase/(decreass) in cash and cash equivalents 5,655 (14,648)
Cash (infiow)/outflow from {drawdown)/repayment of borrowings (33,621) 50,293
Net debt acquired (468) -
Loan notes 1ssued” (657) 2,731)
Loan notes repaid* 2,731 2515
Exchange adjustments (38) 365
(26,398) 35,794
Net debt brought forward {74,496) {110,290}
Net debt camed forward (100,894) (74,496)

The £2,731,000 loan note 1ssued in the pnor year was convertad at par mto cash on 2 June 2014 New loan notes were issued totalling £657,000 on 14 May 2014
3 September 2014 and 26 November 2014 in respect of the acquistion of Advanced Electronics Limited (see note 24) Thesa loan notes, which attract interest at 1%,

are convertible into cash at par on each annversary of the acquistion date untl 14 May 2018
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Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) adopted for use in
the European Union (EU) and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS legislation and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
that are applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRS
and Intemational Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (FRIC) interpretations issued and effective at the time of prepanng
these accounts

The pnncipal Group accounting policies are explained below and have been applied consistently throughout the years ended
28 March 2015 and 29 March 2014 other than those noted below

The Group accounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except as descnbed below under the heading
‘Denvative financial mstruments and hedge accounting’

New Standards and Interpretations not yet applied

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the foliowing Standards and Interpretations that are potentially relevant to
the Group, and which have not been appled in these financial statements, were In 1ssue but not yet effective (and In some cases had
not yet been adopted by the EU)

— IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments  Classification and measurement” — effective for accounting penods beginring on or after
1 January 2018

- IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' — effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

— IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (amended) ‘Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture' — effective
for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

- 1AS 16 and IAS 38 (amended) ‘Clanfication of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation’ - effective for accounting
penods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

- |AS19 (amended) ‘Defined Benefit Plans Employee Contributions' - effective for accounting penods beginning on or after
1 Jduly 2014

—  Annual improvemeants 2010-2012 Cycle - effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, specifically
amendments to IFRS 2 'Share Based Payments' and IFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’

- Annua! Improvements 2011-2013 - effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 July 2014, spectfically amendments
to IFRS 3 '‘Business Combinations' and IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’

= Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle - effective for accounting penods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, specifically
amendments to IAS 34 ‘Intenm Financial Reporting’

- IFRIC 22 ‘Levies’ - effective for accounting pericds beginning on or after 17 June 2014

— Amendments to IAS 1 - effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016

— Armendments to IAS 27 'Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements’ ~ applicable for accounting penods beginning on or
after 1 January 2016

- Amendments to IFRS 11 ‘Accounting for Acquisitions of Interasts in Joint Operations’ — applicable for accounting penods
begnning on or after 1 January 2016

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of these Standards and Interpretations in future penods will have no matenal impact on
the financial statements of the Group except for IFRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’, which will mtroduce a number of changes in the
presentation of financal Instruments, and IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’, which may change the tming of
revenue recognition for some companies within the Group

New Standards and Interpretations applied for the first time
The following Standards with an effective date of 1 January 2014 have been adopted without any significant impact on the amounts
reported 1n these financial statements

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’

IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (amended) ‘Investment Entities’

IFRS 11 ‘Joint Arrangements’

AS 12 (amended) ‘Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets'

IAS 27 (revised) ‘Separate Financial Statements’

IAS 28 (revised) 'Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures'

IAS 32 (amended) ‘Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabihties’

IAS 39 (amended) ‘Novation of Dernvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting’

Key accounting policies
Below we set out our key accounting policies, with a st of all other accounting policies thereafter

Going concern

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial stalements, a high level of confidence that despite the current economic
uncertainty the Company has the necessary iquid resources to meet its habilities as they fall due and will be abls to sustamn its
business model, strategy and operations and rerman solvent for the foreseeable future Thus, the Directors continue to adopt the
going concem basis in preparnng these financial statements Further detail s contained on page 65
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Accounting Policies continued

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed as at the acquisition date, which is the date on which control
18 transferred to the Group The Group measures goodwill at the acquisitton date as

— the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus

- the recognised amount of any non-controling interests In the acquires, plus

- the fair valus of the existing equity interest in the acquiree, less

- the net recognised amount (generally far value) of the identifiable assets acquired and labilities assumed

Costs related to the acquisition, other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity secunties, are expensed as incurred
Any contingent consideration payable may be accounted for as either

a) Consideration transferred, which 1s recognised at farr value at the acquisition date If the contingent purchase consideration 1s
classified as equity, it 18 not remeasured and settlement 1s accounted for within equity Otherwise, subseguent changes to the farr
value of the contingent purchase consideration are recognised in the Consoldated Income Statement, or

b) Remuneration, which 1s expensed in the income Staterment over the associated penod of service An indicator of such treatment
includes when payments to employees of the acquired company are contingent on a post-acquisition avent, but may be
automatically forfeited on termination of employment

For acquisitions between 4 April 2004 {the date from which the financral statements were reported under IFRS) and 2 Apnl 2010,
goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the acquisiion, Including acquisition costs and the farr value of the net
identifiable assets acquired Goodwill 1Is not amortised, but 1s tested annually for impairment

Goodwill 1s recognised as an intangible asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheet Goodwill therefore includes non-identified
intangible assets including business processes, buyer-speciiic synergies, know-how and workforce-refated industry-specific
knowledge and technical skills Negative goodwill ansing on acguisitions would be recognised directly in the Consolidated Income
Statement On closure or disposal of an acquired business, goodwill would be taken nto account in determining the profit or loss
on closure or disposal

As psrmitted by IFRS 1, the Group elected not to apply IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' to acquistions pror to 4 Apnl 2004 in its
consohidated accounts As a result, the net book value of goodwill recognised as an intangible asset under UK GAAP at 3 Apnl 2004
was brought forward unadjusted as the cost of goodwill recogrised under IFRS at 4 Apnl 2004 subject to imparment testing on that
date, and goodwill that was wntten off to reserves prior to 28 March 1998 under UK GAAP will not be taken into account in
determining the profit or loss on disposal or closure of previously acquired businesses from 4 Apnl 2004 onwards

Intangible assets
{a) Product development costs
Research expenditure 1s wntten off in the financial year in which it 1s incurred

Development expenditure 1s written off in the financial year in which it Is incurred, unless 1t relates to the development of a new or
substantially improved product, 1s incurred after the technical feasibility and economic viability of the product has been proven and the
decision to complete the development has been taken, and can be measured reliably Such expenditure i1s capitalised as an intangble
asset in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost and 1s amortised through the Consolidated ihcome Statement on a straight-line basis
over its estimated economic bife of three years

(b) Acquired mtangible assets

An intangible resource acquired with a subsidiary undertaking 1s recognised as an intangible asset if 1t 1s separable from the
acquired business or anses from contractual or legal nghts, 1s expected to generate future economic benefits and its fair value
can be measured rebably Acquired intangible assets, comprising trademarks and customer relatonships, are amortised through
the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis over therr estimated economic Iives of between three and ten years

Pensions
The Group makes contnbutions to vanous pension plans, covenng the majonty of its employees

For defined benefit plans, the asset or liability recorded in the balance sheet 1s the difference between the far value of the plan’s
assets and the present valus of the defined obligation at that date The defined benefit obligation is calculated separately
for each plan on an annual basis by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they oceur, and are taken to Other comprehensive Income

Current and past service costs, along with the impact of any setflernents or curtalments, are charged to the Consolidated Income
Statement Interest on pension plans’ abilities are recognised within finance expense and the expected return on the plans’ assets
are recognised within finance income n the Consolidated Income Statement

Contnbutions to defined contnbution plans are charged to the Consalidated Income Statement when they fall due

Cntical accounting judgments and key sources of estmation uncertainty

The preparation of Group accounts 1n conformity with IFRS requires the Directors to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabiliies, ncome and expenses The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on histoncal expenences and vanous other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgments about carrying values of assets and habiities that

are not readily apparent from other sources Actual results may differ from these estimates
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The following four areas of key estmation uncertainty and cntical accounting judgment have been identified as having significant nsk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carmying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next financial year

Cntical accounting judgments

Goodwill impairment

Determining whether goodwill 15 imparred requires an estimation of the value in use of cash generating units (CGUs) to which goodwill
has been allocated In tum, the value In use calculation involves an estimation of the present value of future cash flows of CGUs The
future cash flows are based on annual budgets, as approved by the Board, 1o which the management’s expectation of market-share
and long-term growth rates are applied The present value 1s then calculated based on management’s judgment of future discount
rates The Board reviews these key assumptions (market-share, long-term growth rates, and discount rates) and the sensitivity
analysis around these assumptions Further detalls are provided in note 11

Intangible assets

IFRS 3 (revised) ‘Business Combinations’ requires that goodwill ansing on the acquisiton of subsidianes is capitahsed and included in
intangible assets IFRS 3 (revised) also requires the identification of other intangible assets at acquisition The assumptions involved

in valuing these intangible assets require the use of estimates and judgments which may differ from the actual outcorne

IAS 38 ‘Intangible Assets’ requires that development costs, ansing from the application of research findings or other technical
knowledge to a plan or design of a new or substantially improved product, are capitahised, subject to certan cntena being met
Determining the techrical feasibility and estimating the future cash flows generated by the products in development requires
Judgments which may differ from the actual outcome

The estimates and jJudgments made in relation to both acquired intangible assets and capitalised development costs, cover future
growth rates, expected inflation rates and the discount rate used

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Contingent consideration

Determining the value of contingent consideration recogrised as part of the acquisition of subsidianes requires assumptions

to determine the expected performance of the acquired business and the amount of contingent consideration that will therefore
become payable Initial estimates of expected performance are made by the Directors responsible for completing the acquisition

and form a key component of the financial due dilgence that takes place prior to completion Subsequent measurement of contingent
consideration 1s based on the Directors’ appraisal of the acquired business’ performance in the post-acquisition penod with any
required adjustments to the amount payable recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement as required under IFRS 3 Further
details are provided in note 24

Defined benefit penston plan liahilities

Determining the valus of the future defined benefit obhigation requires judgment in respect of the assumptions used to calculate
present values These nclude future mortalty, discount rate, nflation and salary increases Management makes these judgments n
consultation with an independent actuary Detalls of the Judgments made in calculating these transactions are disclosed in note 28

Other accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The Group accounts include the accounts of Halma plc and all of its subsidiary companies made up to 28 March 2015, adjusted to
eliminate ntra-Group transactions, balances, ncome and expenses The results of subsidiary companies acquired or discontinued are
included from the month of their acquisttion or to the month of their discontinuation

Investments in associates

An associate 1S an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint control, through
participation n the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee Significant influence 1s the power to partictpate in the
tinancial and operating policy decisions of the investee but without controt or joint control over those policies

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of
accounting Investments in associates are carried in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition

changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the value of Indvidual investments Losses

of an associate in excess of the Group’s Interest In that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, n substance, form part
of the Group’s net Investment in the associate) are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
cbligations or made payments on behalf of the associate

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the farr values of the identifiable net assets of the associate at the
date of acquisition 1s recognised as goodwill The goodwill is ncluded within the carrying amount of the Investment and 1s assessed
for imparment as part of that investment Any deficiency of the cost of acquisition below the Group's share of the farr values of the
identfiable net assets of the associate at the date of acquisition 1 @ discount on acquisition) 1s credited in profit or loss in the year
of acqusition

Where a Group company transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’'s
interest in the relevant associate Losses may provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred in which case appropnate
provision 1 made for impairment
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Accounting Policies continued

Other intangible assets

(a) Computer software

Computer software that i1s not integral to an item of property, plant or equipment Is recognised separately as an intangible asset, and
1s amortised through the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis over its estimated economic Iife of between three
and five years

(b} Other intangibles
Other intangibles are amortised through the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-lne basis over ther estimated sconomic
Ives of between three and five years

Impairment of non-current assets

All non-current assets are tested for imparment whenever events or circumstances indicate that ther carrying value may be impatred
Additionally, goodwill and capitalised development expenditure relating to a product that 1s not yet in full production are subject to an
annual impairment test

An imparment loss 1s recogrisad n the Consolidated Incorme Statement to the extent that an asset’s carrying value exceeds Its
recoverable amount, which represents the higher of the asset's net realisable valus and its value nuse An asset’s value In use
represents the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset or from the cash generating unit to
which it relates The present value 1s calculated using a discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time
value of money and the nsks specific to the asset concemed

Impairment losses recogrised (n previous penods for an asset other than goodwill are reversed If there has been a change Iin the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the carmmying amount of the asset does not
exceed its carrying amount had no imparrment loss been recognised In previous penods Impairment losses in respect of goodwil!
are not reversed

Segmental reporting

An operating segment 1s a distnguishable component of the Group that 1s engaged in business activties from which it may eam
revenues and iIncur expenses, and whose operating results are reviewed regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker {the Chisf
Executive) to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segrment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial nformation 1s avallable

Reportable segments are operating segments that either meet the thresholds and conditions set out In IFRS 8 or are considered
by the Board to be appropriately designated as reportable segments Segment result represents operating profits and includes an
allocation of Head Office expenses Segment result excludes tax and financing tems Segment assets compnse goodwill, other
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment (excluding land and buildings), inventories, trade and other recewables Segment
llabiities compnise trade and other payables, provisions and other payables Unallocated stems represent land and bulldings,
corporate and deferred taxation balances, defined benefit plan labilities, contingent purchase consideration, all components

of net cash/borrowings and dervative financial iInstruments

Inventornies

Inventories and work In progress are included at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost Is calculated either on a ‘first In,
first out’ or an average cost basis and includes direct matenals and the appropnate proportion of production and other overheads
consdered by the Directors to be attributable to brnging the inventones to therr location and condition at the year end Net
realisable value represents the estimated seling price less all estmated costs to complete and costs to be incurred in marketing,
seling and distnbution

Revenue

Revenue represents sales, less retums, by subsidiary companies to external customers excluding value added tax and other sales
related taxes Transactions are recorded as revenue when the delivery of products or performance of services takes place in
accordance with the contracted terms of sale

Revenue on long-term contracts 15 recognised while the contracts are in progress Revenue 1s recognised proportionally to the stage
of completion of the contract, based on the far value of goods and services prowded to date. taking nto account the sign-off of
milestone delivery by customers When 1t 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss
1S recognised as an expense immediately

Adjusting items

When items of ncome or expense are matenal and they are relevant to an understanding of the entity’s financial performance,
they are disclosed separately within the financial statements Such adjusting items include matenal costs or reversals ansing from
acquisittons or disposals of businesses, including acquisition costs, matenal creation or reversals of provisions related to changes
in estimates for contingent consideration on acquisition, amortisation of acquired intangble assets, and other ong-off items that
may arse
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Taxation

Taxation compnses current and deferred tax Tax ts recognised in the Consolidated Incorme Statement except to the extent that it
relates to tems recognised directly in Shareholders' funds, in which case it too is recognised 1in Shargholders’ funds Current tax s the
expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or subseqguently enacted at the balance sheet date,
along with any adjustment to tax payable In respect of previous years Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the
Consolidated Income Statement because 1t excludes items that are never taxable or deductible

Deferred tax I1s provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and llabiliies for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for taxaton purposes and 1s accounted for using the balance shest lability method, apart from
the following differences which are not provided for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recogrution of assets or
labiities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and differences relating to nvestrments in subsidianes to the extent they
will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future The amount of deferred tax provided 1s based on the expected manner of
realisation or settiement of the carrying amounts of assets and habilities, using tax rates and laws, which are expected to apply
in the year when the lability 1s settled or the asset 1s realised Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that recovery
IS probable

Foreign currencies

The Group presents its accounts in Stering  Transactions in foreign cumencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of
the transaction Monetary assets and liabilties denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates
prevailing at that date Any gain or loss ansing from subsequent exchange rate movements 1s included as an exchange gain or 10sSs In
the Consolidated Income Statement

Net assets of overseas subsidiary compares are expressed in Sterling at the rates of exchange nuling at the end of the financial
year, and trading results and cash flows at the average rates of exchange for the financial year Goodwill ansing on the acquisition
of a foreign business 18 treated as an asset of the foreign entity and 1s transtated at the rate of exchange ruiing at the end of the
financial year Exchange gans or losses arising on these translations are taken to the Hedging and translation reserve within
Shareholders’ funds

In the event that an overseas subsidiary i1s disposed of or closed, the profit or loss on disposal or closure will be determined after
taking into account the cumulative translation difference held within the Hedging and translation reserve attributable to that subsidiary
As permitted by IFRS 1, the Group has elected to deem the Hedging and transtation to be E£ril at 4 Apnl 2004 Accordingly, the

profit or loss on disposal or closure of foreign subsidianes will not include any currency translation differences which arose before

4 Apnl 2004

Denvative financial instruments and hedge accounting
The Group enters into denvative financial INstruments to manage Its exposure to foreign exchange rate nsk using forward exchange
contracts Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 26

Denvative financial nstruments are classified as fair value through profit and loss (held for trading) unless they are in a designated
hedge relationship

Dervatives are initially recognised at farr value at the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
therr farr value at each balance sheet date The resulting gain or loss 1s recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement, unless the
dervative 1s designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in the Consolidated income
Statement depends on the nature of the hedge relatonship The Group designates certain denvatives as hedges of highly probable
forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency nsk of firm commitments {cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in
foreign operations

A dernvative with a positive farr value s recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a negative fair value Is recognised as
afinancial liabiity A dervative 1s presented as a non-current asset or a non-current hability f the remaining matunty of the instrument
Is more than 12 months and it 1s not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months Other denvatives are presented as current

assets or current liabiities
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Accounting Policies continued

Cash flow hedge accounting
The Group designates certain hedging instruments as cash flow hedges

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relaticnship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking varous hedge transactions Furthermore, at the
inception of the hedge and on an engoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument has been or 1s expected
to be highly effective in offsetting changes in far values or cash flows of the hedged item

Note 26 sets out details of the far values of the dervative instruments used for hedging purposes and the movements in the hedging
reserve In equity

The effective portion of changes in the farr value of dervatives that are desighated and qualify as cash flow hedges I1s recogrised in
Other comprehensive Income The gan or loss relating to the ineffective portion as a result of being over hedged 1s recognised
mmediately in the Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts previously recognised in Other comprehensive iIncome and accumulated in equity are reclassified to the Consofidated
Income Staterment In the penods when the hedged itern 1s recognised n the Consohdated Income Staterment However, when the
forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial lability, the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the non-financial
asset or non-financial iability

Hedge accounting 1s discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or Is sold,
terminated or exercised, or no longer qualfies for hedge accounting Any gain or loss recogrised in Other comprehensive income

at that time s accumulated in equity and 1s recognised, when the farecast transaction 1s ulimately recognised, in the Consolidated
Income Statement When a forecast transaction 1s no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumutated in equity 1s recognised
immediately in the Consolidated Income Statement

Net investment hedge accounting

The Group uses foreign currency denominated borrowings as a hedge against the translation exposure on the Group's net investment
n overseas companies Where the hedge is fully effective at hedging the vanability in the net assets of such companies caused by
changes in exchange rates, the changes in value of the borowings are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and
accumulated in the Hedging and translation reserve The ineffective part of any change In value caused by changes in exchange rates
1s recognised In the Consolidated Income Staternent

Employee share plans
Share-based incentives are provided to employees under the Group's share incentive plan, the share option plans and the
performance share plan

(a) Share incentive plan

Awards of shares under the share incentive plan are made to quahfying employees depending on salary and service cntena The
shares awarded under this plan are purchased in the market by the plan’s trustees at the time of the award, and are then held n trust
for a minimurm of three years The costs of this plan are recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement over the thres-year vesting
periods of the awards

(b} Share option plans

All granis of options under the 1999 company share option plan are equity settled, and so, as permitted by IFRS 1, the provisions
of IFRS 2 ‘Share-Based Payment’ have been applied only to options awarded on or after 7 November 2002 which had not vested
at 3 Apn! 2005

The farr value of awards under this plan has been measured at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model and wili not be
subsequently remeasured The fair value 1s charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the expected
vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of sharas that will ultmately vest and adjusted for the effect of non-market-based
vesting condtions The comesponding credit 1s to Shareholders’ funds

No further awards will be made under the share option plan

{c) Performance share plan
On 3 August 2005 the share option plan was replaced by the performance share plan

Awards under thus plan are partly equity-settled and partly cash-settled, and are subject to both market-based and non-market-based
vesting cntena

The fair value of the equity-settled portion at the date of grant 1s established by using an appropnate simulation method to reflect the
likehhood of market-based performance conditions being met The farr value 1s charged to the Consolidated Incoms Statement on a
straght-line basis over the vesting penod, with appropnate adjustments being made during this pened to reflect expected and actual
forfeitures arising from the non-market-based performance condiions only The corresponding credit is to Shareholders’ funds

For the cash-settled portion, a liabiiity equal to the portion of the services receved is recognised at the current farr value determined at
each balance sheet date
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Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it 1s probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation

The amount recognised as a provision Is the best estimate of the consideration required to setile the present obligation at the balance
sheet date, taking Into account the nsks and uncertanties surrounding the obligation Where a provision 1s measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrymg amount 1s the present value of the cash flows

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a prowision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable 1s recogrised as an asset If it 15 virtually certain that resmbursement will be receved and the amount of the recevable
can be measured reliably

Deferred government grant income

Government grant ncome that 1s inked to capital expenditure 1s deferred to the Consolidated Batance Sheet and credited to the
Consolidated income Statement over the Iife of the related asset In addition, the Group clams research and development expenditure
¢redits ansing on gualfying expenditure in ts UK-based subsidianes and shows these ‘above the lIne’ in Operating profit Where the
credits anse on expenditure that 1s capitalised as part of Intemally generated capitalised development costs, the mcome 1s deferred to
the Consolidated Balance Sheet and credited to the Consolidated Income Statement over the life of the related asset in line with the
policy stated above

Operating profit
Operating profit 15 stated after charging restructunng costs but before the share of results of associates, profit or loss on disposal of
operations, finance income and finance costs

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances, deposits with an initial matunity of less than three months, and bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand

Dividends
Divdends payable to the Company's shareholders are recognised as a llability in the penod n which the distrbution 1s approved by
the Company's shareholders

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and egquipment 1s stated at histoncal cost less prowvisions for imparment and depreciation which, with the exception
of freshold land which 1s not depreciated, 1s provided on a straight-line basis over each asset’s estmated economic Iife The pnncipal
annual rates used for this purpose are

vodey 21Bajzig |

sauewanoy | |

Freehold property 2%
Leasehold properties

Long leases {more than 50 years unexpired) 2%
Short leases (less than 50 years unexpired) Period of lease
Plant, equipment and vehicles 8% to 33 3%
Leases

Leases that confer nghts and obligations similar to those that attach to owned assets are classified as finance leases, of which the
Group has none All other leases are classified as operating leases

Operating lease rentals, and any incentives recervable, are charged to the Consolidated Income Statement on a straght-line basis
over the lease term
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Segmental analysis

Sector analysis

The Group has four main reportable segments (Process Safety, Infrastructure Safety, Medical, and Envircnmental & Analysis),
which are defined by markets rather than product type Each segment includes businesses with similar operating and marketing
charactenstics These segments are consistent with the intemal reporting as reviewed by the Chief Executive

Segment revenue and results

Revenue (all continuing
operations)

52 weeksto 52 weeksto
28 March 29 March

2015 2014

£000 £000
Process Safety 158,372 126,704
Infrastructure Safety 234,063 220,254
Medical 169,333 163,181
Environmental & Analysis 164,412 166,547
Inter-segmental sales (46) (180)
Revenue for the year 726,134 676,506

Inter-segmental sales are charged at prevailing market prices and have not been disclosed separately by segment as they are not
considered matenal The Group does not analyse revenue by preduct group and has no matenal revenue denved from the rendenng
of services

Profit (all continuing

operations)
52weeksto 52 weeksto
28 March 29 March
2015 2014
£000 £000

Segment profit before allocation of adjustments*
Process Safety 44,772 34,878
Infrastructure Safety 49,992 44,445
Medical 45,385 41,826
Environmental & Analysis 27,403 31,740

167,652 152,889

Segment profit after allocation of adjustments*

Process Safety 40,280 34,126

Infrastructure Safety 49,585 45010

Medical 31,981 41,554

Environmental & Analysis 25,699 27,574

Segment profit 147,545 148,263

Central administration costs excluding the effects of closure to future benefit accrual of the defined

beneft pension plan net of associated costs™ (8,988) (7,822)
Effects of closure to future benefit accrual of the defined benefit pension plan net of associated costs™ - 3.054

Net finance expense (4,946) {4,718}
Group profit before taxation 133,611 138,677

Taxation (29,610) (32,350)
Profit for the year 104,001 106,327

* Adustments nclude the amortisation of acquired mtangible assets, acquisition tems profit or loss on disposal of operations, the effects of closure to future benefit
accrual of the defined benefil pension plans net of associated costs (pnor year only), and the associated taxation thereon

The defined benefit plan reterred to here 1s the Halma Group Pension Plan anfy, which 15 not practical to allocate by sector (see adjustments tabla on page 113 for
more details)
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The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies Acquistion transaction costs,
release of tar value adjustments to inventory and adjustments to contingent consideration (collectively ‘acquisition items’) are
recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement Segment profit, before these acquisition iterms and the other adjustments, 18
disclosed separately above as this 1s the measure reported to the Chief Executive for the purpose of allocation of resources and

assessment of segment performance
These adjustments are analysed as follows

2015
Acquisition items
Total
Amortisation Release of amortisation
of acquired Adjustments farr value charge and Disposal of
ntangible Transaction to contingent adjustments acquisibon operations
assets costs constderation to inventory tems {note 29) Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Process Safety (3,026) (928) - (538) (4,492) - (4,492)
Infrastructure Safety (765) {486) {102) {130) {1,483) 1,076 (407)
Medical {12,156) (21) {1,581} - (13,758) 354 {13,404)
Environmental & Analysis (4,007) - 2,303 - {1,704) - (1,704)
Total Segment & Group {19,954) (1,435) 620 {668) (21,437) 1,430 (20,007)

The transaction costs arose mainly on the acquisitions (see note 24) of Rohrback Cosasce Systems Inc (RCS), Advanced Electronics
Limited (Advanced) and Plasticspritzerel AG, which were acquired on 30 May 2014, 14 May 2014 and 2 May 2014 respectively

The charge of £1,581,000 to contingent consideration related mainly to a revision in the estimate of the remaining MST payable from
$6,504,000 to $9,061,000 The £2,303,000 credit to contingent consideration related to a rewision in the estimate of the remaining
ASL payable from £2,500,000 to £197,000 The release of farr value adjustments to inventory anses from revaiuing the inventory of

RCS and Advanced at acquisition

2014
Acquisition items
Effects of
closure to
future benefit
Total accrual of
Amortsation amortisation defined
of acquired Adjustments charge and Disposal of benefit
intangtble Transaction o contingent acquisition operations pension
assets costs  consideration items {note 29) plans* Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £2000
Process Safety (598) - (17) 615) (138) - (753)
Infrastructure Safety {144) (140) - (284) (45) 894 565
Medical (12,530) 102 12,456 28 (300) - (272)
Environmental & Analysis 4,243) (53) 130 (4,166) - - {(4,166)
Total Segment (17,515} (81) 12,569 (5,037} (483) 894 {(4,626)
Central adrministration costs - - - - - 3,054 3,054
Total Group (17.515) @1 12,568 (5.037) (483} 3,948 (1,572)

* The effects of closure to future benefit accrual of defined benefit pension plans, which were gains of £894,000 and £3,054,000, arose on the closure of the
Apcllo Pension and Life Assurance Plan and Halma Group Pension Plan respectively |t 1s not practical to apportion the latter gain by Segment

The £12,456,000 credit to contingent consideration related manly to a revision in the estimate of the MicroSurgical Technology, Inc
payable from US$25,000,000 to US$6,504,000
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Segmental analysis continued
Segment assets and habilities

Assets Liabilshes
Betfore goodwill, interasts [n assoclates and acquired intangible assets are 2015 2014 2015 2014
allocated to specific segment assets/liabilities £000 £000 £000 £000
Process Safety 65,141 50,518 21,842 18,463
Infrastructure Safety 97,424 88,688 33,112 28,896
Medical 62,981 54,428 23,947 18,457
Environmental & Analysis 72,599 68,866 26,288 26,413
Total segment assets/liabilities excluding goodwill, interests in
assoclates and acquired intangible assets 298,145 262,500 105,189 82,229
Goodwill 406,190 335,278 - -
Interests N associates 4,236 5,088 - -
Acquired ntangible assets 119,541 96,955 - -
Total segment assets/habilities including goodwill, interests in
associates and acquired intangible assets 828,112 699,821 105,189 92,229

Assets Liabilihes
After goodwill, interests in associates and acquired intangible assets are 2015 2014 2015 2014
allocated to specific segment assets/labilities £000 £000 £000 £000
Process Safety 154,677 68,428 21,842 18,463
Infrastructure Safety 191,351 170,540 33,112 28,806
Medical 286,990 275,109 23,947 18,457
Environmental & Analysis 194,744 185,744 26,288 26,413
Total segment assets/habilities mcluding goodwill
and acquired intangible assets 827,762 699,821 105,189 92,229
Cash and bank balances/borrowings 41,230 34,531 142,124 108,027
Denvative financial nstruments 1,069 496 636 167
Other unallocated assets/labilibes 72,472 54,776 145,636 102,201
Total Group 942,533 789,624 393,585 303,624

Segment assets and liabilities, excluding the allocation of goodwill, nterests in associates and acqured intangble assets, have been
disclosed separately above as this 1s the measure reported to the Chief Executive for the purpose of monitonng segment performance
and allocating resources between segments Other unallocated assets include land and buldings and tax assets, and unallocated
labilities include contingent purchase consideration, retirement benefit provisions and tax liabilities

Other segment information

Additions to Depraciation and

non-current assets amortisation

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

Process Safety 71,846 4,403 6,743 3.872
Infrastructure Safety 28,995 10311 8,490 6,458
Medical 13,403 4575 15,509 15,742
Environmental & Analysis 5,499 6209 9,708 9,733
Total segment additions/dapreciation and amortisation 119,743 25,498 40,450 35,805
Unallocated 513 354 461 505
Total Group 120,256 25852 40,911 36,310

Non-current asset additions compnse acquired and purchased goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment
An mparrment loss of £236,000 was recognised dunng the year within Environmental & Analysis (2014 i)
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Geographic information

The Group's revenue from external customers (by location of customer) and tts non-current assets by geographic location are
detalled below

Revenue by destinaton Non-current assets

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

United States of Amenca 223,374 214,493 72,766 63,996
Mainland Europe 167,363 163,707 29,836 28,134
United Kingdom 138,312 127,877 526,953 429,923
Asta Pacific 116,842 111,572 5,828 5,429
Africa, Near and Middle East 44,037 33,037 - -
Other countnes 36,206 25,820 a7 55

726,134 676,506 635,420 527,537

Non-current assets compnise goodwill, other ntangible assets, investments in associates and property, plant and eguipment

Information about major customers
The Group had no revenue from a single customer, which accounts for more than 2% of the Group’s revenue

2 Earnings per ordinary share

Basic eamings per ordinary share are calculated using the weighted average of 378,328,541 shares in 1ssue dunng the year (net

of shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares) (2014 377,805,248) Diluted earmnings per ordinary share are
calculated using the wetghted average of 378,475,804 shares (2014 378,035,662), which includes diutive potential ordinary shares
of 147,263 (2014 230,414) Ditutive potentrat ordiary shares are calculated from those exercisable share options where the exercise
price 1s less than the average price of the Company's ordinary shares during the year

Adjusted earnings are calculated as earnings from continuing operations excluding the amortisation of acquired intangible assets,
acquisition tems, profit or loss on disposal of operations, the effects of closure to future benefit accrual of the defined benefit pension
plans net of associated costs {pnor year only), and the associated taxation thereon The Directors consider that adjusted earnings
represent a mora conststent measure of underying performance A reconciiation of earnings and the effect on basic eamings per
share figures 1s as follows

Per ordinary share

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 pence pence
Earnings from continuing operations 104,001 106,327 27 49 2814
Cessation of DB pension accrual - (3,040) - {0 80)
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets (after tax) 14,121 11,820 3.73 314
Acguisition fransaction costs (after tax) 1,423 M 0.38 002
Release of far value adjustments to inventory (after tax) 474 - 0.13 -
Adjustments to contingent consideration (after tax) (1,162) {8,104) (0.31) (2 15)
(Profit)/loss on disposal of operations (after tax) (945) 470 (0 25) 012
Adjusted earmings 117,912 107,564 31.17 28 47
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Notes to the Accounts continued

3 Non-GAAP measures

The Board uses certain non-GAAP measures 1o help it effectively monitor the performance of the Group These measures Include
Retum on Total invested Capital, Retum on Capital Employed, Organic growth at constant currency, Adjusted operating profit and

Adjusted operating cash flow
Return on Total Invested Capital

{Restated)*
2015 2014
£000 £000
Post-tax profit before adjustments** 117,912 107,564
Total sharehclders’ funds 548,948 486,000
Add back retrement benefit obligations 66,790 36,849
Less assoclated deferred tax assets {13,085) (7.372)
Cumulative amortisation of acquired intangible assets 83,958 61,324
Histoncal adjustments to goodwil*** 89,549 89,549
Total Invested Capital 776,160 666,350
Average Total Invested Capital 721,256 645,819
Return on Total Invested Capital (ROTIC) 16 3% 16 7%
Return on Capital Employed
(Restated)”
2015 2014
£000 £000
Operating profit before adjustments**, but after share of results of associates 158,564 144,867
Computer software costs within intangible assets 2,835 2,810
Capitalised development costs within intangible assets 15,865 12,381
Other intangibles within Intangible assets 450 8
Property, plant and equipment 86,303 74417
Inventones 79,734 71,034
Trade and other receivables 156,464 135177
Trade and other payables (102,717) (88,281)
Current provisions (11,746) (4,482)
Net tax llabilities (12,385) (11,168)
Non-current trade and other payables (3,756) (3,564)
Non-current provisions (1,549) 6,777)
Add back contingent purchase consideration 9,650 7.562
Capital Employed 219,148 188,707
Average Capital Employed 204,428 189,204
Return on Capital Employed (ROCE) 77.6% 76 6%

* Tha ROTIC and ROCE measures are now expressed as a percentage of the average of the current yaar's and prior year’s Total invested Capital and Caprtal Ernployed
ragpectively Using an average as the denominator 1s considered to be maore representative The 2013 Total invested Cepital and Capital Employed balances wera

£625,287,000 and £188 701 000 raspectvely

accrual of the defined benelit pension plans net of associated costs (pnor year only)
** Includes goadwill amortised pror o 3 Apnil 2004 and goodwil taken 1o reserves
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Organic growth at constant currency

Organic growth at constant cumency measures the change in revenue and profit from continuing Group operations The effect

of acquisitions made during the financial year has been equalised by adjusting the current year results for pro-rated contributions
based on their revenues and profits before taxation at the dates of acquisition The results of disposals made in the financial year
have been adjusted from the pnor year reported revenue and profit before taxation The effects of currency changes are removed
through restating the current year revenue and profit before taxation at the pnor year exchange rates Organic growth at constant

currency has been calculated as follows

Revenue Adjusted profit* before taxation
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 % growth £000 £000 % growth
Continuing operations 726,134 676,506 153,618 140,249
Acquired and disposed revenue/profit (35,489) 6,441) (7,394) (983)
QOrganic growth 690,645 670,065 31% 146,224 139,266 5.0%
Constant curency adjustment 12,114 - 3,071 -
Organic growth at constant currency 702,759 670,085 4 9% 149,295 139,266 72%

* Adustments include the amortisation of acquired intangble assets, acquistion items, profit or loss on disposal of operations, and the effects of closure to future benefit

accrual of the dafined benefit pension plans net of associated costs (pnor year onhy)

Adjusted operating profit
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2045 2014

£000 £000
Operating profit 137,063 143,571
Add back
Acquisition items 1,483 (12,478)
Effects of closure to future benefit accrual of defined benefit pension plans - (3,948)
Amortisation of acquired ntangible assets 19,954 17,515
Adjusted operating profit 158,500 144,660
Adjusted operating cash flow

2015 2014

£000 £000
Net cash from operating activities {note 25) 137,231 121,538
Add back
Taxes pad 30,824 28,351
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1,411 1,708
Less
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {22,164) {15,838)
Purchase of computer software and other intangibles (1,403) {1,529)
Development costs capitalised (7,213) (5,196)
Adjusted operating cash flow 138,686 129,034
Cash conversion % (adjusted operating cash flow/adjusted operating profit) 87% 89%
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Notes to the Accounts continued

4 Finance income

2015 2014
£000 £000
Interest recevable 134 252
Far value movement on denvative financial Instruments a3 370
167 622
5 Finance expense
2015 2014
£000 £000
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts 3,090 2,691
Amortisation of finance costs 530 599
Net interest charge on penston plan labilities 1,419 1,875
Other interest payable 28 25
5,067 5,190
Unwinding of discount on provisions 46 150
5,113 5,340
6 Profit before taxation
Proftt before taxation comprises
2015 2014
£000 £000
Revenue 726,134 676,508
Direct materals/direct labour (257,231) (240,584)
Production overhead (85,641) (81,403)
Selling costs (98,788) (87,385)
Distnbution costs {15,868) (15,448)
Administrative expenses {131,543) (108,115)
Operating profit 137,063 143,571
Share of results of associates 64 307
Profit/(loss) on disposal of operations 1,430 (483)
Net finance expense {4,946) (4,718)
Profit before taxation 133,611 138,677

Included within administrative expenses are the amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquisition items, and the effects of closure

to future benefit accrual of the defined benefit pension plans (prior year only)
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2015 2014 [g
£000 £000 ]
Profit before taxation is stated after g
charging/{crediting): 2
Depreciation 14,005 13,625 g
Amortisation 26,670 22,685
Impairrnent of ntemally generated capitalised
development costs 236 -
Research and development® 27,394 26,929
Foreign exchange (gan)/1oss (1,765) 1,385 “—5
(Profiti/loss on disposal of cperations (1,430} 483 g
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and é
computer software {590} (26) g
Cost of nventories recognised as an expense 348,170 326,917
Staff costs (note 7) 199,763 180,905
Auditor’s remuneration Audit services to the Company 162 159
Audit of the Company’s subsidianes 641 600
Total audt fees 803 759
Intenm agreed upon procedures 18 20
Tax compliance services - 1
Tax advisory services 133 11
Other services 1 18
Total non-audit fees 152 50
Audit of Group pension plan 20 15
Total fees 975 824
Operating lease rents Property 8,888 8,027
Other 921 942
* Afurther £7,213,000 (2014 £5,196,000) of development costs has been captalised in the year See note 12
7 Employee information
The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) by entity location was
2015 2014
Number Number
United States of Amenca 1,609 1,538
Manland Eurcpe 797 794
United Kingdom 1,895 1,723
Asia Pacific 1,011 936
Other countnes 16 8
5,328 4,989
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Notes to the Accounts continued

7 Employee information continued

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Drirectors) by employee location was

2018 2014
Number Number
United States of Amenca 1,491 1,512
Mainland Europe 770 782
United Kingdom 1,947 1,660
Asia Pacific 1,064 994
Other countnes 56 51
5,328 4,999

Group employee costs comprise
2015 2014
£000 £000
Wages and salares 164,581 148,286
Social security costs 23,429 21,428
Pension costs {note 28) 7,117 6,695
Share-based payment charge {note 23) 4,636 4,496
199,763 180,905

8 Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors 1S set out on pages 81 to 90 within the Remuneration Report described as being audited and forms

part of these financial statements

Directors' remuneration comprises

2015 2014

£000 £000

Wages, salanes and fees 3,063 2,671
Pension costs 12 56
Share-based payment charge 1,233 1,227
4,308 3,954
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9 Taxation
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2015 2014
£000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 21% (2014 23%) 9,397 9,465
Overseas taxation 24,064 20,872
Adjustments in respect of pnor years 62 {492)
Total current tax charge 33,523 29,845
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of timing differences {4,075) 2,626
Adjustments In respect of prior years 162 {(121)
Total deferred tax {credity/charge (3,913) 2,505
Total tax charge recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement 29,610 32,350
Reconcilation of the effective tax rate
Profit before tax 133,611 138,677
Tax at the UK corporation tax rate of 21% (2014 23%) 28,058 31,896
Overseas tax rate differences 8,047 5,665
Permanent differences (6,719) (4,598)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 224 {613)
29,610 32,350
Effective tax rate after adjustments” 22.2% 23 3%
2015 2014
£000 £000
Profit before tax and adjustments” 153,618 140,249
Total tax charge on profit before adjustments® 35,706 32,685
Effective tax rate 23.2% 23 3%

* Adjustments include the amortisation of acquired ntangible assets, acquistion tems,
accruai of the defined beneit pension plans net of associated costs (pnor ysar only)

profit or loss on disposal of operations, the effects of closure to future benefit
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Notes to the Accounts continued

9 Taxation continued
in addition to the amount charged to the Consolidated Income Statement, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised
directly in the Consoldated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

2015 2014
£000 £000

Deferred tax (note 21)
Retirement benefit obligations (6,791) 1,570
Short-term tirming differences 23 129
(6,768) 1,609

In addiion to the amounts charged to the Consolidated Income Statement and the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised directly in equity

2015 2014
£000 £000
Current tax
Excess tax deductions related to share-based payments on exercised options 1,044 897
Deferred tax (note 21}
Change In estimated excess tax deductions related to share-based payrments 291 285
1,335 1,282
10 Dividends
Per ordinary share
2015 2014 2015 2014
pence pence £000 £000
Amounts recognised as distnbutions to shareholders In the year
Final dwidend for the year to 29 March 2014 (30 March 2013) 6.82 6 37 25,799 24,049
Internm dividend for the year to 28 March 2015 (29 March 2014) 4.65 435 17,600 16,436
11.47 1072 43,399 40,485
Dividends declared in respect of the year
Interim dividend for the vear to 28 March 2015 (29 March 2014) 4.65 4 35 17,600 16,436
Proposed final dividend for the year to 28 March 2015 (29 March 2014) 7.3 6 82 27,652 25,799
11.96 1117 45,252 42235

The proposed final dvidend 1s subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on 23 July 2015 and has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements
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11 Goodwill

2015 2014
£000 £000
Cost
At begnning of year 335,278 351,785
Additrons (note 24) 53,026 1,649
Exchange adjustments 17,886 {18,156)
At end of year 406,190 335,278
Provision for impairment
At beginming and end of year - -
Carrying amounts 406,190 335,278

The Group identifies cash generating units (CGUSs) at the operating company level as this represents the lowest level at which cash
flows are largely independent of other cash flows Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the

groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from that business combination

Before recognition of any impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill has been allocated as follows

2015 2014
£000 £000
Process Safety
Gas Detection - -
Bursting Discs 7.826 6,977
Safety Interlocks and Corrosion Monitonng 51,826 7,357
59,652 14,334
Infrastructure Safety
Fire 22,711 12,172
Doors, Secunty and Elevators 63,912 68,465
86,623 80,637
Medcal
Health Optics 125,581 117,571
Fluid Technology 34,746 31,095
160,327 148,666
Environmental & Analysis
Water 28,089 27,252
Photonics 58,931 53,184
Environmental Monitoring 12,568 11,205
99,588 91,641
Total Group 406,190 335,278

Goodwill values have been tested for impairment by companng them against the value in use in perpetuity of the relevant CGUs The
value in use calculations were based on projected cash flows, denved from the latest budget approved by the Board, discounted at

CGU specific, nsk adjusted, discount rates to calculate therr net present value

Key assumptions used in ‘value in use’ calculations
The calculation of ‘value n use’ 18 most sensitive to the following assumptions

- CGU specific operating assumptions that are reflected in the budget penod for the financial year to March 2016,

- Discount rates,
- Growth rates used to extrapolate nsk adjusted cash flows beyond the budget penod
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Notes to the Accounts continued

11 Goodwill continued

CGU specific operating assumptions are applicable to the budgeted cash flows for the year to March 2016 and relate to revenue
forecasts, expected project outcomes and forecast operating margins in each of the operating companies The relative value ascnbed
to each assumption will vary between CGUs as the budgets are built up from the underiving operating companies within each CGU

A short-term growth rate 1s applied to the March 2016 budget to denve the cash flows ansing in the year to March 2017 and a long-
term rate I1s applied to these values for the year to March 2018 and onwards, as descnbed below

Discount rates are based on esttmations of the assumptions that market participants operating n similar sectors to Halma would
make, using the Group’s economic profile as a starting point and adjusting appropriatety The Directors do not currently expect any
significant change n the present base discount rate of 9 72% (2014 10 685%) The base discount rate, which is pre-tax and 1s based
on short-term vanables, may differ from the Weighted Average Cost of Capital (WACC) used in long-term retum measures such as
ROTIC Discount rates are adjusted for economic risks that are not already captured in the specrfic operating assumptions for each
CGU Thus results In the iImparment testing using discount rates ranging from 10 10% to 12 91% (2014 10 52% to 13 70%) across
all CGUs

CGUs to which 10% or more of the total goodwill balance 18 allocated are deemed to be significant The assumptions used to
determine value in use for these CGUs are

Risk adjusted discount rate Short-termn growth rates Long-term growth rates
Significant CGU 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Safety Interlocks and Corrosion Monitonng® 11.49% 1124% 720% - 2.79% -
Doors, Secunty and Elevators 10.58% 13 70% 7.20% 5 09% 2.15% 214%
Health Optics 1291% 12 88% 7.20% 149% 2.35% 2 35%
Photonics 11.68% 11 61% (3.26%) 207% 2.17% 2 168%

* Satety Interiocks and Corosion Moritonng was not a significant CGU in the prior year

Short-term growth rates are based on sectoral organic growth rates achieved i the current year, but are capped at the Group's
overall current year organic growth rate to ensure that future uncertainties are adequately reflected Long-term growth rates are
capped at the weighted average GDP growth rates of the markets that the Group sells into

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions
Management believes that no reasonable potential change in any of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of any
unit to exceed 1its recoverable amount
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12 Other intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Intemnally
generated
Customer Technical Trademarks, capitalised
and supplier know- brands and development Computer Other
relationships® how? patents? Total costs* software intangibless Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 30 March 2013 117,289 12,915 35,897 166,101 32,816 10,448 448 208,813
Transfer between category® - - - - - 586 (51} 535
Assets of businesses acquired 806 404 234 1,444 - - - 1,444
Additions at cost - - - - 5,196 1,529 - 6,725
Exchange adjustments (6.436) {963} (1,867) (9,266) (784) {441) {34y (10,525)
At 29 March 2014 111,659 12,356 34,264 158,279 37,228 12122 363 207,992
Transfer between category® - - - - 225 (21) - 204
Assets of businesses acquired
{note 24} 20,003 10,194 2,137 32,334 1,196 435 147 34,112
Assets of businesses sold - - - - - (263) - (263)
Additions at cost - - - - 7,213 1,021 382 8,616
Disposals and retirements - - - - {465) {(385) - {850)
Exchange adjustrments 9,250 2,502 1,134 12,886 S0 241 74 13,291
At 28 March 2015 140,912 25,052 37,535 203,499 45,487 13,150 966 263,102
Accumulated amortisation
At 30 March 2013 30,082 4,977 11,091 46,150 20,839 8,085 302 75,356
Transfer between category - - - - - 428 - 428
Charge for the year 12,009 1,455 4,051 17,515 3,922 1,168 80 22,685
Exchange adjustments (1,503) (373) (465) (2,341) (514) (349) 27) (3,231}
Al 29 March 2014 40,588 6,059 14,677 61,324 24,247 9,312 355 95,238
Charge for the year 13,425 2,406 4123 19,954 5,390 1,211 115 26,670
Impairment loss recognised - - - - 236 - - 236
Assets of business sold - - - - - (143} - {143)
Disposals and retirements - - - - {465) (384) - (849)
Exchange adjustments 2,283 669 (272) 2,680 214 319 a5 3,259
At 28 March 2015 56,296 9,134 18,528 83,958 29,622 10,315 516 124,411
Carrying amounts
At 28 March 2015 84,616 15918 19,007 119,541 15,865 2,835 450 138,691
At 29 March 2014 71,071 6,297 19,587 96,855 12,981 2,810 8 112,754

' Customer and suppler relationship assets are amortised over therr useful economic Ives estmated to be between three and ten years Within this balance individuaily
matenal balances relate to Medicel £7,205,000 (2014 £8 193,000), MST £6 743,000 (2014 £6,796,000) and RCS £15,090,000 (2014 €nil) The remaning
amortisation panods for these assets are six years, seven years and ning years respactively

2 Technica! know-how assets are amortised over thev usaful economic Iives, estimated to be between three and ten years Within this balance the only indmdually matenal
tem relates to RCS which has a camying value of £10,466,000 (2014 £nil) and nne years remamning 1o amontise

3 Trademarks, brands and patents {which ncluda protected intellectual property) are amortised over ther usefil economic fives estimated {o be between eight and
ten years There are no ndmdually matenal tems wathin this balance

4 Intemally generated capitalised development costs are arnortised over their useful economic Iives estmated to be three years There are no indnadually matenal tems
wathin this balance which comprises capitalised costs ansing from the development phase of the R&D projects undertaken by the Group

5 Other intang bles compnse licence and product registration costs amortised over ther useful economic lives estimated to be between three and five years
5 The net transfer from property plant and equipment and computer software 10 nternally generated capialised development costs relates to project spacific assets
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Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Property, plant and equipment

Land and builldings Plant,
equipment
Freehold’ Lengle Short | and vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 30 March 2013 36,037 2,894 7.331 122,186 168,448
Transfer between category (11 8 105 637) (535}
Assets of businesses acquired - - - 196 196
Addtions at cost 73 815 536 14,614 15,838
Disposals and retirements (856} (46} (383) (5,880) (7,165)
Exchange adjustments (869) (151) (281) (5,140) {6,441)
At 29 March 2014 34,374 3,320 7,308 125,339 170,341
Transfer between category - 1,158 (1) (1,351) (204)
Assets of businesses acquired (note 24) 366 29 48 1,895 2,338
Assets of business sold - - (59) (660) (719)
Additions at cost 4,868 495 2,059 14,742 22,164
Disposals and retirements (71 {(159) (1617 {9,006) {10,953)
Exchange adjustments 319 314 245 3,986 4,864
At 28 March 2015 39,756 5,157 7973 134,945 187,831
Accumulated depreciation
At 30 March 2013 9,584 1,250 4882 75,907 91,723
Transfer baetween category 8) - 81 (501) {428)
Charge for the year 6390 318 857 11,960 13,625
Disposals and retirements (432) (46) (383) (4,611) (5,472)
Exchange adjustments (329) (71) (209) {2,815) (3,524)
At 29 March 2014 9,505 1,451 5128 79,840 95,924
Charge for the year 669 352 818 12,166 14,005
Agsets of business sold - - (28) {283) {311)
Disposals and retirements (124) (158} {1,6086) (8,296) {10,184)
Exchange adjustments B84 104 144 1,762 2,094
At 28 March 2015 10,134 1,749 4,456 85,189 101,528
Carrying amounts
At 28 March 2015 29,622 3,408 3517 49,756 86,303
At 28 March 2014 24,869 1,869 2180 45,499 74,417

' Included within freehold land and buildings 1s £3,497,000 (2014 £ni)) of assets under construction
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14 Associates TJ.’
2015 2014 g
£000 £000 %

Interests in associates 2

At beginning of the year 5,088 4,792 §

Disposal cost of Investments (951) -

Exchange adjustments 35 (11)

Group’s share of profit of associates 64 307

Atend of year 4,236 5088 L

On 2 May 2014, the Group disposed of its 50% interest in the equity of PSRM Immobilien AG (PSRM), as part of the transaction in fo:

which the Group acquired Plasticspntzeren AG Until its disposal, PSRM was treated as an associate, and not a subsidiary, because 2

the party holding the remaining 50% was considered to exert more control §

On the 14 July 2014, the Group also disposed of 12,517 shares in Optomed Oy (Optomed), representing 10 72% of its shareholding ®

In the associate The Group's residual interest in Optomed 1s 33 07% As one of the largest shareholders, the Group continues to

exercise significant influence, but not control, over the company and so continues to apply the equity method of accounting for its

interest See note 29 for further details
2015 2014
£000 £000

Aggregated amounts relating to associates

Total assets 4,424 5,021

Total habiltes {2,530} (4,802)

Net assets 1,894 219

Group's share of net assets of associates 626 103

Total revenue 3,333 2,399

Profit 193 5

Group's share of profit of associates 64 307

PSRM and Optomed have a 31 December year end However, resulis coterminous with the Group’s year end have been consolidated
based on the Group's remaining share of each associate

Detalls of the Group's associate held at 28 March 2015 are as follows

Name of associate Country of incorporation  Proportion of ownership interest Principal activity
Optomed Oy Finland 3307% Design, manufacture and selling

The Group owns 104,210 (2014 116,727) Class A shares in Optomed out of a total of 315,110 (2014 285,540) shares In 1ssue
(Class A and B shares) Each A and B share entitles the holder to one vote
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Notes to the Accounts continued

15 Inventories

2015 2014

£000 £000

Raw materals and consumables 43,480 40,248

Work In progress 8,439 7,161
Firished goods and goods for resale 27,815 23,625
79,734 71,034

The above 15 stated net of prowvision for slow-moving and obsolete stock, movements of which are shown below

2015 2014

£000 £000

At beginning of the year 10,220 10,631
Amounts reversed aganst inventones previously impaired and utilisation (307) (606)
Whnte downs of inventories recognised as an expense 1,743 548
Recegnition of provisions for businesses acquired 653 116
De-recognition of provisions for businesses disposed (197) -
Exchange adjustments 488 (469)
At end of the year 12,600 10,220

Previous wnte-downs against inventory have been reversed as a result of increased sales in certain markets or where previousty

written down Inventones have been disposed

There I1s no matenal difference between the balance sheet value of inventones and their cost of reptacement None of the inventory

has been pledged as secunty

16 Trade and other recevables

2015 2014
£000 £000
Trade receivables 141,551 123,295
Allowance for doubtful debts (2,802) {(2,353)
138,749 120,942
Other receivables 5,293 4,099
Prepayments and accrued income 12,422 10,136
156,464 135,177
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts in respect of trade recewvables dunng the year was as follows
2015 2014
£000 £000
At beginning of the year 2,353 2,445
Net imparrment loss recognised 923 355
Amounts recovered against trade receivables previously written down {641) (465)
Recognition of provisions for businesses acquired 151 85
De-recognition of provisions for businesses disposed {3) -
Exchange adjustments 19 (67}
At end of the year 2,802 2,353

Impairment charges are recorded against the trade receivables which the Group believes may not be recoverable In the case of trade
recevables that are past due, management makes an assessment of the nsk of non-collection, taking into account factors such as
previous default expenence, any disputes or other factors delaying payment and the nsk of bankruptey or other falure of the customer
to meet their obligations For trade recevables that are not past due, taking into account good historical collection experence,

management records an imparment charge only where there 1s a specific risk of non-collection

The fair value of trade and other recenvables approximates to book value due to the short-term matunties associated with these items
There 1s no iImparrment nsk identified with regards to prepayments and accrued income or other recavables where no amounts are

past due
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The ageing of trade recevables was as follows

Trade receivables net of

Gross trade receivables doubtful debts
2015 2014 2015 2014
£000 £000 £000 £000
Not yet due 105,649 95,920 105,463 95,834
Up to one month overdue 22,178 18,621 22,054 18,509
Up to two months overdue 4,413 2,776 4,346 2,690
Up to three months overdue 1,999 1,441 1,861 1,361
Over three months overdue 7,312 4,537 5,025 2,648
141,551 123,285 138,749 120,942

17 Trade and other payables: falling due within one year
2015 2014
£000 £000
Trade payables 57,633 50,270
Other taxation and sccial secunty 4,673 4,398
Other payables 2,888 3,342
Accruals and deferred iIncome 37,399 30,022
Deferred government grant ncome 124 259
102,717 88,291

18 Borrowings

2015 2014
£000 £000
Loan notes faling due within one year - 2,731
Overdrafts 1,705 1,405
Total borrowings falling due within one year 1,705 4,136
Loan notes faling due after more than one year 657 -
Unsecured bank loans falling due after more than one year 139,762 104,891
Total borrowings falling due after more than one year 140,419 104,891
142,124 109,027

Information conceming the security, currency, interest rates and matunty of the Group's borrowings 1s given in note 26
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Notes to the Accounts continued

19 Provisions
Prowisions are presented as

2015 2014
£000 £000
Current 11,746 4,482
Non-current 1,549 6,777
13,295 11,259
Contingent Dilapidations Legal,
purchase and empty Product  contractual
consideration property warranty and other Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At begnning of the year 7,562 1,741 1,827 129 11,259
Unwinding of discount 46 - - - 46
Additional provision in the year 1,690 119 378 21 2,208
Ansing on acquisition® 6,054 247 395 - 6,696
Business sold - - (34) - (34)
Utilised dunng the year (4,002) (207) (166) (26) {4,401)
Released dunng the year (2,311) (564) (313) (25) {3,213)
Exchange adjustments 611 43 79 1 734
At end of the year 9,650 1,379 2,166 100 13,295

* Compnses £6,054,000 contingent purchase consideration ansing on the acquisition of Advanced Electronics Limited and £642,000 current provisions acquired
See note 24

Contingent purchase consideration

The prowvision at the beginring of the year compnsed £1,389,000 fallng due wathin one year and £6,173,000 faling due after one year
In the current financial year, the additional prowision related mainly to a change in estimate in relation to the acqutsition in the prior year
of Microsurgical Technologies Limited (MST) from $6,504,000 to $2,061,000 £6,054,000 was provided on the acquisition of
Advanced Electronics Lmited (Advanced) (see note 24), of wiich £2,800,000 was settled dunng the year A payment of £1,000,000
was also made in respect of ASL Holdings Limited (ASL), a pnor year acguisitton These payments represent substantially all of the
current year utiisation of £4,002,000 The £2,311,000 release of provision related mainly to a revision to the estimate for the second
eam out payment for the acquisition of ASL frorm £2,500,000 to £197,000

Of the closing total prowision of £9,650,000, £9,484,0001s dus within one year manly for the acquisitions of Advanced and MST,
£3,356,000 and £6,123,000 respectively The balance, relating mainly to ASL, 1s due after one year The MST balance was settled
on 22 May 2015

Dilapidations and empty property provisions

Dilapidations and empty property provisions exist where the Group has lease contracts under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
its obligations under the contracts exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under them The prowvisions compnse the
Directors’ best estimates of future payments

a) to restore the fabnc of buldings to their onginal condition where it 1s a condition of the leases pnor to return of the properties, and
b) on vacant properties, the rental costs of which are not expected to be recoverable from subleasing the properties

These commitments cover the penod from 2015 to 2029, though they predominantly fall due within five years

Product warranty

Product warranty prowisions reflect commitments made to customers on the sale of goods in the ordinary course of business and
included within the Group compantes’ standard terms and conditions Warranty commitments cover a penod of between one and five
years and typically apply for a 12-month penod The provision represents the Directors’ best estirmate of the Group's hability based on
past expenence
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Legal, contractual and other ™
Legal, contractual and other compnse mamly amounts reserved against open legal and contractual disputes The Company has §
on occasion besen required to take legal or other actions to defend nself aganst proceedings brought by other parties Prowvisions 8
are made for the expected costs associated with such matters, based on past expenence of similar tems and other known factors, ;
taking into account professional advice received, and represent Directors’ best estimate of the lkely outcome The timing of utiisation §
of these provisions 15 frequently uncertan reflecting the complexaty of 1ssues and the outcome of various court proceedings and S
negotiations Contractual and other prowisions represent the Directors' best estimate of the cost of setthng future abligations
Unless specific evidence exists to the contrary, these reserves are shown as current
Howsver, no provision Is made for proceedings which have been or might be brought by other parties aganst Group companies
uniess the Directors, taking into account professional advice received, assess that it Is more likely than not that such proceedings
rmay be successful L
20 Trade and other payables: falling due after one year §’
2015 2014
£000 £000 §
Other payables 2,891 2,879 ©
Deferred government grant income 865 685
3,756 3,564
21 Deferred tax
Retirement Acqured Accelerated  Short-term Goodwill
benefit intangible tax timing Share-based timing
obhgatons assets depreciation differences payment differences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 29 March 2014 7,372 (28,493) (5,336) {375) 2,066 2,316 (22,450)
Credit/(charge} to Consolidated
Income Statement (1,078) 5,831 355 60 27 (1,228) 3,913
Credt/(charge) to Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive
Income 6,791 - - (23) - - 6,768
Credt to equity - - - - 291 - 291
Acquired (note 24) - (9,020) (70) - - - {9,090)
Exchange adjustments - (3,384) (468) 694 - 460 {2,698)
At 28 March 2015 13,085 (35,066) {5,519) 356 2,330 1,548 (23,266)
Retirement Acqured  Accelerated Short-term Goodwill
benefit ntangible tax timing  Share-based timing
cbligations assets depreciation differences payment differences Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 30 March 2013 10,851 (36,207) (6,475) 678 1,547 9,158 (20,448)
({Charge)/credit to Consolidated
Income Staterment (1,909) 5,669 753 (1,040) 224 6,202) (2,505)
Charge to Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive
Income (1,570) - - (129) - - {1,699)
Cradit to equity - - - - 295 - 285
Acquired - (318) (16) 337 - (67) (64)
Exchange adjustments - 2,363 402 (221) - {573) 1,971
At 29 March 2014 7,372 (28,493) (5.336) {375) 2,066 2,316 (22,450}

Haima nle Annual Rannrt and Acconints 2015 131




Notes to the Accounts continued

21 Deferred tax continued

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilittes have been offset The following 1s the anatysis of the deferred tax balances {(after offset) for
financial reporting purposes

2015 2014
£000 £000
Deferred tax hability (51,862) (43,127)
Deferred tax asset 28,596 20,677
Net deferred tax lability {23,266) (22,450}
Movement n net deferred tax hability
2015 2014
£000 £000
At beginning of year {22,450) (20,448)
(Charge)/credit to Consolidated Income Statement
UK (1,147) {2,085)
Overseas 5,060 (420}
Credit/ (charge) to Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 6,768 {1,699)
Credt to squity 291 285
Acquired (note 24) {9,090) 64)
Exchange adjustments (2,698) 1.871
At end of year {23,266) (22,450)

The UK corporation tax rate was reduced to 21% from 23% with effect from 1 April 2014 A further reduction in the UK tax rate to
20%, effective from 1 Apnl 2015, was substantively enacted in the UK Finance Act 2013

It 1s lkely that the unremitted samings of overseas subsichianes would qualfy for the UK dwidend exermption such that no UK tax would
be due upon remitting those eamings to the UK However, £19,422,000 (2014 £21,532,000) of those earnings may still result in a tax
hability, principally as a result of the dividend withholding taxes levied by the overseas jurisdictions in which those subsidanes operate
These tax labilities are not expected to exceed £3,399,000 (2014 £3,143,000) of which only £757,000 has been provided as tha
Group 1s able to control the iming of the dwvidends It 15 not expected that further amounts will crystalise in the foreseeable future
Temporary timing differences 1n connection with interests in associates are insignificant

At 28 March 2015 the Group had unused capital tax losses of £479,000 (2014 £479,000) for which no deferred tax asset has
been recognised

22 Share capital
Issued and fully paid
2015 2014
£000 £000
Ordinary shares of 10p each 37,965 37,902

The number of ordinary shares in 1ssue at 28 March 2015 was 379,645,332 (2014 379,018,522), including treasury shares of
1,371,785 (2014 1,278,148)

Changes during the year in the 1ssued ordinary share capital were as follows

Issued and

fully paid

£000

At 29 March 2014 37,902
Share options exercised 63
At 28 March 2015 37,965

The total consideration received in cash 1n respect of share options exercised amounted to £893,000 (2014 £194,000)

At 28 March 2015 no options (2014 626,810) In respect of ordinary shares remained outstanding. Further details are given in note 23
to the accounts
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23 Share-based payments
The total cost recogrised in the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of share-based payment plans (the ‘employee share
plans’) was as follows

2015 2014

Equity- Equity-
settted Cash-settled Total settled  Cash-settled Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Share incentive plan 569 - 569 641 - 641
Performance share plan 3,829 238 4,067 3,444 411 3,855
4,398 238 4,636 4,085 411 4,496

The Group has recorded labitites of £340,000 {2014 £432,000) in respect cf the cash-settled portion of the awards granted under
the performance share plan

Share incentive plan

Shares awarded under this Plan are purchased in the market by the Plan’s trustees at the time of the award and are held in trust until
their transfer to gualfying employees, vesting 1s conditional upon completion of three years’ service The costs of providing this Plan
are recognised In the Consolidated Income Statement over the three-year vesting penod

Share option plans

At the beginning of the year, the Group had cutstanding 1ssued options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company under a share
option plan, approved by shareholders in 1998 This share option plan provided for the grant of two categores of option, both of
which were subject to performance cntena No further awards have been made under the Company share option plan since 3 August
2005 All options lapse if not exercised within 10 years from the date of grant There are no remamning options over ordinary shares at
28 March 2015 Options over 626,810 ordinary shares were exercised in the year No options over ordinary shares lapsed in the year
The farr vatue of the options granted has been recognised in full, and accordingly there 1s no charge in the current or prior year

Performance share plan
The performance share plan was approved by shareholders on 3 August 2005 and replaced the previous share option plans from
which no further grants can be made

Awards made under this Plan vest after three years on a sliding scale subject to the Group’s relatve Total Shareholder Retumn against
the FTSE 250 excluding financial companies, combined with an absolute Return on Total Invested Capital measure Awards which do
not vest on the third anniversary of therr award lapse

A summary of the movements in share awards granted under the performance share plan 1s as follows

2015 2014

Number of Number of

shares shares

awarded awarded

Outstanding at beginning of year 3,587,492 3802315
Granted during the year 1,077,286 1,068,785
Vested dunng the year (pro-rated for ‘good leavers’) (983,228) (1,198,568)
Lapsed dunng the year (570,206} (85,040)
Qutstanding at end of year 3,111,344 3,587,492

Exercisable at end of year - -

The weighted average share pnce at the date of awards vesting dunng the year was 585 8p (2014 557 7p)

The performance shares outstanding at 28 March 2015 had a weighted average remaining contractual life of 1 4 years
(2014 1 4 years)
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Notes to the Accounts continued

23 Share-based payments continued

The far value of these awards was calcuiated using an approprate simulation method to reflect the likelihood of the market-based

perforrmance conditons, which attach to half of the awardg, being met, using the following assumptions

2015 2014 2013
Expected volatility (%} 21% 24% 26%
Expected Iife (years) 3 3 3
Share pnce on date of grant (p) 569.9 568 5 3809
Option pnce (p) Nil Nil NIl
Fair value per option (%6) 62.4% 63 2% 55 3%
Fair value per option {p) 355.9 3593 22325

The expected volatiity was determined by calculating the histoncal volatiity of the Group’s share pnce over the previous three years

24 Acquisitions

In accounting for acquisitons, adjustments are made to the book values of the net assets of the companies acquired to reflect ther
far values to the Group Acquired inventories are valued at far value adopting Group bases and any Itabilites for warranties relating to
past trading are recogrised Other previously unrecogrised assets and liabilities at acquisition are included and accounting policies

are aligned with those of the Group where appropnate

The Group made three acquisiticns during the year Rohrback Cosasco Systems Inc (RCS), Advanced Electronics Limited
{Advanced), and Plasticspntzerer AG (Plasticspntzerel) Below are summaries of the assets and habiles acquired and the purchase

consideration of

a) The total of RCS, Advanced and Plasticspritzeret,
b} RCS, on a standalone basis,

c) Advanced, on a standalone basis, and

d} Plasticspntzerer, on a standalone basis
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(A) Tota!l of RCS, Advanced and Plasticspritzerei Cen
Fair value ﬁ
Book value adjustments Total a
£000 £000 £000 2
Non-current assets §
Intangible assets 3,508 30,604 34,112 -+
Property, plant and equipment 2,286 52 2,338
Deferred tax - 226 226
Current assets |
Inventones 5,303 {388) 4,915 (&
Trade and other recewvables 9,833 (2,048) 7,787 |2
Corporation tax 251 153 404 E
Cash and cash equivalents 9,515 104 9619 |°
Total assets 30,696 28,705 59,401
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {4,569) 501 {4,068)
Provisions {110) (515} (625)
Corporation tax {686) 327 (359)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions - (17} (17
Bank loans (468} - (468)
Retirement benefit obligations - (234) (234)
Deferred tax (28) (9,288) {9,316)
Total habilities {5,861) (9,226) (15,087)
Net assets of busimnesses acquired 24,835 19,479 44,314
Intial consideration paid (RCS, Advanced and Plasticspnizerel)” 91,286
Contingent purchase consideration paid (Advanced)” 2,800
Contingent purchase constideration estimated to be paid (Advanced) 3,254
Total consideration 97,340
Goodwill ansing on current year acquisitions 53,026

* The nitial and contingent purchase ¢onsiderations paid n cash were £90,828,000 and £2,601,000 respectively The remander was satisfied by the issue of £657,000

of loan notes

Due to ther contractuat dates, the far value of recewvables acquired (shown above} approximate to the gross contractual amounts
recevable The amount of gross contractual recevables not expected to be recovered 18 immatenat

There are no material contingent liabilties recognised In accordance with paragraph 23 of IFRS 3 (revised)

None of the goodwill ansing on acquisitions in the year 1$ expected to be deductible for tax purposes

The three acquisitions In the year contributed £36,110,000 of revenue and £6,695,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 28 March
2015 If these acquisitions had been held since the start of the financial year, it 1s estimated the Group’s reported revenue and profit
after tax would have been £6,843,000 and £1,146,000 higher respectively

The combined fair value adustments made for al! acquisitions, excluding acguired intangible assets recognised and deferred tax
thereon, resulted n net adjustments to goodwill of £3,831,000
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Notes to the Accounts continued

24 Acquisitions continued
Analysis of cash outflow In the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2015 2014

£000 £000
Initial cash consideration paid 90,828 3.315
Initial cash consideration adjustment {pnor year acquisition}) - (337)
Cash acquired on acquistions (9,619) (754)
Contingent consideration paid in relation to current year acquisitions 2,601 -
Contingent consideration paid and loan notes repaid 1n cash in relation to prior year acquisitions” 3,933 14,461
Net cash outflow relating to acquisitions (per Consolidated Cash Flow Statement) 87,743 16,685

* The £3,933,000 compnses £2,731,000 loan notes and £1,202,000 contingent purchasa consideration paid in respect of pror penod acquisitions, alt of which had been
prowvided in the pnor year's financial staternsnts
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{B) Rohrback Cosasco Systems In¢

Farr value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 420 25,146 25,566
Property, plant and equipment 441 102 543
Deferred tax - 203 203
Current assets
Inventones 4,098 {353) 3,745
Trade and other recevables 4,191 {192) 3,999
Cash and cash equivalents 5,441 - 5,441
Corporation tax 251 (61) 180
Total assets 14,842 24,845 39,687
Current habilihes
Trade and other payables (1,521) (169) {(1,690)
Provisions - (148} {148)
Non-current habilities
Deferred tax {28) (7.677) {7,705)
Total habilities (1,549} (7,994) (9,543)
Net assets of businesses acquired 13,293 16,851 30,144
Initial consideration (all cash) 69,681
Total consideration 69,681
Goodwill arising on acquisition 39,537

The Group acquired the entire share capital of Rohrback Cosasco Systems Inc and assocrated companies (RCS), on 30 May 2014
for an inibal cash constderation of US$116,000,000 (£69,341,000) This was subsequently adjusted by an additional US$569,000
{£340,000) which was paid in July 2014 based on the final agreed value of the net tangible assets at the acguisition date

RCS forms part of the Process Safety sector and specialises in the design, manufacture and sale of pipeline comrosion monitorng
products and systems into diverse industnes including oll, gas, petrochemical, pharmaceutical and utiities The acguisition of RCS
expands Halma’s portfoilo of cntical safety products which are sold into the Energy and Utility markets to protect life and operational
assets The existing RCS management team remain in place and will continue to operate the business The excess of the fair value
of the consideration paid over the fair value of the assets acquired I1s represented by customer related intangibles of £14,697,000,
marketing and technology related intangibles of £10,868,000, with residual goodwill ansing of £39,537,000 The goodwil represents

a) the technical expertise of the acquired workforce,
b} the opportunity to leverage this expertise across some of Halma's businesses, and
¢) the ability to exploit the Group's existing customer base

The RCS acquisition contnbuted £22,038,000 of revenue and £3,705,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 28 March 2015

If this acquisihon had been held since the start of the financial year, it 1s eshmated that the Group’s reported revenue and profit after
tax would have been £5,525,000 and £771,000 higher respectively
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Notes to the Accounts continued

24 Acquisitions continued
{C) Advanced Electronics Limited

Fair value
Book value adjustments Total
£000 £000 £000

Non-current assets
Intangible assets 3,088 5,458 8,546
Property, plant and equipment 1,834 (606) 1,228
Deferred Tax - 23 23
Current assets
Inventones 1,124 1 1,125
Trade and other receivables 5,046 {1,890) 3,156
Corporation tax - 214 214
Cash and cash equivalents 2,259 104 2,363
Total assets 13,361 3,304 16,655
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables {2,759) 703 (2,056)
Provisions - {363) (363)
Corporation tax (582) 582 -
Non-current habilities
Bank loans (468) - (468)
Defarred tax - (1,611) (1,611)
Total habilities (3,809) {689) (4,498)
Net assets of businesses acquired 9,542 2,615 12,157
Initral consideration 15,927
Contingent purchase consideration pard 2,800
Contingent purchase consideration estimated to be pard 3,254
Total consideration 21,981
Goodwill ansing on acquisrtion 9,824

The Group acquired the entire share capital of Advanced Electronics Limited (Advanced) on 14 May 2014 for an mitial consideration
of £15,927,000 {£458,000 of which was satisfied by loan notes}) Contingent consideration 1s payable over a two year penod based

on the profits of the company for the twelve months to April 2014 and eleven months to March 2015 The total estimated payable
was £6,054,000, of which £2,601,000 has been paid in cash and £198,000 in loan notes in the year The remainder, subject to actual
performance, 1s payable in June 2015 The maximurn contingent consideration payable 1s £10,100,000 Management's current best
eslimate of the likely total payable has been increased by £102,000 to £6,156,000 based on performance observed to date

Advanced forms part of the Infrastructure Safety sector and specialises In the manufacture of networked fire detection and control
systems Advanced's controllers can be integrated nto system solutions using field devices and products from a broad spectrum

of suppliers, meeting the increasing diversity of regulatory requirements across the world Its main manufactunng facility 1s located
near Newcastle in the UK with a dedicated electronics and software development facility n Barnsley It has additional commercial
offices in the UK, the USA and Dubal Advanced bnngs to Halma complementary products that help capture the ntemational

growth opportunity in the increasingly regulated Fire market The excess of the farr value of the consideration paid over the fair value
of the assets acquired 1s represented by customer related intangibles of £5,306,000, marketing and technology related intangibles of
£1,462,000, with residual goodwili ansing of £9,824,000 Included in the £5,458,000 farr value adjustment to intangible assets shown
above I1s a reduction of £1,310,000 to the carrying value of capitaised development costs resulting from the application of Haima
accounting policies to the acquisiion date balance The residual goodwill represents

a) the techmcal expertise of the acquired workforce,
b) the opportunity 1o leverage this expertise across some of Halma's businesses, and
c) the ability to exploit the Group’s existing customer base

The Advanced acquisttion contributed £13,936,000 of revenue and £2,301,000 of profit after tax for the year ended 28 March 2015
If this acquisition had been held since the start of the financial year, # 1s estmated that the Group's reported revenue and profit after
tax would have been £1,318,000 and £323,000 higher respectively

178  Halma e Annizal Ranart and Areninints 2MA8




(D) Plasticspritzerel AG (@
Fair value g
Book value adjustments Total ]
£000 £000 £000 %
Non-current assets §
Property, plant and equipment 11 556 567 =
Current assets
Inventones 81 {36) 45
Trade and other recewables 596 36 632
Cash and cash equivalents 1,815 - 1,815 :c)
Total assets 2,503 556 3,059 %
Current habilities g
Trade and other payables (289) (33) (@22) |©
Prowvisions (110) {4 (114)
Corporation tax (104} {255) (359)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions - (17 {17)
Retirement benefit obligations - {234) (234)
Total habilites {503) {543) (1,046}
Net assets of businesses acquired 2,000 13 2,013
Intial cash consideration 5,678
Total consideration 5,678
Goodwill ansing on acquisition 3,665

On 2 May 2014 the Group acquired Plasticspntzerel AG (Plasticspritzers), located in Wolthalden, Switzerland at the same facility

as another Group company, Medicel AG (Medicel) Initial consideration paid for the company was CHF8,403,000 (£5,678,000)
including the consideration of CHF903,000 (£610,000) receved for the Group’s disposal of its 50% ownership interest in its associate
PSEM Immobiken AG (PSRM} and CHF2,687,00C (£1,815,000} paid for the iIndustnal segment of Plasticspntzerar The Group then
immediately sold the industrial segment of the business to a third party, resulting in a net cash cost to the Group of CHF4,813,000
(£3,253,000), {CHF5,716,000 (£3,863,000) excluding the proceeds from the PSRM disposal) These transactions have resulted in

the Group owning only those assets which support Medicel's business Plasticspritzerel will be operated by Medicel’'s management
within Halma's Medical sector, further expanding the Group’s manufactunng excellence in ophthalmic diagnostic and surgical
instrumentation

No customer relationship intangibles were recognised as part of this transaction because Medicel Is the sole customer for the
Plasticspritzerer business acquired and the farr value of any customer relationship 1s therefore eiminated from a Group perspective
Goodwill of £3,665,000 was recognised as part of this transaction, representing the excess of the farr value of consideration
transferred over the farr vaiue of the assets acquired and 1s attnbutable to

a) the technical expertise of the acquired workforce,
b) the opportunity to secure and advance the supply chain of Medicel AG, and
¢} the abiity to exploit the Group's existing customer base

The Plasticspntzerer acquisition resulted in intercompany sales to Medicel of £2,176,000 and extemal sales of £136,000 for the pertod
ended 28 March 2015 and contnbuted £689,000 to profit after tax for the Group for the same penod If this acquisition had been held
since the start of the financial year, 1t I1s estrated that the Group's reported revenue and profit after tax would have been £ril and
£52,000 higher respectivaly
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Notes to the Accounts continued

25 Notes to the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

2015 2014
£000 £000
Reconciliation of profit from operations to net cash inflow from operating activities:
Profit on continuing operations before finance income and expense, share of results of associates and
(profitioss on disposal of operations 137,063 143,571
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14,005 13,625
Amorhsation of computer software 1,211 1,168
Amortisation of capitalised development costs and other intangibles 5,505 4,002
imparrment of capitalised development costs 236 -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 19,954 17,515
Share-based payment expense In excess of amounts pad 3,803 3,470
Addittonal payments to pension plans {6,560) (5.892)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and computer software (590) (26)
Effects of closure to future benefit accruals on defined benefit pension plans - (4,246)
Operating cash flows before movernment in working capital 174,627 173,187
Increase in inventones (1,097} (5,127)
Increase in recevables (10,656) (9,111)
Increase In payables and provisions 5,801 3,334
Rewvision to estimate of contingent consideration payable (620) (12,394)
Cash generated from operations 168,055 149,889
Taxation paid (30,824) {28,351)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 137,231 121,538
2015 2014
£000 £000
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances 41,230 34,531
Overdrafts (included in current borrowings) {1,705) (1,405)
Cash and cash equivalents 39,525 33,126
At Net Net Loannotes At
29 March cash/(debt) overdraft repaid/  Exchange 28 March
2014 Cash flow acquired disposed (issued) adjustments 2015
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Analysis of net debt
Cash and bank balances 34,531 (3,664) 9,619 - - 744 41,230
Qverdrafts (1,405) (336) - 36 - - {1,705)
Cash and cash equivalents 33,126 (4,000) 9,619 36 - 744 39,525
Loan notes falling due within
one year (2,731) - - - 2,731 - -
Loan notes faling due after
more than one year ~ - - - (657) - (657)
Bank loans faling due after
more than one year (104,891) (33,621) (468) - - (782) (139,762)
Total net debt (74,496) (37,621) 9,151 36 2,074 (38) (100,894)

The net cash infiow from bank loans in 2015 compnised repayments of £35,341,000 offset by drawdowns of £68,962,000 (2014
net cash outflow compnsing drawdowns of £57,791,000 offset by drawdowns of £7,498,000) The £9,151,000 net cash acquired
compnsed £9,619,000 cash and £468,000 of bank loans, and net overdraft disposed related to the Monitor overdraft of £36,000

The net of the above £4,000,000 cash cutflow, £9,619,000 net cash acquired and £36,000 net overdraft disposed 1s equal to the
ncrease In cash and cash equivalents of £5,655,000 in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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26 Financial instruments

Policy

The Group's treasury policies seek to minimise financial nsks and to ensure sufficient iquidity for the Group’s operations and strategic
plans No complex denvative financial nstruments are used, and no trading or speculative transactions in financial instruments are
undertaken Where the Group does use financial instruments these are mainly to manage the currency nsks ansing from normal
operations and 1ts financing Operations are financed mainly through retained profits and, in certan geographic locations, bank
borrowings Foreign currency nsk 1s the most significant aspect for the Group in the area of financial instruments It 1s exposed to a
lesser extent to other nsks such as interest rate risk and quidity nsk The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and these policies are summansed below The Group's policies have remamed unchanged since the beginning of the
financial year

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted (ncluding the cntenia for recognition, the basis of measurement
and the bases of recognition of ncome and expenses) for each class of financial asset, financial llability and equity instrument are
disclosed in the Accounting Policies note

Capital nsk management

The Group manages Its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concems while maximusing the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed n note 18 to the Accounts, cash and cash equivalents and equity atinbutable to equity
holders of the parent, comprsing 1ssued capital, reserves and retained eamings as disclosed in the Consolidated Staterment of
Changes in Equity

The Group 15 not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements

Foreign currency risk
The Group 1s exposed to foreign currency nsk as a consequence of both trading with foreign companies and owning subsidianes
located in foreign countnes

The Group eams a signtficant proportion of its profit In currencies other than Sterling This gives nse to translational currency nsk,
where the Sterling value of profits earned by the Group’s foreign subsidiaries fluctuates with the strength of Stering relative to therr
operating (or ‘functional’) currencies The Group does not hedge this nsk, so its reported profit 1s sensitive to the strength of Sterling,
particularly against the US Dollar and Euro The Group also has transactionat currency exposures These anse on sales or purchases
by operating companies in currencies other than the companies’ operating (or ‘functional’) currency Significant sales and purchases
are matched where possible and a propoertion of the net exposure 1s hedged by means of forward foreign currency contracts

The Group has significant investments in overseas cperations in the USA and EU, with further investments in Australia, New Zealand,
Singapore, Switzertand, China and India As a result, the Group's balance sheet can be affected by movements in these countries’
exchange rates Where significant and appropnate, currency denominated net assets are hedged by currency borrowings These
currency exposures are reviewed regularty

Interest rate nsk

The Group 1s exposed to interest rate fluctuations on its borrowings and cash deposits Where bank borrowings are used to finance
operations they tend to be short termn wath floating interest rates Borrowings used to provide longer-term funding are drawn on the
Group's loan facilities and have fixed nterest rates with maturities of not more than one year

Surplus funds are placed on short-term fixed rate deposit or in floating rate deposit accounts

Credit risk

Credit nsk 1s defined as the nisk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting In financial loss to the Group
The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating the nsk of financral loss
from defaults Credit ratings are supplied by independent agencies where available, and if not avallable, the Group uses other publicly
avallable financial iInformation and its own trading records to rate its major customers The Group's exposure and the credit ratings of
Its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded i1s spread amongst approved
counterparties Credit exposure 18 controlled by counterparty imits that are reviewed regularly

Trade recevables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographic areas Ongoing credit
evaluation 1s performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropnate, credit guarantee insurance cover
1$ purchased

The carrying amount of trade, tax and other recevables, denvative financial Instruments and cash of £186,836,000 (2014
£160,848,000) represents the Group's maximum exposure to credit nsk as no collateral or other credit enhancements are held

The credit nsk on kquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s imited because the counterparties are banks with high credit
ratings assigned by intemational credit-rating agencies

Liguidity nisk
The Group has a syndicated revolving credit faciity of £360m with its core group of five banks extending to November 2018
Thes facility 1s the main source of long-term funding for the Group
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Notes to the Accounts continued

26 Financial instruments continued

The Group has a strong cash flow and the funds generated by operating companies are managed regionally based on
geographic location

Funds are placed on deposit with secure, highly-rated banks For short-term working capital purposes, most operating compan:es
utitse local bank overdrafts These practices allow a balance to be maintained between continuity of funding, secunty and flexibiity
Because of the nature of their use, the facilities are typically ‘on demand’ and as such uncommitted Overdraft facilities are typically
renewed annually

Currency exposures

Translational exposures

It 1s estimated, by reference to the Group’s US Dollar and Euro denominated profits, that a one per cent change in the value of the
US Dollar relative to Sterling would have had a £561,000 (2014 £505,000) impact on the Group's reported profit before tax, and a
one per cent change in the value of the Euro relative to Sterling would have had a £214,000 (2014 £207,000} mpact on the Group’s
profit before tax for the year ended 28 March 2015

Transactional exposures

The Group has net foraign currency monetary assets and liabilities that are assets and llabilities not denominated in the functional
currency of the underlying company These compnse cash and overdrafts as well as certan trade receivable and payable balances
These foreign currency monstary assets and liabilitties give nse to the net curency gains and losses recognised in the Consolidated
Income Statement as a result of movement in exchange rates The exposures are predominantly Euro and US Dollar Group policy
is for a significant portien of foreign currency exposures, including sales and purchases, to be hedged by forward foreign exchange
contracts in the company in which the transaction 1s recorded

interest rate nsk profile

The Group's financial assets which are subject to interest rate fluctuations comprise Interest beanng cash equivalents which totalted
£998,000 at 28 March 2015 (2014 £1,742,000) These comprised Stering denominated deposits of £92,000 (2014 £92,000), and
Euro, US Dollar and Renminbi deposits of £906,000 (2014 £1,650,000) which are placed on local money markets and earn interest
at market rates Cash balances of £40,232,000 (2014 £32,789,000) eam interest at local market rates

The financial iabilibes which are subject to interest rate fluctuations comprise bank loans, bank overdrafts, loan notes and certain
unsecured loans, which totalled £142,124,000 at 28 March 2015 (2014 £109,027,000) Al bank loans bear interast at floating rates
where the fixed period 1s typically no more than three months Interest rates are based on the LIBOR of the currency in which the
labilities anse plus a small margin Bank overdraits bear interest at iocal base rates The loan notes outstanding at 28 March 2015
attract interest at 1%

The Group's weighted average interest cost on net debt for the year 1s 1 80% (2014 1 59%)

2015 2014
£000 £000

Analysis of interest beanng financia! liabilities
Sterling denominated bank loans 132,000 97,000
Swiss Franc denominated bank loans 7,762 7,891
Total bank loans 139,762 104,891
Overdrafts (principalty Sterling and US Dellar denominated) 1,705 1,405
Sterling denominated loan notes 657 2,731
Total interest beanng financial liabilities 142,124 109,027

For the year ended 28 March 2015 it 1s estimated that a general increase of one percentage point In interest rates would reduce the
Group's profit before tax by £1,675,000 (2014 £1,520,000)

Maturty of financial liahilities

With the exception of the contingent purchase consideration, other payables, prowvistons and borrowings due after one year, all of

the Group’s financial labtlities mature In one year or less or on demand The contractual contingent purchase consideration due after
one year of £166,000 (2014 £6,173,000) falls due between one and two years No amounts are payable after more than two years
(2014 £ml) Other creditors due after more than one year include £1,694,000 {2014 £1,569,000) due between one and two years,
£1,197,000 (2014 £1,308,000) due between two and five years, with the balance of £nil (2014 £2,000) due after more than five
years Deferred government grant income due after more than one year includes £124,000 (2014 £28,600) due between one and two
years, £146,000 (2014 £47,000) due between two and five years, with the balance of £595,000 {2014 £610,000) due after more
than five years

The Group’s bank loans are revolving credit faciities and the amount and tming of future payments and drawdowns 1s unknown
It s therefore not possible to calculate the interest ansing on these loans and we have therefore not disclosed the matunty of the
gross cash flows (including interest) in relation to these liabilities

142  Halma nie Annnal Rannrt ana Aceonnte 2008




Borrowing facilites

The Group's pnncipal source of long-term funding 1s its unsecured five-year £360m revolving credit facility, which expires in
November 2018 The Group has additional short-term unsecured and committed US bank facilities of £16,892,000, which
mature in June 2015 and were undrawn at 28 March 2015

Other short-term operational funding 18 provided by cash generated from operations and by local bank overdrafts These overdraft
faciites are uncommitted and are generally renewed on an annual or ongoing basis and hence the facilities expire within one year
or less

The Group’s undrawn committed facilities available at 28 March 2015 were £237,130,000 (2014 £270,169,000) of which
£16,892,000 (2014 £15,060,000) matures within one year and £220,238,000 (2014 £255,109,000) between two and five years

UK companies have cross-guaranteed £17,990,000 (2014 £22,122,000) of overdraft faciites of which £1,538,000 {2014
£1,100,000) was drawn

Fair values of financial assets and financial habilities
As at 28 March 2015 and 29 March 2014 there were no significant differences between the book value and farr value (as determined
by market value) of the Group’s financial assets and liabiities

The farr value of floating and fixed rate borrowings approximates to the carrying value because interest rates are reset to market rates
at intervals of less than one year

The farr value of dervative financial nstruments 1s estimated by discounting the future contracted cash flow, using readily available
market data, and represents a level 2 measurement in the fair value hierarchy under IFRS 7

Hedging

As explaned previously, the Group's policy 1s to hedge significant sales and purchases denominated in foreign currency using forward
currency contracts These mnstruments are inihally recognised at farr value, which s typically £rnil, and subsequent changes in far value
are taken to the Consolidated Income Statement, unless hedge accounted

The following table details the forward foreign currency contracts cutstanding as at the year end, which mostly mature within one year
and therefore the cash flows and resulting effect on profit and loss are expected to occur within the next 12 months

Average exchange

rate/f Fareign currency Contract value Farr value
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
2015 2014 000 000 £000 £000 £000 £0600

Forward contracts not in a designated
cash flow hedge
US Dollars 1.51 165 4,780 5,186 3,163 3,139 (67) 15
Euros 1.4 121 1,881 1,951 1,407 1,613 34 -
Other currencies 4,721 515 87 (25)

9,291 5,267 54 {(10)
Forward contracts in a designated
cash flow hedge
US Dollars 1.59 160 7,313 7,893 4,593 4,982 (320) 173
Euros 1.29 118 12,289 10,334 9,563 8,724 527 174
Czech Koruna 35.73 3282 (73,251) (109.844) {2,050) (3,347) (93) (27)
Cther currencies 3,282 1,028 265 19

15,388 11,387 379 339
Total forward contracts
US Dollars 156 162 12,093 13,179 7,756 8,121 (387) 188
Euros 1.29 118 14,170 12,285 10,970 10,337 561 174
Czech Koruna 35.73 3282 (73,251) (109,844) (2,050) (3.347) (93) (27)
Other currencies 8,003 1,543 352 ©
24,679 16,654 433 329
Amounts recognised in the Consohdated Income Statement 180 147
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 253 182
433 329
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Notes to the Accounts continued

26 Financial instruments continued

The farr values of the forward contracts are disclosed as a £1,069,000 (2014 £496,000) asset and £636,000 (2014 £167,000) hability

in the Consolidated Balance Sheet

Any movements in the far values of the contracts are recognised In equity until the hedge transaction occurs, when gains/losses are

recycled to finance ncome or finance expense

2015 2014
£000 £000
Analysis of movement in hedging reserves
Amounts removed from Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and included in Consolidated
income Statement dunng the year (182) vy
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure 253 182
Net movement in hedging reserves in the year in relation to the effective portion of changes in far valug
of cash flow hedges 71 499
At begnning of year 182 (317}
At end of year 253 182

There was no ineffectiveness arising with regards to forward contracts in a designated cash flow hedge

With the exception of currency exposures, the disclosures in this note exclude short-term receivables and payables

Market nsk

The Group’s activities expose it primarly to the financial nsks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates The Group enters into

dervative financial instruments to manage i1ts exposure to foreign currency rnsk, including

- forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate nsk ansing on the export of goods to and from the USA,

Mamnland Europe and the UK, and

- foreign exchange loans to hedge the exchange rate nsk ansing on translation of the Group’s investment in foreign operations

which have the Euro and Swiss Franc as their functional currencies
Market nsk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis as descnbed below

There has been no change to the Group's exposure to market nisks or in the manner in which these nsks are managed

and measured

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group 1s mainly exposed to the currency of the USA (US Dollar currency) and the currency of Maintand Europe (Euro currency)
The carrying amount of the Group’s US Dollar and Euro dencrminated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date

are as follows

Assets Liabiliies

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

US Dollar 169,047 142,678 42,793 32,433
Euro 61,741 64,525 15,488 14,818

If Sterling increased by 10% aganst the US Dollar and the Euro, profits before taxation and other equity would decrease as follows

US Dollar Euro

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

Profit 5,153 4,633 1,964 1,899
Other equity 11,478 10,022 4,205 4,519

The profit sensitvity anses mainly from the translation of overseas profits eamed dunng the year 10% 1s the sensitvity rate which
managerment assesses to be a reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates The Group's profit sensitivity has increased
aganst the US Dollar and Euro because more of the Group's profits are eamed in these currencies
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27 Commitments

Capnal commitments

Capital expenditure authonsed and contracted at 28 March 2015 but not recognised in these accounts amounts to £5,312,000
(2014 £746,000)

Commitments under operating leases

The Group has entered nto commercial leases on properties and other equipment The former expire between Apnl 2015 and August
2029 and the latter between Apnl 2015 and March 2020 Only certain property agreements contan an option for renewal at rental
prices based on market pnices at the time of exercise

Total payments under non-cancellable operating leases will be made as follows

Land and buildings Other

2015 2014 2015 2014

£000 £000 £000 £000

Within one year 8,611 6,566 429 453
Within two to five years 19,495 13,989 503 856
After five years 6,151 2,257 - -
34,257 22812 932 1,309

28 Retirement benefits

Group companies operate both defined benefit and defined contnbution pension plans The Halma Group Pension Plan and the
Apollo Pension and Life Assurance Plan (both UK) have defined benefit sections with assets held in separate trustee administered
funds Both of thesse sections had already closed to new entrants in 2002/03 Dunng the prior year, following consultation with
members, it was decided that future benefit accruals for existing members of these sections would cease from 1 December 2014
From that date, the former defined benefit members joned the existing defined contribution section within the Halma Group Pension
Plan This closure to future benefit accruals resulted in a curtalment gain in the pnor year of £4,248,000 (before closure costs of
£298,000), which was included in the Adjustments column in the Consolidated Income Statement

Overseas subsidianes have adopted mamly defined contnbution pfans, with the exception of three small defined benefit plans
In the Swiss entities of Medicel AG, Rebutec GmbH and Plasticspritzerel AG, which was acquired during the year

Defined contnbution plans

The amount charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of defined contnbution plans was £5,616,000 (2014
£4,042,000) and represents contnbutions payable to these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans The assets
of the plans are held separately from those of the Group In funds under the control of trustees Where there are ermployees who leave
the plans pnor to vesting fully in the contributions, the ancillary contrnibutions payable by the Group may be reduced by the amount of
forfeited contrbutions

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s significant defined benefit plans are for qualifying employees of its UK subsidianes Under the plans, the employees

are entitled to retirement benefits of up to two thirds of final pensionable salary on attainment of a retwrement age of 60, for members
of the Executive Board, and 65, for all other qualitying employees No other post-retirement benedits are provided The plans are
funded plans

The most recent actuanal valuation of the Halma Group Pension Plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation
was carned out at 1 December 2011 by Mr Adnan Gibbons, Fellow of the Institute and Faculty of Actuanes The present value of the
defined benefit obligation, the related current service cost and the past service cost were measured using the projected unit credit
method The projected unit credit method 1s an accrued benefits valuation method in which the plan labiiies make allowance for
projected earmnings Mr Gibbons also carried out the 1 Apnl 2012 actuanal valuation of the Apollo Pension and Life Assurance Plan
on the same basis The actuanal valuations as at 1 December 2014 and 1 Apni 2015 for the two plans are currently being conducted

Halma nle Annual Raoort and Aconnrts 215 145

odoy oiBereng |

souBWwenc) | |




Notes to the Accounts continued

28 Retirement benefits continued

An altemative to the projected unit credit method 15 a valuation on a solvency basis, often estmated using the cost of buying out
benefits at the balance shest date with a suitable insurance company This amount represents the amount that would be required to
settle the plan liabilities at the balance sheet date rather than the Group continuing to fund the ongoing liabilities of the plan The

Group estimates that this would amount to £430m (2014 £380m)

2015 2014 2013
Key assumptions used (UK plans)
Discount rate 3.25% 4 40% 4 40%
Expected retum on plan assets 325% 4 40% 5 33%
Expected rate of salary Increases 3.00% 3 20% 3 30%
Pension increases LPI 2 5% 2.20% 2 20% 220%
Pension increases £P) 3 0% 2.50% 2 50% 2 50%
Inflation - RP! 3.00% 320% 3 30%
Inflation — CPI 200% 220% 2 30%

Mortality assumptions:

Investigations have been camed out within the past three years into the mortality experencs of the Group’s UK defined benefit plans

These investigations concluded that the current mortality assumptions include sufficiant allowance for future improvements in mortality

rates The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are

2015 2014 2013
Years Years Years
Retinng today

Males 234 234 233
Females 26.0 259 258

Retinng in 20 years
Males 253 252 251
Females 27.9 279 27 8

The sensitmvties regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the UK plan labiities are set out below

Assumption Change in assumption

Impact on plan habihities

Discount rate

Rate of inflation

Rate of salary growth
Rate of mortality

Increase/decrease by 0 5%
Increase/decrease by 0 5%
Increase/decrease by 0 5%
Increase by one year

Decrease/increase by 10 4%
Increase/decrease by 6 8%
Increase/decrease by 1 7%
Increase by 2 8%
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Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement in respect of the UK and Swiss defined benefit plans are as follows

2015 2014

£000 £000

Current service cost 1,501 2,653
Adrmuristration expenses - 638
Curtallment gain - (4,246)
Net interest charge on pension plan labilities 1,419 1,875
2,920 Q920

Actuanal gains and losses have been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
The actual return on plan assets was £30 4m {2014 £7 8m)

The cumulative amount of actuanal losses recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
since the date of transition to IFRSs I1s £78m (2014 £43m)

The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of its UK and Swiss defined benefit
retrerment benefit plans 1s as follows

2015* 2014 2013
£000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligations (291,596) (227,358) (223,447)
Fair value of plan assets 224,806 190,509 176,275
Liability recognised in the balance sheet (66,790) (36,849) (47,172)

* At 28 March 2015, the farr value of the obliigations and assets of the UK plans were £285,751,000 (2014 £223,996,000) and £220,331,000 (2014 £187 511,000)
respectvely and of the Swiss plans were £5,845,000 (2014 £3,362,000) and £4,475,000 {2014 £2,998 000) respactvely

Under the current arrangements, cash contnbutions in the region of £7m per ysar would be made for the immediate future with the
objective of ekminating the pension defict However, the schedule of future contrbutions 1s currently under discussion
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Movements n the present value of the UK and Swiss defined benefit obligations were as follows

2015 2014

£000 £000
At beginning of year (227,358) (223,447)
Service cost {1,501) (2,653)
Curtailment gain - 4,246
Interest cost (9,804) 9.707)
Actuarial losses (56,830) (791)
Defined benefit obligations of business acquired (note 24) {1,256) -
Contnbutions from plan members (804) (1,085)
Benefits paid 6,116 5,882
Premiums pad 28 a7
Foreign exchange (187) -
At end of year (291,596) (227,358)
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Notes to the Accounts continued

28 Retirement benefits continued
Movements in the fair value of the UK and Swiss plan assets were as follows

2015 2014
£000 £000
At beginning of year 190,509 176,275
Expected retum on plan assets 8,385 7.832
Admiristrative expenses - (638)
Actuanal gains 22,035 2,851
Ptan assets of business acguired {note 24) 1,022 -
Contrbutions from the sponsoring companies 8,060 9,183
Contnbutions from plan members 804 1,085
Benefits paid (6,116) (5,982)
Premiums paid (28) 97
Foreign exchange 135 -
At end of ysar 224,806 190,509
The net movement on actuaral gans and losses of the UK and Swiss plans was as follows
205 2014
£000 £000
Defined benefit obligations (56,830} (791)
Farr value of plan assets 22,035 2,851
Net actuanal {losses)/gains (34,795) 2,060
The analysis of the UK plan assets and the expected rate of return at the balance sheet date were 2s follows
Fair value of assets
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
% % % £000 £000 £000
Equity instruments 3.25 4 40 643 114314 101,155 101,355
Debt instruments 3.25 4 40 470 89,743 71,451 61,727
Property 3.25 440 365 16,274 14,905 13,183
325 440 533 220,331 187,511 176,275

The overall expected rate of retum Is a weighted average

In conunction with the trustees, the Group conducts asset-lability reviews for its defined benefit pension plan The results of

these reviews are used to assist the trustees and the Group to determine the optimal long-termn asset allocation with regard to the
structure of the labilities of the plan They are also used o assist the trustees in managing the volatiity in the underlying nvestment
performance and nsk of a significant increase in the defined benefit deficit by providing information used to determine the plan’s

Investment strategy

As a consequence, the Group Is progressively giving more emphasis to a closer returm matching of plan assets and liabilities,
both to ensure the long-term secunty of its defined benefit commitment and to reduce eamings and balance sheet volatility
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The five-year history of expenence adjustments was as follows

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligations {291,596) (227,358) (223,447) (185,956) (177,055)
Far value of plan assets 224,806 190,508 176,275 152,959 140,818
Deficit In the plan (66,790) {36.849) (47,172) (32,997) (36,237}
Expenence adjustments con plan liabilities
Amount 4,271 - 246 (224) 157
Percentage of plan labilities 1% - - - -
Expenence adjustments on plan assets
Amount 22,031 B30 (10,756) {(1,804) (S44)
Percentage of plan assets 10% 0% (5)% (1)% (1)%

The estimated amount of contnbutions expected to be pad to the UK and Swiss plans dunng the year ending 2 Apnl 2016 1s £6 8m,
subject to the finalisation of the 2014 actuanal valuation

The levels of contributions are based on the current service cost and the expected future cash flows of the defined benefit pension
plan The Group estimates the plan labilities on average to fall due over 20 and 27 years, respectively, for the Halma and Apolio plans

29 Disposal of operations

On 30 May 2014, the Group dispesed of Monitor Elevator Products, Inc (Monitor) from its Infrastructure Safety sectar The total
consideration was US$6,243,000 (£3,716,000), of which US$5,514,000 {£3,282,000) was received in cash at completion, before
subsequently being reduced by US$171,000 (£102,000} for the final agreed closing net asset value The remaining US$900,000
was retaned in escrow to be released to Halma on the second anniversary of the transaction subject to any valid warranty/indemnity
claims being made by the purchaser The Directors estimate that the entire US$300,000 held in escrow will be received

The profit on disposal was US$1,808,000 (£1,076,000), which 1s net of £189,000 of cumulative foreign exchange losses reclassified
to the Income Staternent and £273,000 of disposal costs Net assets disposed were US$3,659,000 (£2,178,000) No goodwill was
disposed of or mparred as a result of this transaction

The Group's partial disposal of Optomed dunng the year for €876,000 (£695,000) resulted In a profit on disposal of £223,000
Further details are included in Note 14

The Group’s disposal of #ts 50% ownership interest in PSRM Immobilien AG (PSBM) for CHFS03,000 (£610,000) resulted in a far
value gan being recognised in the Incorme Statement of £131,000 This represented the excess of the far value of the Group's
interest 1IN the associate over its carrying value Further details are included in Note 14

The £4,248,000 cash inflow on disposal of operations shown in the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement represents the £3,180,000,
£695,000 and £610,000 proceeds from the sale of the shares in Monitor, Optomed, and PSRM respectively plus the £36,000
overdraft in Monttor less the disposal costs of £273,000

The total profit on disposal of operations shown in note 1 of £1,430,000 compnses £1,076,000 for the disposal of Monitor, £223,000
for the partial disposal of shares In Optomed and £131,000 for the far value gan recognised in refation to the disposal of PSBM

in the pror year, the loss on disposal relates to late transaction costs and a revision 10 amounts recoverable on the disposals by the
Group, In 2012, of its Asset Monitonng businesses and Volumatic Lirited The £1,917,000 cash inflow related mainly to a release
from escrow Further detalls are provided on page 143 of the 2014 Annual Report and Accounts

30 Events after the balance sheet date

On 19 May 2015 the Group acquired the entire membership interest of Value Added Solutions, LLC ("VAS’) for an initial cash
consideration of $5,000,000, adjustable based on the closing date working capital Additionally, a performance payment of up to
$1,500,000, based upon results achieved in the penod o 1 October 2016, will be paid on 1 Apnl 2017

VAS will operate as a ‘bolt-on’ to Diba Industnes Inc , within Halma's Medical sector Diba Industnes creates innovative fluid handing
solutions that are invaluable to device OEMs, while VAS specialises in precision plastic machining, production of thermally bonded
manifolds, and fuid component integrations VAS will add complementary expertise, capabilities, and products that will allow Diba to
provide broader solutions to its exsting customers, as well as expand its customer base VAS's production facility s located in Berhin,
CT (USA) Due to the proximity of the acquisition date to the date of the approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, it Is impractical
to prowide further information
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Notes to the Accounts continued

31 Related party transactions
Trading transactions

2015 2014
£000 £000
Associated companies
Purchases from associated companies 638 524
Amounts due to associated companies 161 56
Amounts due from assoctated comparies - 128
Other related parties
Rent charged by other related parties 113 115

Other related parties compnses cne company with a Halma employee on the board and from which the Halma subsidiary rents
property All the transactions above are on an arm's length basis and on standard business terms

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of the Directors and Executive Board memibers, who are the key management personnel of the Group, I1s set
out below in aggregate for each of the categones specified in [AS 24 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ Further information about the
remuneration of ndividual Directors 1s provided in the audited part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 81 to 80

2015 2014
| £000 £000
| Wages and salanes 5212 4,353
! Pension costs 169 130
i Share-based payment charge 1,799 1,908

7,180 6,391
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Company Balance sheet

2B March 29 March

2015 2014 §
Notes £000 £000 K]
Fixed assets :;;:;
Tangible assets C3 3,348 3,310 §
Investments C4 163,986 142,005
167,334 145,315
Current assets
Debtors (amounts falling due within one year) C5 45,548 43,740 L
Debtors (amounts falling due after more than one year) C5 415,225 344,307 (&
Short-term deposits 92 92 g
Cash at bank and in hand 174 2417 g
461,039 390556 |
Creditors. amounts falling due within one year
Borrowings C6 10,675 10,998
Creditors Cc7 53,316 43,639
Current tax payable 3,435 3,375
67,426 58,012
Net current assets 393,613 332,544
Total assets less current habilities 560,947 477,859
Creditors amounts faling due after more than one year ‘;n:
Borrowings ce 140,419 104,891 3
Creditors c8 11,753 12,940 @
Net assets 408,775 360,028
Capital and reserves
Share capital C10 37,965 37,902
Share premium account ci 23,608 22,778
Treasury shares CcH1 {8,450) {7,054)
Capital redemption reserve C11 185 185
Other reserves Ch (10,412) {7,647)
Profit and loss account c1 365,879 313,864
Shareholders’ funds ci2 408,775 360,028

The financial statements of Halma pic, company number 40932, were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 June 2015
A J Williams K J Thompson

Director Director
%_/r %
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Notes to the Company Accounts

C1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The separate Company financial statements are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006 and have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial Instruments at farr value as permitted by the Companies Act 20086,
and comply with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards and law The prncipal Company accounting policies have been
appled consistently throughout the current and preceding years and are descnbed below

Related parties
The Company 1s exempt under the terms of FRS 8 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ from disclosing transactions with other members of the
Halrma group

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and habilities
denorminated in forergn currencies at the balance sheet date are reported at the rates prevailing at that date Any gain or loss ansing
from subsequent exchange rate movements 1 Included as an exchange gan or loss in the profit and loss account

Derivative financial mstruments

The company 1s not In scope for FRS 28 which 1s applicable to all entities adopting FRS 26, with the exception of parent companies In
respect of thair single-entity financial statements, provided the entity 18 Included in publicly available consclidated financial statements
which Include disclosures that comply with FRS 29 The Company’s consolidated accounts, found on pages 99 to 150, include
disclosures that comply with IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures (the IFRS equivalent to FRS 29)

Share-based payments
The Company has adopted FRS 20 and the accounting policies followed are in all matenal respects the same as the Group's policy
under IFRS 2 This policy 18 shown on page 133

Investments
Investments are stated at cost less provision for imparment

Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less provisions for impairment and depreciation which, with the exception of freehold land which 1s not
depreciated, 1s provided on all fixed assets on the straight-ine method, each item beng wntten off over its estimated ife The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are

Freehold property 2%
Plant, equipment and vehicles 8% to 33 3%
Leases

The costs of operating leases of property and other assets are charged on a straight-ine basis over the Iife of the lease

Pensions

The Company makes contributions to defined contribution pension plans, which are charged aganst profits when they become
payable The Company also participates in a Group-wide defined benefit pension plan This plan 1s operated on a basis that does not
enable ndwvidual companies to identify therr share of the underlying assets and liabilities, and in accordance with FRS 17 the Company
accounts for its contrnbutions to the plan as f it was a defined contribution plan

Taxation
Taxation comprises current and deferred tax

Current tax 15 the expected tax payable, on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, at the
balance shest date, and any adjustments to tax payable In respect of previous years

The Company provides for deferred tax because of ttming differences between profits as computed for taxation purposes and profits
as stated in the accounts, on an undiscounted basis Deferred tax 1s measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply

in the penods in which the timing differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax assets are only recognised if recovery I1s considered more likely than
not on the basis of all avallable evidence

Bank borrowings

Interest beanng bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs Finance charges,
including direct issue costs, are accounted for on an accruats basis in profit or loss and are added to the cammying amount of the
instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the penod in which they anse
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C2 Result for the year

As permitted by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2008, the Profit and Loss Account of Halma plc 1s not presented as part of
these accounts The Company has reported a profit after taxation for the financial year of £95,414,000 (2014 £99,346,000)

Auditor's remuneration for audit services to the Company was £162,000 (2014 £159,000)

Total employee costs (including Directors) were

2015 2014

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 6,539 5,329
Social secunty costs 615 535
Pension costs 423 499
7,577 6,363

2015 2014

Number Number

Number of employees (all in the UK) 49 43

Detalls of Directors’ remuneration are set out on pages 81 to 90 within the Remuneration Report and form part of these financial

staterments
C3 Fixed assets — tangible assets
Plant
Freshold equipment
properties  and vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost
At 29 March 2014 3,043 2,379 5,422
Additions at cost - 392 392
Disposals - (139) (139)
At 28 March 20156 3,043 2,632 5,675
Accumulated depreciation
At 29 March 2014 433 1,679 2,112
Charge for the year 47 276 323
Disposals - (108) (108)
At 28 March 2015 480 1,847 2,327
Carrying amounts
At 28 March 2015 2,563 785 3,348
At 29 March 2014 2,610 700 3,310
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

C4 Investments
Shares n Group comparnies

2015 2014

£000 £000

At cost less amounts written off at beginning of year 142,005 136,832
Increase in Investments 21,981 5173
At cost less amounts wntten off at end of year 163,986 142,005

The increase of £21,981,000 compnises entirely the 100% acquisition of Advanced Electronics Limited (Advanced)

The increase of £5,173,000 in the pnor year related to the acquisitton of Talentum Developments Limited (£3,564,000), an increase
innvestment in an existing subsidiary (£1,946,000) and £337,000 reduction in nvestment following the finalisation of the acquisition

accounting for ASL Holdings Limited (ASL)

Details of pnncipal subsidiary companies are set out below Halma plc owns 100% of the ordinary share capital of all its subsidianes

(cirectly, or tndirectly through ts intermediate holding companies)

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410{2) of the Companies Act 2008 by prowviding information only
in relation to substdiary undertakings the results or financial position of which, in the opinion of the Drectors, pnncipally affected the

financial statements

A complete hist of subsidiary and associated undertakings will be attached to the next annual retum to be filed at Companies House

following the approval of these accounts
Supplementary information relating to Halma's operations i1s provided on pages 160 to 163

Country of Country of
Name of company incorporation Name of company incomoration
Bureau D'Electrontque Appliquee S A {BEA) Belgium Smith Flow Contro! LUimited UK
Rudolf Riester GmbH Germany Texecom Limited UK
Medicel AG Switzerand Accutome, Inc USA
Advanced Electronics Limited UK Diba Industries, Inc USA
Apallo Fire Detectors Limited UK Labsphere, Inc USA
Awvire Limited UK MicroSurgical Technology, Inc USA
Crowcon Detection Instruments Limited UK Ocean Optics, Inc USA
Elfab Limited UK Oseco Inc USA
Fire Fighting Enterpnises Limited UK Perma Pure LLC USA
Fortress interlocks Limited UK Rohrback Cosasco Systems, inc USA
HWM-Water Limited UK SunTech Medical Inc USA
Keeler Limited UK Volk Optical Inc USA
Palintest Limited UK
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C5 Debtors

2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts faling due within one year
Amounts due frorm Group companies 38,029 36,792
Dervative financial nstruments 129 -
Other debtors - 2
Prepayments and accrued income 6,530 6,261
Deferred tax asset (note C9) 860 685
45,548 43,740
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts due from Group companies 415,225 344,307

Derwvative financial nstruments compnse Swiss Franc swap contracts The change in the far value of the denvative financial assets
outstanding at the year end, and classified as far value through profit and loss, was £129,000 gain

C6 Borrowings

2015 2014
£000 £000
Faling due within one year
Qverdrafts 10,675 10,998
Faling due after more than one year
Loan notes 657 -
Unsecured bank loans 139,762 104,891
140,419 104,891
Total borrowings 151,094 115,889

The Group's principal source of long-term funding 1s its unsecured five-year £360m revolving credit facility, whuch expires in
November 2018 and 1s therefore classified as expinng within two to five years (2014 within two to five years) At 28 March 2015
£220,238,000 (2014 £255,109,000) remamed committed and undrawn

The bank overdrafts, which are unsecured, at 28 March 2015 and 29 March 2014 were drawn on uncommitted facilittes which all
expire within one year, and were held pursuant to a Group poohng arrangement which offsets them against credit balances in
subsidiary undertakings

The Company 1s part of an arrangement between UK subsidianes whereby overdraft faclites of £17,890,000 (2014 £22,122,000)
are cross-guaranteed Of these facilittes £64,000 (2014 £nil} was drawn

The loan notes 1ssued In respect of the Advanced acquisition attract interest at 1% and are convertible into cash at par on each
anniversary of the acquisiticn date until 14 May 2019 They are classiied as falling due within one to two years

C7 Creditors, amounts falling due within one year

2015 2014

£000 £000

Trade creditors 1,456 1,379
Amounts owing to Group companies 43,999 37,011
Cther taxation and social security 1,100 1,145
Cther creditors 515 1,422
Accruals and deferred income 2,890 1,216
Provision for contingent and deferred consideration 3,356 1,466
53,316 43,639

The £3,356,000 contingent congideration payable relates to the Advanced acquisiion made dunng the year The estimated vaiue of
the payment represents the Directors' best estimate based on actual results for the penod to March 2015 and 1s payable n June
2015 In the pnor year the balance repressented amounts due in respect of the Talentum and ASL acquisitions
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

€8 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

2015 2014
£000 £000
Amounts owing to Group companmes 11,112 10,303
Prowision for contingent consideration 197 2,284
Other creditors 444 353
11,753 12,940

These Labilities fall due as follows
Within one to two years 641 2,637
Within two to five years - -
After more than five years 11,112 10,303

The £187,000 provision for contingent consideration represents the Directors’ best eéstmate of the second tranche of payment due in
respect of the ASL acquistion In the pnor year the payment was estimated at £2,284,000 and was shown as payable within one to
two years

C9 Deferred tax
2015 2014
£000 £000
Movement in deferred tax assest
At beginning of year 685 268
Credit to profit and loss account 175 M7
At end of year {note C5) 860 685
Deferred tax compnses short-term timing differences
C10 Share capital
Issued and fully paid
2015 2014
£000 2000
Ordinary shares of 10p each 37,965 37,802

The number of ordinary shares in 1ssuse at 28 March 2015 was 379,645,332 (2014 379,018,522), including treasury shares of
1,371,785 (2014 1,278,148) Changes dunng the year in the issued ordinary share capital were as follows

Issued and
fully paid
2015

£000

At 29 March 2014 37,902
Share options exercised 63

At 28 March 2015 37,965

The total consideration received In cash in respect of share options exercised amounted to £893,000 (2014 £194,000)

Detalls of share options n issue on the Company's share capital and share-based payments are included in note 23 to the
Group accounts
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C11 Reserves

Non-distributable  Distributable

Share Capital Total profit

pramium Troasury redemption Qther and loss

account shares reserve reserves account

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

At 29 March 2014 22,778 {7,054) 185 (7,647) 313,864
Profit for the financial year - - - - 95,414
Dividends pad - - - - (43,399)
Issue of shares 830 - - - -
Net movement in treasury shares - (1,396) - - -
Movement In other reserves - - - (2,765) -
At 28 March 2015 23,608 (8,450) 185 {10,412) 365,879

The Capital redemption reserve was created on the repurchase and cancellation of the Company’s own shares The Other reserves
represent the provision being established in respect of the value of equity-settled share option plans and performance share plan
awards mads by the Company Treasury shares are the Company’s own shares purchased and are held to fulfil ts obligations

under the performance share plan

C12 Reconciliation of movement in shareholders’ funds

2015 2014

£000 £000
At beginning of year 360,028 305,637
Profit for the financiat year 95,414 99,346
Dividends paid (43,399) (40,485)
Issue of shares 893 194
Net movement In treasury shares (1,396) (2,520)
Movement in other reserves (2,765) (2,144)
At end of year 408,775 360,028
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Summary 2006 to 2015

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08

£000 £000 £000

Revenue (note 1) 337,348 354,606 397,955
Overseas sales (note 1) 249,055 258,050 288,701
Profit before taxation, and adjustmenits (note 2) 59,641 66,091 73,215
Net tangible assets/capital employed 105,396 113,048 134,320
Borrowings {excluding overdrafts) 32,308 29,762 72,393
Cash and cash equivalents (net of overdrafts) 35,826 22,051 28,118
Employees {note 1) 3,187 3,326 3,683
Eamings per ordinary share (note 1) 11 08p 11 86p 13 49p
Adjusted eamungs per ordinary share (note 2) 1127p 12 42p 13 86p
Year-on-year increase in adjusted eamings per ordinary share 19 3% 10 8% 115%
Retum on Sales (notes 1 and 3) 17 7% 18 6% 18 4%
Return on Capital Employed (restated — note 4) 57 2% 62 2% 60 6%
Return on Totai Invested Capital (restated — note 4) 13 5% 14 3% 14 8%
Year-on-year increase in dividends per ordinary share (paid and proposed) 5% 5% 5%
Crdinary share pnce at financial year end 188p 220p 192p
Market capitalisation at financial year end £693 am £821 8m £7177m

Ali years are presenied under IFRS

Notes
1 Contmuing and discontinued operations

2 Adjusted to remove the amortisation of acquired intangible assets and acquisition transaction costs, release of far value adustments to inventory, and adjustments

10 contingent consderaton {collectively ‘acquisition tems ) IFRS figures includa results of discontinued operations up to the date of therr sales or closure but excluds
matenal discontinued and continuing proéits on sales or closures of oparations In 2013/14 only, the effects of closure to future benefit accrual of the defined benefit
pension plans have also baen removed

Retumn on Sales I1s defined as profit before taxaton, the amortisation of acquired intangible assets, acquistion tems {from 2010/11}, profit or loss on disposal of
operations, and the afiects of closure to future benelit accrual of the defined benafit pension plans net of assocated costs (2013714 only) expressed as a parcentage
of revenug

Tha ROCE and ROTIC measures have been restated as a parcantage of the average of the current year's and prior year's Capital Employed and Total Invested
Capstal respectively Using an average as the denominator 1s considered to be more representative See note 3 10 the Report and Accounts for the definittons of
RCCE and ROTIC

1AS 19 (a5 revised in June 2011) ‘Employee Banefits’ was adopted by the Group in 2013/14 To aid companson, and as required by 1AS 19 (revised), the
Consolidated Financial Statements and affected notes for 2012/13 were restated as if IAS 19 {revised) had always applied during that year Results prior to 2012/13
hava not been restated
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{Restated)

{ncte 5)
2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 201112 2012113 2012/13 201314 2014/15
£000 £000 £000 000 £000 £000 £000 £000
455,928 459,118 518,428 579,883 619,210 619,210 676,506 726,134
351,522 360,779 412,297 454,270 503,635 503,635 548,629 587,822
79,087 86,214 104,551 120,465 130,661 128,543 140,249 153,618
173,128 145,519 146,964 163,283 188,701 188,701 189,707 219,148
86,173 21,924 79,688 64,014 160,013 160,013 107,622 140,419
34,0987 31,006 42,610 45,305 49,723 49,723 33,126 39,525
4,018 3,689 3,875 4,347 4,716 4,716 4,988 5,328
14 07p 16 10p 19 23p 23 01p 2522p 24 T9p 28 14p 27.49p
15 30p 16 83p 20 49p 24 46p 26 22p 2579p 28 47p 31.17p
10 4% 10 4% 21 3% 19 4% 7 2% 5 4% 10 4% 9.5%
17 3% 18 8% 20 2% 20 8% 21 1% 20 8% 207% 21.2%
53 7% 55 9% 72 2% 78 6% 76 4% 75 8% 76 6% 77.6%
14 2% 14 0% 16 0% 17 6% 16 8% 16 6% 16 7% 16.3%
5% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7% 7%
156p 258p 355p 381p 518p 518p 579p 701p
£583 7m £978 1m  £1,3427m  £1,4408m | £1,9626m £1,9626m | £2,1926m £2,661 3m
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Halma Directory

Prncipal operating companies by sector

Main products

Process Safety

Castall Safety Intemational Limited

Safety systems for controlling hazardous iIndustnal processes

Crowcon Detection Instruments Limited

Gas detection instruments for personnel and plant safety

Elfab Limited

Pressure sensitive relief devices to protect process plant

Fortress Interlocks Limited

Safety systems for controling access to dangerous machines

Kirk Key Interlock Company, LLC

Key mteriocks and nterlocking systems for the protection of personnel and equipment

Netherlocks Safety Systems BV

Process safety systerns for petrochemical and industrial applications

Oseco Inc

Pressure sensitive relief devices to protect process plant

Rohrback Cosasco Systems Inc

Design, manufacture and sale of pipeline comosion monitonng products and systems into
diverse industnes including oll, gas, petrochemical, pharmaceutical, chemical and utilites

SERV Trayvou Interverrcuillage S A S

Safety systems for controling access to dangercus machines

Smuth Flow Control Limited

Process safety systems for petrochemical and industnal applications

Infrastructure Safety

Agvanced Electronics Limited Networked fire detectors and controf systems

Apollo Fire Detectors Limited Smoke and heat detectors, sounders, beacons and interfaces

Awvire Limited Infrared safety systems for elevator doors and elevator emergency communications

Bureau D'Electronique Appliquée S A (BEA)

Sensors for automatic doors

FFE Limrted Flame detectors, beam smoke detectors and spscialist fire extinguishing systems
Texecom Limited Secunty sensors and signaling products
Medical

Accudynamics, LLC

Mechanical and fluidic components pnmanly used in medical, Ife science and scientific
nstruments

Accutomne, Inc

Ophthatmic diagnostic and surgical equipment, as well as a broad Iine of pharmaceutical
products

Baoding Longer Precision Pump Co, Ltd

Penstaltic, synnge, piston and gear pumps for use In laboratory, iIndustnal and medical
applications for both end-user and OEM customers

Bio-Chem Fluidics Inc

Miniature valves, micre pumps and fluid components for medical, life science and scientific
nstruments

Diba Industnes, Inc

Specialised components and complete fiud transfer subassemblies for medical, life science
and scientfic nstruments

Keeler Limited

Ophthalimic instruments for diagnostic assessment of eye conditions

Medicel AG

Instruments for ophthalmic surgery
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Principal iocations Telephone E-mail Website _u:
|
a

Kingsbury, London (Head Office} +44 (0)20 8200 1200 uksales@castell com www castell com 8

Shanghar, China %’

Abingdon, Oxfordshire (Head Office) +44 (01235 557700 sales@crowcon com WWW CIOWCON COmM a

Beyng, China

Eranger, Kentucky

North Shields, Tyne & Wear +44 (091 293 1234 sales@elfab com www elfab com

Wolverhampton, West Midlands +44 {01902 349000 sales@fortressinteriocks com www fortressinteriocks com

(Head Office} —

Metboume, Australia g

Massillon, Ohio +1 {1)800 438 2442 sales@kirkkey com www kirkkey com g

Alphen aan den Rin, The Netherlands +31 (01172 471 339 sales@netherlocks com www netherocks com §

Broken Arrow, Oklahoma +1 (1)918 258 5626 nfo@oseco com WWW 0SBCO Com °

Santa Fe Spnngs, Califomia + (1)562 948 0123 sales@cosasco com WWW COSASCO com

Houston, Texas

Aberdeen, Scotland

Shanah, UAE

Singapore

Pans, France (Head Office) +33({)1 48181515 sales@servtrayvou com WwWW Servtrayvou com

Turs, Tunisia

Witham, Essex +44 (01376 517901 sales@smithflowcontrol com www smithflowcontrol com

Cramington, Northumberland +44 {0n670 70711 sales@advancedco com www advancedco com

Havant, Hampshire Head Office) +44 (()2392 492112 enqunes@apoilo-fire com www apollo-fire co uk

Aubum Hills, Michigan

Beyng, China

Maidenhsad, Berkshire (Head Office) +44 (0)1628 540100 sales uk@avire-global com www avire-glebal com

Ceské Budejovice, Czech Republic
Hauppauge, New York

Shanghal, China

Singapore

Liege, Belgium (Head Office) +32 (04 361 B5 65 Info@bea be www bea be

Prttsburgh, Pennsytvania

Beyng, China

Hitchin, Hertfordshire +44 (011462 444740 sales@ffeuk com www flelk com
Haslingden, Lancashire +44 {0)1706 220460 sales@texe com www texe com

Lakewlie, Massachusetts +1 (1)508 946 4545 info@accudynarnics com WWW accudynamics com
Malvern, Pennsylvania (Head Office) +1 (1610 889 0200 info@accutome com www accutome com
Cuik, The Netherlands

Bacding, Hebel, China +86 312 3110087 longer@longerpump com www longerpump com
Boonton, New Jersey +1 (1873 263 3001 sales us@oocherfluidics com www biochemfluidics com
Danbury, Connecticut (Head Office) +1 (1)203 744 0773 salesdept@dibaind com www dibaind com
Cambndge. UK

Windsor, Berkshire (Head Office) +44 (On753 857177 Info@keelerco uk www Keeler co uk

Broomall, Pennsylvania

Wolfhalden, Swatzerland

+41 71727 1050

info@medicel com

www medicel com
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Halma Directory continued

Principal operating companies by sector

Main products

MicroSurgical Technology, Inc

Ophthalmic surgical products, focusing on single-use devices used in cataract surgery

Rudotf Riester GmbH

Diagniostic medical devices for ophthalmology, blood pressure measurement and ear, nose
and throat diagnostics

SuriTech Medical, Inc

Clirucal grade non-invasive biood pressure monitonng products and technologies

Volk Optical, Inc

Ophthalmic equipment and lenses as ards to diagnosis and surgery

Environmental & Analysis

Alicat Scientffic, Inc

Mass flow meters, mass flow controllers and pressure controllers for high-precision fiud flow
measurement

Avo Photonics, Inc

Opto-electronic solutions and product design, development and manufactunng of exclusive,
confidential, pnvate label applicatons

Berson Mileutechniek BV

Ultraviolet {UV) disinfection systems for municipal dnnking water and wastewater treatment
plants

Fiberguide Industnes, Inc

Large core specialty optical fibre, high temperature metatised fitbres for optcal power delvery
and optical sensing applications

Hanowvia Limited

Uttraviolet (V) light water treatment equipment used in the manufacture of food, beverages
and pharmaceuticals, as well as products for aquacutture, poo! and leisure and for manne
ballast water treatment

HWM-Water Limited

Mutti-utiity M2M solutions provider, iIncluding data recording and management for water
networks, electncity, solar PV and energy consarvation

Hydreka SA S

Equipment and software to monrtor and anatyse the entire ¢lean and dirty water cycle and for
leak detection n municipal and large scale ndustnal applications

Labsphere, Inc

Precision radiometnc and photometric systems and software for ight testing, calibration and
measursment

Ocean Optics, Inc

Portable spectrometers and spectral sensors for laboratory and field applications in chemical
analysis, process control, environmental monitonng, Iife sciences and medical diagnostics

Palintest Limdted Water and emvironmental analysis equipment {o test dnnking water, wastewater and process
water, water in pools and spas, as well as farming and imgation applications

Perma Pure LLC High precision moisture management products including dryers, hurmidifiers, and complete
sample conditioning systemns for emissions monitonng, process analysis, and medical
apphcations

Pixefteq, Inc Muttispectral sensing and magng solutions for aerospace, biomedical, sermconductor,
inclustnal and scentific apphcatons

Sensorex Corporation Electrochemical sensors for water analysis applicatons in the process industry and

iaboratory markets

Wethal Guangxue Yiqr {Shanghai), Ltd

Portable spectrometers and spectral sensors for laboratory and field applications in chernical
analysis, process control, ervronmental monitonng, Iife sciences and medical diagnostics

Group

Halma Holdings Inc

Halma North Amencan Head Office

Halma Intemational Limited Representatve
COffices

Halma China hubs in Shanghar, Beying, Chengadu, Guangzhou and Shenyang

Haima India Pvt Lid

Halma India hub
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Prncipal locations Telephone E-mail Website T_ﬂg

Redmond, Washington +i (1425 556 0544 Info@microsurgical com www microsurgical com E

Jungingen, Germany +49 (0j74 77 92 700 info@rester de www rester de g
L]

Momsuwlle, North Carolina Head Cffice)  +1 (1)919 654 2300 sales@suntechrmed com www suntechmed com ?1

Shenzhen, China

Mentor, Chio +1 (1)440 942 6161 volk@volk com wwwvolk com

Tucson, Anzona +1 {1)520 290 6060 Info@alicat com www alicat com L

Shanghai, China —

Mumbay, India g

Horsham, Pennsylvana +1 (1)215 441 0107 sales@avophotonics com www avophotonics com g
[+

Nuenen, The Netherlands +31 (00 2907777 info@bersonuv com Wwww bersonuv com ®

Stiring, New Jersey +1 (1) 908 647 6601 info@fiberguide com www fiberguide com

Caldwell, Idaho

Shanghal, China

Slough, Berkshire +44 (0753 515300 sales@hanovia com www hanovia com

Shanghal, China

Beypng, China

Cwmbran, South Wales (Head Office)
Cincinnatl, Ohio
Pisford, Northampton

+44 (0)1633 489 478

sales@hwm-watercom

www hwm-water com

Lyon, France +33(04 7253 1153 hydreka@hydreka fr www hydreka com
North Sutton, New Hampshire +1 {1)603 927 4266 labsphere@labsphere com www labsphere com
(Head Office)

Shanghal, China

Duredn, Flonda Head Office) +1 (1)727 733 2447 info@oceanoptics com www oceanoptics com
Winter Park, Flonda

Ostfildem, Germany

Durven, The Netherands

Oxford, UK

Gateshead, Tyne & Wear +44 (0)191 491 0808 sales@palintest com www palintest com
Beyng, China

Sydney, Australa

Toms Rver, New Jersey +1 (1)732 244 0010 info@permapure com WWW permapure com
Shanghar, China

Mumbay, India

Largo, Flonda (Head Office) +1 (1j727 545 0741 nfo@pixelteq com www pixelteq com
Beying, China

Garden Grove, Calformia +1 {1714 895 4344 emal@sensorex.com WWW Sensorex com
Shanghal, China +86 21 6295 6600 asiasales@oceanoptics com www oceancplics cn
Beying, China

Cincinnatl, Chio +1 (1)513 772 5501 halmaholdings@halmaholdings com  www halma com
China +86 21 6016 7666 halmachina@halma com www halma cn
Mumbal, india +E1 (226708 0400 hamandia@halma com wwaw halma com
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Shareholder Information and Advisers

Financial calendar

2014/15 Half year resufts 18 Novemnber 2014
2014/15 Interim dvidend paid 4 February 2015
Trading update 10 February 2015
2014/15 Year end 28 March 2015
2014/15 Final results 11 June 2015
2014/15 Report and Accounts issued 23 June 2015
Annual General Mesting 23 July 2015
2014415 Final dvidend payable 19 August 2015
2015/16 Half year end 3 October 2015
2015/16 Half year results 17 Novernber 2015
201516 Intenm dvidend payable February 2016
2015/16 Year end 2 Apnl 2016
2015/16 Final results June 2016
Shareholders Shares
Analysis of shareholders at 13 May 2015 {number) % {number) %
Number of shares held
1-5,000 4,964 787 6,892,932 1.8
5,001 — 25,000 821 13.0 8,695,850 23
25,001 - 100,000 262 41 13,571,194 3.6
100,001 — 750,000 182 29 56,866,512 15.0
750,001 and over 82 13 293,598,844 77.3
6,311 100.0 379,645,332 100.0
Share pnce
London Stock Exchange, pence per 10p share 2015 2014 2013 2012 201
Highest 726 623 531 430 367
Lowest 559 471 373 306 240
Dwidends
Pence per 10p share 2015 2014 2013 2012 201
Intenm 4.65 435 406 379 354
Final 7 31 682 637 585 556
Total 11.96 1117 1043 Q74 910
* Proposed
Registered office Registrar

Misbourne Court
Rectory Way
Amersham
Bucks HP7 ODE

Tel +44 (0j1494 721111
halma@halma com
Website www halma com

Registered In England and Wales, No 40932
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Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilons

Bndgwater Road

Bnstol BS99 677

Tel +44 (0)870 707 1046
Fax +44 (0)870 703 8101
Website www Investorcentre couk




Investor information

Visit our website, www halma.com, for investor nformation and Company news In addiion to accessing financial data, you can view and
download Annual and Half Year Reports, analyst presentations, find contact details for Halma senior executives and subsidiary companes
and access knks to Halma subsidiary websttes You can also downioad our iPad app or subscnbe to ane-mail news alert service 10
automatically recerve an e-mail when signficant anncuncements are made

Shareholding information

Please contact our Registrar, Computershare, directly for all enqguines about your shareholding Visit ther Investor Centre website
www Investorcentre co uk for anline information about your shareholding {you will need your shareholder reference number which
can be found on your share certificate or dvidend tax voucher), or telephone the Registrar direct using the dedicated telephone
number for Halma shareholders +44 (0) 870 707 1046

Dividend mandate

Shareholders can arrange to have therr dwidends paid directly into therr bank or bullding society account by cormpleting a bank mandate form
The advantages to using this service are the payment is more secure than sending a cheque through the post, it avoids the mconvenience of
paying in a cheque and there 15 no nsk of lost, stolen or out-of-date cheques A mandate form can be obtaned from Computershare or you

will find one on the reverse of the tax voucher of your last dvidend payment

Dividend reinvestment plan

The Company operates a dvidend reinvestment plan (DRIP’) which offers shareholders the option to elect to have therr cash dvidends
renvested In Halma ordinary shares purchased in the market You can register for the DRIP online by visting Computershare’s Investor
Centre webstte (as above) or by requesting an application form direct from Computershare Shareholders who wish to elect for the DRIP
for the forthcoming final dvdend, but have not already done so, should retum a DRIP apphcation form to Computershare no later than

29 July 2015

American Depositary Receipts
The Halma plc Amencan Depositary Receipts (ADRs) are traded on the Over The Counter market (OTC) under the symbol HLMLY
One ADR represents three Halma plc ordinary shares JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A 18 the depositary if you should have any quenes,

please contact

JPMorgan Chase Bank N A, PO Box 64504, St Paul, MN 55164-0854, USA E-mall jpmorgan adr@wellsfargo com Telephone number
for general guenes (80C) 990 1135 Telephone number from outside the USA +1 651 453 2128

Electronic communications

All shareholder communications, including the Company's Annual Report and Accounts, are made avalable to shareholders on thae Halma
website and you may opt to receive e-mail notification that documents and nformation are avalable to view and download rather than to
recenve paper copies through the post Using electronic cormmunications helps us to imit the amount of paper we use and assists us in
reducing our costs If you would like to sign up for this service, visit Computershare's Investor Centre website You may change the way

yOu receve communications at any time by contacting Computershare

Share dealing facilities

Atelephone dealing service has been arranged with Stocktrade which provides a simple way for buying or selling Halma shares Basic
commussion 1S 0 5%, subject to a minimum commission of £25 00 For further information please call 0131 240 0400 and guote reference

‘Halma Dial and Deal Service’
Annual General Meeting

The 121st Annual General Meeting of Halma plc will bs held in the Ballroom at The Berkeley Hotel, Wilton Place, London SW1X 7RL
on Thursday 23 July 2015 at 1030 am

Investor relations contacts
Rachel Hirst/Andrew Jaques
MHP Communications

60 Great Portland Strest

London WiW 7RT

Te! +44 (0)20 3128 8100
Fax +44 (0)20 3128 8171
halma@rnhpe com

Andrew Willams
Halma plc
Misboume Court
Rectory Way
Amersham
Bucks HP7 ODE

Tel +44 {01494 721111
Fax +44 (01494 728032
mvestor relations@halima com

Design, consultancy and production by Luminous

www luminous co uk
Pnnted by Halstan co uk

Auditor

Deloitte LLP
Abbots House
Abbey Street
Reading RG1 3BD

Bankers

The Royal Bank of Scotland ple
280 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 4RB

Financeal advisers
Lazard & Co, Umited
50 Stratton Street
London W1J 8LL

Halma ple Annial Renort and Ancewints 2015

Brokers

Credit Suisse Secunties
{Europe) Limited

One Cabot Square
London E14 4QJ

Investec Investment Banking
2 Gresham Street
London EC2V 7QP

Solicitors

CMS Cameron McKenna LLP
Cannon Place

78 Cannon Street

London EC4N 6AF
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Halma plc
Misboume Court
Rectory Way
Amersham
Bucks HP7 ODE

Tel  +44(011404 721111
Fax +44(0)1484 728032
Web wwwhama com

HALMA

Stay up-to-date

The latest Halrma news, share price, webcasts,

financial documents and more ¢an be found on the
Halma websrtte at www halma com You can download
our free investor relations iPad app and follow Halma on
the: move at http./geo gli4wWaly




